

PDF Compendium to THE ECOLOGY OF SOULS

compiled by Joshua Cutchin

About the PDF Compendium to THE ECOLOGY OF SOULS

This PDF resource contains the complete endnotes, bibliography, and appendices for Volumes One and Two of *The Ecology of Souls*. Like the decision to split the book in two, these were omitted from the print editions to simply save on space. At the same time, anyone who purchases a book deserves access to the reference material informing it. This PDF is designed to serve that purpose. It is substantively no different than *The Ecology of Souls Companion*, which is available in print form.

The material in this companion is intended as a freely-accessible resource for academics, researchers, and anyone else invested in the pursuit of knowledge.

All *Ecology of Souls* material, including both volumes, the companion, and this PDF, are copyrighted by the author Joshua Cutchin.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ENDNOTES VOLUME ONE	5
ENDNOTES VOLUME TWO	85
BIBLIOGRAPHY	147
APPENDICES	223
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS	237
ABOUT THE AUTHOR	238
OTHER BOOKS BY JOSHUA CUTCHIN	239
PRAISE FOR ECOLOGY OF SOULS	240

One book in two volumes...

Ecology of Souls was initially conceived as a single book. Yet, in researching the relationship between UFOs and death, it quickly became apparent that readers would need a significant amount of background information to fully appreciate the complexity of these two subjects. Thus, its length necessitated breaking the work into two separate volumes, with chapter numbers carried across both books.

Volume One is meant to establish this foundation. It presents the reader with a working knowledge of ancient soul traditions. Volume Two examines how modern interpretations of UFOs and cryptids reflect the older themes presented in the first book, placing today's mysteries within traditions as old as humankind itself.

...and a companion book

In hindsight, it should have been expected that the references for such an immense topic would demand special treatment. Included within their respective titles these citations would have added considerable length to both volumes of *Ecology of Souls*.

Luckily, academic precedent allows for publishing a separate supplement. Placing the Bibliography and Endnotes in their own book not only conserves space in Volumes One and Two, but also presents the opportunity for three Appendices, each of which adds depth to earlier chapters.

What you hold in your hand is a testament to the powerful ideas found in ancient mythologies, faded manuscripts, as well as online today. These exhaustive citations are intended both for the dogged scholar and the armchair enthusiast. Within *The Ecology of Souls Companion* lies a feast for the curious.

This supplemental material can also be freely accessed by visiting the website address provided below:

www.joshuacutchin.com/ecology-of-souls-companion

ENDNOTES

VOLUME ONE

- [1] Raynes, B. (2018). An Overview of the History of Unidentified Aerial Phenomenon Contact Paradigms. In R. Hernandez, J. Klimo, & R. Schild (Eds.), *Beyond UFOs: The Science of Consciousness and Contact with Non Human Intelligence "Volume I"* (pp. 679-728). USA: Dr. Edgar Mitchell Foundation for Research into Extraterrestrial and Extraordinary Experiences.
- [2] Strieber, W., & Kripal, J.J. (2016). The Super Natural. New York, NY: Jeremy P. Tarcher.
- [3] European Academy of Neurology. (June 29, 2019). One in 10 people have 'near-death' experiences, according to new study. Retrieved March 16, 2021 from https://medicalxpress.com/news/2019-06-people-near-death.html
- [4] Shushan, G. (2009). Conceptions of the Afterlife in Early Civilizations: Universalism, Constructivism and Near-Death Experience. London, UK: Continuum International Publishing Group.
- [5] Clelland, M. (August 5, 2020). Christopher Knowles, Novelist and Synchromystic. Retrieved March 16, 2021 from https://www.unknowncountry.com/the-unseen/christopher-knowles-novelist-and-synchromystic/
- [6] Lewis, J.R. (1994). Encyclopedia of Afterlife Beliefs and Phenomena. Detroit, MI: Gale Research Inc.
- [7] Ibid.
- [8] Schick, T., & Vaughn, L. (2014). *How to Think About Weird Things: Critical Thinking for a New Age*. New York, NY: McGraw-Hill (7th ed.).
- [9] Keel, J. (1976). The Mothman Prophecies. New York, NY: Signet Books.
- [10] Owen, I.M., & Sparow, M. (1976). Conjuring Up Philip: An Adventure in Psychokinesis. New York, NY: Harper & Row.
- [11] Evans, H. (1984). Visions, Apparitions, and Alien Visitors: A Comparative Study of the Entity Enigma. Wellingborough, UK: The Aquarian Press.
- [12] Bullard, T. (1987). UFO Abductions: The Measure of A Mystery (Vol. 2). Mount Rainier, MD: Fund for UFO Research.
- [13] Strieber, W., & Strieber, A. (2017). *The Afterlife Revolution*. San Antonio, TX: Walker & Collier, Inc., Publishers.
- [14] Strieber, W. (2020). A New World. Portland, OR: Beyond Words.
- [15] Kowalewski, D. (2015). Death Walkers: Shamanic Psychopomps, Earthbound Ghosts, and Helping Spirits in the Afterlife Realm. Bloomington, IN: iUniverse.
- [16] Harpur, P. (2003). Daimonic Reality: A Field Guide to the Otherworld. Ravensdale, WA: Pure Winds Press.

- [17] Mosha, R.S. (2000). *The Heartbeat of Indigenous Africa: A Study of the Chagga Educational System*. New York, NY: Garland Publishing, Inc.
- [18] Bishop, G. (2017). The Co-Creation Hypothesis: Human Perception, The Informational Universe, and the Overhaul of UFO Research. In R. Graham (Ed.), *UFOs: Reframing the Debate* (pp. 189-208). Hove, UK: White Crow Books.
- [19] Randles, J. (1987). Sixth Sense: Psychic Powers and Your Five Senses. Topfield, MA: Salem House Publishers.
- [20] Bord, J. (July 1974). UFOs in Folklore. Flying Saucer Review 20(1), pp. 29-30.
- [21] Dennett, P. (July 2003). Conversations with extraterrestrials. MUFON UFO Journal 423, pp. 3-6.
- [22] Shushan 2009.
- [23] Ibid.
- [24] Lecouteux, C. (2020). *The Pagan Book of the Dead*. (J.E. Graham, Trans.). Rochester, VT: Inner Traditions.
- [25] Randles 1987.
- [26] Bloch, A. (Director). (n.d.). Aliens and Archetypes (#S425) [TV series episode]. In A. Bloch (Producer), *Thinking Allowed with Jeffrey Mishlove* [TV series]. Thinking Allowed Productions. Retrieved March 17, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=jzA3EJYbCb0
- [27] Maya [screen name]. (2011, November). Jung about death (Face to Face). Retrieved March 17, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=xWAicIovVzU
- [28] Jung, C.G. (1997). Jung on Synchronicity and the Paranormal. R. Main (Ed.). London, UK: Routledge.
- [29] Jung, C.G. (1991). Flying Saucers: A Modern Myth of Things Seen in the Skies. (R.F.C. Hull, Trans.). Princeton, NJ: Princeton University Press. (Original work published 1978)
- [30] Ibid.
- [31] Mack, J.E. (1999). Passport to the Cosmos: Human Transformation and Alien Encounters. New York, NY: Three Rivers Press.
- [32] Rushton, N. (March 2, 2019). A Faerie Taxonomy. Retrieved April 20, 2021 from https://deadbutdreaming.wordpress.com/2019/03/02/a-faerie-taxonomy/
- [33] Hansen, G.P. (2001). The Trickster and the Paranormal. Bloomington, IN: Xlibris.
- [34] Clark, J. (1998). The UFO Book: Encyclopedia of the Extraterrestrial. Detroit, MI: Visible Ink Press.
- [35] Mack, J.E. (1994). *Abduction: Human Encounters with Aliens*. New York, NY: Charles Scribner's Sons.
- [36] Lewis 1994.
- [37] Gecewicz, C. (October 1, 2018). New Age' beliefs common among both religious and nonreligious Americans. Retrieved March 17, 2021 from https://www.pewresearch.org/fact-tank/2018/10/01/new-age-beliefs-common-among-both-religious-and-nonreligious-americans/
- [38] Stevenson, I. (1997). Reincarnation and Biology: A Contribution to the Etiology of Birthmarks and Birth Defects, Vol. 1 & 2. Westport, CT: Praeger Publishing.
- [39] Targ, R. (2012). The Reality of ESP: A Physicist's Proof of Psychic Abilities. Wheaton, IL: Quest Books.
- [40] Radin, D. (2018). Real Magic: Ancient Wisdom, Modern Science, and a Guide to the Secret Power of the Universe. New York, NY: Harmony Books.

- [41] Carlwood, G. (January 23, 2015). Gordon White | Understanding Gnosticism, Parapolitics, and Chaos Magic. Retrieved August 7, 2021 from https://www.thehighersidechats.com/gordon-white-understanding-gnosticism-parapolitics-chaos-magic/
- [42] van Lommel, P., et al. (n.d.). Introduction Nonlocal Consciousness. Retrieved March 17, 2021 from https://pimvanlommel.nl/pim-van-lommel/nonlocal-consciousness/
- [43] Laursen, C. (2016, October). *Reimagining the Poltergeist in Twentieth-Century America and Britain* (Doctoral Dissertation). The University of British Columbia-Vancouver: The Faculty of Graduate and Postdoctoral Studies (History).
- [44] van Lommel et al. (n.d.).
- [45] Fenwick, P. (June 24, 2017). DR. PETER FENWICK, M.D.: SCIENCE AND SPIRITUALITY. Retrieved March 30, 2021 from https://iands.org/research/nde-research/important-research-articles/42-dr-peter-fenwick-md-science-and-spirituality.html?showall=1
- [46] Roper (n.d.). Paradise Polled: Americans and the Afterlife. Retrieved March 29, 2021 from https://ropercenter.cornell.edu/paradise-polled-americans-and-afterlife
- [47] Nielsen, C. (n.d.). 'I asked Laura what she thought happens after death...' Retrieved March 29, 2021 from https://thepsychologist.bps.org.uk/i-asked-laura-what-she-thought-happens-after-death#:~:text=A%20study%20commissioned%20by%20the,%2C%20music%20etc%20(2).
- [48] Statista Research Department. (May 13, 2020). Do you believe in life after death? Retrieved March 29, 2021 from https://www.statista.com/statistics/940005/share-of-people-who-believe-in-life-after-death-france/
- [49] Daniyal, S. (September 7, 2015). People without religion have risen in Census 2011, but atheists have nothing to cheer about. Retrieved March 29, 2021 from https://scroll.in/article/753475/people-without-religion-have-risen-in-census-2011-but-atheists-have-nothing-to-cheer-about
- [50] NDERF. (2021). NDERF Home Page. Retrieved March 29, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ index.htm
- [51] Long, J. (Sept.-Oct. 2014). Near-Death Experiences: Evidence for Their Reality. *Missouri Medicine 111*(5), pp. 372-380.
- [52] Ibid.
- [53] Ibid.
- [54] Long, J. (2010). Evidence of the Afterlife: The Science of Near-Death Experiences. New York, NY: HarperCollins Publishers.
- [55] Atwater, P.M.H. (2000). *The Complete Idiot's Guide to Near-Death Experiences*. Indianapolis, IN: Macmillan USA, Inc.
- [56] Greyson, B., Kelly, E.W., & Kelly, E.F. (2009). Explanatory Models for Near-Death Experiences. In J.M. Holden, B. Greyson, & D. James (Eds.), *The Handbook of Near-Death Experiences: Thirty Years of Investigation* (pp. 213-234). Santa Barbara, CA: ABC-CLIO, LLC.
- [57] Atwater 2000.
- [58] Ibid.
- [59] Koch, C. (June 1, 2020). What Near-Death Experiences Reveal about the Brain. Retrieved March 29, 2021 from https://www.scientificamerican.com/article/what-near-death-experiences-reveal-about-the-brain/
- [60] French, C.C. (2005). Near-death experiences in cardiac arrest survivors. *The Boundaries of Consciousness: Neurobiology and Neuropathology 150*, pp. 351-367.
- [61] Jaekl, P. (Aug 15, 2018). Turns out near-death experiences are psychedelic, not religious. Retrieved March 30, 2021 from https://www.wired.co.uk/article/near-death-experiences-psychedelic-religious

- [62] Shushan 2009.
- [63] Ibid.
- [64] Moody, R. (2015). Life After Life: The Investigation of a Phenomenon Survival of Bodily Death. New York, NY: HarperCollins (Original work published 1975 by MBB, Inc.)
- [65] Sayne, A. (March 15, 2021). Conspirinormal 357- Seriah Azkath and Timothy Renner (Where did the Strange Familiars Go?). Retrieved March 29, 2021 from http://conspirinormal.com/ blog-1/2021/3/14/conspirinormal-357-seriah-azkath-and-timothy-renner-where-did-the-strangefamiliars-go
- [66] Lewis 1994.
- [67] van Lommel, P., van Wees, R., Meyers, V., & Elfferich, I. (December 15, 2001). Near-Death Experience In Survivors of Cardiac Arrest: A prospective Study in the Netherlands. *The Lancet* 358(9298), pp. 2039-2045.
- [68] Lecouteux 2019.
- [69] Gholipour, B. (July 24, 2014). Oldest Medical Report of Near-Death Experience Discovered. Retrieved March 30, 2021 from https://www.livescience.com/46993-oldest-medical-report-of-near-death-experience.html
- [70] Ring, K. (1992). *The Omega Project: Near-Death Experiences, UFO Encounters, and Mind at Large.* New York, NY: William Morrow.
- [71] Ring, K. (1987). From Alpha to Omega: Ancient Mysteries and the Near-Death Experience. *Anabiosis* 5(2), pp. 3-16.
- [72] Ring 1992.
- [73] Hernandez, R., Klimo, J., & Schild, R. (2018). A Report on Phase I and II of FREE's Experiencer Research Study: The Results of a Quantitative Study. In R. Hernandez, J. Klimo, & R. Schild (Eds.), *Beyond UFOs: The Science of Consciousness and Contact with Non Human Intelligence "Volume I"* (pp. 1-120). USA: Dr. Edgar Mitchell Foundation for Research into Extraterrestrial and Extraordinary Experiences.
- [74] Friedman, S.T. (August 1989). Letters to the Editor... MUFON UFO Journal 256, pp. 23-24.
- [75] Keel, J. (Summer 1972). Medical Aspects of Non-Events. *Anomaly* 8, pp. 139-142, 145-148.
- [76] Hall, R. (October 1981). Center for UFO Studies Conference. MUFON UFO Journal 164, pp. 8-9.
- [77] Atwater 2000.
- [78] National Academy of Medicine. (June 30, 2015). Cardiac Survival Rates Around 6 Percent for Those Occurring Outside of a Hospital, Says IOM Report. Retrieved March 31, 2021 from https://www.nationalacademies.org/news/2015/06/cardiac-survival-rates-around-6-percent-for-those-occurring-outside-of-a-hospital-says-iom-report
- [79] J., Sandra (n.d.). 3890 Sandra J Probable NDE 7588. Retrieved March 31, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1sandra_j_probable_nde.html
- [80] L., Jamie (n.d.). 4077 Jamie L Probable NDE 7876. Retrieved March 31, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1jamie 1 probable nde.html
- [81] Moody 1975.
- [82] Ibid.
- [83] Shushan 2009.
- [84] Moody 1975.
- [85] Shushan 2009.
- [86] Moody 1975.

- [87] Long 2010.
- [88] Gamba, A. (2014). Boundless: One Woman's Journal of Her Out- of-Body Experiences (Kindle Edition). US: CreateSpace.
- [89] Shushan 2009.
- [90] Lewis 1994.
- [91] Hee, P.S. (n.d.). 595 Park Sang Hee NDE 1098. Retrieved March 31, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1park sang hee nde.html
- [92] Heapes, J.R. (2014). Other Worlds: UFOs, Aliens, and the Afterlife. Bloomington, IN: iUniverse LLC.
- [93] Atwater 2000.
- [94] Lundahl, C.R. (Fall 2000). A Comparison of Other World Perceptions by Near-Death Experiencers and by the Marian Visionaries of Medjugorje. *Journal of Near-Death Studies* 19(1), pp. 45-52.
- [95] NDERF. (n.d.). Archives 7-1-2010/12-31-2010 pt. 2. Retrieved April 2, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Archives/2_6_2010_2.html
- [96] S., Richard. (n.d.). 317 Richard S NDE 816. Retrieved April 2, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1richard_s_nde.html
- [97] P., Bene. (n.d.). 4321 Bene P NDE 8254. Retrieved April 2, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1bene_p_nde.html
- [98] Long 2014.
- [99] Ibid.
- [100] Long 2010.
- [101] Ring 1992.
- [102] M., Rebecca. (n.d.). 2182 Rebecca M NDE 16025. Retrieved March 31, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1rebecca m nde.html
- [103] Heapes 2014.
- [104] Long 2010.
- [105] Shushan 2009.
- [106] Moody 1975.
- [107] Long 2010.
- [108] Heapes 2014.
- [109] Ahern, E.M. (1973). *The Cult of the Dead in a Chinese Village*. Stanford, CA: Stanford University Press.
- [110] Lady Gregory (1920). Visions and Beliefs in the West of Ireland Collected and Arranged by Lady Gregory, First Series. New York, NY: The Knickerbocker Press.
- [111] S., Greg. (n.d.). 4653 Greg S Probable NDE 8788. Retrieved April 1, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1greg s probable nde.html
- [112] B., Esterlein. (n.d.). 2687 Esterlein B NDE 5100. Retrieved April 1, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1esterlein_b_nde.html
- [113] C., Val. (n.d.). 4890 Val C NDE 9155. Retrieved April 1, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1val c nde.html
- [114] Long 2010.
- [115] Ibid.

- [116] Hackett, C. & McClendon, D. (April 5, 2017). Christians remain world's largest religious group, but they are declining in Europe. Retrieved April 1, 2021 from https://www.pewresearch.org/fact-tank/2017/04/05/christians-remain-worlds-largest-religious-group-but-they-are-declining-in-europe/
- [117] Moody 1975.
- [118] Ashli. (n.d.). 4596 Ashli NDEs 8696. Retrieved April 1, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1ashli_ndes.html
- [119] G., Sara. (n.d.). 3408 Sara G NDE 6832. Retrieved April 1, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1sara g nde.html
- [120] H., Alfred. (n.d.). 2160 Alfred H NDE 4362. Retrieved April 1, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1alfred h nde.html
- [121] C., Edward. (n.d.). 4598 Edward C NDE 8698. Retrieved April 1, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1edward c nde.html
- [122] Catalina. (n.d.). 3869 Catalina NDE 7545. Retrieved April 1, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1catalina nde.html
- [123] Long 2014.
- [124] Long 2010.
- [125] Lady Gregory 1920, First Series.
- [126] Shushan 2009.
- [127] Long 2010.
- [128] Lundahl 2000.
- [129] van Lommel, P. (2010). *Consciousness Beyond Life: The Science of the Near-Death Experience*. (L. Vroomen, Trans.). New York, NY: HarperOne.
- [130] L., Kenneth. (n.d.). 1177 Kenneth L NDE 3241. Retrieved April 1, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1kenneth_l_nde.html
- [131] S., Dustine. (n.d.). 1283 Dustine S NDE 314/372/456. Retrieved April 1, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1dustine_s_nde.html
- [132] Storm, H. (2000). My Descent Into Death and the Message of Love Which Brought Me Back. Forest Row, UK: Clairview.
- [133] Storm, H. (2016). Howard Storm's Near-Death Experience. Retrieved April 7, 2021 from https://www.near-death.com/religion/christianity/howard-storm.html
- [134] Storm 2000.
- [135] Larousse. (1968). *New Larousse Encyclopedia of Mythology.* (R. Aldington & D. Ames, Trans.). London, UK: The Hamlyn Publishing Group Limited. (Original work published 1959)
- [136] Ogden, D. (2001). Greek and Roman Necromancy. Princeton, NJ: Princeton University Press.
- [137] Eliade, M. (Winter 1963). Mythologies of Memory and Forgetting. *History of Religions 2*(2), pp. 329-344.
- [138] Diamond, D. (2016). Life After Near Death. Wayne, NJ: The Career Press, Inc.
- [139] Atwater 2000.
- [140] Heapes 2014.
- [141] van Lommel 2010.
- [142] Long 2010.

- [143] Serdahely, W.J. (Fall 1990). Pediatric Near-Death Experiences. *Journal of Near-Death Studies* 9(1), pp. 33-39.
- [144] Atwater 2000.
- [145] Long 2010.
- [146] Atwater 2000.
- [147] van Lommel 2010.
- [148] Williams, B. (Nov 22, 2017). The Clock Stops for Thee: On a Seemingly Anomalous Physical Effect Reported Around the Time of Death. Retrieved April 2, 2021 from https://www.psychicalresearchfoundation.com/post/2017/11/22/the-clock-stops-for-thee-on-a-seemingly-anomalous-physical-effect-reported-around-the-tim
- [149] Atwater 2000.
- [150] Rivas, T., Dirven, A., & Smit, R.H. (2016). *The Self Does Not Die: Verified Paranormal Phenomena from Near-Death Experiences*. Durham, NC: International Association for Near-Death Studies (IANDS).
- [151] Long 2010.
- [152] Atwater 2000.
- [153] van Lommel 2010.
- [154] Lewis 1994.
- [155] Lecouteux 2019.
- [156] Ring 1992.
- [157] Walter, M.N. & Fridman, E.J.N. (2004). *Shamanism: An Encyclopedia of World Beliefs, Practices, and Culture*. Santa Barbara, CA: ABC-CLIO, Inc.
- [158] van Lommel 2010.
- [159] Ring 1992.
- [160] Clelland, M. (August 17, 2013). Audio conversation with Suzanne Gordon, Ph.D. Retrieved April 5, 2021 from http://hiddenexperience.blogspot.com/2013/08/audio-conversation-with-suzannegordon.html
- [161] Ring 1992.
- [162] Monroe Institute. (2019). Our Purpose. Retrieved April 5, 2021 from https://www.monroeinstitute.org/pages/our-purpose
- [163] Monroe, R. (1977). Journeys Out of the Body. New York, NY: Broadway Books. (Original work published 1971)
- [164] Raynes, B. (2019). John A. Keel: The Man, The Myths, and the Ongoing Mysteries. USA: Brent Raynes.
- [165] Fox, O. (1962). Astral Projection. New Hyde Park, NY: University Books, Inc.
- [166] Monroe, R. (1994). Ultimate Journey. New York, NY: Broadway Books.
- [167] Monroe 1977.
- [168] Strong, L. (2005). *Psychopomp Stories: Contemplating Death in a Spiritually Diverse Society* (Doctoral Dissertation). Pacifica Graduate University: Department of Philosophy.
- [169] Lewis 1994.
- [170] Shushan 2009.

- [171] Jung, C.G. (1989). *The Collected Works of C.G. Jung: Psychology and religion, West and East.* (G. Adler & R.F.C. Hull, Trans. & Ed.). Princeton, NJ: Princeton University Press (2nd ed.).
- [172] Hansen 2001.
- [173] Strong 2005.
- [174] Kowalewski 2015.
- [175] Ibid.
- [176] Strong 2005.
- [177] Kugelmann, R. (1983). *The Windows of Soul: Psychological Physiology of the Human Eye and Primary Glaucoma*. East Brunswick, NJ: Associated University Presses.
- [178] Ibid.
- [179] Bortz, M. (Fall 2009). "Tomorrow Belongs to Me": An Image of the Dangerous *Puer. Jung Journal: Culture & Psyche 3*(4), pp. 69-77.
- [180] Goepfert, N. (May 2012). New zooarchaeological and funerary perspectives on Mochica culture (A.D. 100–800), Peru. *Journal of Field Archaeology* 37(2), pp. 104-120.
- [181] Stross, B. (Autumn 1996). The Mesoamerican Cosmic Portal: An Early Zapotec Example. *RES: Anthropology and Aesthetics* 29/30, pp. 82-101.
- [182] Urbanus, J. (May/June 2016). Let a Turtle Be Your Psychopomp. Archaeology 69(3), p. 12.
- [183] Keister, D. (2004). Stories in Stone: A Field Guide to Cemetery Symbolism and Iconography. New York, NY: MJF Books.
- [184] W., Eva. (n.d.). 1334 Eva W NDE 3393. Retrieved March 19, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1eva_w_nde.html
- [185] Moeller, W.O. (Autumn 1975). Once More the one-Eyed Man against Rome. *Historia: Zeitschrift für Alte Geschichte* 24(3), pp. 402-410.
- [186] Malandra, W.W. (March 1967). The Concept of Movement in History of Religions: A Religio-Historical Study of Reindeer in the Spiritual Life of North Eurasian Peoples. *Numan* 14(1), pp. 23-69.
- [187] Walter, P. (2006). *Christian Mythology: Revelations of Pagan Origins*. (J.E. Graham, Trans.). Rochester, VT: Inner Traditions.
- [188] Keister 2004.
- [189] Owen, E. (1896). Welsh Folk-Lore: A Collection of the Folk-Tales and Legends of North Wales. Oswestry, UK: Woodall, Minshall, and Co.
- [190] Strong 2005.
- [191] Ogden 2001.
- [192] Kite, W. (1889). Telling the Bees. *The Magazine of American History with Notes and Queries 21*. A.S. Barnes & Company, p. 523.
- [193] Keister 2004.
- [194] Hyde, L. (1998). *Trickster Makes This World: Mischief, Myth, and Art.* New York, NY: Farrar, Straus and Giroux.
- [195] A., Melisa. (n.d.). 4037 Melisa A NDE 7812. Retrieved March 19, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1melisa_a_nde.html
- [196] Ibid.
- [197] Goepfert 2012.

- [198] Burnell, F.S. (Dec. 1947). The Holy Cow. Folklore 58(4), pp. 377-381.
- [199] Walter 2006.
- [200] Ramble, C. (December 2009). Playing Dice with the Devil: Two Bonpo Soul-retrieval Texts and Their Interpretation in Mustang, Nepal. *East and West 59*(1/4), pp. 205-232.
- [201] Pannier, F. (n.d.). The Psychopomp Horse & the Phurbu: Observations on a Ritual Object. Retrieved March 19, 2021 from https://himalaya-arch.com/images/lettre-du-toit-du-monde/ LTDM-n27-Psychopomp Horse ENGLISH.pdf
- [202] Eliade, M. (1964) *Shamanism: Archaic Techniques of Ecstasy*. (W.R. Trask, Trans.). Princeton, NJ: Princeton University Press.
- [203] Briggs, H. (July 19, 2017). How did dogs become our best friends? New evidence. Retrieved March 19, 2021 from https://www.bbc.com/news/science-environment-40638584
- [204] Herzog, E. (1983). *Psyche & Death.* (D. Cox & E. Rolfe, Trans.). Woodstock, CT: Spring Publications. Inc.
- [205] Sheldrake, R. (2012). Science Set Free. New York, NY: Deepak Chopra Books.
- [206] Strong 2005.
- [207] Shushan 2009.
- [208] de Vidas, A.A. (Sep. 2002). A Dog's Life among the Teenek Indians (Mexico): Animals' Participation in the Classification of Self and Other. *The Journal of the Royal Anthropological Institute* 8(3), pp. 531-550.
- [209] Larkins, J.E. (Mar. 1981). Myth upon Myth: Five Animals of the Romancero Gitano. *Hispania* 64(1), pp. 14-22.
- [210] Cutter, R.J. (1985). The Incident at the Gate: Cao Zhi, the Succession, and Literary Fame. *T'oung Pao* 71(4/5), pp. 228-262.
- [211] Larkins 1981.
- [212] de Vidas 2002.
- [213] Herzog 1983.
- [214] K., Abigail. (n.d.). 3629 Abigail K Probable NDE 7163. Retrieved March 20, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/labigail k probable nde.html
- [215] Ibid.
- [216] Lecouteux 2019.
- [217] Herzog 1983.
- [218] Strong 2005.
- [219] Eliade 1964.
- [220] Miller, A.L. (1995). The Woman Who Married a Horse: Five Ways of Looking at a Chinese Folktale. *Asian Folklore Studies* 54(2), pp. 275-305.
- [221] Coimbra, F.A. (January 2017). The psychopomp character of the horse in Europe during Protohistory and the Roman Period. *Arnava VI*(1), pp. 84-98.
- [222] Ibid.
- [223] V., Ray. (n.d.). 1301 Ray V NDE 3345. Retrieved March 21, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1ray v nde.html
- [224] Kieckhefer, R. (1997). *Magic in History: Forbidden Rites A Necromancer's Manual of the Fifteenth Century.* University Park, PA: The Pennsylvania State University Press.
- [225] Lecouteux 2019.

- [226] Hansen 2001.
- [227] Collins, A. (2014). Göbekli Tepe: Genesis of the Gods. Rochester, VT: Bear & Company.
- [228] Murphy-Hiscock, A. (2012). Birds A Spiritual Field Guide. Avon, MA: F+W Media, Inc.
- [229] Herzog 1983.
- [230] Friedman, J.B. (1967). Syncretism and Allegory in the Jerusalem Orpheus Mosaic. *Traditio 23*, pp. 1-13.
- [231] Kowalewski 2015.
- [232] Keister 2004.
- [233] Rank, O. (1950). *Psychology and the Soul*. (W.D. Turner, Trans.). Philadelphia, PA: University of Pennsylvania Press.
- [234] Walter 2006.
- [235] Falk, C. (2004). Hmong Instructions to the Dead: What the Mouth Organ Qeej Says (Part Two). *Asian Folklore Studies 63*(2), pp. 167-220.
- [236] Waterbury, F. (1952). Bird-Deities in China. *Artibus Asiae: Supplementum 10*, pp. 1-139, 141-165, 167-181, 183, 185-191.
- [237] Fenwick, P. (May 27, 2012). Dr. Peter Fenwick discusses dying, death and survival. Retrieved April 9, 2021 from http://whitecrowbooks.com/michaeltymn/entry/dr. peter fenwick discusses dying death and survival
- [238] Kavasch, E.B. (2004). *The Mound Builders of Ancient North America*. Lincoln, NE: iUniverse, Inc.
- [239] Eliade 1964.
- [240] Daley, J. (November 14, 2019). DNA Suggests Ancient Egypt's Millions of Ibis Mummies Were Wild-Caught Birds. Retrieved March 21, 2021 from https://www.smithsonianmag.com/smart-news/dna-suggests-ancient-egypts-millions-ibis-mummies-were-wild-caught-birds-180973556/
- [241] J., Zachary. (n.d.). 561 Zachary J NDE-Like 2124. Retrieved March 21, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1zachary j ndelike.html
- [242] Lewis 1994.
- [243] Metcalf, P. (1976). Birds and Deities in Borneo. *Bijdragen tot de Taal-, Land- en Volkenkunde 132*(1), pp. 96-123.
- [244] Lecouteux 2019.
- [245] Rickard, B., & Michell, J. (2000). *Unexplained Phenomena: A Rough Guide Special*. London, UK: Rough Guides, Ltd.
- [246] Owen 1896.
- [247] Croker, T.C. (1828). Fairy Legends & Traditions of the South of Ireland Part III. London, UK: John Murray.
- [248] Werness, H.B. (2006). *The Continuum Encyclopedia of Animal Symbolism in Art*. New York, NY: Continuum.
- [249] Clelland, M. (2015). *The Messengers: Owls, Synchronicity and the UFO Abductee*. New York: Richard Dolan Press.
- [250] Lecouteux, C. (2013). *The Tradition of Household Spirits*. (J.E. Graham, Trans.). Rochester, VT: Inner Traditions. (Original work published 2000)
- [251] Werness 2006.
- [252] Clelland 2015.

- [253] Rickard & Michell 2000.
- [254] Lecouteux 2019.
- [255] Choi, C.Q. (December 11, 2019). Humanity's Oldest Cave Art Shows Shape-Shifting Supernatural Hunters. Retrieved March 21, 2021 from https://www.livescience.com/oldest-rockart-supernatural-beings.html
- [256] Ibid.
- [257] Caciola, N.M. (2016). *Afterlives: The Return of the Dead in the Middle Ages*. Ithaca, NY: Cornell University Press.
- [258] P., Georgie. (December 15, 2020). 4852 Georgie P Probable NDE 9103. Retrieved March 22, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1georgie_p_probable_nde.html
- [259] Walter & Fridman 2004.
- [260] Ibid.
- [261] Coddington, R.H. (1997). *Ghost Talk: True Conversations with the Departed.* New York, NY: Kensington Publishing Corp.
- [262] Ring 1992.
- [263] Woodyard, C. (June 24, 2014). Father's Ghost Fetches the Dying. Retrieved May 4, 2021 from http://hauntedohiobooks.com/news/fathers-ghost-fetches-dying/
- [264] M., Laura. (n.d.). 2995 Laura M NDEs 6235. Retrieved March 22, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1laura_m_ndes.html
- [265] Foor, D. (2017). Ancestral Medicine: Rituals for Personal and Family Healing. Rochester, VT: Bear & Company.
- [266] Lewis 1994.
- [267] Foor 2017.
- [268] Ibid.
- [269] Asante, M.K., & Mazama, A. (Eds.). (2009). *Encyclopedia of African Religion*. Thousand Oaks, CA: SAGE Publications, Inc.
- [270] Harvey, G. (2006). *Animism: Respecting the Living World*. New York, NY: Columbia University Press.
- [271] Asante & Mazama 2009.
- [272] Lecouteux, C. (2015). *Demons and Spirits of the Land*. (J.E. Graham, Trans.). Rochester, VT: Inner Traditions. (Original work published 1995)
- [273] Kleinhempel, U.R. (May 2018). White Sangomas: the manifestation of Bantu forms of shamanic calling among whites in South Africa. *REVER Revista de Estudos da Religião 18*(1), pp. 143-173.
- [274] Kinney, A.B. (1993). Infant Abandonment in Early China. Early China 18, pp. 107-138.
- [275] Chambert-Loir, H., & Reid, A. (2002). Introduction. In H. Chambert-Loir & A. Reid (Eds.), *The Potent Dead: Ancestors, Saints, and Heroes in Contemporary Indonesia*. Honolulu, HI: University of Hawai'i Press.
- [276] Kowalewski 2015.
- [277] Foor 2017
- [278] Campbell, J. (1959). *The Masks of God: Primitive Mythology*. London, UK: The Pitman Press Ltd.
- [279] Pratt, C. (2007). *An Encyclopedia of Shamanism: Volume Two N-Z.* New York, NY: The Rosen Publishing Group, Inc.

- [280] Kowalewski 2015.
- [281] DePaul, A. (June 25, 2020). Zoroastrianism Rises in North America. Retrieved March 26, 2021 from https://www.wsj.com/articles/zoroastrianism-rises-in-north-america-11593126830
- [282] Strong 2005.
- [283] Riboud, P. (2007). Bird-Priests in Central Asian Tombs of 6th-Century China and Their Significance in the Funerary Realm. *Bulletin of the Asia Institute 21*, pp. 1-23.
- [284] Fink, S. (2014). Gilgameš und Uršanabi. *Revue d'Assyriologie et d'archéologie orientale 108*, pp. 67-69.
- [285] C., Oscar. (n.d.). 4067 Oscar C NDE 7858. Retrieved March 22, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/loscar c nde.html
- [286] Eislund, S. (June 24, 2019). Yazidism. Retrieved March 22, 2021 from https://www.ancient.eu/ Yazidism/
- [287] Arakelova, V. (2002). Three Figures from the Yezidi Folk Pantheon. *Iran & the Caucasus 6*(1/2), pp. 55-73.
- [288] Kowalewski 2015.
- [289] Rabinowitz, J. (1998). The Rotting Goddess: The Origin of the Witch in Classical Antiquity's Demonization of Fertility Religion. Brooklyn, NY: Autonomedia.
- [290] Eliade 1964.
- [291] Bortz 2009.
- [292] Lamborn, A.B. (Dec. 2007). Beyond Co-Existence to Mutual Influence: An Interdisciplinary Method for Psychoanalysis and Religion. *Journal of Religion and Health* 46(4), pp. 516-526.
- [293] Johnson, L. (Ed.). (2008). *Hermes Trismegistus: A Collection of Works*. Gauteng, SA: Red Path Publications.
- [294] Colavito, J. (2014). *Jason and the Argonauts through the Ages*. Jefferson, NC: McFarland & Company, Inc., Publishers.
- [295] Strong 2005.
- [296] Meyer, M. (February 23, 2014). Meido: The Japanese Underworld. Retrieved March 22, 2021 from http://matthewmeyer.net/blog/2014/02/23/meido-the-japanese-underworld/
- [297] Virgil (2008). The Aenid. (R. Fagles, Trans.). New York, NY: Penguin Books.
- [298] M., Shawn. (n.d.). 2338 Shawn M Probable NDE 4621. Retrieved March 23, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1shawn_m_probable_nde.html
- [299] Daimler, M. (July 30, 2012). Manannán mac Lir. Retrieved March 23, 2021 from https://lairbhan.blogspot.com/2012/07/manannan-mac-lir.html
- [300] Daimler, M. (2019). Pagan Portals Manannán Mac Lir: Meeting The Celtic God Of Wave And Wonder. Hampshire, UK: Moon Books.
- [301] Daimler July 2012.
- [302] Duddy, T. (Summer 1996). Derrida and the Druids: Writing, Lore, and power in Early Celtic Society. *Religion & Literature* 28(2/3), pp. 9-20.
- [303] Strong 2005.
- [304] Waddell, J. (2018). Equine Cults and Celtic Goddesses. *Emania: Bulletin of the Navan Research Group 24*, pp. 5-18.
- [305] Strong 2005.
- [306] Waddell 2018.

- [307] Strong 2005.
- [308] Herzog 1983.
- [309] Strong 2005.
- [310] Hatto, A.T. (1961). The Swan Maiden: A Folk-Tale of North Eurasian Origin? *Bulletin of the School of Oriental and African Studies, University of London* 24(2), pp. 326-352.
- [311] Taylor, R.P. (2000). Death and the Afterlife: A Cultural Encyclopedia. Santa Barbara, CA: ABC-CLIO.
- [312] Herzog 1983.
- [313] Loumand, U. (2006). The Horse and its Role in Icelandic Burial Practices, Mythology, and Society. In A. Andrén, K. Jennbert, & C. Raudvere (Eds.), *Old Norse Religion in Long Term Perspectives: Origins, Changes and Interactions, an International Conference in Lund, Sweden, June 3–7, 2004* (pp. 130-134). Lund, SE: Nordic Academic Press.
- [314] Stone, A. (1989). Bran, Odin, and the Fisher King: Norse Traditions and the Grail Legends. *Folklore 100*(1), pp. 25-38.
- [315] Moeller 1975.
- [316] Streatfeild, G.S. (1884). Lincolnshire and the Danes. London, UK: Kegan Paul, Trench & Co.
- [317] W., Helen. (n.d.). 2439 Helen W NDE 4805. Retrieved March 23, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1helen_w_nde.html
- [318] Kowalewski 2015.
- [319] Lewis 1994.
- [320] Ibid.
- [321] Strong 2005.
- [322] Lewis 1994.
- [323] Strong 2005.
- [324] Leeming, D. (2004). Jealous Gods & Chosen People: The Mythology of the Middle East. New York, NY: Oxford University Press, Inc.
- [325] Strong 2005.
- [326] Ibid.
- [327] Asante & Mazama 2009.
- [328] Birney, K. & Doak, B.R. (2011). Funerary Iconography on an Infant Burial Jar from Ashkelon. *Israel Exploration Journey 61*(1), pp. 32-53.
- [329] C., Jeffrey. (n.d.). 4167 Jeffrey C NDE 8024. Retrieved March 24, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1jeffrey_c_nde_8024.html
- [330] Giangrande, G. (1978). Hermes and the Marrow: A Papyrus Love-Spell. *Ancient Society 9*, pp. 101-116.
- [331] Nichols, S. (2013). The Alien Agenda: My Personal Beliefs. In B. Oldham, *Children of the Grays* (pp. 147-159). Murfreesboro, TN: House of Halo.
- [332] Hill, J. (2010). Thoth. Retrieved March 25, 2021 from https://ancientegyptonline.co.uk/thoth/
- [333] B., Latimer. (n.d.). 4047 Latimer B Possible NDE 7831. Retrieved March 24, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/llatimer b possible nde.html
- [334] Lurker, M. (1987). *The Routledge Dictionary of Gods, Goddesses, Devils, & Demons.* London, UK: Routledge & Kegan Paul.
- [335] Johnson 2008.

- [336] Herzog 1983.
- [337] Shushan 2009.
- [338] Herzog 1983.
- [339] Eliade, M. (Feb. 1971). South American High Gods Part II. *History of Religions* 10(3), pp. 234-266.
- [340] Bean, L.J. (1974). *Mukat's People: The Cahuilla Indians of Southern California*. Los Angeles, CA: University of California Press.
- [341] McGowen, T. (1981). Encyclopedia of Legendary Creatures. Chicago, IL: Rand McNally.
- [342] Boas, F. (1888). The Central Eskimo: Sixth Annual Report of the Bureau of Ethnology to the Secretary of the Smithsonian Institution, 1884-1885. Washington DC: Government Printing Office.
- [343] Kowalewski 2015.
- [344] Jozuka, E. (September 22, 2016). Aboriginal Australians are Earth's oldest civilization: DNA study. Retrieved May 30, 2017 from http://www.cnn.com/2016/09/22/asia/ indigenous-australians-earths-oldest-civilization/
- [345] Ashton, J. & Whyte, T. (2001). The Quest for Paradise: Visions of Heaven and Eternity in the World's Myths and Religions. San Francisco: Harper San Francisco.
- [346] Strong 2005.
- [347] Guiley, R.E. (2007). *The Encyclopedia of Ghosts and Spirits*. New York, NY: Facts on File, Inc. (3rd ed).
- [348] Kowalewski 2015.
- [349] Raats, P.J. (1970). A Structural Study of Bagobo Myths and Rites. *Asian Folklore Studies* 29, pp. 1-131.
- [350] Hislop, S.K. (August 1971). Anitism: A Survey of Religious Beliefs native to the Philippines. *Asian Studies* 9(2), pp. 144-156.
- [351] Shushan 2009.
- [352] Herzog 1983.
- [353] Nagy, G. (Fall 1980). Patroklos, Concepts of Afterlife, and the Indic Triple Fire. *Arethusa 13*(2), pp. 161-195.
- [354] DeVries, L. (1987). The Father, the Son and the Ghoulish Host: A Fairy Tale in Early Sanskrit? *Asian Folklore Studies* 46(2), pp. 227-256.
- [355] Nagy, G. (1973). Phaethon, Sappho's Phaon, and the White Rock of Leukas. *Harvard Studies in Classical Philology* 77, pp. 137-177.
- [356] Lewis 1994.
- [357] Jung, C.G. (1976). *Symbols of Transformation* (2nd ed). (R.F.C. Hull, Trans.). Princeton, NJ: Princeton University Press. (Original work published 1956)
- [358] Macdonell, A.A. (1897). Vedic Mythology. Strassbourg, FR: Verlag von Karl J. Trübner.
- [359] Gardiner, E. (Ed.). (2012). Buddhist Hell: Visions, Tours and Descriptions of the Infernal Otherworld. New York, NY: Italica Press, Inc.
- [360] Shushan 2009.
- [361] Schmid, D.N. (2008). Revisioning the Buddhist Cosmos Shifting Paths of Rebirth in Medieval Chinese Buddhism. *Cahiers d'Extrême-Asie* 17, pp. 293-325.
- [362] Strong 2005.

- [363] Aijmer, G. (2007). Landscape and Mindscape in Southeastern China: The Management of Death in a Mountain Community. *Journal of Ritual Studies 21*(2), pp. 32-45.
- [364] Strong 2005.
- [365] Nikaidō, Y. (2015). *Asian Folk Religion and Cultural Interaction*. Taipei, TW: National Taiwan University Press.
- [366] Strong 2005.
- [367] Silver, D.J. (Oct. 1973). Moses and the Hungry Birds. *The Jewish Quarterly Review 64*(2), pp. 123-153.
- [368] Lachman, G. (2011). The Quest for Hermes Trismegistus. Edinburgh, UK: Floris Books.
- [369] Strong 2005.
- [370] Swedenborg Foundation. (n.d.). Angels and Demons. Retrieved March 25, 2021 from https://swedenborg.com/emanuel-swedenborg/explore/angels-and-demons/
- [371] Kaufmann, K. & Blau, L. (n.d.). Death, Angel of. Retrieved March 25, 2021 from https://jewishencyclopedia.com/articles/5018-death-angel-of
- [372] Cresswell, J. (2006). *The Watkins Dictionary of Angels: Over 2,000 Entries on Angels and Angelic Beings*. London, UK: Watkins Publishing.
- [373] Knight, J. (April 2012). The Origin and Significance of the Angelomorphic Christology in the "Ascension of Isaiah." *The Journal of Theological Studies* 63(1), pp. 66-105.
- [374] Hooke, S.H. (Sep. 1961). Fish Symbolism. Folklore 72(3), pp. 535-538.
- [375] Muraresku, B.C. (2020). *The Immortality Key: The Secret History of the Religion with No Name*. New York, NY: St. Martin's Press.
- [376] Guiley, R.E. (2013). The Djinn Connection. New Milford, CT: Visionary Living, Inc.
- [377] Menzies, R. (1947). The Circle of Human Life. Edinburgh, UK: Myles Macphail.
- [378] Herzog 1983.
- [379] Keister 2004.
- [380] F., Steve. (n.d.). 1042 Steve F NDE 2954. Retrieved April 10, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1steve_f_nde.html
- [381] Bane, T. (2013). *Encyclopedia of Fairies in World Folklore and Mythology*. Jefferson, NC: McFarland & Company, Inc.
- [382] Cheung, T. (2006). Element Encyclopedia of the Psychic World: The Ultimate A-Z of Spirits, Mysteries and the Paranormal. New York, NY: Harper Element.
- [383] Bane 2013.
- [384] Oxford Reference. (n.d.). Ankou. Retrieved March 25, 2021 from https://www.oxfordreference.com/view/10.1093/oi/authority.20110803095414434?rskey=akzogz&result=2
- [385] Ibid.
- [386] Guiley 2007.
- [387] Lecouteux, C. (2011). *Phantom Armies of the Night: The Wild Hunt and the Ghostly Processions of the Undead.* (J.E. Graham, Trans.). Rochester, VT: Inner Traditions.
- [388] Walter 2006.
- [389] Devereux, P. (2007). Spirit Roads: An Exploration of Otherworldly Routes. London, UK: Collins & Brown. (Original work published 2003)

- [390] Roth, J. E. (1997). American Elves: An Encyclopedia of Little People from the Lore of 380 Ethnic Groups of the Western Hemisphere. Jefferson, NC: McFarland & Company, Inc.
- [391] Briggs, K. (1976). An Encyclopedia of Fairies: Hobgoblins, Brownies, Bogies, and Other Supernatural Creatures. New York, NY: Pantheon Books.
- [392] Lewis 1994.
- [393] Shushan 2009.
- [394] Sick, D.H. (2004). Mit(h)ra(s) and the Myths of the Sun. Numen 51(4), pp. 432-467.
- [395] Steinsapir, A.I. (Sep. 1999). Landscape and the Sacred: The Sanctuary Dedicated to Holy, Heavenly Zeus Baetocaece. *Near Eastern Archaeology* 62(3), pp. 182-194.
- [396] Lewis 1994.
- [397] Luckert, K.W. (Aug. 1971). The Geographization of Death in Melanesia. *Numen* 18(2), pp. 141-160.
- [398] Boylan, P. (1922). Thoth, the Hermes of Egypt. London, UK: Oxford University.
- [399] Clelland 2015.
- [400] Guiley 2007.
- [401] Lewis 1994.
- [402] Redfern, N. (2010). Final Events. San Antonio, TX: Anomalist Books.
- [403] Homerin, T.E. (2006). Soul. In J.D. McAuliffe (Ed.), *Encyclopaedia of the Qur'an, Vol. 5: Si-Z.* Leiden, NL: Brill Academic Publishers.
- [404] Leibowitz, A. (2018). The Neshamah: A Study of the Soul. Jerusalem, IL: Feldheim Publishers.
- [405] Lewis 1994.
- [406] Tan, M.L. (2008). *Revisiting Usog, Pasma, Kulam*. Quezon City, PH: University of Philippines Press.
- [407] Strong 2005.
- [408] Gray, J. (August 19, 2011). Is The Name of God the Sound of Our Breathing? Retrieved April 7, 2021 from https://rabbitroom.com/2011/08/is-the-name-of-god-the-sound-of-our-breathing/
- [409] White, G. (2016). Star. Ships: A Prehistory of the Spirits. London, UK: Scarlet Imprint.
- [410] Waite, D. (2015). A-U-M: Awakening to Reality. Winchester, UK: Mantra Books.
- [411] Spence, L. (1946). British Fairy Origins. London, UK: Watts & Co.
- [412] Harpur 2003.
- [413] Barasch, M. (2005). The Departing Soul: The Long Life of a Medieval Creation. *Artibus et Historiae* 26(52), pp. 13-28.
- [414] Spence 1946.
- [415] Evans Wentz, W.Y. (1911). The Fairy-Faith in Celtic Countries. London, UK: Henry Frowde.
- [416] Horner, S. (1897). *Greek Vases: Historical and Descriptive*. London, UK: Swan Sonnenschein & Co., Lim.
- [417] Kerényi, K. (1976). Hermes: Guide of Souls. Thompson, CT: Spring Publications.
- [418] Frazer, J.G. (2009). *The Golden Bough*. Auckland, NZ: The Floating Press. (Original work published 1890)
- [419] Guiley 2007.
- [420] Spence 1946.

- [421] Rampa, T.L. (May-June 1957). Flying Into Space. Flying Saucer Review 3(3), pp. 10-12.
- [422] Moore, B. (2001). Australian English and indigenous voices. In D. Blair & P. Collins (Eds.), *English in Australia* (pp. 133-150). Philadelphia, PA: John Benjamins Publishing Company.
- [423] Frazer 2009.
- [424] Guiley 2007.
- [425] Frazer 2009.
- [426] Bogoras, W. (April 1925). Ideas of Space and Time in the Conception of Primitive Religion. *American Anthropologist* 27(2), pp. 205-266.
- [427] Barasch 2005.
- [428] I., Rebecca. (n.d.). 437 Rebecca I NDE 994. Retrieved April 8, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1rebecca i nde.html
- [429] L., Joshua. (n.d.). 3749 Joshua L NDE 7366. Retrieved April 8, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1joshua_l_nde.html
- [430] M., Karen. (n.d.). 4244 Karen M NDE 8141. Retrieved April 8, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1karen_m_nde_8141.html
- [431] Mack 1994.
- [432] Hopkins, B. & Rainey, C. (2003). Sight Unseen: Science, UFO Invisibility and Transgenic Beings. New York, NY: Atria Books.
- [433] L., Lourdes. (n.d.). 3424 Lourdes L NDE 6785. Retrieved April 8, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1lourdes 1 nde.html
- [434] Gaelic Society of Inverness. (1896). Transactions of the Gaelic Society of Inverness: Vol. XXI. Inverness, UK: Northern Counties Newspaper and Printing and publishing Company, Limited
- [435] Ohnuki-Tierney, E. (1977). The Classification of the "Habitual Illness" of the Sakhalin Ainu. *Arctic Anthropology* 14(2), pp. 9-34.
- [436] Iyer, L.A.K. (1937). *The Travancore Tribes and Castes*. Trivandrum, IN: Superintendent Government Press.
- [437] Abramson, A. (Sep.-Dec. 2005). Drinking to Mana and Ethnicity: Trajectories of Yaqona Practice and Symbolism in Eastern Fiji. *Oceania* 75(4), pp. 325-341.
- [438] Onwuejeogwu, M.A. (1997). *Afa Symbolism & Phenomenology in Nri Kingdom and Hegemony:* An African Philosophy of Social Action. Benin City, NI: Ethiope Publishing Corporation.
- [439] Jedrej, M.C. (Jan, 1974). An Analytical Note on the Land and Spirits of the Sewa Mende. *Africa: Journal of the International African Institute 44*(1), pp. 38-45.
- [440] Erickson, K.C. (Autumn 2003). "They Will Come from the Other Side of the Sea": Prophecy, Ethnogenesis, and Agency in Yaqui Narrative. *The Journal of American Folklore 116*(462), pp. 465-482.
- [441] Shushan 2009.
- [442] Caciola 2016.
- [443] Lorenzen, K.J. (Winter 2005). Ancestor Deification in Ancient Maya Ritual and Religion: Late Postclassic Community Shrines and Family Oratories. *Journal of the Washington Academy of Sciences* 91(4), pp. 25-51.
- [444] Willoughby, W.C. (1923). Race Problems in the New Africa: A Study of the Relation of Bantu and Britons in Those Parts of Bantu Africa Which Are Under British Control. London, UK: Clarendon Press.

- [445] Crooke, W. (1899). Primitive Rites of Disposal of the Dead, with Special Reference to India. *The Journal of the Anthropological Institute of Great Britain and Ireland 29*(3/4), pp. 271-294.
- [446] Baird, C.S. (August 19, 2015). Why have humans evolved to be taller over the last three hundred years? Retrieved April 8, 2021 from https://wtamu.edu/~cbaird/sq/2015/08/19/why-have-humans-evolved-to-be-taller-over-the-last-three-hundred-years/
- [447] Muraresku 2020.
- [448] MacCulloch, C.J.A. (Dec. 31, 1932). Were Fairies an Earlier Race of Men? *Folklore 43*(4), pp. 362-375.
- [449] Spence 1946.
- [450] Bane 2013.
- [451] Briggs, K.M. (1970). The Fairies and the Realms of the Dead. Folklore 81(2), pp. 81-96.
- [452] Forsberg, L. (2015). Nature's Invisibilia: The Victorian Microscope and the Miniature Fairy. *Victorian Studies* 57(4), pp. 638-666.
- [453] Yeats, W.B. (1892). Irish Folk Stories and Fairy Tales. New York, NY: Grosset & Dunlap.
- [454] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [455] Croker, T.C. (1825). Fairy Legends & Traditions of the South of Ireland Part I. London, UK: John Murray.
- [456] Taylor 2000.
- [457] Ogden 2001.
- [458] Waterbury 1952.
- [459] Shushan, G. (2018). *Near-Death Experience in Indigenous Religions*. New York, NY: Oxford University Press.
- [460] Shushan 2009.
- [461] Riboli, D. (December 1994). Shamanic Rites of the Terai Chepangs. *East and West 44*(2/4), pp. 327-352.
- [462] Sveinsson, E.Ó. (2003). The Folk-Stories of Iceland. (B. Benedikz, Trans.). A. Faulkes (Ed.). Exeter, UK: Short Run Press Limited.
- [463] Moreman, C.M. (2014). On the Relationship between Birds and the Spirits of the Dead. *Society & Animals* 22(5), pp. 1-22.
- [464] Eliade 1964.
- [465] Moreman 2014.
- [466] Ballard, L.M. (1997). Fairies and the Supernatural on Reachrai. In P. Narváez (Ed.), *The Good People: New Fairylore Essays* (pp. 47-93). Lexington, KY: The University Press of Kentucky.
- [467] Mack 1994.
- [468] Ibid.
- [469] Marzluff, J.M., & Angell, T. (2007). *In the Company of Crows and Ravens*. New Haven, CT: Yale University Press.
- [470] Eliade 1964.
- [471] Mooney, J. (1900). *Myths of the Cherokee*. Washington, DC: Bureau of American Ethnography, Nineteenth Annual Report.
- [472] Young, S. (2019). When did fairies get wings? In D. Caterine & J.W. Morehead (Eds.), *The Paranormal and Popular Culture: A Postmodern Religious Landscape* (pp. 253-274). London, UK: Routledge.

- [473] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [474] Spence 1946.
- [475] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [476] Briggs 1976.
- [477] Hatto 1961.
- [478] Barasch 2005.
- [479] Johnson, S.P. (n.d.). Butterfly Lore. Retrieved April 9, 2021 from https://www.baylor.edu/lakewaco_wetlands/index.php?id=34628
- [480] Bondarenko, G. (2013). The migration of the soul in *De chophur in dá muccida* and other early Irish tales. In G. Toner & S. Mac Mathúna (Eds.), *Ulidia 3: Proceedings of the Third International Conference on the Ulster Cycle of Tales* (pp. 1-38). Berlin, DE: Curach Bhán Publications.
- [481] Johnson n.d.
- [482] Butterfly Lady. (October 27, 2016). Día de los Muertos and Monarch Butterflies. Retrieved April 9, 2021 from http://butterfly-lady.com/dia-de-los-muertos-and-monarch-butterflies/
- [483] Johnson n.d.
- [484] Grimm, J. (1883). *Teutonic Mythology: Volume II*. (J.S. Stallybrass, Trans.). London, UK: George Bell & Sons.
- [485] Briggs 1970.
- [486] Hickey, K. (2021). Fairy Forts. Retrieved April 9, 2021 from https://www.duchas.ie/en/cbes/4922152/4856580/5012267
- [487] Redish, L. (2015). Native American Legends: Memegwesi (Mannegishi). Retrieved April 9, 2021 from http://www.native-languages.org/memegwesi.htm
- [488] Young, S. (Ed.). (January 8, 2018). Fairy Census, 2014-2017. Retrieved November 27, 2018 from http://www.fairyist.com/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/ The-Fairy-Census-2014-2017-1.pdf
- [489] Ibid.
- [490] Morris, E. (November-December 1979). The Winged Beings of Bluestone Walk. *Flying Saucer Review 25*(6), pp. 24-27.
- [491] Hall, M.P. (Winter 1985). Pluto/Scorpio. PRS Journal 45(4), pp. 52-64.
- [492] Herzog 1983.
- [493] Gale Group. (2008). Neshamah Yeterah. Retrieved April 11, 2021 from https://www.jewishvirtuallibrary.org/neshamah-yeterah
- [494] Schwartz, H. (2004). *Tree of Souls: The Mythology of Judaism*. New York, NY: Oxford University Press, Inc.
- [495] Ancuta, K. (2012). Ghosts, Revenants and Specters: The Side-effects of Dying. In E.A. Berendt (Ed.), *Facing Finality: Cognitive and Cultural Studies in Death and Dying* (pp. 107-125). Louisville, KY: The Institute for Intercultural Communication.
- [496] Fitzgerald, B.E. (May 2, 9, 16, & 23, 2004). Saint Gregory of Nyssa: On the Soul and the Resurrection [Conference presentation]. St. Philip's Antiochian Orthodox Church: Souderton, PA.
- [497] Caciola 2016.
- [498] AnomalyArchives. (Dec. 5, 2020). Anomaly Archives Saturday Streamathon Fundraiser Series Part-Three (A). Retrieved April 12, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch? v=eFubdaG1YZY

- [499] Miller, M. (n.d.). Neshamah: Levels of Soul Consciousness. Retrieved April 12, 2021 from https://www.chabad.org/kabbalah/article_cdo/aid/380651/jewish/Neshamah-Levels-of-Soul-Consciousness.htm
- [500] Strong 2005.
- [501] Lewis 1994.
- [502] Mann, B. (2003). Native Americans, Archaeologists, and the Mounds. New York, NY: Peter Lang, Inc.
- [503] Leach, M. (Jul.-Sep. 1961). Jamaican Duppy Lore. The Journal of American Folklore 74(293), pp. 207-215.
- [504] Peake, A. (2008). The Daemon. London, UK: Arcturus.
- [505] Bane, T. (2016). Encyclopedia of Spirits and Ghosts in World Mythology. Jefferson, NC: McFarland & Company, Inc.
- [506] Rank, O. (1971). *Double: A Psychoanalytic Study*. (H. Tucker Jr., Trans.). Chapel Hill, NC: University of North Carolina Press.
- [507] Bane 2016.
- [508] Thomassen, B. (2016). Liminality and the Modern: Living Through the In-Between. New York, NY: Routledge.
- [509] Lecouteux, C. (2003). Witches, Werewolves, and Fairies: Shapeshifters and Astral Doubles in the Middle Ages (C. Frock, Trans.). Rochester, VT: Inner Traditions. (Original work published 1992)
- [510] Shushan 2009.
- [511] Grimassi, R. (2000). Encyclopedia of Wicca & Witchcraft. St. Paul, MN: Llewellyn Worldwide, Ltd
- [512] Roberts, J. (2004). Chinese Mythology A to Z. New York, NY: Facts On File, Inc.
- [513] Strong 2005.
- [514] Walter 2006.
- [515] Aubeck, C. (2003). TOKENS: UFOs as Omens of Human Death. Unpublished. (Original work published in French in *La Gazette Fortéenne Volume 2*, Paris, FR: Editions de l'Oeil du Sphinx)
- [516] Harrington, N. (2013). Living with the Dead: Ancestor Worship and Mortuary Ritual in Ancient Egypt. Oxford, UK: Oxbow Books.
- [517] Lewis 1994.
- [518] Ikram, S. (2015). *Death and Burial in Ancient Egypt*. Cairo, EG: The American University in Cairo Press. (Original work published 2003)
- [519] Lecouteux 2003.
- [520] Sveinsson 2003.
- [521] Lecouteux 2003.
- [522] Bane 2016.
- [523] Árnason, J. (1866). *Icelandic Legends: Second Series*. (G.E.J. Powell & E. Magnússon, Trans.). London, UK: Longmans, Green, and Co.
- [524] Simek, R. (1993). A Dictionary of Northern Mythology. (A. Hall, Trans.). Cambridge, UK: D.S. Brewer.
- [525] Mundal, E. (1990). The Position of the Individual Gods and Goddesses in Various Types of Sources—with Special Reference to the Female Divinities. *Scripta 13*, pp. 294-315.
- [526] Harpur 2003.

- [527] Strieber & Kripal 2016.
- [528] Daimler, M. (May 21, 2021). Co-Walkers, Fetches, and Fylgja. Retrieved May 21, 2021 from https://lairbhan.blogspot.com/2021/05/co-walkers-fetches-and-fylgja.html
- [529] Harpur 2003.
- [530] Strieber & Kripal 2016.
- [531] Ansari, M.F.R. (1999). *Islam to the Modern Mind*. Y. Mohamed, Ed. Paarl, SA: Hidden Treasure Press.
- [532] Pandit, B. (2005). Explore Hinduism. Loughborough, UK: Explore Books.
- [533] Kingsland, W. (1895). *The Esoteric Basis of Christianity: or, Theosophy and Christian Doctrine*. London, UK: Theosophical Publishing Society.
- [534] Harpur 2003.
- [535] Bane 2016.
- [536] Peake 2008.
- [537] Azkath, S. (December 24, 2016). Laird Scranton on Skara Brae, the Dogon, Egypt, and More... Retrieved September 19, 2017 from http://www.wheredidtheroadgo.com/itemlist/tag/Laird%20Scranton
- [538] Coddington 1997.
- [539] Peake 2008.
- [540] Azaiez, M., Reynolds, G.S., Tesei, T., & Zafer, H.M. (2016). *The Qur'an Seminar Commentary*. Berlin, DE: De Gruyter.
- [541] Shushan 2009.
- [542] Peake 2008.
- [543] Mann 2003.
- [544] Bane 2016.
- [545] Guiley, R.E. (2006). The Encyclopedia of Magic and Alchemy. New York, NY: Facts On File, Inc.
- [546] Frazer 2009.
- [547] Best, E. (December 1900). Spiritual Concepts of the Maori: Part I. *The Journal of the Polynesian Society* 9(4[36]), pp. 173-199.
- [548] Peake 2008.
- [549] Lecouteux 2003.
- [550] Devereux, P. (2001). Haunted Land: Investigations into Ancient Mysteries and Modern Day Phenomenon. London, UK: Piatkus.
- [551] Lecouteux 2003.
- [552] Lady Gregory 1920, First Series.
- [553] Frazer 2009.
- [554] Rhŷs, J. (1901). Celtic Folklore: Welsh and Manx, Vol. I. Oxford, UK: Clarendon Press.
- [555] Lady Gregory 1920, First Series.
- [556] MacGregor, A. (1901). Highland Superstitions. London, UK: Gibbings & Company, Ltd.
- [557] Lecouteux 2003.
- [558] Hutton, R. (2017). *The Witch: A History of Fear, from Ancient Times to the Present.* New Haven, CT: Yale University Press.

- [559] Devereux 2001.
- [560] Mann 2003.
- [561] Clelland 2015.
- [562] Lady Gregory (1920). Visions and Beliefs in the West of Ireland Collected and Arranged by Lady Gregory, Second Series. New York, NY: The Knickerbocker Press.
- [563] Devereux 2001.
- [564] Frazer 2009.
- [565] Lecouteux 2003.
- [566] Best 1900.
- [567] Bane 2016.
- [568] Rank 1971.
- [569] Lecouteux 2003.
- [570] Keel 1976.
- [571] Gorightly, A., & Bishop, G. (2018). "A" is for Adamski: The Golden Age of the UFO Contactees. USA: Gorightly Press.
- [572] Goldstein, M. (August 1977). Doppelganger: Your Psychic Double. Beyond Reality 27, pp. 24-26.
- [573] Steiger, B. (1982). Astral Projection. Atglen, PA: Whitford Press.
- [574] Crowe, C. (1848). The Night Side of Nature: or, Ghosts and Ghost Seers Vol. II. London, UK: T.C. Newby.
- [575] Ibid.
- [576] Hole, C. (1950). Haunted England: A Survey of English Ghost-Lore. London, UK: B.T. Batsford.
- [577] Shelley, M.W. (1980). *The Letters of Mary Wollstonecraft Shelley*. (B.T. Bennett, Ed.). Baltimore, MD: Johns Hopkins University Press.
- [578] Evans 1984.
- [579] Ibid.
- [580] Goldstein 1977.
- [581] Eliade 1964.
- [582] Redfern 2010.
- [583] Collier, W. (2022). DEEP: An examination of the faerie themes in Takashi Shimizu's film *Marebito*. In J. Cutchin (Ed.), *Fairy Films: Wee Folk on the Big Screen* (Kindle Edition). UK: White Crow Books.
- [584] Ibid.
- [585] Ogden 2001.
- [586] Eliade 1964.
- [587] Lewis 1994.
- [588] Eliade 1964.
- [589] Hutton 2017.
- [590] Herzog 1983.
- [591] Eliade 1964.

- [592] Ustinova, Y. (2009). Caves and the Ancient Greek Mind: Descending Underground in the Search for Ultimate Truth. Oxford, UK: Oxford University Press.
- [593] Hancock, G. (2007). Supernatural. New York, NY: The Disinformation Company, Ltd.
- [594] Muraresku 2020.
- [595] Beach, E.A. (1995). The Eleusinian Mysteries. Retrieved April 16, 2021 from http:// www.faculty.umb.edu/gary_zabel/Courses/Phil%20281b/Philosophy%20of%20Magic/ Pythagoras,%20Empedocles,%20Plato/ The%20Ecole%20Initiative%20The%20Eleusinian%20Mysteries2.htm? fbclid=IwAR2YQbPpascbf-kYe-v7Cmg-0t67R7EGMbmpeRz0S1XDs0sOpZUP6w7cIhA
- [596] Muraresku 2020.
- [597] Croker 1828.
- [598] Ibid.
- [599] Young, F. (2019). Suffolk Fairylore. Norwich, UK: Lasse Press.
- [600] Godfrey, L. (2019). I Know What I Saw: Modern-Day Encounters with Monsters of New Urban Legend and Ancient Lore. New York, NY: TarcherPerigree.
- [601] Spence 1946.
- [602] Daimler, M. (2017). Fairies: A Guide to the Celtic Fair Folk. Alresford, UK: Moon Books.
- [603] Johnson, M.T. (2014). Seeing Fairies: From the Lost Archives of the Fairy Investigation Society, Authentic Reports of Fairies in Modern Times. San Antonio, TX: Anomalist Books.
- [604] Young 2018.
- [605] F. Young 2019.
- [606] Sveinsson 2003.
- [607] MacBain, A. (1885). Celtic Mythology and Religion. Inverness, UK: A. & W. Mackenzie.
- [608] Mahon, M.P. (1919). Ireland's Fairy Lore. Boston, MA: Thomas J. Flynn & Company.
- [609] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [610] Harland, J. & Wilkinson, T.T. (1867). *Lancashire Folk-Lore*. London, UK: Frederick Warne and Co
- [611] Norman, M. & Scott, B. (1995). Historic Haunted America. New York, NY: Tom Doherty Associates.
- [612] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [613] Johnson 2014.
- [614] Rushton, N. (November 17, 2019). Paracelsus, Nature Spirits and Faeries. Retrieved April 19, 2021 from https://deadbutdreaming.wordpress.com/2019/11/17/paracelsus-nature-spirits-and-faeries/? fbclid=IwAR10hNNgBQRwJmsdGrzxoWRS04XzrFemiB2kqJ4vbwWgBe18z0xNi7XjUcU
- [615] Rushton, N. (August 22, 2016). The Faeries as Nature Spirits. Retrieved April 19, 2021 from https://deadbutdreaming.wordpress.com/2016/08/22/the-faeries-as-nature-spirits/
- [616] Johnson 2014.
- [617] Rushton August 22, 2016.
- [618] Lecouteux 2015.
- [619] Morton, J. (Dec. 1987). Singing Subjects and Sacred Objects: More on Munn's Transformation of Subjects into Objects' in Central Australian Myth. *Oceania* 58(2), pp. 100-118.
- [620] Devereux 2001.

- [621] Bane 2016.
- [622] Leach 1961.
- [623] Caciola 2016.
- [624] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [625] Ibid.
- [626] MacCulloch 1932.
- [627] Spence 1946.
- [628] Briggs 1970.
- [629] Wilby, E. (2005). Cunning Folk and Familiar Spirits. Eastbourne, UK: Sussex Academic Press.
- [630] Caciola 2016.
- [631] Lady Gregory 1920, First Series.
- [632] Cárthaigh, C.M. (1988, June). *Midwife to the Fairies: A Migratory Legend*. (Master's thesis). The National University of Ireland, Dublin, IE.
- [633] Kennedy, P. (Ed.). (1866). Legendary Fictions of the Irish Celts. London, UK: Macmillan and Co.
- [634] Spence 1946.
- [635] Wilby 2005.
- [636] Correll, T.C. (April 2005). Believers, Sceptics, and Charlatans: Evidential Rhetoric, the Fairies, and Fairy Healers in Irish Oral Narrative and Belief. *Folklore 116*(1), pp. 1-18.
- [637] Lynch, W. (2021). Fairy forts. Retrieved April 20, 2021 from https://www.duchas.ie/en/cbes/ 4798683/4789823/4922742?ChapterID=4798683
- [638] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [639] Ibid.
- [640] Wilde, J. (1887). Ancient Legends, Mystic Charms, and Superstitions of Ireland. London, UK: Ticknor and Co.
- [641] Lady Gregory 1920, Second Series.
- [642] Ibid.
- [643] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [644] Simpson, J. (April 2011). On the Ambiguity of Elves. Folklore 122(1), pp. 76-83.
- [645] Sveinsson 2003.
- [646] Sfetcu, N. (2014). About Christmas. Bucharest, RO: Nicolae Sfetcu.
- [647] Bane 2016.
- [648] Jakobsson, Á. (July 2011). Vampires and Watchmen: Categorizing the Mediaeval Icelandic Undead. *The Journal of English and Germanic Philology 110* (3), pp. 281-300.
- [649] Herzog 1983.
- [650] Gould, C.N. (May 1927). They Who Await the Second Death: A Study in the Icelandic Romantic Sagas. *Scandinavian Studies and Notes* 9(6), pp. 167-201.
- [651] Towrie, S. (n.d.). The Trow and the Draugr. Retrieved April 21, 2021 from http://www.orkneyjar.com/folklore/trows/draugr.htm
- [652] Caciola 2016.
- [653] Leach 1961.

- [654] Farquharson, J.T. (2012). THE AFRICAN LEXIS IN JAMAICAN: ITS LINGUISTIC AND SOCIOHISTORICAL SIGNIFICANCE. (Doctoral thesis). The University of the West Indies, Kingston, JM.
- [655] Scott, W.H. (1994). Barangay: Sixteenth Century Philippine Culture and Society. Quezon City, PH: Ateneo de Manila University Press.
- [656] Bane 2016.
- [657] Clarke, A.S. (2015). Sky People: Untold Stories of Alien Encounters in Mesoamerica. Pompton Plains, NJ: New Page Books.
- [658] Morgan, F.T. (2009). Haunted Uwharries. Winston-Salem, NC: Bandit Books, Inc.
- [659] Ibid.
- [660] Ibid.
- [661] Guiley, R.E. (2009). *The Encyclopedia of Demons & Demonology*. New York, NY: Facts on File, Inc.
- [662] Ancuta 2012.
- [663] Jettmar, K. (March-June 1967). The Middle Asiatic Heritage of Dardistan. (Islamic Collective Tombs in Punyal and Their Background). *East and West 17*(1/2), pp. 59-82.
- [664] Dold, T. & Cocks, M. (2012). Voices from the Forest: Celebrating Nature and Culture in Xhosaland. Auckland Park, SA: Jacana Media.
- [665] Gausset, Q. (2001). Masks and Identity. The Significance of Masquerades in the Symbolic Cycle Linking the Living, the Dead, and the Bush Spirits among the Wawa (Cameroon). *Anthropos 96*(1), pp. 193-200.
- [666] Larson, T.J. (1971). The Spirits of the Ancestors and the Mandengure Ceremony of the Hambukushu of Ngamiland. *Anthropos* 66(1/2), pp. 52-70.
- [667] Ephirim-Donkor, A. (2013). *African Religion Redefined*. Lanham, MD: University Press of America, Inc. (2nd ed.).
- [668] Cunha, I. (2019). The Lower Limbs in Jungian Psychology. New York, NY: Routledge.
- [669] Vohra, R. (1982). Ethnographic Notes on the Buddhist Dards of Ladakh: The Brog-Pā. *Zeitschrift für Ethnologie 107*(1), pp. 69-94.
- [670] Rimell, B. (2018). *They Shimmer Within: Cognitive-Evolutionary Perspectives on Visionary Beings*. UK: Xibalba Books.
- [671] Fleming, M. (2002). Not of This World: Creatures of the Supernatural in Scotland. Edinburgh, UK: Mercat Press Ltd.
- [672] Lecouteux, C. (2013). *The Tradition of Household Spirits*. (J.E. Graham, Trans.). Rochester, VT: Inner Traditions. (Original work published 2000)
- [673] Taylor, L.R. (July-Sept. 1925). The Mother of the Lares. *American Journal of Archaeology* 29(3), pp. 299-313.
- [674] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [675] Abramson 2005.
- [676] Tomlinson, M. (March 2016). Little People, Ghosts and the Anthropology of the Good. *The Journal of the Polynesian Society 125*(1), pp. 11-32.
- [677] Beckwith, M.W. (1970). Hawaiian Mythology. Honolulu, HI: University of Hawaii Press.
- [678] Bergen, L. & Delarose, S. (2019). *Nordic Aliens and the Moon-Eyed People*. US: Gityasome Books.

- [679] Documenting the American South. (n.d.). Conestee Lost Settlement, Brevard. Retrieved April 21, 2021 from https://docsouth.unc.edu/commland/monument/909/
- [680] Witthoft, J. & Hadlock, W.S. (Oct.-Dec. 1946). Cherokee-Iroquois Little People. *The Journal of American Folklore* 59(234), pp. 413-422.
- [681] Roth 1997.
- [682] Semple, S. (Jun. 1998). A Fear of the Past: The Place of the Prehistoric Burial Mound in the Ideology of Middle and Later Anglo-Saxon England. *World Archaeology* 30(1), pp. 109-126.
- [683] Lecoutuex 2013.
- [684] Daimler 2017.
- [685] Lady Gregory 1920, First Series.
- [686] Daimler 2017.
- [687] Butler, J. (2017). The Sidhe and Fairy Forts. In S. Young & C. Houlbrook (Eds.), Magical Folk: British and Irish Fairies: 500 AD to the Present (Kindle Edition). London, UK: Gibson Square Books.
- [688] Sikes, W. (1880). British Goblins: Welsh Folklore, Fairy Mythology, Legends and Traditions. London, UK: Sampson Low, Marston, Searle, & Rivington (2nd ed.).
- [689] Briggs 1976.
- [690] Ibid.
- [691] Bane 2016.
- [692] Roth 1997.
- [693] Varner, G.R. (2007). Creatures in the Mist: Little People, Wild Men, and Spirit Beings Around the World. New York, NY: Algora Publishing.
- [694] MacKinnon, I. (2012, May 18). Briton Arrested with Roasted Human Foetuses for Use in Black Magic Ritual. Retrieved August 15, 2017 from http://www.telegraph.co.uk/news/worldnews/ asia/thailand/9274106/Briton-arrested-with-roasted-human-foetuses-for-use-in-black-magicritual.html
- [695] Lecouteux 2013.
- [696] Jensen, F., & Mullen, S. (Eds). (1982). C.G. Jung, Emma Jung and Toni Wolff: A Collection of Remembrances. San Francisco, CA: Analytical Psychology Club of San Francisco.
- [697] Raynes 2018.
- [698] Bane 2016.
- [699] Guiley 2007.
- [700] Hartland, E.S. (1891). The Science of Fairytales: An Inquiry into Fairy Mythology. London, UK: Walter Scott.
- [701] Lecouteux 2011.
- [702] Beachcombing. (October 5, 2017). The Scholar Who Went with the Fairies. Retrieved April 27, 2021 from http://www.strangehistory.net/2017/10/05/scholar-went-fairies/
- [703] Guiley 2013.
- [704] Devereux, P. (October 1995). Meeting with the Alien. MUFON UFO Journal 330, pp. 3-8.
- [705] Bane 2016.
- [706] Ibid.
- [707] Sikes 1880.

- [708] Owen 1896.
- [709] Devereux 2007.
- [710] Aubeck 2003.
- [711] Walhouse, M.J. (Dec. 1894). Ghostly Lights. Folklore 5(4), pp. 293-299.
- [712] Keister 2004.
- [713] Caciola 2016.
- [714] Bord, J. (2014). Fairies: Real Encounters with Little People (Kindle Edition). London, UK: Michael O'Mara Books. (Original work published 1998)
- [715] Somé, M.P. (1994). Of Water and the Spirit: Ritual, Magic, and Initiation in the Life of an African Shaman. New York, NY: G.P. Putnam's Sons.
- [716] Daimler 2017.
- [717] Ritson, J. (1831). Fairy Tales, Now First Collected. London, UK: Payne and Foss, Pall-Mall.
- [718] Daimler 2017.
- [719] V.B., Bonnie. (n.d.). 2117 Bonnie VB NDE 4299. Retrieved April 26, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1bonnie vb nde.html
- [720] Daimler 2017.
- [721] Wilby, E. (Oct. 2000). The Witch's Familiar and the Fairy in Early Modern England and Scotland. *Folklore 111*(2), pp. 283-305.
- [722] Lecouteux 2019.
- [723] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [724] MacCulloch 1932.
- [725] Walter 2006.
- [726] MacKillop, J. (2004). Oxford Dictionary of Celtic Mythology. Oxford, UK: Oxford University Press.
- [727] Taylor 2000.
- [728] Rushton, N. (July 22, 2018). The Mabinogion: Worlds and Otherworlds in Medieval Wales. Retrieved April 26, 2021 from https://deadbutdreaming.wordpress.com/2018/07/22/the-mabinogion-worlds-and-otherworlds-in-medieval-wales/
- [729] Spence 1946.
- [730] Lecouteux 2019.
- [731] Daimler 2017.
- [732] Taylor 2000.
- [733] Hill, T.D. (October 2010). "Thomas Rhymer (A)" and the Tradition of Early Modern Feminist Theology. *The Harvard Theological Review 103*(4), pp. 471-483.
- [734] Briggs 1970.
- [735] Lewis 1994.
- [736] Kennedy 1866.
- [737] Roth 1997.
- [738] Wilby 2005.
- [739] Lady Gregory 1920, First Series.

- [740] LeGroff, J. (1986). *The Birth of Purgatory*. (A. Goldhammer, Trans.). Chicago, IL: University of Chicago Press.
- [741] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [742] Spence 1946.
- [743] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [744] Tylor, E.B. (1873). Primitive Culture: Vol. II. London, UK: Murray.
- [745] Briggs 1970.
- [746] Ogden 2001.
- [747] Daimler 2017.
- [748] Ring 1992.
- [749] Cutchin, J. & Renner, T. (2020). Where the Footprints End: High Strangeness and the Bigfoot Phenomenon Volumes I & II. Red Lion, PA: Dark Holler Arts.
- [750] Yeats, W.B. (Ed.). (1890). Fairy and Folk Tales of the Irish Peasantry. New York, NY: The Walter Scott Publishing Co., Ltd.
- [751] Young 2018.
- [752] Vallee, J., & Aubeck, C. (2009). Wonders in the Sky: Unexplained Aerial Objects from Antiquity to Modern Times. New York, NY: Jeremy P. Tarcher/Penguin.
- [753] Hunt, R. (1903). Popular Romances of the West of England: The Drolls, Traditions, and Superstitions of Old Cornwall. London, UK: Chatto and Windus (3rd ed.).
- [754] Ogden 2001.
- [755] MacCulloch 1932.
- [756] Long 2010.
- [757] Randles, J. (n.d.). Essay on the Oz Factor and the Strange Sensations of Altered Reality Reported by UFO Witnesses. Retrieved December 9, 2018 from http://alienjigsaw.com/et-contact/ Randles-The-Oz-Factor.html
- [758] Britannica. (n.d.). Sheol. Retrieved May 10, 2021 from https://www.britannica.com/topic/sheol
- [759] Young 2018.
- [760] Ibid.
- [761] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [762] Hunt 1903.
- [763] Roberts, J. (2016). The Sacred Mythological Centres of Ireland. IE: Bandia Publishing.
- [764] Melanson, T. (2001). UFOs, Do They Smell? The Sulphur Enigma of Paranormal Visitation. Retrieved April 28, 2021 from https://www.conspiracyarchive.com/UFOs/ufosulphur.htm
- [765] Kelly, M. (n.d.). Fairy Forts. Retrieved April 28, 2021 from https://www.duchas.ie/en/cbes/ 4583321/4579651/4587332
- [766] Young 2018.
- [767] Roberts 2016.
- [768] Hartland 1891.
- [769] Lecouteux 2019.
- [770] Ibid.
- [771] Evans Wentz 1911.

- [772] Rushton, N. (July 10, 2016). The Space-Time Continuum in Faerieland. Retrieved April 28, 2021 from https://deadbutdreaming.wordpress.com/2016/07/10/the-space-time-continuum-in-faerieland/
- [773] Wood-Martin, W.G. (October 1897). Traces of the Elder Faiths: Fairy and Marriage Lore. *Ulster Journal of Archaeology IV*(1), pp. 90-100.
- [774] Rushton July 10, 2016.
- [775] Tylor 1873.
- [776] Foster, M.,D. (2015). The Book of Yokai. Oakland, CA: University of California Press.
- [777] Janaway, J. (1991). Ghosts of Surrey. Newbury, UK: Countryside Books.
- [778] Carte, C. (June 6, 2020). Personal communication.
- [779] Young 2018.
- [780] Ogden 2001.
- [781] Caciola 2016.
- [782] L., John. (n.d.). 615 John L NDE 172. Retrieved April 29, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1john_l_nde.html
- [783] Herzog 1983.
- [784] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [785] Shushan 2009.
- [786] Daimler 2017.
- [787] Ibid.
- [788] Rhŷs, J. (1892). Lectures on the origin and growth of religion as illustrated by Celtic heathendom. London, UK: Williams and Norgate.
- [789] Briggs 1970.
- [790] Terseglav, M. (November 9, 1998). The Influence of Croatian Mediterranean Area on Folk Poetry in Bela Krajina. *Nar. Umjet 36*(1), pp. 233-251.
- [791] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [792] Wilby 2005.
- [793] Vallee & Aubeck 2009.
- [794] Rickard & Michell 2000.
- [795] Keightley, T. (1828). The Fairy Mythology. London, UK: William Harrison Ainsworth.
- [796] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [797] Lossiah, L.K. (1998). *The Secrets and Mysteries of the Cherokee Little People*. Cherokee, NC: Cherokee Publications.
- [798] Rickard & Michell 2000.
- [799] Redfern, N. (November 12, 2017). Beware of the Little Folk. Retrieved May 20, 2021 from https://mysteriousuniverse.org/2017/11/beware-of-the-little-folk/
- [800] Daimler 2017.
- [801] O'Hanlon, J. (1870). *Irish Folk Lore: Traditions and Superstitions of the Country; with Humorous Tales.* Glasgow, UK: Cameron & Ferguson.
- [802] Spence 1946.
- [803] Ibid.

- [804] Lecouteux 2015.
- [805] Croker, T.C. (1828). Fairy Legends & Traditions of the South of Ireland Part II. London, UK: John Murray.
- [806] Johnson 2014.
- [807] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [808] Butler 2017.
- [809] Bane 2016.
- [810] Roth 1997.
- [811] Silver, C.G. (1999). Strange and Secret Peoples: Fairies and Victorian Consciousness. New York, NY: Oxford University Press, Inc.
- [812] Swancer, B. (January 23, 2020). Strange Cases of Ghostly Troll Hauntings. Retrieved April 30, 2021 from https://mysteriousuniverse.org/2020/01/strange-cases-of-ghostly-troll-hauntings/? fbclid=IwAR1OpKxoboRw3mHNaaRonphqh2-h0DO8wD0cQBcXydOdnaSD52Heveu-EKU
- [813] Coulter, P. (February 13, 2015). Fairy tales: Finding fairy bushes across Northern Ireland. Retrieved April 30, 2021 from https://www.bbc.com/news/uk-northern-ireland-31459851
- [814] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [815] Anderson, W. (1990). *Green Man: The Archetype of our Oneness with the Earth.* San Francisco, CA: HarperCollins Publishers.
- [816] Canaan, T. (1927). Mohammedan Saints and Sanctuaries in Palestine. London, UK: Luzac & Co.
- [817] Leach 1961.
- [818] Lecouteux 2013.
- [819] Bane 2016.
- [820] Demetrio, F. (January 1969). Toward a Classification of Bisayan Folk Beliefs and Customs. *Philippine Studies 17*(1), pp. 3-39.
- [821] Eliade, M. (1959). *The Sacred & the Profane: The Nature of Religion*. (W.R. Trask, Trans.). New York, NY: Harvest.
- [822] Devereux 2007.
- [823] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [824] O'Hanlon 1870.
- [825] Jung 1976.
- [826] Schwartz 2004.
- [827] Lecouteux 2013.
- [828] Spence 1946.
- [829] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [830] Young, S. (December 2016). In Search of England's Fairy Trees: The Fair Oak of Bowland. *Northern Earth 147*, pp. 16-21.
- [831] Spence 1946.
- [832] Buhl, M.L. (April 1947). The Goddesses of the Egyptian Tree Cult. *Journal of Near Eastern Studies* 6(2), pp. 80-97.
- [833] Bane 2016.
- [834] Lewis 1994.

- [835] Spence 1946.
- [836] Daimler 2017.
- [837] Briggs 1976.
- [838] Young 2018.
- [839] Cutchin, J. (2016). The Brimstone Deceit: An In-Depth Examination of Supernatural Scents, Otherworldly Odors, and Monstrous Miasmas. San Antonio, TX: Anomalist Books.
- [840] Guiley 2013.
- [841] Briggs 1976.
- [842] Ashliman, D.L. (2005, December 17). German Changeling Legends. Retrieved May 4, 2021 from http://www.pitt.edu/~dash/gerchange.html
- [843] Young 2018.
- [844] Guiley 2013.
- [845] Leach 1961.
- [846] Tomlinson 2016.
- [847] Bernhardt, P. (2008). Gods and Goddesses in the Garden: Greco-Roman Mythology and the Scientific Names of Plants. New Brunswick, NJ: Rutgers University Press.
- [848] Fecht, S. (February 6, 2012). Bright-Sized: Skull Study Shows Eye-Sockets Have Grown Larger at Higher Latitudes. Retrieved May 3, 2021 from https://www.scientificamerican.com/article/bright-sized-skull-study/
- [849] Wilde 1887.
- [850] Briggs 1970.
- [851] Young 2018.
- [852] Martin, K., Walker, J. (Producers), & Walker, J. (Director). (2000). The Fairy Faith (motion picture). Canada: National Film Board of Canada.
- [853] Rogers, C. (1869). Scotland Social and Domestic: Memorials of Life and Manners in North Britain. London: Charles Griffin and Co.
- [854] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [855] Kennedy 1866.
- [856] Guiley 2009.
- [857] Guiley 2007.
- [858] Bane 2016.
- [859] Morgan 2009.
- [860] Daimler 2017.
- [861] Ibid.
- [862] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [863] Daimler 2017.
- [864] Shushan 2009.
- [865] Yeats, W.B. (Ed.). (1892). Irish Fairy Tales. London, UK: T. Fisher Unwin.
- [866] Briggs 1976.
- [867] Spence 1946.

- [868] Asante & Mazama 2009.
- [869] Ogden 2001.
- [870] Goodale, J.C. Fink, R., Beckett, J., Hiatt, L.R., & Barnes, J,A. (2001). *Before It's Too Late: Anthropological Reflections*, 1950-1970. (G. Gray, Ed.). Sydney, AU: University of Sydney.
- [871] Bane 2016.
- [872] Eliade 1964.
- [873] Guiley 2007.
- [874] Witthoft & Hadlock 1946.
- [875] Canaan 1927.
- [876] Briggs 1976.
- [877] Fleming 2002.
- [878] Spence 1946.
- [879] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [880] Lady Gregory 1920, First Series.
- [881] Ibid.
- [882] Briggs 1976.
- [883] Silver 1999.
- [884] Briggs 1976.
- [885] Ibid.
- [886] Bane 2016.
- [887] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [888] Gresseth, G.K. (1970). The Homeric Sirens. *Transactions and Proceedings of the American Philological Association 101*, pp. 203-218.
- [889] Guiley 2007.
- [890] Jung, C.G. (1964). *Man and his Symbols*. (C.G. Jung, M.-L. von Franz, J. Freeman, & D. Hill, Eds.). New York, NY: Anchor Press.
- [891] Rhŷs 1901.
- [892] Yeats 1892.
- [893] Hancock 2007.
- [894] Hall, A. (2007). *Elves in Anglo-Saxon England: Matters of Belief, Health, Gender and Identity*. Rochester, NY: Boydell & Brewer.
- [895] Young December 2016.
- [896] Njuguna, W. (November 22, 2012). Fairy rings enigmatic features of Namibia. Retrieved June 29, 2021 from https://archive.ph/20130221091050/http://www.namibian.com.na/news/environment/full-story/archive/2012/november/article/fairy-rings-enigmatic-features-of-namibia/
- [897] Strohm, R. & Blackburn, B.J. (Eds.). (2001). *The New Oxford History of Music: Music as Concept and Practice in the Late Middle Ages Vol. III.1*. Oxford, UK: Oxford University Press.
- [898] MacCulloch 1932.
- [899] Caciola 2016.
- [900] Spence 1946.

- [901] Croker 1825.
- [902] Bord 2014.
- [903] Shushan 2009.
- [904] Greenman, E.F. (April-June 1932). Origin and Development of the Burial Ground. *American Anthropologist New Series* 34(2), pp. 286-295.
- [905] Kowalewski 2015.
- [906] Walter 2006.
- [907] Bord 2014.
- [908] Hancock 2007.
- [909] Daimler 2017.
- [910] Bane 2016.
- [911] Lady Gregory 1920, Second Series.
- [912] Wilde 1887.
- [913] Lady Gregory 1920, First Series.
- [914] Cutchin, J. (2018). *Thieves in the Night: A Brief History of Supernatural Child Abduction*. San Antonio, TX: Anomalist Books.
- [915] Steiger, B. (1978). Alien Meetings. New York, NY: Ace Books.
- [916] Parsons, P.T. (1939). Pueblo Indian Religion, Vol. I. Chicago, IL: University of Chicago Press.
- [917] Lecouteux 2019.
- [918] Lecouteux 2003.
- [919] Mann 2003.
- [920] Puhvel, M. (1978). Snow and Mist in "Sir Gawain and the Green Knight": Portents of the Otherworld? *Folklore 89*(2), pp. 224-228.
- [921] Scarcia, G. (1983). HERAKLES-VERETHRAGNA AND THE MI'RĀJ OF RUSTAM. *Acta Orientalia Academiae Scientiarum Hungaricae* 37 (1/3), pp. 85-109.
- [922] Sikes 1880.
- [923] Devereux 2007.
- [924] Fleming 2002.
- [925] Cutchin, J. (2015). A Trojan Feast: The Food and Drink Offerings of Aliens, Faeries, and Sasquatch. San Antonio, TX: Anomalist Books.
- [926] Ogden 2001.
- [927] Hewitt, J.W. (1912). On the Development of the Thank-Offering among the Greeks. *Transactions and Proceedings of the American Philological Association 43*, pp. 95-111.
- [928] Butler 2017.
- [929] Jones, P. (2017). Pucks and Lights. In S. Young & C. Houlbrook (Eds.), *Magical Folk: British and Irish Fairies: 500 AD to the Present* (Kindle Edition). London, UK: Gibson Square Books.
- [930] Matsuo, A. (2019). The Brave Mortal's Guide to Ghost Hunting. US: Alex Matsuo.
- [931] Lossiah 1998.
- [932] Canaan 1927.
- [933] Lecouteux 2019.

- [934] Pócs, É. (2018). Small Gods, Small Demons: Remnants of an Archaic Fairy Cult in Central and South-Eastern Europe. In M. Ostling (Ed.), *Fairies, Demons, and Nature Spirits: 'Small Gods' at the Margins of Christendom*, pp. 255-276.
- [935] Lysaght, P. (1997). Fairylore from the Midlands of Ireland. In P. Narváez (Ed.), *The Good People: New Fairylore Essays* (pp. 22-46). Lexington, KY: The University Press of Kentucky.
- [936] Lecouteux 2013.
- [937] Daimler 2017.
- [938] Lecouteux 2013.
- [939] Pócs 2018.
- [940] O'Hanlon 1870.
- [941] Spence 1946.
- [942] Lecouteux 2011.
- [943] Bogoras 1925.
- [944] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [945] McHugh, T. (n.d.). A Story Led Astray at Night. Retrieved May 6, 2021 from https:// www.duchas.ie/en/cbes/4498043/4345562
- [946] Mark, E. (April 20, 2016). Ghosts in Ancient China. Retrieved May 6, 2021 from https://www.worldhistory.org/article/892/ghosts-in-ancient-china/
- [947] Mann 2003.
- [948] Woodyard, C. (October 24, 2017). Shades of Blue. Retrieved May 6, 2021 from http://hauntedohiobooks.com/news/ghosts-news/shades-of-blue/
- [949] Shushan 2009.
- [950] Daimler 2017.
- [951] Mann 2003.
- [952] Daimler 2017.
- [953] Lecouteux 2019.
- [954] Briggs 1970.
- [955] Shushan 2009.
- [956] Lewis 1994.
- [957] Hartland 1891.
- [958] Cutchin 2018.
- [959] Eliade 1964.
- [960] Ogden 2001.
- [961] Guiley 2007.
- [962] Ibid.
- [963] Suggett, R. (2017). The Fair Folk and Enchanters. In S. Young & C. Houlbrook (Eds.), *Magical Folk: British and Irish Fairies: 500 AD to the Present* (Kindle Edition). London, UK: Gibson Square.
- [964] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [965] Spence 1946.

- [966] Mann 2003.
- [967] Briggs 1976.
- [968] Lecouteux 2015.
- [969] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [970] Hartland 1891.
- [971] Silver 1999.
- [972] Spence 1946.
- [973] Bhushan, R. (April 21, 2021). 10,000-years-ago Irish Hunter-Gatherers Were Dark-Skinned. Retrieved May 7, 2021 from https://www.ancient-origins.net/news-evolution-human-origins/irish-0015225
- [974] Monroe 1977.
- [975] MacCulloch 1932.
- [976] Briggs 1976.
- [977] Norman, M., & Hickey-Hall, J. (2017). Pixies and Pixy Rocks. In S. Young & C. Houlbrook (Eds.), *Magical Folk: British and Irish Fairies: 500 AD to the Present* (Kindle Edition). London, UK: Gibson Square.
- [978] Sikes 1880.
- [979] Beachcombing. (November 25, 2013). Romans and Fairies? Retrieved May 7, 2021 from http://www.strangehistory.net/2013/11/25/romans-and-fairies/
- [980] Spence 1946.
- [981] Briggs 1976.
- [982] Silver 1999.
- [983] James, R.M. (2017). Piskies and Knockers. In S. Young & C. Houlbrook (Eds.), *Magical Folk:* British and Irish Fairies: 500 AD to the Present (Kindle Edition). London, UK: Gibson Square.
- [984] Briggs 1976.
- [985] MacCulloch 1932.
- [986] Cowan, J. (June 1921). THE PATU-PAIAREHE. NOTES ON MAORI FOLK-TALES OF THE FAIRY PEOPLE. *The Journal of the Polynesian Society* 30(2-118), pp. 96-102.
- [987] Manning, C. (2004). Irish Field Monuments. Dublin, IE: Government Publications Office.
- [988] Bruford, A. (1997). Trolls, Hillfolk, Finns, and Picts: The Identity of the Good Neighbors in Orkney and Shetland. In P. Narváez (Ed.), *The Good People: New Fairylore Essays* (pp. 116-141). Lexington, KY: The University Press of Kentucky.
- [989] Klein, K. (2010). Through the Faerie Glass: A Look at the Realm of Unseen and Enchanted Beings. St. Paul, MN: Llewellyn Worldwide, Ltd.
- [990] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [991] Silver 1999.
- [992] Ibid.
- [993] Fuglestad, F. (1982). The Tompon-Tany and the Tompon-Drano in the History of Central and Western Madagascar. *History in Africa 9*, pp. 61-76.
- [994] Hamada, S. (Fall 2005). Archaeology in Social Context: The Influence of Nationalism on the Discussions of the Ainu. *Journal of Northwest Anthropology* 39(2), pp. 165-188.
- [995] Tomlinson 2016.

- [996] Croker 1828.
- [997] Roth 1997.
- [998] Croker 1828.
- [999] Bane 2016.
- [1000] Silver 1999.
- [1001] Croker 1828.
- [1002] MacCulloch 1932.
- [1003] Bane, T. (2016). *Encyclopedia of Beasts and Monsters in Myth, Legend and Folklore*. Jefferson, NC: McFarland & Company, Inc.
- [1004] Somé 1994.
- [1005] Wright, R.M. (2013). *Mysteries of the Jaguar Shamans of the Northwest Amazon*. Lincoln, NE: Board of Regents of the University of Nebraska.
- [1006] Obeyesekere, G. (2012). The Awakened Ones: A Phenomenology of Visionary Experience. New York, NY: Columbia University Press.
- [1007] Silver 1999.
- [1008] Ogden 2001.
- [1009] Bullard, T. (1987). UFO Abductions: The Measure of A Mystery (Vol. 1). Mount Rainier, MD: Fund for UFO Research.
- [1010] Spence 1946.
- [1011] Harpur 2003.
- [1012] Hunt 1903.
- [1013] Simpson, J. (2017). Fairy Queens and Pharisees. In S. Young & C. Houlbrook (Eds.), Magical Folk: British and Irish Fairies: 500 AD to the Present (Kindle Edition). London, UK: Gibson Square Books.
- [1014] Duchas.ie. (2021). A Fairy Funeral. Retrieved May 10, 2021 from https://www.duchas.ie/en/cbes/5070787/5063436/5101371
- [1015] Lady Gregory 1920, First Series.
- [1016] Young, S. (2017). Fairy Holes and Fairy Butter. In S. Young & C. Houlbrook (Eds.), *Magical Folk: British and Irish Fairies: 500 AD to the Present* (Kindle Edition). London, UK: Gibson Square Books.
- [1017] Owen 1896.
- [1018] Rhŷs 1892.
- [1019] Crocker 1828.
- [1020] Young, F. 2019.
- [1021] Ogden 2001.
- [1022] Ballard 1997.
- [1023] Daimler 2017.
- [1024] Lysaght 1997.
- [1025] Field, D.M. (November 17, 2018). Spirit Box #04 /Dr Robert Alcorn 'spirit intrusion, the djinn & healing'. Retrieved February 15, 2022 from https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=jwC81kZGn0M
- [1026] Herzog 1983.

- [1027] Keel, J. (2016). *Anomaly: An Irregular Newsletter Edited by John Keel*. Martinez, CA: Paranoia Publishing. (Original works published 1969-1974)
- [1028] Cutchin 2018.
- [1029] Roth 1997.
- [1030] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [1031] Loponen, M. (October 19, 2017). Faerie Folklore in Medieval Tales. Retrieved May 10, 2021 from https://deadbutdreaming.wordpress.com/2017/10/19/faerie-folklore-in-medieval-tales-by-mika-loponen/
- [1032] Briggs 1976.
- [1033] Bane 2016.
- [1034] Lady Gregory 1920, Second Series.
- [1035] Young 2018.
- [1036] Ballard 1997.
- [1037] Briggs 1976.
- [1038] Ogden 2001.
- [1039] Daimler 2017.
- [1040] Briggs 1976.
- [1041] Fleming 2002.
- [1042] Croker 1825.
- [1043] Bane 2016.
- [1044] Guiley 2007.
- [1045] Sikes 1880.
- [1046] Croker 1828.
- [1047] Owen 1896.
- [1048] Silver 1999.
- [1049] Briggs 1976.
- [1050] Daimler, M. (2020). A New Dictionary of Fairies: A 21st Century Exploration of Celtic and Related Western European Fairies. Alresford, UK: Moon Books.
- [1051] No author. (Nov., 22, 1834). Crofton Croker's Fairy Legends. *The Dublin Penny Journal* 3(125), pp. 162-163.
- [1052] Watson, M.L. (October 30, 2021). Peer Beyond the Veil: 2021 Monsters Ball. Retrieved November 9, 2021 from https://youtu.be/tKMHBR9p7lw
- [1053] Briggs 1976.
- [1054] Lecouteux 2011.
- [1055] Croker 1828.
- [1056] Daimler 2017.
- [1057] Owen 1896.
- [1058] Fisher, B. (August 11, 2021). 6 Degrees of John Keel Episode 39: Are the Gray Aliens Hungry Ghosts? with Joshua Cutchin. Retrieved October 28, 2021 from https://6degreesofjohnkeel.com/episodes/e039-are-gray-aliens-hungry-ghosts-with-josh-cutchin

- [1059] Taylor 2000.
- [1060] Briggs 1976.
- [1061] Spence 1946.
- [1062] Roth 1997.
- [1063] Bowker, J. (1883) Goblin Tales of Lancashire. London, UK: W. Swan Sonnenschein & Co.
- [1064] Lecouteux 2003.
- [1065] Jettmar 1967.
- [1066] Lang, A. (1893). Introduction. In R. Kirk, *The Secret Commonwealth of Elves, Fauns, & Fairies* (pp. ix-xlix). London, UK: David Nutt.
- [1067] Hodson, G. (1952). Kingdom of the Gods. Wheaton, IL: The Theosophical Publishing House.
- [1068] Campbell, J.G. (1900). Superstitions of the Highlands and Islands of Scotland. Glasgow, UK: James Maclehose & Sons.
- [1069] Young 2018.
- [1070] Wilby 2005.
- [1071] Riffard, P.A. (1983). Dictionnaire de l'ésotérisme. Paris, FR: Payot. (see also Nouveau dictionnaire de l'ésotérisme, 2008)
- [1072] Wilby 2005.
- [1073] Hutton 2017.
- [1074] Daimler, M. (2016). Fairycraft: Following The Path Of Fairy Witchcraft. Alresford, UK: Moon Books.
- [1075] Daimler May 21, 2020.
- [1076] Cutchin 2018.
- [1077] Briggs 1976.
- [1078] Cutchin 2018.
- [1079] Ibid.
- [1080] Lewis 1994.
- [1081] Atwater 2000.
- [1082] Wilby 2005.
- [1083] Daimler, M. (April 12, 2018). Possession by Fairies or Elves. Retrieved April 20, 2020 from https://lairbhan.blogspot.com/2018/04/possession-by-fairies-or-elves.html
- [1084] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [1085] Kennedy 1866.
- [1086] Ibid.
- [1087] Ibid.
- [1088] Guiley 2007.
- [1089] Monat, N. (May 1968). The Girl Who Usurped a Boy's Body. *Fate Magazine 218*(21-5), pp. 45-48.
- [1090] Ibid.
- [1091] Ibid.
- [1092] Caciola 2016.

- [1093] Daimler, M. (2016). Pagan Portals: Gods and Goddesses of Ireland. Alresford, UK: Moon Books.
- [1094] Spence 1946.
- [1095] Lecouteux 2011.
- [1096] Spilsbury, S.V. (1983). Traditional Material in *Artus de Bretaigne*. In P.B. Grout, R.A. Lodge, C.E. Pickford, & E.K.C. Varty (Eds.), *Arthurian Studies VII The Legend of Arthur in the Middle Ages* (pp. 183-193). Suffolk, UK: D.S. Brewer.
- [1097] Brennan, T. (2005). The Stoic Life: Emotions, Duties, & Fate. Oxford, UK: Clarendon Press.
- [1098] Willner, J. (2001). *The Perfect Horoscope: Following the Astrological Guidelines Established by Edgar Cayce.* New York, NY: ParaView Press.
- [1099] Feldman, D. (1994). Jewish Views on Abortion. In S. Bayme & G. Rosen (Eds.), *The Jewish Family and Jewish Community* (pp. 231-246). Hoboken, NJ: KTAV Publishing House.
- [1100] Walter & Fridman 2004.
- [1101] Silver 1999.
- [1102] Spence 1946.
- [1103] Lady Gregory 1920, Second Series.
- [1104] Lady Gregory 1920, First Series.
- [1105] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [1106] Keightley 1828.
- [1107] Westropp, T.J. (Jun. 30, 1921). A Study of Folklore on the Coasts of Connacht, Ireland (Continued). *Folklore 32*(2), pp. 101-123.
- [1108] Dod, A.S. (May-June 1983). The Stygian Owl (*Asio stygius noctipetens*) in the Dominican Republic. *American Birds* 37(3), pp. 266-267.
- [1109] Roth 1997.
- [1110] Daimler 2017.
- [1111] Walter 2006.
- [1112] Roth 1997.
- [1113] Briggs 1976.
- [1114] Sikes 1880.
- [1115] Ellis, T.P. (1929). Welsh Fairies. The Welsh Outlook 16(10), p. 298.
- [1116] Geoghegan, S. (2005). Gobnait: Woman of the Bees. Retrieved May 18, 2021 from http://www.matrifocus.com/IMB05/ireland-gobnait.htm
- [1117] Daimler 2017.
- [1118] Ibid.
- [1119] Lecouteux 2019.
- [1120] Ibid.
- [1121] Daimler 2017.
- [1122] Murray, B. (2017). Story A Changeling. Retrieved July 4, 2017 from http://www.duchas.ie/en/cbes/5009102/4986879/5122047
- [1123] Mahon, T. (n.d.). A Fairy Story. Retrieved May 18, 2021 from https://www.duchas.ie/en/cbes/5009331/5007628

- [1124] Croker 1828.
- [1125] Cutchin & Renner 2020 Volume One.
- [1126] Daimler 2017.
- [1127] Ibid.
- [1128] Bord, J. & Bord, C. (1985). Alien Animals. London, UK: Panther Books (2nd ed.).
- [1129] Ibid.
- [1130] Daimler 2017.
- [1131] Ibid.
- [1132] Bord & Bord 1985.
- [1133] Fleming 2002.
- [1134] Rickard & Michell 2000.
- [1135] Bord & Bord 1985.
- [1136] Daimler 2017.
- [1137] Guiley 2013.
- [1138] Devereux 2007.
- [1139] Owen 1896.
- [1140] Sikes 1880.
- [1141] Bord & Bord 1985.
- [1142] Rickard & Michell 2000.
- [1143] Daimler 2017.
- [1144] Ogden 2001.
- [1145] Fleming 2002.
- [1146] Devereux 2007.
- [1147] Daimler 2017.
- [1148] Young 2018.
- [1149] Cárthaigh 1988.
- [1150] Daimler 2017.
- [1151] Lady Gregory 1920, First Series.
- [1152] Herzog 1983.
- [1153] Canney, M.A. (1921) An Encyclopaedia of Religions. London, UK: George Routledge & Sons, Ltd.
- [1154] Daimler 2017.
- [1155] Daimler 2019.
- [1156] MacCulloch, J.A. (1911). The Religion of the Ancient Celts. New York, NY: Dover Publications.
- [1157] Hancock 2007.
- [1158] Spence 1946.
- [1159] Briggs 1976.
- [1160] Daimler 2017.

- [1161] Mann, N.R. (2011). *Glastonbury Tor: A Guide to the History & Legends*. Somerset, UK: The Temple Publications Ltd.
- [1162] Lewis, S. (1973). The Iconography of the Coptic Horseman in Byzantine Egypt. *Journal of the American Research Center in Egypt 10*, pp. 27-63.
- [1163] Gould 1927.
- [1164] Scott 1994.
- [1165] Leach 1961.
- [1166] Redish, L. (2015). Native American Legends: Paissa (Paisake). Retrieved May 21, 2021 from http://www.native-languages.org/paissa.htm
- [1167] Witthoft & Hadlock 1946.
- [1168] Joyce, M. A. (2014). Cherokee Little People Were Real. Dillsboro, NC: Mary A. Joyce.
- [1169] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [1170] Jones, E. (1779). A Geographical, Historical, and Religious Account of the Parish of Aberystruth. Trevecka, UK.
- [1171] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [1172] Roth 1997.
- [1173] Lecouteux 2019.
- [1174] Bord 2014.
- [1175] Ogden 2001.
- [1176] Ibid.
- [1177] Frazer 2009.
- [1178] Daimler, M. (January 3, 2013). Druidic Wands and Sacred Woods in Irish Tradition. Retrieved May 25, 2021 from https://lairbhan.blogspot.com/2013/01/druidic-wands-and-sacred-woods-inirish.html
- [1179] Wilde 1887.
- [1180] Croker 1828.
- [1181] Daimler 2017.
- [1182] Herzog 1983.
- [1183] Croker, T.C. (1828). Fairy Legends & Traditions of the South of Ireland Part II. London, UK: John Murray.
- [1184] Yeats 1890.
- [1185] Young 2018.
- [1186] Ibid.
- [1187] Martin, Walker, & Walker 2000.
- [1188] Ibid.
- [1189] Rank 1971.
- [1190] Cárthaigh 1988.
- [1191] Ibid.
- [1192] Paul, L. & Paul, B.D. (Nov. 1975). The Maya Midwife as Sacred Specialist: A Guatemalan Case. *American Ethnologist* 2(4), pp. 707-726.

- [1193] Bays, J.C. (2001). *Jizo Bodhisattva: Modern Healing and Traditional Buddhist Practice*. Boston, MA: Tuttle, 2001.
- [1194] Daimler 2017.
- [1195] Rogan, J. (June 21, 2018). Joe Rogan Dennis McKenna Critiques Michael Pollan. Retrieved June 14, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=WIYCJdSuUU4
- [1196] Vaitl, D. (2012). Veränderte Bewusstseinszustände: Grundlagen Techniken Phänomenologie. Stuttgart, DE: Schattauer.
- [1197] Keel, J. A. (1976). The Eighth Tower: On Ultraterrestrials and the Superspectrum. New York, NY: E.P. Dutton & Co. Inc.
- [1198] Knowles, C. (2014). Star Trek's Nine and the Sci-Fi Archons. In F. Zero (Ed.), *Contact: Them or Us* (Kindle Edition). US: A Psycube Project.
- [1199] Hunter, J. (2022). Through a Crystal Darkly: Cultural, Experiential, and Ontological Reflections on Faerie. In J. Cutchin (Ed.), *Fairy Films: Wee Folk on the Big Screen* (Kindle Edition). UK: White Crow Books.
- [1200] Brewer, J. (2016). The Greys Have Been Framed: Exploitation in the UFO Community. US: Jack Brewer.
- [1201] Druffel, A. (October 1979). "California Report" UFO Sightings by UFO Researchers: The "Inaccessible Cases" Part II. *MUFON UFO Journal 140*, pp. 14-15.
- [1202] Newkirk, G., Newkirk, D. (Producers), & Pfeiffer, K. (Director). (2019). *Hellier Season 2, Episode 9: The Center of Your Mind* (web series). US: Sticks River.
- [1203] Schnabel, J. (1994). Dark White. London, UK: Hamish Hamilton.
- [1204] Evans 1984.
- [1205] Newton, M. (2004). Life Between Lives. Woodbury, MN: Llewellyn Publications.
- [1206] Afterlife Research and Education Institute, Inc. (2016). Using Hypnotism in Afterlife Communication. Retrieved May 29, 2021 from http://mindstudies.com/hypnotism-afterlifeconnections/
- [1207] Hanks, M. (2010). Magic, Mysticism, & the Molecule: The Search for Sentient Intelligence from Other Worlds. US: CreateSpace Independent Publishing Platform.
- [1208] Precker, M. (January 16, 1994). Spirits in the Mirror: Science or Mind Games? Retrieved May 29, 2021 from https://www.sun-sentinel.com/news/fl-xpm-1994-01-16-9401170155-story.html
- [1209] Garfias, R. (1979-1980). The Role of Dreams and Spirit Possession in the Mbira Dza Vadzimu Musiz of the Shona People of Zimbabwe. *Journal of Altered States of Consciousness* 5(3), pp. 211-234.
- [1210] Leonard, T.J. (2005). *Talking to the Other Side: A History of Modern Spiritualism and Mediumship*. Lincoln, NE: iUniverse.
- [1211] Hall, R. (1988). Uninvited Guests: A Documented History of UFO Sighting, Alien Encounters, & Coverups. Santa Fe, NM: Aurora Press.
- [1212] Browner, R. (pseudonym). (March 27, 2015). Personal communication.
- [1213] Stafford, P. (1993). Psychedelics Encyclopedia (3rd ed). Berkeley, CA: Ronin Publishing.
- [1214] Roberts, A. (May 5, 2015). Francis Crick, DNA & LSD: Psychedelic History in the Age of Science. Retrieved May 27, 2021 from https://psychedelicpress.co.uk/blogs/psychedelic-press-blog/23736769-francis-crick-dna-lsd-psychedelic-history-in-the-age-of-science
- [1215] Mullis, K. (1998). Dancing Naked in the Mind Field. New York, NY: Vintage Books.
- [1216] Strassman, R. (2000). DMT: The Spirit Molecule. Rochester, VT: Park Street Press.

- [1217] John Hopkins Medicine. (June 5, 2020). How psychedelic drug psilocybin works on the brain. Retrieved May 27, 2021 from https://www.sciencedaily.com/releases/2020/06/200605121512.htm
- [1218] Peake 2008.
- [1219] Knight, J. (2014). Altered States of the Fourth Kind. In F. Zero (Ed.), *Contact: Them or Us* (Kindle Edition). US: A Psycube Project.
- [1220] Halberstadt, A. & Geyer, M. (May 15, 2012). Do Psychedelics Expand the Mind by Reducing Brain Activity? Retrieved May 27, 2021 from https://www.scientificamerican.com/article/dopsychedelics-expand-mind-reducing-brain-activity/
- [1221] Randles 1987.
- [1222] theduderinok2 [Screen name]. (February 6, 2011). [Highly Recommended] Terence McKenna Unfolding the Stone. Retrieved January 8, 2016 from https://www.youtube.com/watch? v=zMPamVaTjJE
- [1223] Roes, T. (March 10, 2020). Is MDMA a psychedelic? Retrieved May 27, 2021 from https://icpr2020.net/is-mdma-a-psychedelic/
- [1224] Williams, B. (October 21, 2020). Psychedelic Drugs: Lessons From Ketamine and Psilocybin. Retrieved May 27, 2021 from https://www.psychiatryadvisor.com/home/topics/general-psychiatry/psychedelic-drugs-lessons-from-ketamine-and-psilocybin/
- [1225] McMains, V. (December 1, 2016). Hallucinogenic drug found in 'magic mushrooms' eases depression, anxiety in people with life-threatening cancer. Retrieved May 27, 2021 from https://hub.jhu.edu/2016/12/01/hallucinogen-treats-cancer-depression-anxiety/
- [1226] Strong 2005.
- [1227] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [1228] Deus Ex McKenna [Screen name]. (January 10, 2015). Terence McKenna Alien Footprints: Leprechauns, Elves, Or Dead Souls? Weekend Workshop, May 1993. Retrieved May 27, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lQx-MlpZotw
- [1229] Strassman 2000.
- [1230] Harpur 2003.
- [1231] Ibid.
- [1232] Mack, L.E. & Jones, A. (April 30, 2021). You Might Be Pregnant If You're Having One Of These Weird Dreams. Retrieved May 28, 2021 from https://www.romper.com/life/10-dreams-that-predict-pregnancy-its-about-to-get-weird-8405844
- [1233] Evans 1984.
- [1234] Ryback, D. & Switzer, L. (1988). Dreams That Come True: Their Psychic and Transforming Powers. New York, NY: Doubleday.
- [1235] Ibid.
- [1236] Haney, S. (February 26, 2019). Hospice doctor says that frequently dreaming of deceased loved ones is an indicator that death is looming (and travel or packing dreams can also mean impending death). Retrieved May 28, 2021 from https://www.dailymail.co.uk/news/article-6748199/New-York-hospice-doctor-says-dream-predict-time-come.html
- [1237] McSwain, T. (June 4-6, 2020). *That's Not a Demon*. [Conference presentation]. ConCarolinas 2021, Charlotte, NC, United States.
- [1238] Tralins, R. (1969). Children of the Supernatural. New York, NY: Lancer Books, Inc.
- [1239] Aristotle. (n.d.). On Prophesying in Dreams. (J.I. Beare, Trans.). Retrieved May 28, 2021 from http://classics.mit.edu/Aristotle/prophesying.html

- [1240] Paquette, A. (January 2015). Can Death-Related Dreams Predict Future Deaths? Evidence from a Dream Journal Comprising Nearly 12,000 Dreams. *Journal of Scientific Exploration* 29(3), pp. 411-423.
- [1241] Ogden 2011.
- [1242] Lecouteux 2019.
- [1243] Young, S. (2001). Buddhist Dream Experience: The Role of Interpretation, Ritual, and Gender. In K. Bulkeley (Ed.), *Dreams: A Reader on the Religious, Cultural, and Psychological Dimensions of Dreaming* (pp. 9-28). New York, NY: Palgrave.
- [1244] Ring 1992.
- [1245] Wright, S.T., Kerr, C.W., Doroszczuk, N.M., Kuszack, S.M., Hang, P.C., Luczkiewicz, D.L. (February 2013). The Impact of Dreams of the Deceased on Bereavement: A Survey of Hospice Caregivers. *American Journal of Hospice & Palliative Medicine 31*, pp. 1-7.
- [1246] Guiley, R.E. (2013). *Dream Messages from the Afterlife: Visits from the Dead.* New Milford, CT: Visionary Living, Inc.
- [1247] Ibid.
- [1248] Kroesbergen-Kamps, J. (2018). Dreaming of Snakes in Contemporary Zambia: Small Gods and the Secular. In M. Ostling (Ed.), *Fairies, Demons, and Nature Spirits: 'Small Gods' at the Margins of Christendom*, pp. 233-254.
- [1249] Ogden 2001.
- [1250] Ibid.
- [1251] McKenna, T. (n.d.). Intentionality in Language-Created Realities. Retrieved May 29, 2021 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/Intentionality+in+Language-Created+Realities?query=birthright
- [1252] Dubois, T. (2009) An Introduction to Shamanism. Cambridge, UK: Cambridge University Press.
- [1253] Walter and Fridman 2004.
- [1254] Dubois 2009.
- [1255] Muraresku 2020.
- [1256] Walter and Fridman 2004.
- [1257] Ibid.
- [1258] US Forest Service. (n.d.). The Powerful Solanaceae: Datura. Retrieved May 30, 2021 from https://www.fs.fed.us/wildflowers/ethnobotany/Mind and Spirit/datura.shtml
- [1259] Koch, W.H. & Koch, L.K. (November 2008). *The Hopewell Civilization in the Sauk Valley.* Sterling, IL: Sterling-Rock Falls Historical Society.
- [1260] Hudson, C.M. (1979). Black Drink: A Native American Tea. Athens, GA: University of Georgia Press.
- [1261] Durham University. (January 14, 2009). High Caffeine Intake Linked to Hallucination Proneness. Retrieved May 30, 2021 from https://www.sciencedaily.com/releases/ 2009/01/090113203901.htm
- [1262] Emboden, W. (Jan.-Mar. 1989). The Sacred Journey in Dynastic Egypt. *Journal of Psychoactive Drugs 21*(1), p. 61-75.
- [1263] Kerényi, K. (1967). *Eleusis: Archetypal Image of Mother and Daughter.* Princeton, NJ: Princeton University Press.
- [1264] Muraresku 2020.
- [1265] Bennet, C., McQueen, N., & Cowan, R. (2001). Sex, Drugs, Violence and the Bible. Gibsons, BC: Forbidden Fruit Publishing.

- [1266] Wasson, R.G. (1972). Soma: Divine Mushroom of Immortality. New York: Harvest Books.
- [1267] Allegro, J.M. (1970). The Sacred Mushroom and the Cross: A Study of the Nature and Origins of Christianity Within the Fertility Cults of the Ancient Near East. Gnostic Media Research & Publishing.
- [1268] Tsakiris, A. (June 24, 2015). 213. Earl Lee's Shocking Theory Links Hallucinogenic Mushrooms to Christian Burial Rites. Retrieved May 31, 2021 from https://skeptiko.com/hallucinogenicmushrooms-and-christian-burial-rites/
- [1269] McKenna, T. (May 29-31, 1992). Search for the Original Tree of Knowledge. Retrieved May 31, 2021 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/Search+For+The+Original+Tree+Of+Knowledge? query=ferry
- [1270] Muraresku 2020.
- [1271] Shushan 2009.
- [1272] Ibid.
- [1273] Wasson 1972.
- [1274] Herzog 1983.
- [1275] Spess, D.L. (2000). Soma: The Divine Hallucinogen. Rochester, VT: Inner Traditions.
- [1276] Sayers, M.R. (2013). Feeding the Dead: Ancestor Worship in Ancient India. Oxford, UK: Oxford University Press.
- [1277] Muraresku 2020.
- [1278] Pinchbeck, D. (2002). Breaking Open the Head: A Psychedelic Journey into the Heart of Contemporary Shamanism. New York, NY: Broadway Books.
- [1279] Hancock 2007.
- [1280] Schultes, R.E. (2001) *Plants of the Gods: Their Sacred, Healing and Hallucinogenic Powers.* Rochester, VT: Healing Arts Press.
- [1281] Dalgarno, P. (June 2007). Subjective effects of Salvia divinorum. *Journal of Psychoactive Drugs* 39(2), pp. 143-149.
- [1282] Arthur, J.D. (2010). Salvia Divinorum: Doorway to Thought-Free Awareness. Rochester, VT: Park Street Press.
- [1283] Lebot, V., Merlin, M, & Lindstrom, L. (1997). *Kava: The Pacific Elixir*. New Haven, CT: Yale University Press.
- [1284] Applegate, R.B. (1975). The Datura Cult Among the Chumash. *The Journal of California Anthropology* 2(1), pp. 7-17.
- [1285] Miklashevich, E. (2008). Rock Art Research in Siberia and Central Asia, 2000-2004. In P. Bahn, N. Franklin, & M. Strecker (Eds.), *Rock Art Studies: News of the World III* (Kindle Edition). Oxford, UK: Oxbow Books.
- [1286] McKenna, T. (May 1993). Alien Footprints Leprechauns, Elves, or Dead Souls? Retrieved June 1, 2021 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/Alien+Footprints+-+Leprechauns%2C+Elves%2C+or+Dead+Souls%3F
- [1287] McKenna, T. (June 1993). Mushrooms, Sex and Society. Retrieved June 1, 2021 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/Mushrooms%2C+Sex+and+Society
- [1288] McKenna, T. (September 8, 1991). Mushrooms, Evolution and the Millennium. Retrieved June 1, 2021 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/Mushrooms%2C+Evolution+and+the+Millenium
- [1289] Millman, L. (2019). Fungipedia: A Brief Compendium of Mushroom Lore. Princeton, NJ: Princeton University Press.

- [1290] Cumo, C. (2015). Foods That Changed History: How Foods Shaped Civilization from the Ancient World to the Present. Santa Barbara, CA: ABC-CLIO.
- [1291] Metzner, R. (2004). Introduction: Visionary Mushrooms of the Americas. In R. Metzner (Ed.), *Sacred Mushroom of Visions: Teonanácatl* (pp. 1-48). Rochester, VT: Inner Traditions.
- [1292] Jay, M. (October 7, 2020). Fungi, Folklore, and Fairyland. Retrieved June 1, 2021 from https://publicdomainreview.org/essay/fungi-folklore-and-fairyland
- [1293] Ibid.
- [1294] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [1295] Groot, J.J.M. (1901). The Religious System of China Volume IV, Book II: On the Soul and Ancestral Worship. Leiden, NL: E.J. Brill.
- [1296] Cumo 2015.
- [1297] Roth 1997.
- [1298] Hancock 2007.
- [1299] Story, R.D. (Ed.). (2001). *The Mammoth Encyclopedia of Extraterrestrial Encounters*. London, UK: Constable & Robinson Ltd.
- [1300] McKenna, T. (1983). Alien Love. Retrieved June 1, 2021 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/Alien+Love
- [1301] McKenna, T. (March 27, 1990). Touched by The Tremendum. Retrieved June 1, 2021 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/Touched+by+The+Tremendum
- [1302] McKenna, T. & Toms, M. (June 10, 1983). Towards the Unknown. Retrieved June 1, 2021 from https://www.organism.earth/library/document/towards-the-unknown
- [1303] McKenna, T. (April 25, 1996). Terence McKenna: Live at the Cathedral Church of Saint John the Divine, NYC. Retrieved June 1, 2021 from https://www.abrupt.org/abruptlog/terencemckenna-at-saint-johns/
- [1304] Kennedy, A.B. (June 1982). *Ecce Bufo:* The Toad in Nature and in Olmec Iconography. *Current Anthropology* 23(3), pp. 273-290.
- [1305] Oroc, J. (2009). Tryptamine Palace: 5-MeO-DMT and the Sonoran Desert Toad. Rochester, VT: Park Street Press.
- [1306] Hancock 2007.
- [1307] Dubois 2009.
- [1308] McKenna, D. J. (1999). Ayahuasca: An Ethnopharmacologic History. In R. Metzner (Ed.), *Ayahuasca: Hallucinogens, Consciousness, and the Spirit of Nature* (pp. 40-62). New York, NY: Thunder's Mouth Press.
- [1309] Moran, K. (August 22, 2017). Sulfur with a Hint of Chocolate. Retrieved June 2, 2021 from https://ayahuascawisdom.com/sulfur-with-a-hint-of-chocolate-the-taste-of-ayahausca/
- [1310] Hancock 2007.
- [1311] Davis, W. (2004). *The Lost Amazon: The Photographic Journey of Richard Evans Schultes*. San Francisco, CA: Chronicle Books.
- [1312] Hancock 2007.
- [1313] Beyer, S. (December 24, 2007). The Telepathy Meme. Retrieved June 2, 2021 from https://www.singingtotheplants.com/2007/12/the-telepathy-meme/
- [1314] Adamson, R. (1999). The Experience of Ayahuasca: Teaching of the Amazonian Plant Spirits. In R. Metzner (Ed.), *Ayahuasca: Hallucinogens, Consciousness, and the Spirit of Nature* (pp. 118-128). New York, NY: Thunder's Mouth Press.

- [1315] Ravenswood, S. (1999). Ethereal Serpents Held Me in Thrall. In R. Metzner (Ed.), Ayahuasca: Hallucinogens, Consciousness, and the Spirit of Nature (pp. 118-128). New York, NY: Thunder's Mouth Press.
- [1316] disinformation [Screen name] (October 26, 2010). Graham Hancock: Elves, Aliens, Angels and Ayahuasca [Video file]. Retrieved June 2, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch? v=0qgMFO0KU-I
- [1317] Metzner, R. (2006). Introduction: Amazonian Vine of Visions. In R. Metzner (Ed.), *Sacred Vine of Spirits: Ayahuasca* (pp. 1-39). Rochester, VT: Park Street Press.
- [1318] Campos, D.J. (2011). *The Shaman & Ayahuasca*. (A. Roman, Trans.). (G. Overton, Ed.). Studio City, CA: Divine Arts.
- [1319] Knight 2014.
- [1320] McKenna, T. (n.d.). DMT, Mathematical Dimensions, and Death. Retrieved June 11, 2021 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/DMT%2C+Mathematical+Dimensions%2C+and+Death? query=DMT%20Mathematical%20Dimensions%20and%20Death
- [1321] White, G. (December 2, 2020). Talking Creativity, Tarot and Ayahuasca | Lucy Delics. Retrieved June 2, 2021 from http://podcast.runesoup.com/talking-creativity-tarot-and-ayahuasca-lucy-delics
- [1322] Perriam, D. Personal communication, January 19, 2015.
- [1323] Hancock 2007.
- [1324] Payaguaje, F. (2000). At the End You See God (excerpt from *The Yajé Drinker*). In L. E. Luna & S. F. White (Eds.), *Ayahuasca Reader: Encounters with the Amazon's Sacred Vine* (pp. 67-80). Santa Fe, NM: Synergetic Press.
- [1325] McKenna, T. (June 1989). Aka Psychedelics and the Feminine. Retrieved June 7, 2021 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/aka+Psychedelics+and+the+Feminine
- [1326] McKenna, T. (1991). Address to the Jung Society. Retrieved June 7, 2021 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/Address+to+the+Jung+Society
- [1327] Strassman 2000.
- [1328] Lin, T. (2018). Trip: Psychedelics, Alienation, and Change. New York, NY: Vintage Books.
- [1329] Keister 2004.
- [1330] McKenna, T. (July 19-24, 1994). Rap Dancing Into the Third Millenium. Retrieved June 7, 2021 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/Rap+Dancing+Into+the+Third+Millenium
- [1331] Society for Scientific Exploration. (June 13, 2019). DMT and Entities: Not Everyone Gets Machine Elves | Jennifer A. Lyke. Retrieved June 7, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=bWTT4778IIQ
- [1332] Deus Ex McKenna 2015.
- [1333] McKenna, T. (1993). True Hallucinations. San Francisco, CA: Harper San Francisco.
- [1334] Hansen, S. & Schild, R. (2016). *The Dual Soul Connection: The Alien Agenda for Human Advancement.* Tauranga, NZ: UFOCUS NZ.
- [1335] Sahagun, B. (1997). Primeros Memoriales. (T. D. Sullivan, Trans.). Norman, OK: University of Oklahoma Press.
- [1336] Strassman 2000.
- [1337] Ibid.
- [1338] Malcolm, K. (June 27, 2019). 'Mystical' Psychedelic Compound Found in Normal Brains. Retrieved June 7, 2021 from https://labblog.uofmhealth.org/lab-report/mystical-psychedelic-compound-found-normal-brains

- [1339] Marinković, M. (February 4, 2021). Not in Your Third Eye: What Does DMT Do in the Brain? Retrieved June 7, 2021 from https://mind-foundation.org/dmt-brain/
- [1340] Strassman 2000.
- [1341] Lewis, A.E. & Clouatre, D. (1996). *Melatonin and the Biological Clock*. New Canaan, CT: Keats Publishing.
- [1342] Dodgson, L. (March 29, 2018). A little-known hallucinogenic drug called DMT takes people to a place that feels 'more real than real'—here's what researchers know about it. Retrieved June 7, 2021 from https://www.businessinsider.com/the-research-on-the-hallucinogenic-drug-dmt-2018-3
- [1343] Grof, S. & Grof, C. (2010). *Holotropic Breathwork: A New Approach to Self-Exploration and Therapy.* Albany, NY: Excelsior Editions.
- [1344] Eakin, R.M. (1973). The Third Eye. Berkeley, CA: University of California Press.
- [1345] ReFaey, K., Quinones, G.C., Clifton, W., Tripathi, S., & Quiñones-Hinojosa, A. (May 2019). The Eye of Horus: The Connection Between Art, Medicine, and Mythology in Ancient Egypt. *Cureus 11*(5). Retrieved June 7, 2021 from https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC6649877/
- [1346] Strassman 2000.
- [1347] Descartes, R. (1991). *The Philosophical Writings of René Descartes, Volume III: The Correspondence.* (J. Cottingham, R. Stoothoff, D. Murdoch, & A. Kenny, Trans.). Cambridge, UK: Cambridge University Press.
- [1348] Keister 2004.
- [1349] McKenna, A. (2015). *Third Eye: Mind Power, Intuition and Psychic Awareness*. US: Alex McKenna (3rd ed).
- [1350] Oldham, B. (2017). The Baby Takers. J. Smith (Ed.). Henderson, NV: Halo House Publishing.
- [1351] Rozsa, M. (May 15, 2021). How the pineal gland became an obsession for both spiritualists and sci-fi writers. Retrieved June 7, 2021 from https://www.salon.com/2021/05/15/how-the-pineal-gland-became-an-obsession-for-both-spiritualists-and-sci-fi-writers/
- [1352] Timmermann, C., Roseman, L., Williams, L., Erritzoe, D., Martial, C., Cassol, H., Laureys, S., Nutt, D., & Carhart-Harris, R. (August 15, 2018). DMT Models the Near-Death Experience. *Frontiers in Psychology 9*. Retrieved June 8, 2021 from https://www.frontiersin.org/articles/10.3389/fpsyg.2018.01424/full
- [1353] McKenna, T. (1994). Appreciating Imagination. Retrieved June 8, 2021 from https://www.organism.earth/library/document/appreciating-imagination
- [1354] Hancock 2007.
- [1355] McKenna, T. (1991). The Archaic Revival. San Francisco, CA: Harper San Francisco.
- [1356] Strassman 2000.
- [1357] Grob, C.S. (1999). The Psychology of Ayahuasca. In R. Metzner (Ed.), *Ayahuasca: Hallucinogens, Consciousness, and the Spirit of Nature* (pp. 63-93). New York, NY: Thunder's Mouth Press.
- [1358] Hopkins, B. (1987). Intruders. New York, NY: Random House.
- [1359] Joy, K. (July 11, 2014). Similarities between a Near Death Experience and a Life Between Lives Regression. Retrieved June 8, 2021 from https://lifebetweenlivesregression.com.au/similarities-between-a-near-death-experience-and-a-life-between-lives-regression/
- [1360] Peake, A. (2019). The Hidden Universe. London, UK: Watkins.
- [1361] Strassman 2000.

- [1362] Data obtained from a search of the Erowid archives retrieved June 8, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/
- [1363] McKenna 1993.
- [1364] Maya. (May 4, 2015). Spirituality and Psilocybin. Retrieved https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=88484
- [1365] American Psychological Association. (July 2, 2004). Hypnosis for the Relief and Control of Pain. Retrieved June 8, 2021 from https://www.apa.org/research/action/hypnosis
- [1366] Luke, D. & Kittenis, M. (September 2005). A preliminary survey of paranormal experiences with psychoactive drugs. *The Journal of Parapsychology* 69(2), pp. 305-327.
- [1367] Ibid.
- [1368] Peake 2008.
- [1369] Hancock 2007.
- [1370] Unger, S.M. (1963). Mescaline, LSD, Psilocybin and Personality Change. *Psychiatry 26*, pp. 111-125.
- [1371] Devereux 2001.
- [1372] Joy 2014.
- [1373] Ibid.
- [1374] Strassman 2000.
- [1375] 36fuckin5. (May 8, 2010). The Tunnel of Light. Retrieved June 8, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=64650
- [1376] Luke & Kittenis 2005.
- [1377] Strassman 2000.
- [1378] Yours Truely. (June 4, 2019). Past Life, Death, Afterlife, Reincarnation. Retrieved June 8, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=111541
- [1379] Creatus. (April 4, 2020). Infinity is a Scary Experience. Retrieved June 8, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=63597
- [1380] loveandhope. (June 12, 2018). Level 2-3 and Beautiful. Retrieved June 8, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=103897
- [1381] danilo. (May 6, 2019). Didn't Expect That. Retrieved June 8, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=107754
- [1382] Nautical. (February 12, 2018). Merging into the World. Retrieved June 8, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=63429
- [1383] Decriminalizeit. (September 7, 2009). Leno Encounter and a Golden Bridge. Retreieved June 8, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=56229
- [1384] Strassman 2000.
- [1385] Unger 1963.
- [1386] Muraresku 2020.
- [1387] MckennaCountrCulture. (November 6, 2013). Terence Mckenna discusses death. Retrieved June 8, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=V7Ifyctb5DI
- [1388] Unger 1963.
- [1389] Yours Truely 2019.
- [1390] G., Jaime. (n.d.). 654 Jaime G NDE 2286. Retrieved June 8, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1jaime_g_nde.html

- [1391] M., Lin. (n.d.). 3475 Lin M Possible NDE 6928. Retrieved June 8, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1lin_m_possible_nde.html
- [1392] Shushan 2009.
- [1393] Lewis Carrol. (January 11, 2002). Stop the Ride, I Wanna Get Off! Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=5045
- [1394] Tree Spirit. (February 14, 2019). From Serenity to Hell and Back. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=112343
- [1395] Theo Von Clips. (February 21, 2020). Ari Shaffir's Salvia Trip. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=qc7xAq29J7Y
- [1396] Ogden, R. & Montgomery, C. (August 2012). High Time. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://thepsychologist.bps.org.uk/volume-25/edition-8/high-time
- [1397] Love, S. (December 3, 2018). LSD Changes Something About The Way You Perceive Time. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.vice.com/en/article/j5zd7p/lsd-changes-something-about-the-way-you-perceive-time
- [1398] Nichols, D.E. (April 2016). Psychedelics. *Pharmacological Reviews* 68(2), pp. 264-355.
- [1399] Knight 2014.
- [1400] Luke & Kittenis 2005.
- [1401] Rodabough, T. & Cole, K. (2003). Near-Death Experiences and as Secular Eschatology. In C.D. Bryant (Ed.), *Handbook of Death and Dying*. Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage Reference.
- [1402] Strassman 2000.
- [1403] Joy 2014.
- [1404] Strassman 2000.
- [1405] Shep. (March 2, 2003). The Tempest. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=21719
- [1406] Knight 2014.
- [1407] Metzner 2006.
- [1408] Strassman 2000.
- [1409] Joy 2014.
- [1410] FeralPup (July 31, 2019). Being Torn From Reality by DiMiTri. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=97815
- [1411] JollyRick. (December 19, 2008). Utter Isness. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=74992
- [1412] Lucid. (October 27, 2016). Masters of the Universe. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=94632
- [1413] Strassman 2000.
- [1414] Rogan, J. (November 7, 2017). Joe Rogan Experience #1035 Paul Stamets. Retrieved June 10, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=mPqWstVnRjQ&t=1639s
- [1415] Luke, D. (March 2008). Psychedelics substances and paranormal phenomena: A review of the research. *The Journal of Parapsychology*, pp. 77-107.
- [1416] Alex. (March 11, 2011). Demon Woman. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=88866
- [1417] Luke 2008.

- [1418] Adam. (January 1, 2009). Human, Yet Alien. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=54527
- [1419] Walden, J. (2011). Jungle Travel and Survival. In P.S. Auerbach (Ed.), *Wilderness Medicine E-Book* (pp. 815-836). New York, NY: Elsevier Health Sciences (6th ed.).
- [1420] goon. (November 23, 2019). Enjoyably Overwhelmed. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=113761
- [1421] Strassman 2000.
- [1422] nervewing. (August 6, 2018). Brilliant Flogging. Retrieved June 10, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=112155
- [1423] Master, R. & Houston, J. (2000). *The Varieties of Psychedelic Experience*. Rochester, VT: Park Street Press.
- [1424] LiminalMugwump. (June 29, 2020). A Stormy Trip on a Stormy Post-Election Day. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=114084
- [1425] B.M.J. (June 20, 2000). Ketamine and the Exploration of Consciousness. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=1968
- [1426] Oliver. (September 3, 2006). 3 Weeks in its Reality. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=52972
- [1427] Zevon Starship. (May 4, 2015). Range of Emotion. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=86012
- [1428] DJ Ruxspinz. (June 4, 2020). I Saw Flowers and Trees. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=49608
- [1429] intrsrchng. (April 30, 2018). Communing With My Deceased Mother. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=111469
- [1430] mpowerftw. (September 28, 2020). Your 'Reality' Doesn't Exist. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=73901
- [1431] Kapila. (November 22, 2020). Divine Teacher for This Time. Retrieved June 10, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=86162
- [1432] Tokey the Bear. (September 16, 2005). The Contorted Little Wonders. Retrieved June 10, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=14596
- [1433] Eric S. (February 22, 2012). A Trip to Die For. Retrieved June 11, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=89232
- [1434] Tycho. (October 18, 2020). The Syndrome of Subjective Doubles. Retrieved June 10, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=114856
- [1435] Brainaddict. (June 18, 2006). The Philosopher's Tool. Retrieved June 10, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=33811
- [1436] Hancock 2007.
- [1437] Ibid.
- [1438] Strassman 2000.
- [1439] Ibid.
- [1440] Meyer, P. (Ed.). (n.d.). 340 DMT Trip Reports. Retrieved June 10, 2021 from https://www.serendipity.li/dmt/340 dmt trip reports.htm
- [1441] Ibid.
- [1442] Gamba 2014.
- [1443] Harner, M. (1980). The Way of the Shaman. San Francisco, CA: Harper San Francisco.

- [1444] Ibid.
- [1445] Elise. (September 27, 2017). Wonderful, Terrifying, Eye-Opening. Retrieved June 10, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=22735
- [1446] Gracie & Zarkov. (1987). Coming Out of Left Field with Gracie and Zarkov. *High Frontiers 3*, pp. 59-60.
- [1447] Wilde 1887.
- [1448] Ibid.
- [1449] Ibid.
- [1450] Smith, O. (2016). Cannabis in Ireland Part 1 History. Retrieved June 10, 2021 from https://cannabisdigest.ca/cannabis-in-ireland-part-1-history/
- [1451] Ogden 2001.
- [1452] McKenna, T. (November 5-6, 1988). Ethnobotany of Shamanism. Retrieved June 10, 2021 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/Ethnobotany+of+Shamanism
- [1453] Meyer n.d.
- [1454] Ibid.
- [1455] Strassman 2000.
- [1456] Clelland 2015.
- [1457] Ibid.
- [1458] Deus Ex McKenna 2015.
- [1459] Ibid.
- [1460] Mishlove, J. (October 18, 2020). Mind at Large with Michael Grosso. Retrieved June 10, 2021 from https://www.listennotes.com/podcasts/new-thinking/mind-at-large-with-michael-q4Mpyn8j iu/
- [1461] Grosso, M. (2017). The Final Choice: Death or Transcendence? US: Michael Grosso.
- [1462] Deus Ex McKenna 2015.
- [1463] Ibid.
- [1464] Gerber, T. (February 2019). Eros and Thanatos: Freud's two fundamental drives. Retrieved June 11, 2021 from https://epochemagazine.org/20/eros-and-thanatos-freuds-two-fundamental-drives/
- [1465] Strieber & Kripal 2016.
- [1466] McKenna, T. (August 1993). A Weekend with Terence McKenna. Retrieved June 11, 2021 from https://www.organism.earth/library/document/a-weekend-with-terence-mckenna
- [1467] Deus Ex McKenna 2015.
- [1468] McKenna, T. (October 1999). Tryptamine Hallucinogens and Consciousness. Retrieved June 11, 2021 from https://erowid.org/culture/characters/mckenna_terence/mckenna_terence_tryptamines_consciousness.shtml
- [1469] Deus Ex McKenna 2015.
- [1470] McKenna, T. (1984). New Maps of Hyperspace. Retrieved June 11, 2021 from https:// www.asktmk.com/talks/New+Maps+of+Hyperspace
- [1471] Van Gordon, W., Shonin, E., Dunn, T.J., Sheffield, D., Garcia-Campayo, J., & Griffiths, M.D. (2018). Meditation-Induced Near-Death Experiences: A 3-Year Longitudinal Study. *Mindfulness* 9(6), pp. 1794-1806.
- [1472] Strong 2005.

- [1473] Strieber, W. (2011). The Key. New York, NY: Jeremy P. Tarcher. (Original work published 2001)
- [1474] McKenna n.d., DMT, Mathematical Dimensions, and Death.
- [1475] Deus Ex McKenna 2015.
- [1476] Strassman 2000.
- [1477] Deus Ex McKenna 2015.
- [1478] Ibid.
- [1479] Strieber & Kripal 2016.
- [1480] Deus Ex McKenna 2015.
- [1481] Taylor, B. (Ed.). (2008). *The Encyclopedia of Religion and Nature: Vol. 1.* London, UK: Continuum.
- [1482] Stevenson 1997.
- [1483] Ventegodt, S., Merrick, J. (2003). Measurement of Quality of Life VII. Statistical Covariation and Global Quality of Life Data: The Method of Weight-Modified Linear Regression. *The Scientific World Journal* 3, pp. 1020-1029.
- [1484] Hauck, D.W. (2008). *The Complete Idiot's Guide to Alchemy*. New York, NY: Alpha (Penguin Group).
- [1485] Heiser, J.D. (2011). *Prisci Theologi and the Hermetic Reformation in the Fifteenth Century.* Malone, TX: Repristination Press.
- [1486] White, G. (May 9, 2018). Talking Animism and the Miraculous | Dr. Jack Hunter. Retrieved June 15, 2021 from https://runesoup.com/2018/05/talking-animism-and-the-anomalous-dr-jack-hunter/
- [1487] White 2016.
- [1488] Hutton, R. (2001). Shamans: Siberian Spirituality and the Western Imagination. London, UK: Hambledon Continuum.
- [1489] Eliade 1964.
- [1490] Gellrich, M. (Mar.-Apr. 1994). Socratic Magic: Enchantment, Irony, and Persuasion in Plato's Dialogues. *The Classical World* 87(4), pp. 275-307.
- [1491] Ibid.
- [1492] Eliade 1964.
- [1493] Shushan 2009.
- [1494] Lewis 1994.
- [1495] Lossiah 1998.
- [1496] Devereux 2007.
- [1497] Asante & Mazama 2009.
- [1498] Eliade 1964.
- [1499] Lewis 1994.
- [1500] Harvey-Wilson, S. (August 2001). Similarities found between shamanism and abductions. *MUFON UFO Journal 400*, pp. 3-4.
- [1501] Lewis 1994.
- [1502] Eliade 1964.
- [1503] Hansen 2001.

- [1504] Walter and Fridman 2004.
- [1505] Eliade 1964.
- [1506] Ibid.
- [1507] Ibid.
- [1508] Walter and Fridman 2004.
- [1509] Lewis 1994.
- [1510] Kowalewski 2015.
- [1511] Strong 2005.
- [1512] Lewis 1994.
- [1513] Devereux 2001.
- [1514] Eliade 1964.
- [1515] Kowalewski 2015.
- [1516] Eliade 1964.
- [1517] Vitebsky, P. (2000). Shamanism. In G. Harvey (Ed.), *Indigenous Religions: A Companion* (pp. 55-67). London, UK: Cassell.
- [1518] Devereux 2001.
- [1519] Lady Gregory 1920, Second Series.
- [1520] Ogden 2001.
- [1521] Bane 2016.
- [1522] Kowalewski 2015.
- [1523] Bane 2016.
- [1524] Walter and Fridman 2004.
- [1525] Bane 2016.
- [1526] Bogoras 1925.
- [1527] Pócs 2018.
- [1528] Bane 2016.
- [1529] Edwards, A.C. (1984). On the Non-Existence of an Ancestor Cult among the Tiv. *Anthropos* 79(1/3), pp. 77-112.
- [1530] Guiley 2013.
- [1531] Hancock 2007.
- [1532] Bacon, W.S. (Fall 1993). Factors in Siting a Middle Woodland Enclosure in Middle Tennessee. *Midcontinental Journal of Archaeology 18*(2), pp. 245-281.
- [1533] Roth 1997.
- [1534] Eliade 1964.
- [1535] Cowan, T. (1993). Fire in the Head: Shamanism and the Celtic Spirit. New York, NY; Harper San Francisco.
- [1536] Goodare, J. (August 2012). The Cult of the Seely Wights in Scotland. *Folklore 123*(2), pp. 198-219.
- [1537] Evans Wentz 1911.

- [1538] Lady Gregory 1920, First Series.
- [1539] Walter and Fridman 2004.
- [1540] Bane 2016.
- [1541] Eliade 1964.
- [1542] Hancock 2007.
- [1543] Lecouteux 2019.
- [1544] Lewis 1994.
- [1545] Eliade 1964.
- [1546] Bane 2016.
- [1547] Jung 1964.
- [1548] Eliade 1964.
- [1549] Bullard 1987 Vol. 1.
- [1550] Ring 1992.
- [1551] Eliade 1964.
- [1552] Ibid.
- [1553] Ibid.
- [1554] Somé 1994.
- [1555] Lewis 1994.
- [1556] Schnabel 1994.
- [1557] Strieber 2020.
- [1558] Mack 1999.
- [1559] Eliade 1964.
- [1560] Ibid.
- [1561] Ibid.
- [1562] Ibid.
- [1563] Somé 1994.
- [1564] Eliade 1964.
- [1565] Dixon, R.B. (Jan.-Mar. 1908). Some Aspects of the American Shaman. *The Journal of American Folklore* 21(80), pp. 1-12.
- [1566] Eliade 1964.
- [1567] Strieber, W. (1997). The Secret School: Preparation for Contact. New York, NY: HarperCollins.
- [1568] Eliade 1964.
- [1569] Lewis 1994.
- [1570] Ring 1992.
- [1571] Ibid.
- [1572] Shushan 2009.
- [1573] Bullard 1987 Vol. 1.
- [1574] Bullard 1987 Vol. 2.

- [1575] Ibid.
- [1576] Kirk, R. (1893). The Secret Commonwealth of Elves, Fauns, & Fairies. London, UK: David Nutt.
- [1577] Eliade 1964.
- [1578] Sadovszky, 0. (1993) The Wintu shaman. In Hoppal, M. & Howard, K.D. (Eds.), *Shamans and Cultures*. Budapest, HU: Akadémiai Kiadó.
- [1579] Walter and Fridman 2004.
- [1580] Ibid.
- [1581] Eliade 1964.
- [1582] Hitchcock, J.T. (Nov. 1967). A Nepalese Shamanism and the Classic Inner Asian Tradition. *History of Religions* 7(2), pp. 149-158.
- [1583] Shushan 2009.
- [1584] Eliade 1964.
- [1585] Ibid.
- [1586] Wilby 2005.
- [1587] Devereux 2001.
- [1588] Eliade 1964.
- [1589] Ibid.
- [1590] Lecouteux 2019.
- [1591] Walter and Fridman 2004.
- [1592] Eliade 1964.
- [1593] Paine, R. (Summer 1994). Night Village and the Coming of Men of the Word: The Supernatural as a Source of Meaning among Coastal Saami. *The Journal of American Folklore 107*(425), pp. 343-363.
- [1594] Ogden 2001.
- [1595] Vitebsky 2000.
- [1596] Devereux 2001.
- [1597] Eliade 1964.
- [1598] Vitebsky, P. (1995) The Shaman. London, UK: Little Brown & Company.
- [1599] Eliade 1964.
- [1600] Vallee & Aubeck 2009.
- [1601] Walter and Fridman 2004.
- [1602] Eliade 1964.
- [1603] Lewis 1994.
- [1604] Eliade 1964.
- [1605] Drury, N. (1996) Shamanism. Brisbane, QLD: Element Books.
- [1606] Eliade 1964.
- [1607] Wilby 2005.
- [1608] Eliade 1964.

- [1609] Bogoras 1925.
- [1610] Vitebsky 2000.
- [1611] Walter and Fridman 2004.
- [1612] Hancock 2007.
- [1613] Eliade 1964.
- [1614] Wilby 2005.
- [1615] Eliade 1964.
- [1616] Hancock 2007.
- [1617] Eliade 1964.
- [1618] Lecouteux 2003.
- [1619] Hansen 2001.
- [1620] Hancock 2007.
- [1621] Eliade 1964.
- [1622] Wilby 2005.
- [1623] Ibid.
- [1624] Eliade 1964.
- [1625] Black Elk, W. & Lyon, W.S. (1991). Black Elk: The Sacred Ways of a Lakota. New York, NY: HarperCollins.
- [1626] Walter and Fridman 2004.
- [1627] Moravec, M. (September-October 1984). The Jindabyne UFO Abduction Case. *UFO Research Australia Newsletter* 5(5) pp. 6-10.
- [1628] Eliade 1964.
- [1629] Atwater 2000.
- [1630] Ring 1992.
- [1631] Saraswati, S. (2010). Kundalini Yoga. Riskikesh, IN: The Divine Life Trust Society (14th ed.).
- [1632] Atwater 2000.
- [1633] Asante & Mazama 2009.
- [1634] Jung 1976.
- [1635] Harvey-Wilson, S.B. (2000). *Shamanism and Alien Abductions: A Comparative Study*. (master's thesis). Edith Cowan University, Perth, AU.
- [1636] McClenon, J. (2001). The Sociological Investigation of Haunting Cases. In J. Houran & R. Lange (Eds.), *Hauntings and Poltergeists: Multidisciplinary Perspectives* (pp. 62-81). Jefferson, NC: McFarland & Company.
- [1637] Wilby 2005.
- [1638] Eliade 1964.
- [1639] Ibid.
- [1640] Ibid.
- [1641] Ibid.
- [1642] Ibid.

- [1643] Ibid.
- [1644] Jung 1976.
- [1645] Hancock 2007.
- [1646] Eliade 1964.
- [1647] Lecouteux 2015.
- [1648] Storm 2016.
- [1649] M., Kim. (n.d.). 4541 Kim M Probable NDE 8614. Retrieved June 22, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1kim m probable nde.html
- [1650] C., Mo. (n.d.). 482 Mo C NDE 2021. Retrieved June 22, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1mo_c_nde.html
- [1651] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [1652] Adamson 1999.
- [1653] White 2020.
- [1654] Tizani attosi. (December 24, 2001). High Dose Consciousness: An Experience with Ketamine. Retrieved June 22, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=3282
- [1655] Hancock 2007.
- [1656] Claire. (July 10, 2019). Dismemberment and the Right Plant to Heal. Retrieved June 22, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=31648
- [1657] Hancock 2007.
- [1658] Strassman 2000.
- [1659] Meyer n.d.
- [1660] Mack 1999.
- [1661] Harpur 2003.
- [1662] Strieber, A., & Strieber, W. (2016). *The Communion Letters*. US: Crossroad Press. (Original work published 1997)
- [1663] Knight 2014.
- [1664] Bullard 1987 Vol. 1.
- [1665] Eliade 1964.
- [1666] Ibid.
- [1667] Tyson, D. (2004). Familiar Spirits: A Practical Guide for Witches & Magicians. St. Paul, MN: Llewellyn.
- [1668] White 2016.
- [1669] Herzog 1983.
- [1670] Hancock 2007.
- [1671] Lewis 1994.
- [1672] Hancock 2007.
- [1673] Lewis 1994.
- [1674] Harpur 2003.
- [1675] Lecouteux 2019.
- [1676] Ring 1987.

- [1677] Lewis 1994.
- [1678] Ganesha. (1999). A Vision of Sekhmet. In R. Metzner (Ed.), *Ayahuasca: Hallucinogens, Consciousness, and the Spirit of Nature* (pp. 146-154). New York, NY: Thunder's Mouth Press.
- [1679] Ibid.
- [1680] McKenna, T. (May 14, 1983). Hallucinogens Before and After Psychology (aka Beyond Psychology). Retrieved June 23, 2021 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/Hallucinogens+Before+and+After+Psychology+%28aka+Beyond+Psychology%29
- [1681] Eliade 1964.
- [1682] Ibid.
- [1683] Ibid.
- [1684] Obeid, T., Abulaban, A., Al-Ghatani, F., Al-Malki, A.R., & Al-Ghamdi, A. (May 2012). Possession by 'Jinn' as a cause of epilepsy (Saraa): a study from Saudi Arabia. Seizure 21(4), pp. 245-249.
- [1685] Eliade 1964.
- [1686] Genetic and Rare Diseases Information Center. (n.d.). Dissociative seizures. Retrieved June 23, 2021 from https://rarediseases.info.nih.gov/diseases/13028/dissociative-seizures
- [1687] Peake, A. (2016). Opening the Doors of Perception. London, UK: Watkins.
- [1688] Hancock 2007.
- [1689] Rushton, N. (May 28, 2016). Going Round in Circles: The Faerie Dance. Retrieved June 23, 2021 from https://deadbutdreaming.wordpress.com/2016/05/28/going-round-in-circles-the-faerie-dance/
- [1690] Hancock 2007.
- [1691] Eliade 1964.
- [1692] Ibid.
- [1693] Walter and Fridman 2004.
- [1694] Vitebsky 2000.
- [1695] Eliade 1964
- [1696] Godfrey, L. (2008). Werewolves. New York, NY: Chelsea House.
- [1697] Furst, P.T. (1981). Jaguar Baby or Toad Mother: A New Look at an Old Problem in Olmec Iconography. In E.P. Besnon (Ed.), *The Olmec and Their Neighbors* (pp.149-162). Washington, DC: Dumbarton Oaks.
- [1698] Welfare, S. & Fairley, J. (1980). Arthur C. Clarke's Mysterious World. UK: Book Club Associates.
- [1699] Hancock 2007.
- [1700] Walter and Fridman 2004.
- [1701] Godfrey, L.S. (2014). *American Monsters: A History of Monster Lore, Legends, and Sightings in America*. New York, NY: The Penguin Group.
- [1702] Strieber & Kripal 2016.
- [1703] Hancock 2007.
- [1704] Eliade 1964.
- [1705] Vallee, J. (1992). UFO Chronicles of the Soviet Union: A Cosmic Samizdat. New York, NY: Ballantine Books.

- [1706] Clelland 2015.
- [1707] Rojcewicz, P. (1986). The Extraordinary Encounter Continuum Hypothesis and its Implications for the Study of Belief Materials. *Folklore Forum* 19(2), pp. 131-152.
- [1708] Eliade, M. (1991). *Images and Symbols: Studies in Religious Symbolism.* (P. Mairet, Trans.). Princeton, NJ:L Princeton University Press. (Original work published 1952)
- [1709] Ibid.
- [1710] Lecouteux 2013.
- [1711] Eliade 1964.
- [1712] McGiffen, L. (January 8, 2000). Anubis, Companion to Osiris. Retrieved June 25, 2021 from https://grahamhancock.com/mcgiffenl1/
- [1713] Samkar, N. (2020). *Mount Kailash: The White Mirror Ngari, Tibet*. Dharamshala, IND: Library of Tibetan Works and Archives.
- [1714] Ball, M. (2000). Sacred Mountains, Religious Paradigms, and Identity Among the Mescalero Apache. *Worldviews* 4(3), pp. 264-282.
- [1715] Strong 2005.
- [1716] Ahmadi, A. (February 2015). Two Chthonic Features of the Daēva Cult in Historical Evidence. *History of Religions* 54(3), pp. 346-370.
- [1717] Hoskinson, T. (1992). Saguaro wine, ground figures, and power mountains: Investigations at Sear Point, Arizona. In R.A. Williamson & C.R. Farrer (Eds.), *Earth and Sky: Visions of the Cosmos in Native American Folklore*. Albuquerque, NM: University of New Mexico Press.
- [1718] Walter and Fridman 2004.
- [1719] Lecouteux 2019.
- [1720] Orchard, A. (1997). Dictionary of Norse Myth and Legend. London, UK: Cassell.
- [1721] Caciola 2016.
- [1722] Mayburd, M. (2014). The Hills Have Eyes: Post-Mortem Mountain Dwelling and the (Super) Natural Landscape in the Íslendingasögur. *Viking and Medieval Scandinavia* 10, pp. 129-154.
- [1723] Simek 1993.
- [1724] Devereux 2007.
- [1725] Caciola 2016.
- [1726] Lecouteux 2019.
- [1727] Goodwin, J.R. (March 1989). Shooing the Dead to Paradise. *Japanese Journal of Religious Studies 16*(1), pp. 63-80.
- [1728] Lewis 1994.
- [1729] Shushan 2009.
- [1730] Fadiman, J.A. (April 1977). Mountain Witchcraft: Supernatural Practices and Practitioners among the Meru of Mount Kenya. *African Studies Review* 20(1), pp. 87-101.
- [1731] van der Post, L. (1918). The Lost World of the Kalahari. London, UK: The Hogarth Press.
- [1732] Hinojosa, S.Z. (Winter 2011). Ritual Effigies and Corporeality in Kaqchikel Maya Soul Healing. *Ethnology* 50(1), pp. 79-94.
- [1733] Irwin, J.C. (May 1982). The Sacred Anthill and the Cult of the Primordial Mound. *History of Religions 21*(4), pp. 339-360.
- [1734] Walter and Fridman 2004.

- [1735] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [1736] Bane 2013.
- [1737] Caciola 2016.
- [1738] Wolff, K.F. (2013). The Dolomites and their Legends. Bozen, IT: Edition Raetia.
- [1739] Dukes, C.W. & Dukes, S.B. (2014). Myths and Legends in the Blue Ridge Smoky Mountains. Retrieved June 28, 2021 from https://theblueridgehighlander.com/mysterious-places-in-the-mountains/index.php
- [1740] Butler 2017.
- [1741] Devereux 2001.
- [1742] Independent.ie. (December 20, 2011). Glastonbury 'UFO calls hotspot.' Retrieved June 28, 2021 from https://www.independent.ie/world-news/and-finally/glastonbury-ufo-calls-hotspot-26804106.html
- [1743] Story 2001.
- [1744] Olsen, B. (2008). Sacred Places North America. US: Consortium of Collective Consciousness.
- [1745] Douglass, K. (1998). Australasian UFO Locations. Retrieved July 9, 2021 from https://www.google.com/maps/d/viewer?mid=1TlneEZC57YfMyb81KNPEfUHQ9AU&ll=-24.489870589650764%2C131.03143077847 207&z=8
- [1746] Puxley, P. (Sept. 1993). Mountain 'Sparkler' Effect in South Africa. UFO AfriNews 8, pp. 19-20.
- [1747] Moore, A.W. (1891). The Folk Lore of the Isle of Man. London, UK: A.W. Moore.
- [1748] Chalker, B. (2005). *Hair of the Alien: DNA and Other Forensic Evidence of Alien Abduction*. New York, NY: Simon & Schuster.
- [1749] Kettley, S. (May 13, 2020). UFO sighting: Alien 'spaceship' filmed entering volcano for 'underground alien base'. Retrieved June 28, 2021 from https://www.express.co.uk/news/weird/1281337/UFO-sighting-alien-spaceship-Mount-Hood-UFO-video-Scott-Waring
- [1750] Fowler, R.E. (2020). UFOs: The Ultimate Abduction We Are Property. Portsmouth, NH: Seacoast Press
- [1751] George, C. (2008). *Pyramids*. San Diego, CA: Reference Point Press.
- [1752] Woolley, L. (1929). Ur of the Chaldees. London, UK: Ernest Benn.
- [1753] Taylor 2000.
- [1754] Keys, D. (September 18, 2011). The souls of Silbury Hill are bared in burial mound dig. Retrieved July 6, 2021 from https://www.independent.co.uk/news/uk/home-news/the-souls-of-silbury-hill-are-bared-in-burial-mound-dig-397806.html
- [1755] Collins, A. (2012). LightQuest: Your Guide to Seeing and Interacting with UFOs, Mystery Lights and Plasma Intelligences. Memphis, TN: Eagle Wing Books.
- [1756] Ibid.
- [1757] Ibid.
- [1758] Keel, J.A. (1970). UFOs: Operation Trojan Horse. New York, NY: G.P. Putnam's Sons.
- [1759] Keel 1976.
- [1760] PointPleasantWV.org. (n.d.). Mason County, WV An Archaeological Treasure. Retrieved June 29, 2021 from http://pointpleasantwv.org/MasonCoHistory/ARCH/Arch_3.htm
- [1761] Squier, E.G. (1850). Aboriginal Monuments of the State of New York. New York, NY: Edward O. Jenkins.

- [1762] Redfern, N. (September 2014). The 'Other' Mysteries of Rendelsham Forest. *MUFON UFO Journal 557*, pp. 12-12.
- [1763] Briggs, S. & Connor S. (October 11, 2020). Weird Suffolk: The ghost of Sutton Hoo that helped archaeologists find treasure. Retrieved June 29, 2021 from https://www.eadt.co.uk/news/weird-suffolk-sutton-hoo-treasure-ghosts-2672586
- [1764] Levenda, P. (2005). Sinister Forces: A Grimoire of American Political Witchcraft Book One: The Nine. Walterville, OR: TrineDay.
- [1765] Levenda, P. (2006). Sinister Forces: A Grimoire of American Political Witchcraft Book Three: The Manson Secret. Walterville, OR: TrineDay.
- [1766] Australian UFO Encounters Map. (n.d.). Australian UFO Encounters Map. Retrieved June 29, 2021 from https://www.google.com/search? client=safari&rls=en&q=australian+ufo+hotspots&ie=UTF-8&oe=UTF-8
- [1767] Littleton, J. & Walshe, K. (December 2013). Burials And Time At Gillman Mound, Northern Adelaide, South Australia. *Australian Archaeology* 77(77), pp. 38-51.
- [1768] Bartlett, S. (2014). *Guide to the World's Supernatural Places*. Washington, D.C.: The National Geographic Society.
- [1769] Etheridge, R. (1893). Geological and Ethnological Observations Made in the Valley of the Wollondilly River, at its Junction with the Nattai River, Counties Camden and Westmoreland. *Records of the Australian Museum 2*(4), pp. 46-54.
- [1770] Beattie, H. (1919). Traditions and Legends. Collected from the Natives of Murihiku. (Southland, New Zealand.). Part XI. *The Journal of the Polynesian Society 28*(112), pp. 212-225.
- [1771] Beattie, H. (1918). Traditions and Legends. Collected from the Natives of Murihiku. (Southland, New Zealand.). Part VIII. *The Journal of the Polynesian Society* 27(3), pp. 137-161.
- [1772] Bullard 1987 Vol. 2.
- [1773] Abramson 2005.
- [1774] Belmonte, J. A., Esteban, C., Cuesta, L., Perera Betancort, M. A., & Jiménez González, J. J. (1999). Pre-Islamic Burial Monuments in Northern and Saharan Morocco. *Journal for the History of Astronomy 30*, pp. 21-34.
- [1775] Fuglestad 1982.
- [1776] Tyson, E. (1894). A Philological Essay Concerning the Pygmies of the Ancients. London, UK: David Nutt.
- [1777] Hamada 2005.
- [1778] Lloyd, E. (August 19, 2017). Did Ancient Oshoro Stone Circle Serve As A Portal To The Spirit World? Retrieved July 12, 2021 from https://www.ancientpages.com/2017/08/19/did-ancient-oshoro-stone-circle-serve-as-a-portal-to-the-spirit-world/
- [1779] Meyer, M. (2021). Hainu. Retrieved July 12, 2021 from http://yokai.com/hainu/
- [1780] Meyer, M. (2021). Kanazuchibō. Retrieved July 12, 2021 from http://yokai.com/kanazuchibou/
- [1781] Sheets, T. (August 2002). UFOs and cemeteries. MUFON UFO Journal 412, p. 19.
- [1782] Guiley 2013.
- [1783] Lecouteux 2015.
- [1784] Canaan 1927.
- [1785] Andalou Agency. (June 25, 2015). UFOs continue to fascinate Turkey and the world. Retrieved June 29, 2021 from https://www.hurriyetdailynews.com/ufos-continue-to-fascinate-turkey-and-the-world------84526

- [1786] Bjelica, J. (January 8, 2020). The Largest Standing Stupa in Afghanistan: A short history of the Buddhist site at Topdara. Retrieved June 29, 2021 from https://www.afghanistan-analysts.org/en/reports/context-culture/the-largest-standing-stupa-in-afghanistan-a-short-history-of-the-buddhist-site-at-topdara/
- [1787] Gibbons-Neff, T. & Shah, T. (October 31, 2020). An Ancient Hill and Forgotten Dead: Afghanistan's Haunted Outpost. Retrieved June 29, 2021 from https://www.nytimes.com/2020/10/31/world/asia/afghanistan-haunted-outpost.html
- [1788] Ibid.
- [1789] Latvian Commission on UFOs and Anomalous Phenomena. (1990). Case 67. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1960 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1960.pdf
- [1790] Turca, C.N. (1994). Case 305. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1979 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1979.pdf
- [1791] Oko-planet.net. (n.d.). Case 428. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1990 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1990.pdf
- [1792] Klyenova, S. (April 2005). Case 250. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 2004 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-2004.pdf
- [1793] Dean, J. (October 10, 2016). Eerie footage shows UFO in the skies near historic Machu Picchu. Retrieved July 12, 2021 from https://www.mirror.co.uk/news/weird-news/eerie-footage-shows-ufo-skies-7761731
- [1794] Clarke 2015.
- [1795] Craig, M. (1991). Characters & Caricatures in Belizean Folklore. Belize City, BLZ: Belize UNESCO Commission.
- [1796] Creighton, G. (May-June 1966). Argentina 1963/64 Part IV. *Flying Saucer Review 12*(3), pp. 25-28.
- [1797] Gross, P. (December 28, 2007). APRIL 2006, CABO POLONIO, ROCHA, URUGUAY, A WOMAN. Retrieved July 12, 2021 from http://ufologie.patrickgross.org/ce3/2006-04-uruguay-cabopolonio.htm
- [1798] currentspider [screen name]. Uruguay UFO: UFO Sighted OverRocha, Uruguay April 27, 2013. Retrieved July 12, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=c HLoGyKH4o
- [1799] Iriarte, J., Copé, S.M., Fradley, M., Lockhart, J.J., & Gillam, J.C. (2013). Sacred landscapes of the southern Brazilian highlands: Understanding southern proto-Jê mound and enclosure complexes. *Journal of Anthropological Archaeology* 32, pp. 74-96.
- [1800] Bullard 1987 Vol. 2.
- [1801] Revista Brasileria Ovni. (n.d.). Case 84. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1985 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1985.pdf
- [1802] Service, A. & Bradbery, J. (1979). *Megaliths and their Mysteries*. New York, NY: Macmillan Publishing Co., Inc.
- [1803] Wallonia Belgium Tourism. (n.d.). The tumulus of Glimes, a site rich in history. Retrieved July 9, 2021 from https://walloniabelgiumtourism.co.uk/en-gb/content/tumulus-glimes-site-rich-history
- [1804] Studarus, L. (December 18, 2018). The elusive 'hidden people' of Iceland. Retrieved July 7, 2021 from https://www.bbc.com/travel/article/20181217-the-elusive-hidden-people-of-iceland
- [1805] Anonymous. (October 1, 2017). Personal communication.
- [1806] Taylor 2000.

- [1807] Ragnarsdóttir, R.H. (n.d.). Hjörleifshöfði Promontory in South-Iceland the Blood Brothers Ingólfur and Hjörleifur. Retrieved July 6, 2021 from https://guidetoiceland.is/connect-with-locals/regina/hjorleifshofdi-cape
- [1808] Ragnarsdóttir, R.H. (n.d.). Hjörleifshöfði in South-Iceland Part II the Hike, the Inhabitants and the Yoda Cave. Retrieved July 6, 2021 from https://guidetoiceland.is/connect-with-locals/regina/the-historical-hjorleifshofdi-promontory-part-ii-the-hike-and-the-inhabitants
- [1809] Paine 1994.
- [1810] Davidson, H. (1993). The Lost Beliefs of Northern Europe. Abingdon, UK: Routledge.
- [1811] Harte, J. (2017). Fairy Barrows and Cunning Folk. In S. Young & C. Houlbrook (Eds.), Magical Folk: British and Irish Fairies: 500 AD to the Present (Kindle Edition). London, UK: Gibson Square Books.
- [1812] Sugg, R. (2017). Fairy Magic and the Cottingley Photographs. In S. Young & C. Houlbrook (Eds.), *Magical Folk: British and Irish Fairies: 500 AD to the Present* (Kindle Edition). London, UK: Gibson Square Books.
- [1813] Keay, J. & Keay, J. (Eds.). (2000). *Collins Encyclopaedia of Scotland*. New York, NY: HarperCollins (2nd ed.).
- [1814] Bane 2016.
- [1815] Daimler 2019.
- [1816] Roberts 2016.
- [1817] Mooney, J. (Jul.-Dec. 1888). The Funeral Customs of Ireland. *Proceedings of the American Philosophical Society* 25(128), pp. 243-296.
- [1818] Service & Bradbery 1979.
- [1819] Davidson 1993.
- [1820] Finlay, N. (Feb. 2000). Outside of Life: Traditions of Infant Burial in Ireland from Cillin to Cist. *World Archaeology 31*(3), pp. 407-422.
- [1821] Murray, N. (April 1, 2017). 800 medieval bodies found during hillfort dig. Retrieved July 6, 2021 from https://www.irishexaminer.com/business/arid-20446670.html
- [1822] Holmring, J. (2014, Spring). Rethinking the Iron Age ringforts of Öland Interpretations and new possibilities. (M.A. Dissertation). Stockholm University: Department of Archaeology and Classical Studies.
- [1823] Ó Crónín, D. (Ed.). (2005). *A New History of Ireland: Prehistoric and early Ireland Vol. 1.* Oxford, UK: Oxford University Press.
- [1824] Weatherhill, C. (1981). Belerion: Ancient Sites of Land's End. Penzance, UK: Alison Hodge.
- [1825] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [1826] Kruse, J. (June 22, 2020). Underground, Overground. Retrieved July 6, 2021 from https://britishfairies.wordpress.com/tag/hillfort/
- [1827] Scott, W. (1875). *The Lay of the Last Minstrel and Selections from Border Minstrelsy*. Edinburgh, UK: Adam and Charles Black.
- [1828] Fitzpatrick, E. (2009). Native Enclosed Settlement and the Problem of the Irish 'Ring-Fort.' *Medieval Archaeology* 53(1), pp. 271-307.
- [1829] Gentile, J.S. (September-December 2009). Stories of the Otherworld: An Interview with Eddie Lenihan. *Storytelling, Self, Society 5*(3), pp. 152-175.
- [1830] Cray, E. & Adams, F.D. (Oct. 1958). Fairy Rath. Western Folklore 17(4), p. 282.

- [1831] Eveleth, R. (January 15, 2014). Icelanders Protest a Road That Would Disturb Fairies. Retrieved July 13, 2021 from https://www.smithsonianmag.com/smart-news/icelanders-protest-road-would-disturb-fairies-180949359/
- [1832] Magan, M. (March 13, 2021). From ringfort to ring road: The destruction of Ireland's fairy forts. Retrieved January 2, 2022 from https://www.irishtimes.com/culture/heritage/from-ringfort-to-ring-road-the-destruction-of-ireland-s-fairy-forts-1.4496069
- [1833] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [1834] O'Keefe, T. (2000). Medieval Ireland. Stroud, UK: Tempus.
- [1835] Black, A. (Sept/Oct 2016). Irish defences. Medieval Warfare 6(4), pp. 18-19.
- [1836] Pearson, M.P., Pollard, J., Richards, C., Welham, K., Casswell, C., French, C., Schlee, D., Shaw, D., Simmons, E., Stanford, A., Bevins, R., & Ixer, R. (2019). Megalith quarries for Stonehenge's bluestones. *Antiquity*, *93*(367), pp. 45-62.
- [1837] Bitel, L. (2018). Secrets of the Síd: The Supernatural in Medieval Irish Texts. In M. Ostling (Ed.), *Fairies, Demons, and Nature Spirits: 'Small Gods' at the Margins of Christendom*, pp. 79-102.
- [1838] Wilson, P.L. (1999). *Ploughing the Clouds: The Search for Irish Soma*. San Francisco, CA: City Lights.
- [1839] Service & Bradbery 1979.
- [1840] Pitts, M. (August 2008). Stonehenge: One of our largest excavations draws to a close. *British Archaeology 102*, p. 13.
- [1841] English Heritage. (n.d.). Understanding Stonehenge. Retrieved July 7, 2021 from https://www.english-heritage.org.uk/visit/places/stonehenge/things-to-do/stone-circle/celestial-stonehenge/
- [1842] IrelandXO. (June 21, 2019). Lough Gur Summer Solstice Festival. Retrieved July 7, 2021 from https://irelandxo.com/ireland/limerick/bruff-limerick/events/lough-gur-summer-solstice-festival
- [1843] Heath, J. (2019). Exploring Megalithic Europe. Lanham, MD: Rowman & Littlefield.
- [1844] Lady Gregory 1920, Second Series.
- [1845] Mason, P. (2008). *The Mystery of Stone Circles: Revised and Updated.* Chicago, IL: Heinemann Library.
- [1846] Bord 2014.
- [1847] Underwood, P. (2013). Where the Ghosts Walk: The Gazetteer of Haunted Britain. London, U: Souvenir Press.
- [1848] Bord & Bord 1985.
- [1849] Eberhart, G.M. (2002). *Mysterious Creatures: A Guide to Cryptozoology*. Santa Barbara, CA: ABC-CLIO, Inc.
- [1850] Harpur 2003.
- [1851] Clarke, D. (December 1988). Project Pennine: A Landscape/UFO Study. *MUFON UFO Journal* 248, pp. 11-14.
- [1852] Collins 2012.
- [1853] Baker, M. (August 17, 2019). 6 times UFOs have been spotted at the 'alien hotspot' Cley Hill. Retrieved July 7, 2021 from https://www.somersetlive.co.uk/news/somerset-news/ufo-cley-hill-warminster-frome-3209653
- [1854] Randles, J. (1983). UFO Reality. London, UK: Robert Hale Ltd.
- [1855] Porter, H. (n.d.). Case 76. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1985 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1985.pdf

- [1856] Devereux 2001.
- [1857] Thomas, A. (1998). Vital Signs: A Complete Guide to the Crop Circle Mystery and Why It is NOT a Hoax. Berkeley, CA: Frog, Ltd.
- [1858] Williams, R., Headon, D., & Whitehorn, T. (Eds.). (1992). *Reader's Digest: Quest for the Unknown Bizarre Phenomena*. Pleasantville, NY: The Reader's Digest Association, Inc.
- [1859] Vallee, J. (1993). *Passport to Magonia*. Chicago, IL: Contemporary Books. (Original work published 1969)
- [1860] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [1861] Johnson 2014.
- [1862] Carlson, J. (July 20, 2010). Missing Time Inside a Stone Circle. Retrieved July 7, 2021 from https://paranormalist.com/missing-time-inside-a-stone-circle/
- [1863] United States Census Bureau. (March 30, 2021). Urban Areas Facts. Retrieved July 8, 2021 from https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/geography/guidance/geo-areas/urban-rural/ua-facts.html
- [1864] Dobyns, H.F. (1983). *Their Number Become Thinned: Native American Population Dynamics in Eastern North America*. Knoxville, TN: University of Tennessee.
- [1865] World Population Review. (2021). Native American Population 2021. Retrieved July 8, 2021 from https://worldpopulationreview.com/state-rankings/native-american-population
- [1866] Baires, S.E. (February 23, 2018). White Settlers Buried the Truth About the Midwest's Mysterious Mound Cities. Retrieved July 8, 2021 from https://www.smithsonianmag.com/history/white-settlers-buried-truth-about-midwests-mysterious-mound-cities-180968246/
- [1867] Archaeo News. (October 14, 2003). Important new findings in Louisiana. Retrieved July 8, 2021 from https://www.stonepages.com/news/archives/000363.html
- [1868] Little, G.L. (2009). *The Illustrated Encyclopedia of Native American Mounds & Earthworks*. Memphis, TN: Eagle Wing Books, Inc.
- [1869] Hemmings, E.T. (1984). Investigations at Grave Creek Mound 1975-76: A Sequence for Mound and Moat Construction. *West Virginia Archeologist 362*, pp. 3–49.
- [1870] Kennedy, F.H. (2008). *American Indian Places: A Historical Guidebook*. New York, NY: Houghton Mifflin.
- [1871] Cleland, C.E. & Buckmaster, M. (1971). *An Historic Burial Locality in Mackinac County, Michigan*. Ann Arbor, MI: University of Michigan.
- [1872] Moore, B. & Lundell, M. (October 1991). Mound Builders of the Ancient World *Central States Archaeological Journal 38*(4), pp. 166-169.
- [1873] Greenman 1932.
- [1874] Baires 2018.
- [1875] Moore & Lundell 1991.
- [1876] Kavasch 2004.
- [1877] Levenda 2005.
- [1878] Price, D.T. & Feinman, G.M. (2008). *Images of the Past* (5th ed.). New York, NY: McGraw-Hill.
- [1879] Kavasch 2004.
- [1880] Mainfort Jr., R.C. (2013). *Pinson Mounds: Middle Woodland Ceremonialism in the Midsouth*. Fayetteville, AR: University of Arkansas.
- [1881] Moore & Lundell 1991.

- [1882] Little, G.L. (1990). People of the Web: What Indian Mounds, Ancient Rituals, and Stone Circles Tell Us About Modern UFO Abductions, Apparitions, and the Near Death Experience. Memphis, TN: White Buffalo Books.
- [1883] Little 1990.
- [1884] McConaughy, M.A. (Spring 2011). Burial Ceremonialism at Sugar Run Mound (36WA359), a Hopewellian Squawkie Hill Phase Site, Warren County, Pennsylvania. *Midcontinetnal Journal of Archaeology* 36(1), pp. 73-104.
- [1885] Kavasch 2004.
- [1886] Levenda 2005.
- [1887] Emerson, T.E. (Winter 2003). Materializing Cahokia Shamans. *Southeastern Archeology* 22(2), pp. 135-154.
- [1888] Ibid.
- [1889] Little, G.L. (April 3, 2016). Moundville, Alabama's Ancient Indian Mounds Led Souls to the Stars. Retrieved July 9, 2021 from https://eprnews.com/moundville-alabamas-ancient-indian-mounds-led-souls-to-the-stars-3147/
- [1890] Ibid.
- [1891] Young, S. & Houlbrook, C. (Eds.). (2017). *Magical Folk: British and Irish Fairies: 500 AD to the Present* (Kindle Edition). London, UK: Gibson Square Books.
- [1892] Lepper, B.T. (2014). Early Historic American Indian Testimony Concerning the Ancient Earthworks of Eastern North America. *Journal of Ohio Archaeology 3*, pp. 1-11.
- [1893] Childress, D.H. (2010). Yetis, Sasquatch & Hairy Giants. Kempton, IL: Adventures Unlimited Press.
- [1894] New York Times. (April 5, 1886). Monster Skulls and Bones. The New York Times, p. 1.
- [1895] Steiger, B. (2011). Real Monsters, Gruesome Critters, and Beasts from the Darkside. Canton, MI: Visible Ink Press.
- [1896] Lincoln, A. (1953). Fragment: Niagara Falls [c. September 25-30, 1848]. In R.P. Basler (Ed.), *Collected Works of Abraham Lincoln*. New Brunswick, NJ: Rutgers University Press.
- [1897] Mann 2003.
- [1898] Ibid.
- [1899] Mooney 1888.
- [1900] Mason 2008.
- [1901] Lecouteux 2015.
- [1902] Guiley 2007.
- [1903] Lecouteux 2019.
- [1904] Herzog 1983.
- [1905] Lecouteux 2019.
- [1906] Lecouteux 2015.
- [1907] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [1908] Bogoras 1925.
- [1909] Kavasch 2004.
- [1910] Haywood, J. (1959). The Natural and Aboriginal History of Tennessee. Jackson, TN: McCowat-Mercer.

- [1911] Varner, G.R. (2012). The Folklore of Fairies, Elves, & Little People. Raleigh, NC: OakChylde.
- [1912] Native American Netroots. (November 28, 2011). Ancient America: Moundville, Alabama. Retrieved July 13, 2021 from http://nativeamericannetroots.net/diary/1163
- [1913] Ethridge, R. (2004). Creek Country. Chapel Hill, NC: University of North Carolina Press.
- [1914] Our St. Louis History. (2017). Our Native American History: St. Louis. Retrieved July 13, 2021 from https://www.ourstlouishistory.com/single-post/2019/04/03/our-native-american-history-st-louis-mounds
- [1915] Philson, K. & Hale, C. (April 15, 2020). Ancient Dwarves of North America. Retrieved July 13, 2021 from https://www.expandedperspectives.com/ancient-dwarves-of-north-america/
- [1916] Coleman, L. (2013). Monster of Massachusetts. Mechanicsburg, PA: Stackpole Books.
- [1917] Hitt, C. (December 13, 2018). The mystery of Waimea's Menehune Ditch. Retrieved July 13, 2021 from https://www.hawaiimagazine.com/the-mystery-of-waimeas-menehune-ditch/
- [1918] Kupihea, M. (2001). The Seven Dawns of the Aumakua. Rochester, VT: Inner Traditions.
- [1919] Colavito, J. (2020). The Mound Builder Myth. Norman, OK: University of Oklahoma Press.
- [1920] Mooney, J. (1902). Myths of the Cherokee. Washington, DC: Bureau of American Ethnology.
- [1921] Duncan, B. (1998). *Living Stories of the Cherokee*. Chapel Hill, NC: University of North Carolina Press.
- [1922] Kennedy, F.H. (2008). American Indian Places. New York, NY: Houghton Mifflin.
- [1923] Mann 2003.
- [1924] Traxel, W.L. (2004). Footprints of the Welsh Indians. New York, NY: Algora Publishing.
- [1925] Mooney 1902.
- [1926] Bergen & Delarose 2019.
- [1927] Ibid.
- [1928] Hanson, I. (May 26, 2021). Looking back at alleged UFO crash of 1941 near Cape Girardeau. Retrieved July 13, 2021 from https://www.kfvs12.com/2021/05/26/alleged-ufo-crash-cape-girardeau-area/
- [1929] Thompson, J. (January 24, 2015). 60 years ago, Athens entered annals of unexplained UFO sightings. Retrieved July 13, 2021 from https://www.onlineathens.com/article/20150124/NEWS/301249937
- [1930] Donehoo, G.P. (2018). A History of the Indian Villages and Place Names in Pennsylvania. Auckland, NZ: Papamoa Press.
- [1931] Coleman, L. (July 19, 2014). Buk, Beech, LaFayette, and the Fayette Factor. Retrieved July 13, 2021 from http://copycateffect.blogspot.com/2014/07/buk.html
- [1932] Levenda 2005.
- [1933] Levenda 2006.
- [1934] St. Louis Paranormal Society. (n.d.). Cahokia Mounds, Mound 72 in Fairmont City, Illinois. Retrieved July 13, 2021 from https://web.archive.org/web/20160412053514/http://www.seeaghost.com/cahokia-mounds--mound-72.html
- [1935] Arkansas Department of Parks, Heritage, and Tourism. (2021). Arkansas Urban Legends. Retrieved July 13, 2021 from https://www.arkansas.com/articles/arkansas-urban-legends
- [1936] Hall Jr., J.M. (2009). Zamumo's Gifts: Indian-European Exchange in the Colonial Southeast. Philadelphia, PA: University of Pennsylvania Press.
- [1937] Tucker, E. (2007). *Haunted Halls: Ghostlore of American College Campuses*. Jackson, MS: University Press of Mississippi.

- [1938] Miles, J. (2013). Civil War Ghosts of Central Georgia and Savannah. Charleston, SC: Haunted America.
- [1939] Tucker 2007.
- [1940] Godfrey, L.S. (2016). Monsters Among Us: An Exploration of Otherworldly Bigfoots, Wolfmen, Portals, Phantoms, and Odd Phenomena. New York, NY: Tarcher Penguin.
- [1941] Trubshaw, B. (May 2021). Summary of emails received about black dogs. Retrieved July 13, 2021 from http://www.indigogroup.co.uk/edge/bdemails.htm
- [1942] Snipes, C. (February 23, 2021). The Melt Episode 62: Nathan Isaac | Participating in Folklore and the Kentucky Anomaly. Retrieved July 13, 2021 from https://www.themeltpodcast.com/podcast/nathan-isaac-participating-in-folklore-and-the-kentucky-anomaly/
- [1943] Hall 2009.
- [1944] Carlson, C. (2005). Weird Florida. (M. Sceurman & M. Moran, Eds.). Ontario, CA: Sterling Publishing Co, Inc.
- [1945] Swancer, B. (May 1, 2021). The Mysterious Haunting of the Deering Estate. Retrieved July 13, 2021 from https://mysteriousuniverse.org/2021/05/the-mysterious-haunting-of-the-deering-estate/
- [1946] Dennett, P. (June 2002). UFOs and cemeteries. MUFON UFO Journal 410, pp. 3-7.
- [1947] Strieber & Kripal 2016.
- [1948] Yakima Agency. (1971). Yakima Indian Nation. Toppenish, WA: Center for the Study of Migrant and Indian Education.
- [1949] Long, G. (July 1995). The Paranormal at Yakima. MUFON UFO Journal 327, pp. 3-11.
- [1950] Godfrey 2016.
- [1951] Rosales, A. (n.d.). Case 40. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1968 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1968.pdf
- [1952] Blessing, D. (n.d.). Case 373. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1973 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1973.pdf
- [1953] Green, M. (n.d.). Johnson City, Tennessee. Washington County. Retrieved January 9, 2019 from http://www.gcbro.com/WS0024.html
- [1954] Jackson, R.L. (March 21, 2013). Indian mounds part of Plaquemine Pow Wow. Retrieved July 13, 2021 from https://www.leesvilledailyleader.com/article/20130320/news/130329936
- [1955] Godfrey 2016.
- [1956] Godfrey, L.S. (2003). The Beast of Bray Road. Madison, WI: Prairie Oak Press.
- [1957] Toncray, M. (September 18, 2003). Soybean field a bit too popular since design discovered. Retrieved July 14, 2021 from https://maysville-online.com/news/5583/soybean-field-a-bit-too-popular-since-design-discovered
- [1958] No author. (October 2004). "Most impressive corn crop formation I've ever seen" investigated in Miamisburg, OH. *MUFON UFO Journal 438*, pp. 3-4.
- [1959] Harris, N. (December 28, 2016). Strange Things at Serpent Mound. Retrieved July 14, 2021 from https://nickharris.wordpress.com/2016/12/28/strange-things-at-serpent-mound/? fbclid=IwAR35Mpmh81avHZpo_F967fhgEhqvFYv1Ld2hd6s_GXHW9WyFbVReV7lRwIc
- [1960] Mr. Apol. (August 12, 2003). The Rhine Triangle. Retrieved July 14, 2021 from https://spaceport666.tripod.com/newsrhine.html
- [1961] Mooney 1902.
- [1962] Herzog 1983.

- [1963] Holiday, F.W. (1969). *The Great Orm of Loch Ness*. New York, NY: W.W. Norton & Company, Inc.
- [1964] Little 2009.
- [1965] Service & Bradbery 1979.
- [1966] Osaka Convention & Tourism Bureau. (n.d.). Kawachi-Otsukayama Tumulus. Retrieved July 14, 2021 from https://osaka-info.jp/en/page/kawachi-otsukayama-tumulus
- [1967] Tropter. (n.d.). Tatar Mound. Retrieved July 14, 2021 from https://tropter.com/en/poland/przemysl/tatar-mound
- [1968] Holiday, F.W. (1973). The Dragon & the Disc. London, UK: Sidgwick & Jackson.
- [1969] Fowler 2020.
- [1970] Holiday 1973.
- [1971] Ibid.
- [1972] Ibid.
- [1973] Godfrey 2016.
- [1974] Raynes 2019.
- [1975] Keel, J.A. (2015). *The Book of Mothman: Everything You Wanted to Know About Reality Distortion But Were Afraid to Ask.* A. B. Colvin (Ed.). Point Pleasant, WV: New Saucerian Books [Kindle Edition].
- [1976] Bosquet, A. (1845) La Normandia Romanesque et Merveilleuse. Paris, FR: J. Techener.
- [1977] Guiley, R.E. (2008). *The Encyclopedia of Witches, Witchcraft, and Wicca*. New York, NY: Facts On File, Inc. (3rd ed.).
- [1978] Walter 2006.
- [1979] Bullard 1987 Vol. 1.
- [1980] Aspinall, K. (Summer 1995). "Alien Abductions" and "Fairy Abductions": A Comparison. *Flying Saucer Review 40*(2), pp. 9-11.
- [1981] Fowler 2020.
- [1982] Vallee, J. (1965). Anatomy of a Phenomenon. US: Henry Regnery Company.
- [1983] Pollington, S. (2008). Anglo-Saxon Burial Mounds. Little Downham, MI: Anglo-Saxon Books.
- [1984] Doherty. (2021). Scéal. Retrieved July 15, 2021 from https://www.duchas.ie/en/cbes/ 5009212/4998341/5105184
- [1985] Anonymous. (2021). Fairy Forts. Retrieved July 15, 2021 from https://www.duchas.ie/en/cbes/5044692/5032598
- [1986] Andrews, S. (2013). Representing Mount Wutai's Past: A Study of Chinese and Japanese Miracle Tales about the Five Terrace Mountain (Doctoral Dissertation). Columbia University: Graduate School of Arts and Sciences.
- [1987] Buffetrille, K. (Winter 1994). The Blue Lake of Amdo and Its Island: Legends and Pilgrimage Guide. *The Tibet Journal 19*(4), pp. 2-22.
- [1988] Childress, D.H. (2013). *Vimana: Flying Machines of the Ancients*. Kempton, IL: Adventures Unlimited Press.
- [1989] Young, A.T. (2020). Fata Morgana. Retrieved July 15, 2021 from https://aty.sdsu.edu/mirages/FM/FM.html
- [1990] Pope, N., Burroughs, J., & Penniston, J. (2014). *Encounter in Rendlesham Forest*. New York, NY: Thomas Dunne Books.

- [1991] Rickard & Michell 2000.
- [1992] Godfrey 2016.
- [1993] Asante & Mazama 2009.
- [1994] Romain, W.F. (March 19, 2017). Monks Mound as an Axis Mundi for the Cahokian World. US: W.F. Romain.
- [1995] Asante & Mazama 2009.
- [1996] Lapper 2014.
- [1997] Warner, R.B. (2000). Keeping out the Otherworld: the internal ditch at Navan and other Iron Age 'hengiform' enclosures. *Emania 18*, pp. 39-44.
- [1998] Franklin, P. & White, J. (February 27, 2015). Greenup County. Retrieved July 20, 2021 from https://kyahgp.genealogyvillage.com/greenup/
- [1999] Levenda 2005.
- [2000] Hartland 1891.
- [2001] Bacon 1993.
- [2002] Lecouteux 2013.
- [2003] Ruiz, M. (July 24, 2016). My Visit to the George Stickney House. Retrieved July 15, 2021 from http://thegeorgestickneyhousemariahruiz.blogspot.com/
- [2004] Fanjul, J.C. (October 2005). WGN Cover Stories: Stickney House. Retrieved January 14, 2007 from http://wgntv.trb.com/news/local/eveningnews/wgntv-news-103105stickney,0,3914119.story
- [2005] Bergen, L. & Delarose, S. (2019). *Nordic Aliens and the Fairies of Ireland*. US: Gityasome Books.
- [2006] Persson, C.P. (February 17, 2017). Did Stone Age people build a large labyrinth in Denmark? Retrieved July 15, 2021 from https://sciencenordic.com/archaeology-denmark-society--culture/did-stone-age-people-build-a-large-labyrinth-in-denmark/1442732
- [2007] Welch, S. (2014). A Labyrinth Prayer Handbook. London, UK: Canterbury Press.
- [2008] Ibid.
- [2009] Devereux 2001.
- [2010] Hansen, W. (2002). Ariadne's Thread: A Guide to International Tales Found in Classical Literature. Ithaca, NY: Cornell University Press.
- [2011] Butler, G.R. (1997). The *Lutin* Tradition in French-Newfoundland Culture. In P. Narváez (Ed.), *The Good People: New Fairylore Essays* (pp. 5-21). Lexington, KY: The University Press of Kentucky.
- [2012] Dean, C. (2012). The Boo Hag. Retrieved June 26, 2017 from http://www.caroli-naconjure.com/the-boo-hag.html
- [2013] Lecouteux 2011.
- [2014] White 2018.
- [2015] Redfern, N. (December 29, 2018). Aliens: "Believe in Us, But Not Too Much." Retrieved July 16, 2021 from https://mysteriousuniverse.org/2018/12/aliens-believe-in-us-but-not-too-much/
- [2016] White 2016.
- [2017] Cox, T.J., Fazenda, B.M., & Greaney, S.E. (October 2020). Using scale modelling to assess the prehistoric acoustics of Stonehenge. *Journal of Archaeological Science 122*. Retrieved July 16, 2021 from https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0305440320301394

- [2018] Collins, A. (June 21, 2019). The Great Pyramid Experiment: Measuring the Sonic Capabilities of the Dead-end Passage. Retrieved July 16, 2021 from https://www.ancient-origins.net/artifacts-other-artifacts/great-pyramid-0012166
- [2019] Keel 1976.
- [2020] Spence 1946.
- [2021] Dale, E. (April 12, 2016). Quartz Monuments Duloe Stone Circle & the Nine Sisters. Retrieved July 16, 2021 from https://cornishbirdblog.com/2016/04/12/monumental-minerals/
- [2022] Cascone, S. (August 13, 2021). Scientists Have Conducted Tests That Reveal Stonehenge Is Made From a Nearly Indestructible Ancient Material. Retrieved September 20, 2021 from https://news.artnet.com/art-world/stonehenge-secret-sandstone-quartz-crystal-1998477
- [2023] Guiley 2006.
- [2024] Yohe, T. (2015). Limestone and Its Paranormal Properties: A Comprehensive Approach to the Possibilities. US: CreateSpace.
- [2025] Earnest, A. (October 15, 2020). Lemont Limestone: Is It Haunted? Retrieved July 16, 2021 from https://patch.com/illinois/lemont/lemont-limestone-it-haunted
- [2026] Tomlinson 2016.
- [2027] Bord 2014.
- [2028] Brandon, J. (1983). The Rebirth of Pan: Hidden Faces of the American Earth Spirit. Dunlap, IL: Firebird Press.
- [2029] Sikora, J., Kittel, P., Frączek, M, Głąb, Z, Golyeva, A., Mueller-Bieniek, A., Schneeweiß, J., Tomczyńska, Z., Wasylikowa, K., & Wiedner, K. (January 2019). A palaeoenvironmental reconstruction of the rampart construction of the medieval ring-fort in Rozprza, Central Poland. *Archaeological and Anthropological Sciences 11*, pp. 4187-4219.
- [2030] Kinsley, A. (May 13, 2016). Silbury Hill. Retrieved July 19, 2021 from https://www.silentearth.org/silbury-hill-wiltshire/
- [2031] Melton, J.G. (Ed.). (2001). *Encyclopedia of Occultism & Parapsychology Vol. 2 M-Z*. Farmington Hills, MI: Gale (5th ed.).
- [2032] Collins, A. (1992). *The New Circlemakers: Insights into the Crop Circle Mystery*. Virginia Beach, VA: 4th Dimension Press.
- [2033] Collins 2012.
- [2034] Lecouteux 2015.
- [2035] Keys 2011.
- [2036] Bacon 1993.
- [2037] Mann 2003.
- [2038] Bacon 1993.
- [2039] Ibid.
- [2040] Mann 2003.
- [2041] Strieber & Kripal 2016.
- [2042] Levenda 2006.
- [2043] Wiseman, N. (March 3, 2017). A Secret Place. Retrieved March 4, 2022 from https://iversity.org/en/profiles/neil-wiseman-99725b49-2ddd-4d3e-bbbd-9a7b0201b091/journals/stonehenge-january-2016/a-secret-place
- [2044] Service & Bradbery 1979.

- [2045] Hutton, R. (1991). *The Pagan Religions of the Ancient British Isles*. Oxford, UK: Basil Blackwell Ltd.
- [2046] Ibid.
- [2047] Warner, R.B. (2012). Láeg's Line: A Route for the Gods? In M. Huld *et al* (Eds.) *Archaeology and Language: Indo-European Studies Presented to James P. Mallory* (pp. 55-72). Washington DC: Institute for the Study of Man.
- [2048] Devereux 2001.
- [2049] Devereux 2007.
- [2050] Devereux 2001.
- [2051] Boulay, R.A. (1999). Flying Serpents and Dragons. Escondido, CA: The Book Tree.
- [2052] Maisondeau, N (1907). 28,740 Miles. Paris, FR: Herbert Clarke.
- [2053] Devereux 2007.
- [2054] Rnz.co.nz. (May 8, 2021). Endangered leatherback turtle returned to hapū. Retrieved August 3, 2021 from https://www.stuff.co.nz/national/300302880/endangered-leatherback-turtle-returned-to-hap
- [2055] Devereux 2007.
- [2056] M., Richard. (August 2016). The Dragon Project. Retrieved July 22, 2021 from https://www.megalithia.com/alternative/dragonproject.html
- [2057] Devereux 2001.
- [2058] Devereux 2007.
- [2059] Cowan, D. (2003). Ley Lines and Earth Energies. Kempton, IL: Adventures Unlimited Press.
- [2060] Devereux 2001.
- [2061] Devereux 2007.
- [2062] Devereux 2001.
- [2063] Devereux 2007.
- [2064] Devereux 2001.
- [2065] Lecouteux 2011.
- [2066] Caciola 2016.
- [2067] Hutton 2017.
- [2068] Hutton 2017.
- [2069] Devereux 2001.
- [2070] Devereux 2007.
- [2071] Devereux 2001.
- [2072] Gallagher, M. (2021). A Story. Retrieved July 22, 2021 from https://www.duchas.ie/en/cbes/4701722/4695922/4707035
- [2073] Lossiah 1998.
- [2074] Young 2017.
- [2075] Devereux 2007.
- [2076] Bord 2014.
- [2077] Butler 2017.

[2078] Rickard & Michell 2000.

[2079] Silver 1999.

[2080] Kimball, D. (September 14, 2019). The Demon Gate. Retrieved July 26, 2021 from https://donnykimball.com/kimon-7f7a28291d51

[2081] Ibid.

[2082] Fisher, B. (June 9, 2021). 6 Degrees of John Keel – Episode 30: Fairies: Folklore, Faith & Face With Morgan Daimler. Retrieved July 29, 2021 from https://6degreesofjohnkeel.com/episodes/ e030-fairies-folklore-fact-with-morgan-daimler

[2083] Lecouteux 2011.

[2084] Ibid.

[2085] Lady Gregory 1920, Second Series.

[2086] Clark 1998.

[2087] Lecouteux 2011.

[2088] Rickard & Michell 2000.

[2089] Lecouteux 2011.

[2090] Hutton, R. (August 2014). The Wild Hunt and the Witches' Sabbath. *Folklore 125*(2), pp. 161-178.

[2091] Lecouteux 2011.

[2092] Ibid.

[2093] Hutton 2014.

[2094] Lecouteux 2011.

[2095] Hutton 2014.

[2096] Lecouteux 2011.

[2097] Ridenour, A. (2016). *The Krampus and the Old, Dark Christmas: Roots and Rebirth of the Folkloric Devil.* Port Townsend, WA: Feral House.

[2098] Lecouteux 2011.

[2099] Ibid.

[2100] Rickard & Michell 2000.

[2101] Devereux 2001.

[2102] Guiley 2007.

[2103] Devereux 2001

[2104] Rickard & Michell 2000.

[2105] Lecouteux 2011.

[2106] Devereux 2001.

[2107] Lecouteux 2011.

[2108] Ibid.

[2109] Walsh, N. (2021). Lisnacullia River – Tallyho. Retrieved July 26, 2021 from https://www.duchas.ie/en/cbes/4922014/4918244

[2110] Caciola 2016.

[2111] Croker 1828.

- [2112] Hutton 2017.
- [2113] Caciola 2016.
- [2114] Hutton 1991.
- [2115] Dashu, M. (n.d.) The Traegenda of the Old Goddess, Witches, and Spirits. Retrieved July 27, 2021 from https://www.suppressedhistories.net/secrethistory/witchtregenda.html
- [2116] Hutton 2017.
- [2117] Ibid.
- [2118] Ibid.
- [2119] Lecouteux 2011.
- [2120] Melton 2001.
- [2121] Kierkegaard, S. (2019). *Kierkegaard's Journals and Notebooks Vol. 11: Part 1 Loose Papers, 1830-1843.* Cappelørn, N.J., Hannay, A., Kirmmse, B.H., Possen, D.D., Rasmussen, J.D.S., & Rumble, V. (Eds.). Princeton, NJ: Princeton University Press.
- [2122] Hill, J. (2020). *The History of Christianity: The Early Church to the Reformation*. Oxford, UK: Lion Hudson Limited.
- [2123] Devereux 2001.
- [2124] Sikes 1880.
- [2125] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [2126] Keightley 1828.
- [2127] Lecouteux 2011.
- [2128] Caciola 2016.
- [2129] Scuderi, A. (2000). Arlecchino Revisited: Tracing the Demon from the Carnival to Kramer and Mr. Bean. *Theatre History Studies 20*, pp. 143-155.
- [2130] Caciola 2016.
- [2131] Briggs, K. (2002). *The Fairies in Tradition and Literature*. London, UK: Routledge. (Original work published 1967)
- [2132] Caciola 2016.
- [2133] Guiley 2007.
- [2134] Hutton 2017.
- [2135] Greenwood, S. (2020). The Nature of Magic: An Anthropology of Consciousness. New York, NY: Routledge.
- [2136] Jung, C.G. (2021). Carl Gustav Jung On Life After Death. Retrieved July 27, 2021 from https://www.hermetics.net/media-library/mysticism/carl-gustav-jung-life-death/
- [2137] Daimler, M. (2018). Pagan Portals: Odin. Alresford, UK: Moon Books.
- [2138] Ibid.
- [2139] Baring-Gould, S. (1913). A Book of Folk-Lore. London, UK: Collins-Clear-Type-Press.
- [2140] Ibid.
- [2141] Daimler 2016.
- [2142] Jones 2017.
- [2143] Lecouetux 2011.

- [2144] Lady Gregory 1920, Second Series.
- [2145] Walter 2006.
- [2146] Curran, B. (2004). Celtic Lore & Legend. Franklin Lakes, NJ: The Career Press.
- [2147] Cutchin & Renner 2020.
- [2148] Hutton 1991.
- [2149] Lecouteux 2011.
- [2150] Cutchin & Renner 2020.
- [2151] Jerman, T.A. (2020). Santa Claus Worldwide. Jefferson, NC: McFarland & Company.
- [2152] Cutchin & Renner 2020.
- [2153] Ibid.
- [2154] Reaves, W.P. (2018). Odin's Wife: Mother Earth in Germanic Mythology. US: William P. Reaves
- [2155] Lecouteux 2011.
- [2156] Reaves 2018.
- [2157] Lecouteux 2011.
- [2158] Schoön, E. (2004). *Asa-Tors hammare: gudar och jättar i tro och tradition.* Stockholm, SE: Hjalmarson & Högbery.
- [2159] Lecouteux 2011.
- [2160] Guiley 2007.
- [2161] Hutton 2017.
- [2162] Lecouteux 2011.
- [2163] Graves, R. (1948). The White Goddess: A Historical Grammar of Poetic Myth. London, UK: Faber & Faber.
- [2164] Greenwood 2020.
- [2165] Devereux 2001.
- [2166] Lecouteux 2011.
- [2167] Guiley 2007.
- [2168] Rooney, A. (1993). Hunting in Middle English Literature. Cambridge, UK: D.S. Brewer.
- [2169] Bord & Bord 1985.
- [2170] Devereux 2001.
- [2171] Croker 1828.
- [2172] Daimler 2016.
- [2173] Altmann, A.E. (2006). *The Seven Swabians, and Other German Folktales*. Westport, CT: Libraries Unlimited.
- [2174] Hutton 2017.
- [2175] Herzog 1983.
- [2176] Lecouteux 2011.
- [2177] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [2178] Jones 2017.

- [2179] Lecouteux 2011.
- [2180] Towrie, S. (n.d.). Trowie Magic. Retrieved July 28, 2021 from http://www.orkneyjar.com/folklore/trows/trow5.htm
- [2181] Daniels, C.L., & Stevans, C.M. (Eds.). (1908). Encyclopaedia of Superstitions, Folklore, and the Occult Sciences of the World (Vol. III). Chicago, IL: J.H. Yewdale & Sons Co.
- [2182] Heywood, T. (1973). *Hierarchie of the Blessed Angels, Their Names, Orders and Offices*. Cambridge, MA: Da Capo Press. (Original work published 1635)
- [2183] Dashu n.d.
- [2184] Bane 2013.
- [2185] Lecouteux 2011.
- [2186] Devereux 2001.
- [2187] Luomala, K. (1983, Fall). Phantom Marchers in the Hawaiian Islands. *Pacific Studies* 7(1), pp. 1-33.
- [2188] Lecouteux 2011.
- [2189] Ibid.
- [2190] Ibid.
- [2191] Walton, T. (1997). Fire in the Sky: The Walton Experience. New York, NY: Marlowe & Company (3rd ed.).
- [2192] Ibid.
- [2193] Ledger, J.R. (Sept.-Oct. 1962). Saucers or Ghosts? Flying Saucer Review 8(5), pp. 19-20.
- [2194] Schoön 2004.
- [2195] Lecouteux 2011.
- [2196] Slevik, N.(2020). Granite Skies: A Disconcerted Journey Through the Unknown. US: Nomar Slevik.
- [2197] Ibid.
- [2198] Caciola 2016.
- [2199] Devereux 2007.
- [2200] Sikes 1880.
- [2201] Lecouteux 2011.
- [2202] Ibid.
- [2203] Ibid.
- [2204] Hutton 2017.
- [2205] Greenwood 2020.
- [2206] Devereux 2001.
- [2207] Devereux 2007.
- [2208] Devereux 2001.
- [2209] Ibid.
- [2210] Ibid.
- [2211] Heath, R. & Michell, J. (2006). *The Lost Science of Measuring the Earth.* Kempton, IL: Adventures Unlimited.

- [2212] Taylor, R. (2000). Public Needs and Private Pleasures: Water Distribution, the Tiber River, and the Urban Development of Ancient Rome. Rome, IT: L'Erma di Bretschnieider.
- [2213] Holiday 1973.
- [2214] Wilson, C. (1998). *Alien Dawn: An Investigation into the Contact Experience*. New York, NY: Fromm International Publishing Corporation.
- [2215] Guiley 2006.
- [2216] Service & Bradbery 1979.
- [2217] Goddard, J. (March-April 1964). New Light on Ancient Tracks. Flying Saucer Review 10(2), pp. 15-16.
- [2218] Holiday 1973.
- [2219] Sullivan, D. (2004). Ley Lines: The Greatest Landscape Mystery. Sutton Mallet, UK: Green Magic.
- [2220] Ibid.
- [2221] Ibid.
- [2222] Sullivan 2004.
- [2223] Holiday 1973.
- [2224] Sullivan 2004.
- [2225] Doxtater, D. (n.d.). Probabilities of Designed Alignments Among Largest Prehistoric Mounds and Most Prominent Natural Features in Scandinavia. Tucson, AZ: University of Arizona College of Architecture and Landscape Architecture.
- [2226] Sullivan 2004.
- [2227] Ibid.
- [2228] Little 1990.
- [2229] Aesteii, P. (n.d.). 1st Ley Line Teotihuacan-Chaokia-Theo-Wheaton. Retrieved August 3, 2021 from https://patrick0psy6aesteii.yolasite.com/modern-libraries-of-alexandria.php
- [2230] Stout, G. (2002). Newgrange and the Bend of the Boyne. Cork, IE: Cork University Press.
- [2231] Keel 1976.
- [2232] Carlwood, G. (July 5, 2021). Randall Carlson | Geomancy, the Sacred Template, & the Great Cosmic Work. Retrieved August 4, 2021 from https://www.thehighersidechats.com/randall-carlson-geomancy-the-sacred-template-the-great-cosmic-work/
- [2233] Service & Bradbery 1979.
- [2234] M., Richard 2016.
- [2235] Hitching, F. (1977). Earth Magic. London, UK: Picador.
- [2236] Herrmann, E.W., Monaghan, G.W., Romain, W.F., Schilling, T.M., Burks, J., Leone, K.L., Purtill, M.P., & Tonetti, A.C. (2014). A new multistage construction chronology for the Great Serpent Mound, USA. *Journal of Archaeological Science* 50, pp. 117-125.
- [2237] Taylor, G. (April 29, 2021). Ancient Mesoamerican Sculptures Found to Intentionally Incorporate Magnetism. Retrieved August 14, 2021 from https://www.dailygrail.com/2019/04/ancient-mesoamerican-sculptures-found-to-intentionally-incorporate-magnetism
- [2238] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [2239] Wilson, C. (2013). *Mysteries: An Investigation into the Occult, the Paranormal and the Supernatural.* London, UK: Watkins Publishing. (Original work published 1978)
- [2240] Filer, G. (October 2008). Filer's Files. MUFON UFO Journal 486, pp. 18-20.

- [2241] Keel 1976.
- [2242] Parker, S.P. (Ed.). (1994). McGraw-Hill Concise Encyclopedia of Science and Technology. (3rd ed.). New York, NY: McGraw-Hill.
- [2243] M., Richard 2016.
- [2244] Carlwood 2021.
- [2245] St-Pierre, L.S., Persinger, M.A. (2006). Experimental Facilitation of the Sensed Presence Is Predicted By The Specific Patterns of the Applied Magnetic Fields, Not By Suggestibility: Reanalysis of 19 Experiments. *International Journal of Neuroscience 116*(9), pp. 1079–1095.
- [2246] Persinger, M.A. (2001). The neuropsychiatry of paranormal experiences. *The Journal of Neuropsychiatry and Clinical Neurosciences* 13(4), pp. 515-524.
- [2247] Ring 1992.
- [2248] Granqvist, P., Fredrikson, M., Unge, P., Hagenfeldt, A., Valind, S., Larhammar, D., & Larsson, M. (2005). Sensed presence and mystical experiences are predicted by suggestibility, not by the application of transcranial weak complex magnetic fields. *Neuroscience Letters* 379(1), pp. 1–6.
- [2249] Little 1990.
- [2250] Randles, J. (1998). *Truly Weird: Real-Life Cases of the Paranormal*. London, UK: Collins & Brown.
- [2251] Ogden 2001.
- [2252] Rickard & Michell 2000.
- [2253] Devereux 2007.
- [2254] Sullivan 2004.
- [2255] Webb, D. (1976). 1973, Year of the Humanoids: An Analysis of the Fall UFO/Humanoid Wave. Evanston, IL: Center for UFO Studies.
- [2256] Michel, A. (1966). About Flying Saucers Mysterious Celestial Objects (OMC). In *Planet Presence*: Plant Ed.
- [2257] Michel, A. (May-June 1963). Global Orthoteny. Flying Saucer Review 9(3), pp. 3-7.
- [2258] Menzel, D.H. (March-April 1964). Do Flying Saucers Move in Straight Lines? *Flying Saucer Review 10*(2), pp. 3-7.
- [2259] Michel 1963.
- [2260] Sullivan 2004.
- [2261] Holiday 1973.
- [2262] Goddard 1964.
- [2263] Burnham, A. (n.d.). Clickable Megalith Map of European Sites: France. Retrieved August 7, 2021 from https://www.megalithic.co.uk/leaflet_megalith_map.php?country=6
- [2264] Michel 1963.
- [2265] Menzel, D.E. (July-August 1965). Orthoteny A Lost Cause: Part 2. Flying Saucer Review 11(4), pp. 26-28.
- [2266] Vallee, J. (1992). Forbidden Science: Journals 1957-1969. Berkeley, CA: North Atlantic Books.
- [2267] Ibid.
- [2268] Webb 1976.
- [2269] Keel 1976.
- [2270] Filer 2008.

[2271] Clelland, M. (March 12, 2013). Line on a map across southern Utah. Retrieved August 5, 2021 from http://hiddenexperience.blogspot.com/2013/03/line-on-map-across-southern-utah.html

[2272] Devereux 2001.

[2273] Watkins, A. (1925). The Old Straight Track. London, UK: Methuen & Co., Ltd.

[2274] Collins 2012.

[2275] Devereux 2001.

[2276] Ibid.

[2277] Guiley 2009.

[2278] Devereux 2001.

[2279] Devereux 2007.

[2280] Collier, W. (April 2019). Personal communication.

ENDNOTES

VOLUME TWO

[2281] Strieber, W. (2011). Solving the Communion Enigma. New York, NY: Jeremy P. Tarcher.

[2282] Ibid.

[2283] Ibid.

[2284] Ibid.

[2285] Randles, J. (1994). Star Children. London, UK: Robert Hale Limited.

[2286] Hernandez, Klimo, & Schild 2018.

[2287] Hynek, J.A. (1972). The UFO Experience: A Scientific Inquiry. New York, NY: Ballantine.

[2288] Fowler 2020.

[2289] UfoEvidence.org. (n.d.). John Keel. Retrieved August 12, 2021 from http://www.ufoevidence.org/Researchers/Detail71.htm

[2290] Cutchin, J. (2017). In for a Penny, In for a Pound: Moving Ufology Beyond Materialism. In R. Graham (Ed.), *UFOs: Reframing the Debate* (pp. 49-62). Hove, UK: White Crow Books.

[2291] Keel 1970.

[2292] Pasulka, D.W. (2019). American Cosmic: UFOs, Religion, Technology. New York, NY: Oxford University Press.

[2293] Bloch, A. (Director). (2007). Implications of UFO Phenomena [TV series episode]. In A. Bloch (Producer), *Thinking Allowed with Jeffrey Mishlove* [TV series]. Thinking Allowed Productions. Retrieved August 12, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=X8zl7-1PNsw

[2294] Jung 1991.

[2295] Rutkowski, C., & Dittman, G. (2006). *The Canadian UFO Report: The Best Cases Revealed*. Toronto, ON: Dundurn Press.

[2296] Southworth, C. (2018). Ghosts of Bell County, Texas. Charleston, SC: Haunted America.

[2297] Melton, M.A. (2018). Ecological and Human Behavioral Messages Received from UAP-Related Non-Human Intelligence. In R. Hernandez, J. Klimo, & R. Schild (Eds.), Beyond UFOs: The Science of Consciousness and Contact with Non Human Intelligence "Volume 1" (pp. 595-623). USA: Dr. Edgar Mitchell Foundation for Research into Extraterrestrial and Extraordinary Experiences.

[2298] Stacy, D. (November 1993). Review: Crash Collision. MUFON UFO Journal 307, pp. 18-19.

[2299] Hind, C. (May 1983). Entities at La Rochelle. MUFON UFO Journal 183, pp. 6-10.

[2300] Yun, K. (2016). Spiritual Entrepreneurship: Negotiating the Ritual Marketplace on Contemporary Cheju Island, South Korea. *Journal of Ritual Studies* 30(2), pp. 53-65.

[2301] Steiger, B. (2016). *Mysteries of Time and Space*. San Antonio, TX: Anomalist Books. (Original work published 1974)

- [2302] Muraresku 2020.
- [2303] Worley, D. (Winter 1996). Examining the Mystery of the "Para-Apes." *Flying Saucer Review* 41(4), pp. 20-22.
- [2304] Aubeck, C. (n.d.). Fairies and Saucers together in the press March 11-13, 1950. Unpublished.
- [2305] Machlin, M. & Beckley, T.G. (1981). UFO. Cape Town, South Africa: Quick Fox.
- [2306] Jacobs, D. (1999). The Threat. New York, NY: Fireside. (Original work published 1998)
- [2307] Dolan, R. (2014). UFOs for the 21st Century Mind. Rochester, NY: Richard Dolan Press.
- [2308] Knight-Jadczyk, L. & Sy, H. (2005). *The High Strangeness of Dimensions, Densities, and the Process of Alien Abduction*. CA: Red Pill Press.
- [2309] Hopkins 1987.
- [2310] Ibid.
- [2311] Banks, M.M. (1940, June). Fairies' Methods of Securing Good Stock. *Folklore 51*(2), pp. 113-114.
- [2312] Casteel, S. (2008). Fairies and Aliens. In T.G. Beckley (Ed.), *UFOs, Time Slips, Other Realms, and the Science of Fairies* (pp. 9-19) New Brunswick, N.J.: Timothy Green Beckley (Global Communications/Conspiracy Journal).
- [2313] Harpur 2003.
- [2314] Merriam-Webster. (n.d.). Blister noun. Retrieved August 14, 2021 from https://www.merriam-webster.com/dictionary/blister
- [2315] Narváez, P. (1997). Physical Disorders: Changelings and the Blast. In P. Narváez (Ed.), *The Good People: New Fairylore Essays* (pp. 225-226). Lexington, KY: The University Press of Kentucky.
- [2316] Rieti, B. (1997). "The Blast" in Newfoundland Fairy Tradition. In P. Narváez (Ed.), *The Good People: New Fairylore Essays* (pp. 284-298). Lexington, KY: The University Press of Kentucky.
- [2317] Dolan 2014.
- [2318] Bullard, T.E. (April-June 1989). UFO Abduction Reports: The Supernatural Kidnap Narrative Returns in Technological Guise. *The Journal of American Folklore* 102(404), pp. 147-170.
- [2319] Clarke 2015.
- [2320] Cutchin 2015.
- [2321] Harold, J. (January 21, 2021). Who Are the Visitors? The Whitley Strieber Interview. Retrieved October 7, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Vp1oiIMfNPg&t=3010s
- [2322] Bord, J. & Bord, C. (1988). Modern Mysteries of Britain. London, UK; Grafton Books.
- [2323] Cutchin 2018.
- [2324] Dolan 2014.
- [2325] Connelly, D. (February 1999). Ufology Profile: Beverly Trout Wears Two Hats: Investigator And..... *MUFON UFO Journal 370*, pp. 14-16.
- [2326] Bryan, C.D.B. (1995). Close Encounters of the Fourth Kind. New York, NY: Penguin Group (Arkana).
- [2327] Harpur 2003.
- [2328] Creighton, G. (May/June 1968). Middle American Creature Reports. *Flying Saucer Review* 14(3), pp. 12-15.
- [2329] Briggs 1976.

- [2330] Clarke, D. (Summer 1989). UFO Abductions and the Celtic Otherworld. *UFO Universe K46112*, pp. 66-70.
- [2331] Vallee, J. (1990). Five Arguments Against the Extraterrestrial Origin of Unidentified Flying Saucers. *Journal of Scientific Exploration 4*(1), pp. 105-117.
- [2332] Griaule, M. & Dieterlen, G. (1976). A Sudanese Sirius System. In R. Temple (Ed.), *The Sirius Mystery* (pp. 58-81). London, UK: Futura Books.
- [2333] Connes, P. (2020). *History of the Plurality of the Worlds: The Myths of Extraterrestrials Through the Ages.* J. Lequeux (Ed.). Cham, CH: Springer Nature Switzerland.
- [2334] Plato. (1997). *Plato's Cosmology*. (F.M. Cornford, Trans.). Indianapolis, IN: Hackett Publishing Company. (Original translation published 1935)
- [2335] Shushan 2009.
- [2336] Keister 2004.
- [2337] Sveinsson 2003.
- [2338] Goodenough, W.H. (Sept. 1986). Sky World and This World: The Place of Kachaw in Micronesian Cosmology. *American Anthropologist* 88(3), pp. 551-568.
- [2339] Russell, W.M.S. (1983). More about Folklore and Literature. Folklore 94(1), pp. 3-32.
- [2340] Drake, W.R. (Jan.-Feb. 1960). Is the MOON inhabited? *Flying Saucer Review 6*(1), pp. 30-32, 34.
- [2341] Ibid.
- [2342] Hewitt, J.F. (1851). Story and Chronology of the Myth-Making Age. London, UK: James Parker and Co.
- [2343] MacGillivray III, A. (2010). *The Venus Calendar Observatory at Aztec New Mexico*. Blooominton, IN: AuthorHouse.
- [2344] Strong 2009.
- [2345] Misra, B.D. (March 9, 2015). Black Holes and the Journey of the Soul. Retrieved August 16, 2021 from https://www.bibhudevmisra.com/2015/03/black-holes-and-journey-of-soul.html?m=1
- [2346] CaminoWays. (n.d.). The History of the Camino de Santiago, Retrieved August 16, 2021 from https://caminoways.com/the-history-of-the-camino-de-santiago
- [2347] Milbrath, S. (1999). Star Gods of the Maya: Astronomy in Art, Folklore, and Calendars. Austin, TX: University of Texas Press.
- [2348] White, G. (February 19, 2022). Talking Astro Gnosticism with Chris Knowles and Miguel Conner. Retrieved February 21, 2022 from https://www.youtube.com/watch? v=QT3Z55XiM1Q&t=1949s
- [2349] Misra 2015.
- [2350] Natasha. (December 7, 2016). The Cult of the Swan. Retrieved August 16, 2021 from http://www.thesoulofbones.com/blog/the-cult-of-the-swan
- [2351] Russell 1983.
- [2352] Hegemonius. (n.d.). *Acta Archelai*. Retrieved November 10, 2021 from https://web.archive.org/web/20081223141441/http://www4.nau.edu/manichaean/acta.htm
- [2353] Wilkins, H.P. (Sept.-Oct. 1957). The Known and the Unknown. *Flying Saucer Review 3*(5), pp. 10-13.
- [2354] Rivas, Dirven, & Smit 2016.
- [2355] S., Yazmine. (n.d.). Yazmine S NDE 6992. Retrieved August 16, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1yazmine s nde.html

- [2356] M., Sharon. (n.d.). Sharon M NDEs 8247. Retrieved August 16, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1sharon m probable nde.html.
- [2357] M., Aaron. (n.d.). Aaron M NDE 8350. Retrieved August 16, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1aaron_m_nde.html
- [2358] Briggs 1976.
- [2359] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [2360] Solman, W. (pseudonym). (August 24, 2021). Personal communication.
- [2361] Halpin, D. (January 26, 2019). An Investigation into Irish Faerie-Lore. Retrieved November 3, 2021 from https://deadbutdreaming.wordpress.com/2019/01/26/an-investigation-into-irish-faerie-lore-by-david-halpin/
- [2362] Little 1990.
- [2363] Clarke, A.S. (2012). Encounters with Star People. San Antonio, TX: Anomalist Books.
- [2364] Clarke 2015.
- [2365] Clarke 2012.
- [2366] Lucian. (1902). Lucian's True History. (F. Hickes, Trans.). London, UK: A.H. Bullen.
- [2367] Kawabata, Y. (1998). *The Tale of the Bamboo Cutter.* (D. Keene, Trans.). New York, NY: Kodansha America, Inc.
- [2368] Burton, R.F. (1885). The Book of the Thousand Nights and a Night. Retrieved August 17, 2021 from https://www.gutenberg.org/files/54257-h/54257-h/54257-h.htm
- [2369] Strieber & Kripal 2016.
- [2370] Riess, J. & Bigelow, C.K. (2005). Mormonism for Dummies. Hoboken, NJ: Wiley Publishing.
- [2371] Roy-Di Piazza, V. (August 2020). 'Ghosts from other planets': plurality of worlds, afterlife and satire in Emanuel Swedenborg's *De Telluribus in mundo nostro solari* (1758). *Annals of Science* 77, pp. 469-494.
- [2372] Swedenborg, E. (1962). Earths in Our Solar System. Retrieved August 18, 2021 from https://www.gutenberg.org/files/16044/16044-h/1604-h/1604
- [2373] Dolan 2014.
- [2374] Keel 1976.
- [2375] Gorightly & Bishop 2018.
- [2376] Russell 1983.
- [2377] Clark, J. (2007). The Odyssey of Sister Thedra. In D.G. Tumminia (Ed.), *Alien Worlds: Social and Religious Dimensions of Extraterrestrial Contact* (pp. 25-41). Syracuse, NY: Syracuse University Press.
- [2378] Probert, M. & Lingford, C. (1947). The Coming of the Guardians. Retrieved August 18, 2021 from https://borderlandsciences.org/project/etheria/mimeo/tcotg/communications.html
- [2379] Raynes 2019.
- [2380] Clelland, M. (2018). Stories from the Messengers. Rochester, NY: Richard Dolan Press.
- [2381] Constance, A. (Sept.-Oct, 1956). This Amazing Universe. Flying Saucer Review 2(5), pp. 20-23.
- [2382] Gorightly & Bishop 2018.
- [2383] Ibid.
- [2384] Adamski, G. (1955). Inside the Spaceships. New York, NY: Abelard-Schuman, Inc.
- [2385] Gorightly & Bishop 2018.

- [2386] Ibid.
- [2387] Van Tassel, G.W. (1958). The Council of Seven Lights. Los Angeles, CA: DeVorss & Co.
- [2388] Ibid.
- [2389] Gorightly & Bishop 2018.
- [2390] Menger, H. (2014). From Outer Space to You. Point Pleasant, WV: New Saucerian Books. (Original work published 1959)
- [2391] Wilson 1998.
- [2392] Angelucci, O. (1955). The Secret of the Saucers. Amherst, WI: Amherst Press.
- [2393] Good, T. (1999). Alien Base. London, UK: Arrow.
- [2394] Howard, D. (1957). Over the Threshold. Los Angeles, CA: Llewellyn Publications, Ltd.
- [2395] Howard, D. (Jan.-Feb. 1958). Seeking the Saucer Answer. Flying Saucer Review 4(1), pp. 16-17.
- [2396] Gorightly & Bishop 2018.
- [2397] Wiebe, P.H. (2004). God and Others Spirits. New York, NY: Oxford University Press.
- [2398] Knowles, C. (July 12, 2021). Space is an Altar: Sex & Rockets. Retrieved September 28, 2021 from https://secretsun.blogspot.com/2021/07/space-is-altar-sex-rockets.html
- [2399] Clark 1998.
- [2400] Moravec, M.L. (September 1980). UFOs and Prophetic Religious Movements. *MUFON UFO Journal 151*, pp. 7-10.
- [2401] Ibid.
- [2402] Raynes 2018.
- [2403] Mackay, I. (July/August 1970). UFOs and the Occult 1. Flying Saucer Review 16(4), pp. 27-29.
- [2404] Mackay, I. (September/October 1970). UFOs and the Occult 2. Flying Saucer Review 16(5), pp. 24-26.
- [2405] Holiday 1973.
- [2406] Raynes 2018.
- [2407] Steiger, B. (2003). Real Ghosts, Restless Spirits, and Haunted Places. Canton, MI: Visible Ink Press
- [2408] Halperin, D.J. (2020). Intimate Alien. Stanford, CA: Stanford University Press.
- [2409] Ring 1992.
- [2410] Hernandez, Klimo, & Schild 2018.
- [2411] Bord, J. (May/June 1972). Are Psychic People More Likely to see UFOs? *Flying Saucer Review* 18(3), pp. 20-22.
- [2412] Ring 1992.
- [2413] Randles 1987.
- [2414] Strieber & Strieber 2016.
- [2415] Harvey-Wilson 2000.
- [2416] Dennis, C., & Whitman, P. (1997). *The Millennium Children*. Clearwater, FL: Rainbows Unlimited.
- [2417] Schwarz, B.E. (October 1977). Talks with Betty Hill: 2 The Things That Happen Around Her. *Flying Saucer Review 23*(3), pp. 11-14, 31.

- [2418] Ibid.
- [2419] Sayne, A. (August 31, 2021). Conspirinormal 380- Tim Binnall and Brent Raynes (Fortean Roadtrips and more Stranger Realities). Retrieved September 2, 2021 from http://conspirinormal.com/blog-1/2021/8/31/conspirinormal-380-tim-binnall-and-brent-raynes-fortean-roadtrips-and-more-stranger-realities
- [2420] Fowler 2020.
- [2421] Harvey-Wilson 2000.
- [2422] Randles, J. (1988). *Alien Abductions: The Mystery Solved*. New Brunswick, NJ: Inner Light Publications.
- [2423] Ibid.
- [2424] Schwarz, B.E. (May/June 1971). The Port Monmouth Landing. *Flying Saucer Review 17*(3), pp. 21-27.
- [2425] Ibid.
- [2426] Randles, J. (1997). Alien Contact: The First Fifty Years. New York, NY: Barnes & Noble Books.
- [2427] Ibid.
- [2428] Randles 1994.
- [2429] Fowler, O. (2003). An Alien Base in Siberia & Alien Contact. *Flying Saucer Review 48*(3), pp. 16-17.
- [2430] Dennis & Whitman 1997.
- [2431] Schwarz, B. (October 1986). Presumed Physical Mediumship and UFOs. *Flying Saucer Review* 31(6), pp. 18-22.
- [2432] Ibid.
- [2433] Mack 1994.
- [2434] Ibid.
- [2435] Slevik 2020.
- [2436] Sayne August 31, 2021.
- [2437] Oldham, B. (2013). Children of the Greys. Murfreesboro, TN: House of Halo.
- [2438] Ibid.
- [2439] Ibid.
- [2440] Strieber & Strieber 2016.
- [2441] Ibid.
- [2442] Whitehead, P. (Autumn 1991). "It All Started When I Saw A Flying Saucer!" *Flying Saucer Review 36*(3), pp. 22-23.
- [2443] Fowler 2020.
- [2444] Randles 1988.
- [2445] Carter, M. (2018). The Spiritual Transformation of the UAP Contact Experience. In R. Hernandez, J. Klimo, & R. Schild (Eds.), *Beyond UFOs: The Science of Consciousness and Contact with Non Human Intelligence "Volume I"* (pp. 624-678). USA: Dr. Edgar Mitchell Foundation for Research into Extraterrestrial and Extraordinary Experiences.
- [2446] Harvey-Wilson 2000.
- [2447] A., Ron. (n.d.). Ron A NDE 916. Retrieved August 20, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1ron_a_nde.html

- [2448] Harvey-Wilson 2000.
- [2449] Klimo, J. (2018). A Report on Phase III of FREE's Experiencer Research Study: The Results of a Qualitative Study. In R. Hernandez, J. Klimo, & R. Schild (Eds.), *Beyond UFOs: The Science of Consciousness and Contact with Non Human Intelligence "Volume I"* (pp. 121-287). USA: Dr. Edgar Mitchell Foundation for Research into Extraterrestrial and Extraordinary Experiences.
- [2450] Hancock 2007.
- [2451] Nover, L. (2019). Nightmareland: Travels at the Borders of Sleep, Dreams, and Wakefulness. New York, NY: Tarcher Perigree.
- [2452] DeSouza, J. (2016). *The Extra-Dimensionals: True Tales And Concepts of Alien Visitors.* Oro Valley, AZ: TAMA Publishing.
- [2453] Mack 1999.
- [2454] Creighton, G. (Summer 1993). The 'Linda Cortile' Case. Flying Saucer Review 38(2), p. 1.
- [2455] Fowler 2020.
- [2456] Project Becassine. (n.d.). Case 282. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1976 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1976.pdf
- [2457] Strieber, W. (1995). Breakthrough. San Antonio, TX: Walker & Collier, Inc.
- [2458] Strieber & Strieber 2016.
- [2459] Randles 1997.
- [2460] Ibid.
- [2461] Parker, C. (2019). Pascagoula The Story Continues. Pontefract, UK: Flying Disk Press.
- [2462] Randles 1988.
- [2463] Dennett 2003.
- [2464] Rosales, A. (n.d.). Case 35. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1991 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1991.pdf
- [2465] Keel 1970.
- [2466] Bühler, W.K., Pereira, G., & Pires, N.M. (1985). *UFO Abduction at Mirassol: A Biogenetic Experiment* (W.C. Stevens, Trans.). Tucson, AZ: UFO Photo Archives.
- [2467] Jacobs, D. (1993). Secret Life. New York, NY: Simon and Schuster.
- [2468] Lecouteux 2013.
- [2469] Fowler 2020.
- [2470] Dennis & Whitman 1997.
- [2471] Rojcewicz, P. (1997). Fairies, UFOs, and Problems of Knowledge. In P. Narváez (Ed.), *The Good People: New Fairylore Essays* (pp. 479-514). Lexington, KY: The University Press of Kentucky.
- [2472] Hopkins & Rainey 2003.
- [2473] Wilson, K. (1993). The Alien Jigsaw. Portland, OR: Puzzle Publishing.
- [2474] Connelly, D. (March 1975). Rhodesian case involves occupants, transportation of auto. *Skylook* 89, pp. 3-9.
- [2475] Ibid.
- [2476] Ibid.
- [2477] Ibid.

- [2478] Redfern 2010.
- [2479] Ibid.
- [2480] Sprinkle, R.L. (1999). Soul Samples: Personal Explorations in Reincarnation and UFO Experiences. Columbus, NC: Granite Publishing,
- [2481] Nagaitis, C., & Mantle, P. (1994). Without Consent. Upper Saddle River, NJ: Prentice Hall.
- [2482] Connelly, D. (August 1999). MUFON 1999 International UFO Symposium featured both veterans and relative newcomers. *MUFON UFO Journal 376*, pp. 3-7.
- [2483] Schnabel 1994.
- [2484] Ibid.
- [2485] Strieber 1997.
- [2486] Schnabel 1994.
- [2487] Mack 1999.
- [2488] Hernandez, Klimo, & Schild 2018.
- [2489] Ibid.
- [2490] Fowler 2020.
- [2491] Ibid.
- [2492] Mack 1994.
- [2493] Wingfield, G. (1990). Ever Increasing Circles. In T. Good (Ed.), *The UFO Report 1991* (pp. 11-40). London, UK: Sidgwick & Jackson Ltd.
- [2494] Fowler 2020.
- [2495] Randle, K. D. (1989). The October Scenario. New York City, NY: Berkley Books.
- [2496] Nagaitis & Mantle 1994.
- [2497] Little 1990.
- [2498] Randles 1987.
- [2499] Fox-Strangways, R. (May 1985). Some Remarkable Dream Experiences. *Flying Saucer Review* 30(4), pp. 28-29.
- [2500] Fawcett, G.D. (January 1974). Many North Carolina UFO Sightings Remain Unsolved. *Skylook* 74, P. 14.
- [2501] Mackay July/August 1970.
- [2502] Bane 2016.
- [2503] Hanks 2010.
- [2504] Fowler 2020.
- [2505] Good 1999.
- [2506] Mack 1999.
- [2507] Rojcewicz 1986.
- [2508] Mack 1999.
- [2509] Kerner, N. (2010). Grey Aliens and the Harvesting of Souls. Rochester, VT: Bear & Company.
- [2510] Strieber & Kripal 2016.
- [2511] Mack 1999.

- [2512] Fowler, R.E. (1990). The Watchers. New York, NY: Bantam Books.
- [2513] Strieber 1995.
- [2514] Hopkins, B. (1981). Missing Time. New York, NY: Richard Marek Publishers.
- [2515] Evans Wentz 1911.
- [2516] Fowler 1990.
- [2517] Delarose, S. (2014). Alien Nightmares. US: Gityasome Books.
- [2518] Oldham 2013.
- [2519] UFOLOG Russia. (n.d.). Case 131. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1990 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1990.pdf
- [2520] Gorightly & Bishop 2018.
- [2521] Girvin, C.C. (1958). *The Night Has a Thousand Saucers*. El Monte, CA: Understanding Publishing.
- [2522] Clark, J. (2010). *Hidden Realms, Lost Civilizations, and Beings from Other Worlds*. Canton, MI: Visible Ink Press.
- [2523] Steiger, B. (Summer 1989). UFO Contactees Heralds of the New Age. *UFO Universe K46112*, pp. 28-33.
- [2524] Gorightly & Bishop 2018.
- [2525] Fowler 2020.
- [2526] Long 2010.
- [2527] Lecouteux 2019.
- [2528] Jacobs 1993.
- [2529] Redfern 2010.
- [2530] Belimov, G.S. (2003). Case 30. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1962 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1962.pdf
- [2531] Gorightly & Bishop 2018.
- [2532] Ibid.
- [2533] Lecouteux 2019.
- [2534] Mack 1994.
- [2535] Oldham 2013.
- [2536] Ibid.
- [2537] Mack 1999.
- [2538] Clelland 2015.
- [2539] Eliade 1964.
- [2540] Bullard 1987 Vol. 1.
- [2541] Ibid.
- [2542] Strieber & Strieber 2016.
- [2543] McD, Alan. (n.d.). 3068 Alan McD NDE 16041. Retrieved August 25, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1alan_mcd_nde.html
- [2544] Swas. (n.d.). 2746 Swas NDE 5243. Retrieved August 25, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1swas_nde.html

- [2545] Kerner 2010.
- [2546] Pepi. (n.d.). 2 Pepi NDE 67. Retrieved August 25, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1pepi_nde.html
- [2547] Halliday, R. (1998). UFO Scotland. Edinburgh, UK: Black & White Publishing.
- [2548] Turner, K. (1994). *Taken: Inside the Alien-Human Abduction Agenda*. Tallahassee, FL: Rose Printing Company, Inc.
- [2549] Fowler 2020.
- [2550] Sikilinda, V.P. & Vladimirov, G.S. (n.d.). Case 86. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1989 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/ humanoid-1989.pdf
- [2551] Clark 1998.
- [2552] Peake 2019.
- [2553] Nagaitis & Mantle 1994.
- [2554] Haisell, D. (1978). The Missing Seven Hours. Markham, ON: PaperJacks.
- [2555] Hernandez, R. (2014). May 15, 2013: My "ET Telegram." Unpublished.
- [2556] Ibid.
- [2557] Burkes, J. & Dennett, P. (2018). Medical Healings Reported by UAP Contact Experiencers. In R. Hernandez, J. Klimo, & R. Schild (Eds.), *Beyond UFOs: The Science of Consciousness and Contact with Non Human Intelligence "Volume I"* (pp. 385-439). USA: Dr. Edgar Mitchell Foundation for Research into Extraterrestrial and Extraordinary Experiences.
- [2558] Haisell 1978.
- [2559] Fowler 2020.
- [2560] Hernandez, Klimo, & Schild 2018.
- [2561] Fowler 2020.
- [2562] Creighton, G. (November 1966). Even More Amazing... Part III. Flying Saucer Review 12(6), 14-16.
- [2563] Mack 1999.
- [2564] Jacobs 1993.
- [2565] Menger, H. (Sept.-Oct. 1958). The Song from Saturn. Flying Saucer Review 4(5), pp. 16-17.
- [2566] Angelucci 1955.
- [2567] Strieber & Strieber 2016.
- [2568] Hansen & Schild 2016.
- [2569] Steiger 1978.
- [2570] Fowler 2020.
- [2571] Strieber & Strieber 2016.
- [2572] Bane 2016.
- [2573] Young 2018.
- [2574] Bullard 1987 Vol. 1.
- [2575] Haisell 1978.
- [2576] Klimo 2018.

- [2577] Fowler 2020.
- [2578] Randles 1997.
- [2579] Connelly, D. (April 2000). Australian abduction case features many significant pieces of evidence. *MUFON UFO Journal 384*, pp. 3-9.
- [2580] Ibid.
- [2581] Mack 1999.
- [2582] Hernandez, Klimo, & Schild 2018.
- [2583] Mack 1999.
- [2584] Story 2001.
- [2585] Fowler 2020.
- [2586] Bullard 1987 Vol. 2.
- [2587] Fowler 1990.
- [2588] UFOINFO. (n.d.). Case 206. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1993 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1993.pdf
- [2589] Creighton, G. (Autumn 1995). Three Boys Abducted in Argentina (1994). *Flying Saucer Review* 40(3), pp. 18-19.
- [2590] Evans, H. (1983). The Evidence for UFOs. Wellingborough, UK: Aquarian.
- [2591] Turner 1994.
- [2592] Bullard 1987 Vol. 2.
- [2593] Raynes, B. (September 17, 2005). An Archetype Experience? Retrieved August 27, 2021 from http://ufoexperiences.blogspot.com/2005/09/archetype-experience.html
- [2594] Hesemann, M. (2000). The Fatima Secret. W. Strieber (Ed.). New York, NY: Dell Publishing.
- [2595] Story 2001.
- [2596] Halpin, D. (December 9, 2016). The Miracle of the Sun, 1917: Ancient Angels at Fatima? The Possible Common Origins of Star Gods. Retrieved September 29, 2021 from https://www.ancient-origins.net/opinion-guest-authors/miracle-sun-1917-ancient-angels-fatima-possible-common-origins-star-gods-021106
- [2597] Hesemann, M. (1990). UFOs: Die Kontakte. München, DE.
- [2598] Solomon, P. (n.d.). Case 149. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1977 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1977.pdf
- [2599] Rosales, A. (n.d.). Case 41. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 2001 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-2001.pdf
- [2600] Harvey-Wilson 2000.
- [2601] Hernandez, Klimo, & Schild 2018.
- [2602] Rizzi, W. (1980, September). Close encounter in the Dolomites. *Flying Saucer Review 26(3)*, pp. 22-27.
- [2603] Granchi, I. (April 1987). Cloning By Aliens?: To What Purpose? *Flying Saucer Review 32*(3), pp. 18-21.
- [2604] Dennett, P. (2020). Onboard UFO Encounters. Los Angeles, CA: Blue Giant Books.
- [2605] Klimo 2018.
- [2606] Dennett 2020.

- [2607] Nordine, M. (June 15, 2017). Kurt Russell Reveals He Was the Pilot Who Reported the Phoenix Lights UFO Sighting Watch. Retrieved December 7, 2018 from https://www.indiewire.com/2017/06/kurt-russell-phoenix-lights-ufo-1201842807/
- [2608] Bishop, G. (2016). It Defies Language! Los Angeles, CA: Excluded Middle Press.
- [2609] Hernandez, Klimo, & Schild 2018.
- [2610] Mack 1999.
- [2611] Harvey-Wilson 2000.
- [2612] Bullard 1987 Vol. 2.
- [2613] Mack 1994.
- [2614] Mack 1999.
- [2615] Jasek, M. (2004). Abduction of the North Canol Road. UFO BC. Retrieved May 15, 2014 from www.ufobc.ca/yukon/n-canol-abd/
- [2616] Ibid.
- [2617] Boucher, S. (2020). *Beyond the Extraterrestrial Firewall*. Winnipeg, MB: Itsallconnected Publishing.
- [2618] Ibid.
- [2619] Dennett 2020.
- [2620] Ibid.
- [2621] Harvey-Wilson 2000.
- [2622] Hopkins 1987.
- [2623] Raynes 2019.
- [2624] Strieber & Kripal 2016.
- [2625] Marsh, M.N. (2010). *Out-of-Body and Near-Death Experiences*. Oxford, UK: Oxford University Press.
- [2626] Bliatout, B.T. (1982). *Hmong Sudden Unexpected Nocturnal Death Syndrome*. Portland, ORG: Sparkle Publishing Enterprises.
- [2627] Marsh 2010.
- [2628] Ibid.
- [2629] Ring 1992.
- [2630] Clelland 2018.
- [2631] Bache, C.M. (2019). LSD and the Mind of the Universe. Rochester, VT: Park Street Press.
- [2632] Atwater 2000.
- [2633] J., Enocia. (n.d.). 3053 Enocia J NDE 6291. Retrieved August 31, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1enocia_j_nde.html
- [2634] MacGregor, T. & MacGregor, R. (2011). Synchronicity and the Other Side. Avon, MA: Adams Media.
- [2635] Ibid.
- [2636] MacGregor, T. & MacGregor, R. (2014). Aliens in the Backyard. Hertford, NC: Crossroad Press.
- [2637] Ibid.
- [2638] Ibid.

- [2639] Ibid.
- [2640] M., Stacy. (n.d.). NDE1991 Stacy M NDE 4142. Retrieved September 13, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1stacy_m_nde.html
- [2641] Bishop, G. (November 27, 2017). Jeff Ritzmann Calling Occupants. Retrieved September 13, 2021 from http://radiomisterioso.com/2017/11/27/jeff-ritzmann-calling-occupants/
- [2642] Raynes 2019.
- [2643] Vallee, J. (1990). Confrontations: A Scientist's Search for Alien Contact. New York, NY: Ballantine Books.
- [2644] Hernandez, Klimo, & Schild 2018.
- [2645] Oldham 2013.
- [2646] Randles 1988.
- [2647] Bullard 1987 Vol. 1.
- [2648] Turner, K. (1992). Into the Fringe. New York, NY: Berkley Books.
- [2649] Bullard 1987 Vol. 1.
- [2650] Vallee & Aubeck 2009.
- [2651] Fowler 2020.
- [2652] Keel 1970.
- [2653] Bishop 2017.
- [2654] Randles 1987.
- [2655] Klimo 2018.
- [2656] Harvey-Wilson 2000.
- [2657] Bullard 1987 Vol. 1.
- [2658] Schwarz, B.E. (August 1977). Talks with Betty Hill: 1 Aftermath of Encounter. *Flying Saucer Review 23*(2), pp. 16-19.
- [2659] Ibid.
- [2660] Hernandez, Klimo, & Schild 2018.
- [2661] Bullard 1987 Vol. 1.
- [2662] Oldham 2013.
- [2663] Clelland, M. (2019). *Hidden Experience*. US: Beneath the Stars Press.
- [2664] Fowler 2020.
- [2665] Harvey-Wilson 2000.
- [2666] Ring 1992.
- [2667] Ring, K. & Valarino, E.E. (2006). Lessons from the Light. Needham, MA: Moment Point Press.
- [2668] Moravec, M.L. (August 1980). Psiufological Phenomena: UFOs and the Paranormal. *MUFON UFO Journal 150*, pp. 13-15.
- [2669] Wilson 1998.
- [2670] Burkes & Dennett 2018.
- [2671] Diamond 2016.
- [2672] Marden, K. (December 2012). Abduction study complete. MUFON UFO Journal 536, pp. 1, 4-6.

- [2673] Hernandez, Klimo, & Schild 2018.
- [2674] Marden 2012.
- [2675] Dolan 2014.
- [2676] Bunge, M. (Fall 1984). What is Pseudoscience? The Skeptical Inquirer 9(1), pp. 36-46.
- [2677] Cooper, D.E. (1976). ESP and the Materialist Theory of Mind. In S.C. Thakur (Ed.), *Philosophy and Psychical Research* (pp. 59-80). London, UK: George Allen & Unwin Ltd.
- [2678] Lang, C.R. (October 2002). Psychic/spiritual awakenings. MUFON UFO Journal 414, pp. 8-10.
- [2679] Fowler, R. (2004). SynchroFile: Amazing Personal Encoounters with Synchronicity and Other Strange Phenomena. New York, NY: iUniverse, Inc.
- [2680] Hernandez, Klimo, & Schild 2018.
- [2681] Strieber 1995.
- [2682] Roberts 2004.
- [2683] Peake 2008.
- [2684] Ogden 2001.
- [2685] Fowler 2020.
- [2686] Ibid.
- [2687] Wilson 1998.
- [2688] Gorightly & Bishop 2018.
- [2689] Lang 2002.
- [2690] Hernandez, R. (2018). Preface. In R. Hernandez, J. Klimo, & R. Schild (Eds.), *Beyond UFOs: The Science of Consciousness and Contact with Non Human Intelligence "Volume I"* (pp. xx). USA: Dr. Edgar Mitchell Foundation for Research into Extraterrestrial and Extraordinary Experiences.
- [2691] Randles 1988.
- [2692] Ring 1992.
- [2693] Hernandez, Klimo, & Schild 2018.
- [2694] Sprinkle 1999.
- [2695] Lang 2002.
- [2696] Hernandez, Klimo, & Schild 2018.
- [2697] Ibid.
- [2698] Strieber, W. (1998) Confirmation: The Hard Evidence of Aliens Among Us. New York, NY: St. Martin's Press.
- [2699] Mack 1999.
- [2700] Clelland 2015.
- [2701] Steiger, B. (1988). The UFO Abductors. New York, NY: The Berkley Publishing Group.
- [2702] Wilson 1998.
- [2703] Ibid.
- [2704] Clelland 2015.
- [2705] Hernandez, Klimo, & Schild 2018.
- [2706] Klimo 2018.

- [2707] Sprinkle 1999.
- [2708] Mack 1999.
- [2709] Ibid.
- [2710] Carter 2018.
- [2711] Vallee 1993.
- [2712] Gamba 2014.
- [2713] Welsh, T. (n.d.). Book Reviews: The Power of NOW. Retrieved September 17, 2021 from https://www.theseekerbooks.com/articles/PowerNow.html
- [2714] Swords, M. (May 1987). Communion: A Reader's Guide. MUFON UFO Journal 229, pp. 3-6.
- [2715] Mack 1999.
- [2716] White, G. (September 13, 2013). The Other Middle Pillar: An Org Chart of Practical Magic. Retrieved September 15, 2021 from https://runesoup.com/2013/09/the-other-middle-pillar-an-org-chart-of-practical-magic/
- [2717] Sprinkle 1999.
- [2718] Vallee, J. (2014). The Invisible College: What a Group of Scientists Has Discovered About UFO Influence on the Human Race. San Antonio, TX: Anomalist Books. (Original work published 1975)
- [2719] Ring 1992.
- [2720] Strieber & Kripal 2016.
- [2721] Ibid.
- [2722] Bullard 1987 Vol. 1.
- [2723] Mack 1999.
- [2724] Ibid.
- [2725] Clelland 2015.
- [2726] Harvey-Wilson 2000.
- [2727] Hernandez, R. (July 12, 2021). Facebook comment. Retrieved September 16, 2021 from https://www.facebook.com/groups/FREE.Experiencers/posts/3009567672666133
- [2728] Wildeman, C., Emanuel, N., Leventhal, J.M., et al. (August 2014). The Prevalence of Confirmed Maltreatment Among US Children, 2004 to 2011. *JAMA Pediatrics 168*(8), pp. 706-713.
- [2729] Mack 1994.
- [2730] Strieber & Strieber 2016.
- [2731] Mack 1999.
- [2732] Ibid.
- [2733] Ibid.
- [2734] Harvey-Wilson 2000.
- [2735] Schwarz, B.E. (November 1975). New Berlin UFO Landing and Repair by Crew. *Flying Saucer Review 21*(3 & 4), pp. 22-28.
- [2736] Oldham 2013.
- [2737] Ibid.
- [2738] Hancock 2007.

- [2739] Sprinkle 1999.
- [2740] Turner, K. (1994). Masquerade of Angels. Roland, AR: Kelt Works.
- [2741] Harvey-Wilson 2000.
- [2742] Eliade 1964.
- [2743] Randles 1994.
- [2744] Randles 1987.
- [2745] Guiley 2007.
- [2746] Harvey-Wilson 2000.
- [2747] Moravec August 1980.
- [2748] Dennett, P. (October 1996). UFO Healings. MUFON UFO Journal 342, pp. 3-9.
- [2749] Klimo 2018.
- [2750] Harvey-Wilson 2000.
- [2751] Marden 2012.
- [2752] Hernandez, Klimo, & Schild 2018.
- [2753] Klimo 2018.
- [2754] Ibid.
- [2755] Oldham 2013.
- [2756] Ibid.
- [2757] Fowler 2020.
- [2758] Creighton, G. (April 1984). A New Brazilian "A.V.B." Flying Saucer Review 29(4), pp. 9-11.
- [2759] Klimo 2018.
- [2760] Ibid.
- [2761] Fowler 2020.
- [2762] Mack 1999.
- [2763] Turner 1994.
- [2764] Ibid.
- [2765] Miles, J. (2000). Weird Georgia: Close Encounters, Strange Creatures, and Unexplained Phenomena. Nashville, TN: Cumberland House Publishing.
- [2766] Granchi, I. (October 1983). An Encounter with "Rat-Faces" in Brazil. *Flying Saucer Review* 29(1), pp. 6-13.
- [2767] Harvey-Wilson 2000.
- [2768] Turner 1994.
- [2769] Hancock 2007.
- [2770] Eliade 1964.
- [2771] Strieber & Strieber 2016.
- [2772] Hernandez, Klimo, & Schild 2018.
- [2773] Harvey-Wilson 2000.
- [2774] Bullard 1987 Vol. 1.

- [2775] Ring 1992.
- [2776] Heapes 2014.
- [2777] Jacobs 1993.
- [2778] Mack 1994.
- [2779] Mack 1999
- [2780] Mack 1994.
- [2781] Mack 1999.
- [2782] Gorightly & Bishop 2018.
- [2783] Angelucci 1955.
- [2784] Redfern 2010.
- [2785] Randles 1994.
- [2786] Raynes 2019.
- [2787] Jacobs 1999.
- [2788] Oldham 2013.
- [2789] Klimo 2018.
- [2790] Cutchin & Renner 2020.
- [2791] Schwarz, B.E. (July 1974). Berserk: A UFO-Creature Encounter. *Flying Saucer Review 20*(1), pp. 3-11.
- [2792] Cutchin & Renner 2020.
- [2793] Jacobs 1999.
- [2794] Bullard 1987 Vol. 1.
- [2795] Ibid.
- [2796] Mack 1994.
- [2797] Mack 1999.
- [2798] disinformation 2010.
- [2799] McKenna, T. (1993). Taxonomy of Illusion. Retrieved September 21, 2021 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/Taxonomy+of+Illusion
- [2800] Deus Ex McKenna 2015.
- [2801] Young 2018.
- [2802] Bean 1974.
- [2803] Keel 1976.
- [2804] Hernandez, Klimo, & Schild 2018.
- [2805] Wilson, K. (February 1998). The role of animals in abduction cases. *MUFON UFO Journal* , pp. 8-12.
- [2806] Ring 1992.
- [2807] Jacobs 1999.
- [2808] Harvey-Wilson 2000.
- [2809] Stacy, D. (September 1993). 24th Annual MUFON Symposium. MUFON UFO Journal 305, pp. 3-10.

- [2810] Stacy, D. (August 1996). MUFON's 27th Annual Symposium. MUFON UFO Journal 340, pp. 3-13.
- [2811] Randles 1994.
- [2812] Strieber 1998.
- [2813] Jacobs 1999.
- [2814] Hernandez, Klimo, & Schild 2018.
- [2815] Ring 1992.
- [2816] Hick, J. (1966). Evil and the God of Love. Basingstoke, UK: The Macmillan Press Ltd.
- [2817] Mack 1999.
- [2818] Redfern 2010.
- [2819] Mack 1994.
- [2820] White, J. (Summer 1992). Aliens Among Us A UFO Conspiracy Hypothesis in a Religious Mode. *Flying Saucer Review 37* (2), pp. 2-9.
- [2821] Higbee, D. (September 1995). Abductee Brainwashing? MUFON UFO Journal 329, pp. 10-12.
- [2822] Vallee 1990.
- [2823] Stivelman, A. (Director). (2019). Witness of Another World [Film]. Humano Films S.A.
- [2824] Ibid.
- [2825] Vallee 1990.
- [2826] Stivelman 2019.
- [2827] Strieber & Kripal 2016.
- [2828] Turner 1994.
- [2829] Jacobs 1999.
- [2830] No author. En norsk Jente Indtagelse i Bjerg 1720. (1858, October 3). Illustreret Nyhedsblad, pp. 4-6. Retrieved from http://nb.no. Translated account by Old Jonny Brænne, retrieved from Magonia Exchange list (groups.yahoo.com/group/magonia_exchange), cour- tesy of Albert Rosales.
- [2831] Roth 1997.
- [2832] Oldham 2013.
- [2833] New Thinking Allowed with Jeffrey Mishlove. (May 13, 2021). The Scole Experiment with Robin Foy. Retrieved September 29, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=kfCaLjQK46Y
- [2834] Anfalov, A. (n.d.). Case 225. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1997 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1997.pdf
- [2835] Strieber 2011 (Solving the Communion Enigma).
- [2836] Lecouteux 2011.
- [2837] Frodsham, J.D. (Summer 1993). "I *Can't* Eat!": The Alien Theatre of the Absurd. *Flying Saucer Review 38*(2), pp. 8-15.
- [2838] Randles 1994.
- [2839] Bühler, Pereira, & Pires 1985.
- [2840] Raynes 2018.
- [2841] Clarke 2015.

- [2842] Raynes 2019.
- [2843] Chibanda, M. (February 1995). Car-Shaped UFO. UFO AfriNews 11, p. 30.
- [2844] Hind, C. (1997). UFOs Over Africa. Madison, WI: Horus House Press, Inc.
- [2845] Hind, C.R. (April 1977). Orange UFO Over Rhodesia. MUFON UFO Journal 113, p. 18.
- [2846] Webb, W.N. (November 1984). Massachusetts MUFON Forum. *MUFON UFO Journal 199*, pp. 3-4.
- [2847] Spencer, J. & Evans, H. (Eds.). (1989). *Phenomenon: Forty Years of Flying Saucers*. New York, NY: Avon Books.
- [2848] Saethre, E. (December 2007). Close Encounters: UFO Beliefs in a Remote Australian Aboriginal Community. *The Journal of the Royal Anthropological Institute 13*(4), pp. 901-915.
- [2849] Mack 1999.
- [2850] Lewis 1994.
- [2851] Shushan 2009.
- [2852] Werner, E.T.C. (1922). *Myths and Legends of China*. New York, NY: George G. Harrap & Co. Ltd.
- [2853] Lewis 1994.
- [2854] Johnson, F. (1980). The Janos People. Suffolk, UK: Neville Spearman Limited.
- [2855] Ibid.
- [2856] Ibid.
- [2857] Ibid.
- [2858] Wilson 1993.
- [2859] Schnabel 1994.
- [2860] Turner 1994.
- [2861] Harvey-Wilson 2000.
- [2862] Hancock 2007.
- [2863] Strieber & Kripal 2016.
- [2864] Hancock 2007.
- [2865] Keel, J. A. (March/April 1968). The Little Man of Gaffney. Flying Saucer Review 14(2), pp. 17-19.
- [2866] Corrales, S. (June 10, 2012). A Touch of Darkness: Cemeteries and UFOs. Retrieved September 30, 2021 from http://inexplicata.blogspot.com/2012/06/touch-of-darkness-cemeteries-andufos.html
- [2867] NUFORC. (n.d.). Case 95. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 2002 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-2002.pdf
- [2868] Keel 2015.
- [2869] Keel 1976.
- [2870] Raynes 1982.
- [2871] Nyman, J. (March 1989). The Familiar Entity and Dual Reference in the Latent Encounter. *MUFON UFO Journal 251*, pp. 10-12.
- [2872] Basterfield, K. (n.d.). Case 8. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1951 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1951.pdf

- [2873] Raynes 1982.
- [2874] Schwarz, B.E. (July/August 1972). "Beauty of the Night." Flying Saucer Review 18(4), p. 5.
- [2875] Steiger, B. (1966). Strangers from the Skies. New York, NY: Award.
- [2876] Dennett 2002.
- [2877] Ufoevidence (n.d.). Case 188. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1967 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1967.pdf
- [2878] Corrales 2012.
- [2879] T.S.F.H. (June 1989). Case 3. UFO AfriNews 2, pp. 19-20.
- [2880] Vallee & Aubeck 2009.
- [2881] Strieber & Strieber 2016.
- [2882] Keister 2004.
- [2883] Bullard 1987 Vol. 1.
- [2884] Oliver, N. (January/February 1978). Report—Extra! Ghost or Spaceman '73? *BUFORA Journal* 6(5), p. 9-20.
- [2885] Ibid.
- [2886] Bullard 1987 Vol. 1.
- [2887] Creighton, G. (July/August 1965). Postscript to the Most Amazing case of All. *Flying Saucer Review 11*(4), pp. 24-25.
- [2888] Bowen, C. (Ed.). (1969). The Humanoids: A Survey of Worldwide Reports of Landings of Unconventional Aerial Objects and Their Alleged Occupants. Chicago, IL: Henry Regnery Company.
- [2889] Strieber, W. (1987). Communion. New York, NY: Avon Books.
- [2890] Turner 1992.
- [2891] Worley, D. (Autumn 1998). The Farmer and the Reverend. *Flying Saucer Review 43*(3), pp. 12-14.
- [2892] Webb, W.N. (June 1989). The Pelley Time-Lapse UFO Encounter. *MUFON UFO Journal 254*, pp. 11-13.
- [2893] Kottmeyer, M. (November 1994). Why are the Grays Gray? *MUFON UFO Journal 319*, pp. 6-10.
- [2894] Ibid.
- [2895] Cutchin 2015.
- [2896] Kottmeyer 1994.
- [2897] Strieber & Strieber 2016.
- [2898] Lysaght 1997.
- [2899] Andrus, W.H. (August 2001). Woman claims entities saved her from death. *MUFON UFO Journal 400*, pp. 5-7.
- [2900] Whiting, F. (March 1980). The Abduction of Harry Joe Turner. *MUFON UFO Journal 145*, pp. 3-7.
- [2901] Somé 1994.
- [2902] Lewis 1994.
- [2903] Cutchin 2016.

- [2904] Bullard 1987 Vol. 1.
- [2905] Walton 1997.
- [2906] Worley, D. (Summer 1997). Some Denizens of the "Black Nether-World" and Their Abductee Victims. *Flying Saucer Review 42*(2), pp. 7-11.
- [2907] Kieckhefer 1997.
- [2908] Bullard 1987 Vol. 1.
- [2909] Strieber 1995.
- [2910] Hancock 2007.
- [2911] Strieber 2011 (Solving the Communion Enigma).
- [2912] Strieber 1995.
- [2913] Bane 2016.
- [2914] Barasch 2005.
- [2915] Herzog 1983.
- [2916] Mack 1994.
- [2917] Hopkins 1987.
- [2918] Collins, C. (2017). What's Wrong With This Picture? In R. Graham (Ed.), *UFOs: Reframing the Debate* (pp. 91-108). Hove, UK: White Crow Books.
- [2919] Mack 1999.
- [2920] Hansen & Schild 2016.
- [2921] Klimo 2018.
- [2922] Keister 2004.
- [2923] Halperin 2020.
- [2924] Johnstad, P.G. (September 15, 2020). Psychedelic Telepathy: An Interview Study. *Journal of Scientific Exploration 34*(3), pp. 493-512.
- [2925] Fowler 2020.
- [2926] Strieber 2020.
- [2927] Collier, W. (December 12, 2016). Gray's Anatomy. Retrieved October 4, 2021 from https://liminalroom.com/2016/12/12/greys-anatomy/
- [2928] Jackson, E. (1996). Food and Transformation: Imagery and Symbolism of Eating. Toronto, ON: Inner City Books.
- [2929] Armit, I. (2012). Headhunting and the Body in Iron Age Europe. New York, NY: Cambridge.
- [2930] Kobrinsky, V. (July 1979). Essay Review: The Mouths of Earth: The Dialectical Allegories of the Kwakiutl Indians. *Dialectical Anthropology* 4(2), pp. 163-177.
- [2931] American Museum of Natural History. (2021). Kwakwaka wakw. Retrieved January 14, 2022 from https://www.amnh.org/exhibitions/permanent/northwest-coast/kwakwakawakw
- [2932] Sasser, E.S. (1995). *The World of Spirits and Ancestors in the Art of Western Sub-Saharan Africa*. Lubbock, TX: Texas Tech University Press.
- [2933] Roeis, R. (July 1997). Comments from Roland Roeis of Namibia. UFO AfriNews 16, pp. 26-29.
- [2934]Cosgrove, A. (n.d.). Nkiteki (Ancestor Figure). Retrieved October 4, 2021 from https://www.imodara.com/discover/dr-congo-bembe-nkiteki-ancestor-figure-warrior/
- [2935] Bergen & Delarose 2019.

- [2936] Turner 1994.
- [2937] Strieber 2020.
- [2938] Hall 1988.
- [2939] Guiley 2007.
- [2940] Zero, F. (2014). Interviews: Nick Redfern. In F. Zero (Ed.), *Contact: Them or Us* (Kindle Edition). US: A Psycube Project.
- [2941] Jacobs 1999.
- [2942] Wilson 1993.
- [2943] Oldham 2013.
- [2944] Ibid.
- [2945] Strieber 2020.
- [2946] Hockney, M. (2013). World, Underworld, Overworld, Dreamworld. UK: Hyperreality Books.
- [2947] Teiser, S.F. (1988). *The Ghost Festival in Medieval China*. Princeton, NJ: Princeton University Press.
- [2948] Ancuta 2012.
- [2949] Wood, E. & Subrahmanyam, S.V. (Trans.). (1911). *The Garuda Purana*. Allahabad, IND: Pāṇiṇi Office.
- [2950] Strieber 2020.
- [2951] Kowalewski 2015.
- [2952] Fisher, J. (2001). The Siren Call of Hungry Ghosts. New York, NY: Paraview Press.
- [2953] Ibid.
- [2954] No author. (Summer 2004). Obituary: Raymond G. Bayless. *Journal of Near-Death Studies* 22(4), p. 287.
- [2955] von Hausswolff, C.M. & Harding, M.S.C. (Winter 2000-2001). Friedrich Jürgenson and the voices of the dead. Retrieved August 18, 2021 from https://www.cabinetmagazine.org/issues/1/vonhausswolff.php
- [2956] Keel 2015.
- [2957] Steiger 1978.
- [2958] Oldham 2013.
- [2959] Oldham 2017.
- [2960] Guiley 2007.
- [2961] Martin, J. & Birnes, W.J. (2017). *Edison vs. Tesla: The Battle Over Their Last Invention*. New York, NY: Skyhorse Publishing.
- [2962] Anderson, L.I. (April 22, 1961). Extra-Terrestrial Radio Transmissions. Nature 190, p. 374.
- [2963] No author. (n.d.). Raudive Voices. Retrieved October 6, 2021 from https://www.encyclopedia.com/science/encyclopedias-almanacs-transcripts-and-maps/raudive-voices
- [2964] Guiley 2007.
- [2965] Rogo, D.S. & Bayless, R. (1979). Phone Calls from the Dead. Hoboken, NJ: Prentice-Hall.
- [2966] Keel 1976.
- [2967] Keel 1976.

[2968] Vaughan, A. (June 1999). Alien Dawn: Review & Interview. MUFON UFO Journal 374, pp. 18-19.

[2969] Strieber & Strieber 2016.

[2970] Clark, J. (Nov./Dec. 1969). Experiences & Observations. Flying Saucer Review 15(6), pp. 19-21.

[2971] Guiley 2007.

[2972] Ogden 2001.

[2973] Guiley 2007.

[2974] Campbell, B.F. (1980). Ancient Wisdom Revived: A History of the Theosophical Movement. Berkeley, CA: University of California Press.

[2975] Dolan 2014.

[2976] Gorightly & Bishop 2018.

[2977] Ibid.

[2978] Bryant, L.W. (January 1983). Enid Brady's E-T Contact Legacy. MUFON UFO Journal 179, pp. 12-13.

[2979] Sprinkle 1999.

[2980] Ibid.

[2981] Clelland 2018.

[2982] Gulyas, A. (August 6, 2021). The Saucer Life: The Nine. Retrieved October 11, 2021 from https://saucerlife.com/2021/08/06/the-nine/

[2983] Ibid.

[2984] Jenkins, P. (n.d.). The Only Planet of Choice and the Council of Nine. Retrieved October 11, 2021 from http://www.palden.co.uk/nine.html

[2985] Gorightly & Bishop 2018.

[2986] Dolan 2014.

[2987] Hernandez, Klimo, & Schild 2018.

[2988] Plevin, N. (July 27, 1992). Soldier Gives as Reason He Disappeared: Orders From Ouija Board. Retrieved January 17, 2022 from https://apnews.com/article/ b9e0d739f39711021689494e4933c637

[2989] Dennett, P. (2018). *Not from Here: Selected UFO Articles – Volume Three*. Los Angeles, CA: Blue Giant Books.

[2990] Ibid.

[2991] Rogan, T. (July 31, 2020). Did Steven Greer fake a UFO with flares? Retrieved October 11, 2021 from https://www.washingtonexaminer.com/opinion/did-steven-greer-fake-a-ufo-withflares

[2992] M., Langton. (January 1992). Do Witches Cause Lights in the Sky? UFO AfriNews 5, pp. 3-5.

[2993] Kottmeyer, M. (November 2005). Engine Stoppers. Retrieved October 11, 2021 from https://magoniamagazine.blogspot.com/2014/01/engine-stoppers.html

[2994] Ibid.

[2995] Lecouteux 2019.

[2996] Guiley, R.E. (2014). *The Big Book of West Virginia Ghost Stories*. Mechanicsburg, PA: Stackpole Books.

- [2997] White, T. & Lavorgne, T. (2015). *Haunted Roads of Western Pennsylvania*. Charleston, SC: Haunted America.
- [2998] Underwood, P. (1986). A Ghost Hunter's Handbook. Independently Published.
- [2999] Bressi, M. (2018). Pennsylvania Oddities. Mechanicsburg, PA: Sunbury Press.
- [3000] Arnold, N. (2013). Kent Urban Legends. Stroud, UK: The History Press.
- [3001] Millard, D. (February 11, 2019). He Was Supposed to Be the Next Stephen King. Then the Aliens Came. Retrieved October 12, 2021 from https://gen.medium.com/he-was-supposed-to-be-the-next-stephen-king-then-the-aliens-came-afd7195e0b49
- [3002] Ibid.
- [3003] Strieber 1997.
- [3004] Ibid.
- [3005] Strieber 2020.
- [3006] Eliade 1964.
- [3007] Strieber 1997.
- [3008] Strieber 2020.
- [3009] Ibid.
- [3010] Strieber 2011 (Solving the Communion Enigma).
- [3011] Eliade 1964.
- [3012] Strieber 1997.
- [3013] Strieber, W. (July 16, 2021). David Metcalfe on UFOs, UAPs, ET Contact, Black Magic and the Secrets of the Ages. Retrieved September 10, 2021 from https://www.unknowncountry.com/dreamland/david-metcalfe-the-saucers-will-keep-their-secrets-or-will-they/
- [3014] Ibid.
- [3015] Strieber & Strieber 2017.
- [3016] Ibid.
- [3017] Ibid.
- [3018] Ibid.
- [3019] Strieber 1987.
- [3020] Strieber, W. (1988). Transformation. New York, NY: Beech Tree Books.
- [3021] Strieber & Kripal 2016.
- [3022] Halperin 2020.
- [3023] Strieber 1987.
- [3024] Ibid.
- [3025] Woodyard 2017.
- [3026] Jakobsson 2011.
- [3027] Herzog 1983.
- [3028] Ibid.
- [3029] Dasen, V. (2010). Wax and Plaster Memories: Children in Elite and Non-Elite Strategies. In V. Dasen & T. Späth (Eds.), *Children, Memory, and Family Identity in Roman Culture* (pp. 109-145). Oxford, UK: Oxford University Press.

```
[3030] Harold 2021.
```

[3031] Strieber 1987.

[3032] Ibid.

[3033] Ibid.

[3034] Harold 2021.

[3035] Eliade 1964.

[3036] Foster, M.D. (2015). The Book of Yokai. Oakland, CA: University of California Press.

[3037] Strieber 1987.

[3038] Ibid.

[3039] Ibid.

[3040] Strieber & Kripal 2016.

[3041] Strieber 1987.

[3042] Strieber 1987.

[3043] Ibid.

[3044] Washington (UPI). (November 10, 1988). Whitley Strieber: UFO cultist or serious author? *The Daily Spectrum (Saint George, Utah)*, p. 9.

[3045] Strieber & Strieber 2016.

[3046] Strieber & Kripal 2016.

[3047] Strieber 1988.

[3048] Ibid.

[3049] Ibid.

[3050] Ibid.

[3051] Ibid.

[3052] Ibid.

[3053] Ibid.

[3054] Ibid.

[3055] Ibid.

[3056] Atwater 2000.

[3057] Strieber 1988.

[3058] Strieber 2020.

[3059] Strieber 1988.

[3060] Ibid.

[3061] Ibid.

[3062] Harold 2021.

[3063] Strieber 1998.

[3064] Ibid.

[3065] Harold 2021.

[3066] Ibid.

```
[3067] Ibid.
[3068] Ibid.
[3069] Strieber 1995.
[3070] Ibid.
[3071] Ibid.
[3072] Ibid.
[3073] Ibid.
[3074] Ibid.
[3075] Ibid.
[3076] Strieber & Kripal 2016.
[3077] Ibid.
[3078] Strieber 1995.
[3079] Strieber & Kripal 2016.
[3080] Strieber 1995.
[3081] Ibid.
[3082] Harold 2021.
[3083] Strieber 2011 (Solving the Communion Enigma).
[3084] Ibid.
[3085] Ibid.
[3086] Strieber 1998.
[3087] Ibid.
[3088] Ibid.
[3089] Ibid.
[3090] Ibid.
[3091] Strieber 2011 (The Kev).
[3092] Strieber 2011 (Solving the Communion Enigma).
[3093] Sender, P.D. (Summer 2011). Mahatmas versus Ascended Masters. Retrieved October 26, 2021
      from https://www.theosophical.org/publications/quest-magazine/2382-mahatmas-versus-
      ascended-masters
[3094] Strieber 2011 (The Key).
[3095] Ibid
[3096] Ibid.
[3097] Ibid.
[3098] Ibid.
[3099] Ibid.
```

[3100] Ibid. [3101] Ibid.

- [3102] Strieber, W. (May 15, 2011). The Old Edition of the Key was CENSORED, the New One is Not. Retrieved October 22, 2021 from https://web.archive.org/web/20110518113325/http://www.unknowncountry.com/journal/old-edition-key-was-censored-new-one-not
- [3103] Strieber 2011 (Solving the Communion Enigma).
- [3104] Strieber, A. & Strieber, W. (2014). Miraculous Journey. Hertford, NC: Crossroad Press.
- [3105] Ibid.
- [3106] Strieber & Kripal 2016.
- [3107] Strieber & Strieber 2014.
- [3108] Ibid.
- [3109] Strieber & Strieber 2017.
- [3110] Ibid.
- [3111] Ibid.
- [3112] Strieber & Strieber 2014.
- [3113] Ibid.
- [3114] Ibid.
- [3115] Strieber & Strieber 2017.
- [3116] Strieber 2020.
- [3117] Strieber & Strieber 2017.
- [3118] Ibid.
- [3119] Ibid.
- [3120] Ibid.
- [3121] Ibid.
- [3122] Ibid.
- [3123] Ibid.
- [3124] Ibid.
- [3125] Ibid.
- [3126] Eliade 1964.
- [3127] Strieber & Strieber 2017.
- [3128] Ibid.
- [3129] Ibid.
- [3130] Ibid.
- [3131] Ibid.
- [3132] Ibid.
- [3133] Strieber, W. (March 12, 2018). The Afterlife Revolution. Retrieved October 25, 2021 from https://www.goodreads.com/author_blog_posts/16517314-the-afterlife-revolution
- [3134] Harold 2021.
- [3135] Strieber 2020.
- [3136] Ibid.
- [3137] Ibid.

- [3138] Ibid.
- [3139] Ibid.
- [3140] Ibid.
- [3141] Ibid.
- [3142] Harold 2021.
- [3143] Strieber 2020.
- [3144] Eliade 1964.
- [3145] Strieber 2020.
- [3146] Ibid.
- [3147] Ibid.
- [3148] Strieber 2020.
- [3149] Barušs, I. (1996). *Authentic Knowing: The Convergence of Science and Spiritual Aspiration*. West Lafayette, IN: Purdue University Press.
- [3150] Estep, S. (Spring 1994). From My Viewpoint. *American Association Electronic Voice Phenomena*, pp. 1-4.
- [3151] Bowen, C. (July/August 1969). UFOs and Psychic Phenomena. Flying Saucer Review 15(4), pp. 22-24.
- [3152] Harold 2021.
- [3153] Millard 2019.
- [3154] Jung 1991.
- [3155] Ibid.
- [3156] Ibid.
- [3157] Kaplan, R. (1999). *The Nothing That Is: A Natural History of Zero*. New York, NY: Oxford University Press.
- [3158] Clark 1998.
- [3159] Jung 1991.
- [3160] Steadham, R.M. & Ray, C.A. (2005). Identifying the Cause of WSR-88D Ghost Echoes. Norman, OK: Radar Operations Center.
- [3161] Ibid.
- [3162] Ibid.
- [3163] Birney & Doak 2011.
- [3164] Keister 2004.
- [3165] Taylor 2000.
- [3166] Keister 2004.
- [3167] Jung 1991.
- [3168] Carlwood 2021.
- [3169] Little 1990.
- [3170] Devereux 2007.
- [3171] Holiday 1973.

- [3172] Jung 1991.
- [3173] Keister 2004.
- [3174] Vallee & Aubeck 2009.
- [3175] Vallee 1990.
- [3176] Story 2001.
- [3177] Keister 2004.
- [3178] Schwarz, B.E. (January/February 1973). Woodstock UFO Festival, 1966 1. *Flying Saucer Review 19*(1), pp. 3-6.
- [3179] Keister 2004.
- [3180] Powell, K. (July 3, 2019). Photo Gallery of Cemetery Symbols and Icons. Retrieved October 28, 2021 from https://www.thoughtco.com/photo-gallery-of-cemetery-symbolism-4123061
- [3181] Nagaitis & Mantle 1994.
- [3182] Keister 2004.
- [3183] Dihle, B. (February 23, 2018). From Alaska to Vegas: A strange and terrible story of dreams, desert and UFOs. Retrieved October 28, 2021 from https://web.archive.org/web/20180223192911/http://juneauempire.com/outdoors/2018-02-23/alaska-vegas-strange-and-terrible-story-dreams-desert-and-ufos
- [3184] Peddle, S. (November 19, 2019). Indian Brook man says he spotted UFO in Nova Scotia skies. Retrieved October 28, 2021 from https://www.saltwire.com/prince-edward-island/news/canada/indian-brook-man-says-he-spotted-ufo-in-nova-scotia-skies-378121/
- [3185] Keister 2004.
- [3186] Jung 1991.
- [3187] Shushan 2009.
- [3188] Bane 2016.
- [3189] McElroy, D.R. (2020). Superstitions: A Handbook of Folklore, Myths, and Legends from Around thew World. New York, NY: The Quarto Group.
- [3190] Pettigrew, J.D. (December 3, 2003). The Min Min light and the *Fata Morgana*. *Clinical and Experimental Optometry* 86(2), pp. 109-120.
- [3191] Clarke 2012.
- [3192] Stacy, D. (November 1987). The Marfa Lights. MUFON UFO Journal 235, pp. 3-7.
- [3193] Clarke 2015.
- [3194] Eliade 1964.
- [3195] Mann 2003.
- [3196] Shushan 2009.
- [3197] Clarke 2015.
- [3198] Roth 1997.
- [3199] Clarke 2015.
- [3200] Lecouteux 2019.
- [3201] Harpur 2003.
- [3202] Vallee & Aubeck 2009.
- [3203] Moody 2015.

- [3204] Strieber & Kripal 2016.
- [3205] Ouellet, E. (2015). *Illuminations: The UFO Experience as a Parapsychological Event.* San Antonio, TX: Anomalist Books.
- [3206] Keel 1976.
- [3207] Fowler 2020.
- [3208] Ibid.
- [3209] Raynes 2018.
- [3210] Eliade 1964.
- [3211] Constance, A. (November-December 1957). The Ghosts and the Gossamer. *Flying Sauer Review* 3(6), pp. 22-25.
- [3212] Long, G. (November 1981). Kenneth Arnold: UFO "Pioneer." MUFON UFO Journal 165, pp. 7-10.
- [3213] Verga, M. (2007). When Saucers Came to Earth. Torino, IT: Edizioni Upiar.
- [3214] Keel, J. (2002). *The Complete Guide to Mysterious Beings*. New York, NY: Tom Doherty Associates, LLC. (Original work published 1970 as *Strange Creatures from Time and Space*)
- [3215] Randles 1994.
- [3216] Stacy, D.W. (July-August 1984). UFO Waters Still Run Deep. MUFON UFO Journal 196, pp. 3-9.
- [3217] Hansen & Schild 2016.
- [3218] Mack 1999.
- [3219] Strieber & Strieber 2017.
- [3220] Ibid.
- [3221] Swann, I. (1998). Penetration. Rapid City, SD: Ingo Swann Books.
- [3222] Manas, J.H. (1962). Flying Saucers and Space-Men. New York, NY: Pythagorean Society.
- [3223] Vallee 1965.
- [3224] Raynes 2019.
- [3225] Mack 1999.
- [3226] Raynes 2019.
- [3227] Hanks, M. (2013). The UFO Singularity. Pompton Plains, NJ: New Page Books.
- [3228] Deus Ex McKenna 2015.
- [3229] McKenna 1993.
- [3230] McKenna, T. (1987). Aka Suggested Reading List. Retrieved November 1, 2021 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/aka+Suggested+Reading+List
- [3231] Strieber & Kripal 2016.
- [3232] Ibid.
- [3233] Hancock 2007.
- [3234] Volke, I. (n.d.). Case 13. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1944 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1944.pdf
- [3235] Best, J.E. (1991). Link and Communiqué. London, UK: Regency Press.

- [3236] Hancock, G. (April 22, 2014). The images on the left... Retrieved November 2, 2021 from https://www.facebook.com/31260747353/photos/a.10151524582402354/10152410416462354/
- [3237] Modderman, L. (February 13, 2018). Visions and Pablo Amaringo. Retrieved November 2, 2021 from https://deadbutdreaming.wordpress.com/2018/02/13/visions-and-pablo-amaringo-by-loes-modderman/
- [3238] Taylor 2000.
- [3239] Keister 2004.
- [3240] Lecouteux 2019.
- [3241] Lewis 1994.
- [3242] Trubachyov, O. (1997). *Etymological Dictionary of Slavic Languages*. Moscow, RUS: Russian Language Institute.
- [3243] Christensen, C. (2021). Myth or Fact: Did the Vikings Really Burn Their Ships? Retrieved November 3, 2021 from https://scandinaviafacts.com/myth-or-fact-did-the-vikings-really-burn-their-ships/
- [3244] Carver, M. (1998). Sutton Hoo: Burial Ground of Kings? Philadelphia, PA: University of Pennsylvania Press.
- [3245] Ellis, H.R. (1943). *The Road to Hel: A Study of the Conception of the Dead in Old Norse Literature*. Cambridge, UK: Cambridge University.
- [3246] Carver 1998.
- [3247] Ballard 1997.
- [3248] Johnson, E. (1881). *Legends, Traditions, and Laws of the Iroquois*. Lockport, NY: Union Printing and Publishing Co.
- [3249] Associated Press. (June 23, 2011). Egypt Excavates Ancient King's 4,500-Year-Old Ship. Retrieved November 3, 2021 from https://web.archive.org/web/20110626161813/http://www.foxnews.com/scitech/2011/06/23/egypt-excavates-4500-year-old-pharaohs-boat/
- [3250] Ziegler, D. (1998). The Cult of the Wuyi Mountains and its Cultivation of the Past: A Topo-Cultural Perspective. *Cahiers d'Extrême-Asie* 10, pp. 255-286.
- [3251] Shushan 2009.
- [3252] Lewis 1994.
- [3253] Manguin, P.Y. (1986). Shipshape Societies: Boat Symbolism and Political Systems in Insular Southeast Asia. In D.G. Marr & A.C. Milner (Eds.), *Southeast Asia in the 9th to 14th Centuries* (pp. 187-213). Singapore: Institute of Southeast Asian Studies.
- [3254] Ziegler 1998.
- [3255] Waterbury 1952.
- [3256] Eliade 1964.
- [3257] L., Adrian. (n.d.). 589 Adrian L NDE 2164. Retrieved November 3, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1adrian_1_nde.html
- [3258] N., Harold. (n.d.). 2650 Harold N NDE 5107. Retrieved November 3, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1harold n nde.html
- [3259] A., Olu. (n.d.). 2850 Olu A Possible NDE 6030. Retrieved November 3, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1olu_a_possible_nde.html
- [3260] Raynes 1982.
- [3261] Vallee & Aubeck 2009.

- [3262] Stillings, D. (July 1987). Helicopters, UFOs and the Psyche. *MUFON UFO Journal 231*, pp. 3-8.
- [3263] Dakudao, M.E. (March/June 1998). The Development of Cemeteries in Manila Before 1941. *Philippine Quarterly of Culture and Society 26*(1/2), pp. 254-271.
- [3264] Jung 1991.
- [3265] Griffith, R.D. (Autumn-Winter 2001). Sailing to Elysium: Menelaus' Afterlife ("Odyssey" 4.561-569) and Egyptian Religion. *Phoenix* 44(3/4), pp. 213-243.
- [3266] Lecouteux 2019.
- [3267] Shushan 2009.
- [3268] Bullard 1987 Vol. 1.
- [3269] Ibid.
- [3270] Clark 1998.
- [3271] Ibid.
- [3272] Little 1990.
- [3273] Shushan 2009.
- [3274] Lecouteux 2011.
- [3275] Redfern 2010.
- [3276] Upton, A.C. et al. (1996). *Health Effects of Exposure to Low Levels of Ionizing Radiation*. Washington, D.C.: National Academy Press.
- [3277] Lowth, M. (September 14, 2021). The Dangers of Being A UFO Researcher? Strange Deaths and Sudden Illness! Retrieved November 9, 2021 from https://www.ufoinsight.com/conspiracy/government/dangers-of-being-a-ufo-researcher
- [3278] Vallee 1990.
- [3279] Gevaerd, A.J. (March 2005). Brazilian officer reportedly died after touching Varginha creature. (C. Sannazzaro, Trans.). *MUFON UFO Journal 442*, pp. 3-6.
- [3280] Romeo, J. (September 3, 2020). The Long History of Comet Phobia. Retrieved November 10, 2021 from https://daily.jstor.org/the-long-history-of-comet-phobia/
- [3281] Vallee & Aubeck 2009.
- [3282] Aubeck 2003.
- [3283] Lecouteux 2019.
- [3284] Keel 2015.
- [3285] Bane 2016.
- [3286] Herzog 1983.
- [3287] Sweatman, M.B. & Tsikritsis, D. (2017). Decoding Göbekli Tepe with Archaeoastronomy: What Does the Fox Say? *Mediterranean Archaeology and Archaeometry* 17(1), pp. 233-250.
- [3288] Andrews, T. (2004). Wonders of the Sky. Westport, CT: Libraries Unlimited.
- [3289] Aubeck 2003.
- [3290] Uri, J. (October 14, 2021). 955 Years Ago: Halley's Comet and the Battle of Hastings. Retrieved November 10, 2021 from https://www.nasa.gov/feature/955-years-ago-halley-s-comet-and-the-battle-of-hastings
- [3291] Freixedo, S. (Winter 1994). Contacts Between U.S. Presidents and Aliens. *Flying Saucer Review* 39(4), pp. 4-7.

- [3292] Aubeck 2003.
- [3293] Raynes 1982.
- [3294] Vallee & Aubeck 2009.
- [3295] Sochka, Y. (n.d.). Case 9. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1934 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1934.pdf
- [3296] Strickler, L. (April 2, 2015). The 'Men in Black' Mystery. Retrieved November 10, 2021 from https://www.phantomsandmonsters.com/2015/04/the-men-in-black-mystery.html
- [3297] Koivula, T. (n.d.). Case 45. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1971 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1971.pdf
- [3298] Andrews, G. (1992). *Extra-Terrestrials Among Us.* St. Paul, MN: Llewellyn Publications. (Original work published 1986)
- [3299] New Thinking Allowed with Jeffrey Mishlove. (May 12, 2021). InPresence 0225: Aliens in the Afterlife. Retrieved November 10, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch? v=umwWvMkaKCY
- [3300] Litovkin, V. (January 21, 1990). Case 434. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1989 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1989.pdf
- [3301] Jung 1991.
- [3302] Story 2001.
- [3303] Cutchin 2016.
- [3304] Vallee, J. & Harris, P. (2021). *Trinity: The Best-Kept Secret.* US: Starworks USA & Documatica Research, LLC.
- [3305] Ibid.
- [3306] Carlwood, G. (September 13, 2016). Gordon White | Alien Ghosts, Animism, & Chaos Magic. Retrieved November 11, 2021 from https://www.thehighersidechats.com/gordon-white-alien-ghosts-animism-chaos-magic/
- [3307] Strieber & Kripal 2016.
- [3308] Tenney, J.E.L. (June 14, 2015). A Bottle of Spirits: Space Traveling Ghosts Caught! Retrieved November 11, 2021 from https://web.archive.org/web/20210225183625/http://weirdlectures.com/bottle-spirits-space-traveling-ghosts-caught/
- [3309] Cai, X., Jiang, J.H., Fahy, K.A., & Yung, Y.L. (January 18, 2021). A Statistical Estimation of the Occurrence of Extraterrestrial Intelligence in the Milky Way Galaxy. *Galaxies* 9(1), pp. 5-18.
- [3310] Brandenburg, J.E. (2011). *Life and Death on Mars: The New Mars Synthesis*. Kempton, IL: Adventures Unlimited.
- [3311] Brandenburg, J.E. (September 13-16, 2016). Evidence of a Massive Thermonuclear Explosion On Mars in the Past: The Cydonian Hypothesis and Fermi's Paradox. Long Beach, CA: AIAA SPACE Forum.
- [3312] Halperin 2020.
- [3313] Walton 1997.
- [3314] Randles 1994.
- [3315] Strieber & Kripal 2016.
- [3316] White, G. (March 1, 2017). Talking Worldviews, Culture and Comparison with Dr. Jeff Kripal. Retrieved May 30, 2017 from https://runesoup.com/2017/03/ talking-worldviews-culture-and-comparison-with-dr-jeff-kripal

- [3317] Harvey-Wilson 2001.
- [3318] White, G. (2016). Pieces of Eight: Chaos Magic Essays and Enchantments. AU: Gordon White.
- [3319] Fowler 2020.
- [3320] Acher, F. (2021). On the Foundations of Animistic Spirit Practice in Paracelsus's Works. DE: Frater Acher.
- [3321] Hall, M.P. (1928). The Secret Teachings of All Ages. San Francisco, CA: H.S. Crocker Company, Inc.
- [3322] Guiley 2009.
- [3323] Hall 1928.
- [3324] Ibid.
- [3325] Vallee, J. (2008). *Dimensions: A Casebook of Alien Contact*. San Antonio, TX: Anomalist Books. (Original work published 1988)
- [3326] Hall 1928.
- [3327] Britannica. (n.d.). sylph. Retrieved November 12, 2021 from https://www.britannica.com/art/sylph
- [3328] Hall 1928.
- [3329] UFOCCI, Encounters with the Unknown. (1989). Case 40. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1976 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1976.pdf
- [3330] Strong 2005.
- [3331] Howley, M.O. (2003). The Cat in Magic and Myth. Mineola, NY: Dover Publications, Inc.
- [3332] Schneider, L.I. (n.d.). Case 129. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1972 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1972.pdf
- [3333] Cartwright, M. (August 28, 2019). Hermes. Retrieved November 12, 2021 from https://www.worldhistory.org/Hermes/
- [3334] Herzog 1983.
- [3335] Story 2001.
- [3336] Bullard 1987 Vol. 1.
- [3337] Sider, J. (July 2000). The onomastic and diabolical connection. *MUFON UFO Journal 387*, pp. 5-10.
- [3338] Daimler 2019.
- [3339] Strieber & Strieber 2016.
- [3340] No author. (2009, July 10). John Keel (Obituary). Retrieved June 8, 2017 from http://www.telegraph.co.uk/news/obituaries/science-obituaries/5797746/John-Keel. html
- [3341] Wilde 1887.
- [3342] Coolman, R. (May 7, 2014). Keeping Time: Origins of the Days of the Week. Retrieved November 13, 2021 from https://www.livescience.com/45432-days-of-the-week.html
- [3343] Ibid.
- [3344] Strieber & Strieber 2016.
- [3345] Ibid.
- [3346] Sutton, K. (2020). Shodasha Varga: The 16 Divisional Charts of Vedic Astrology. Swanage, UK: The Wessex Astrologer Ltd.

- [3347] Dowson, J. (1879). A Classical Dictionary of Hindu Mythology and Religion, Geography, History, and Literature. London, UK: Ballantyne.
- [3348] Bullard 1987 Vol. 2.
- [3349] Walton 1997.
- [3350] Ibid.
- [3351] Ibid.
- [3352] Parmeshwaranand, S. (2000). *Encyclopaedic Dictionary of Vedic Terms: Volume 2 M-Z.* Darya Ganj, IND: Sarup & Sons.
- [3353] Walton 1997.
- [3354] Taleva, S. (July 14, 1991). Case 218. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1991 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1991.pdf
- [3355] Brown, N.M. (2021). *The Real Valkyrie: The Hidden History of Viking Warrior Women.* New York, NY: St. Martin's Press.
- [3356] Keel 1970.
- [3357] Steinsapir 1999.
- [3358] Nagaitis & Mantle 1994.
- [3359] Boucher 2020.
- [3360] Harvey-Wilson 2001.
- [3361] Mack 1994.
- [3362] Shushan 2009.
- [3363] Vallee, J. (1977). UFOs: The Psychic Solution. St. Albans, UK: Panther Books Ltd.
- [3364] Fisher, B. (March 3, 2021). 6 Degrees of John Keel Episode 1: Timothy Renner: Following the Footprints. Retrieved November 15, 2021 from https://6degreesofjohnkeel.com/episodes/016-tim-renner-following-the-footprints
- [3365] Vojvoda, C. (December 2, 2021). Personal communication.
- [3366] Ibid.
- [3367] Raynes 2019.
- [3368] Hopkins 1981.
- [3369] Strieber & Strieber 2016.
- [3370] Fowler 1990.
- [3371] Turner 1994.
- [3372] Clelland 2015.
- [3373] Ibid.
- [3374] Wilson 1993.
- [3375] Slevik 2020.
- [3376] Hopkins 1981.
- [3377] Mack 1994.
- [3378] Heard, G. (1953). *Is Another World Watching?* New York, NY: Bantam Books. (Original work published 1950 as *The Riddle of the Flying Saucers*)
- [3379] Johnson 2014.

- [3380] Root, C. (October 20, 2020). UFOs and a Horse Called Snippy. Retrieved November 16, 2021 from https://history.denverlibrary.org/news/ufos-and-horse-called-snippy
- [3381] Bullard 1987 Vol. 1.
- [3382] Wilson 1998.
- [3383] No author. (1963). HUMCAT Index 1962. Retrieved November 16, 2021 from http://www.cufos.org/HUMCAT/HUMCAT_Index_1962.pdf
- [3384] Anfalov, A. (n.d.). Case 431. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1989 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1989.pdf
- [3385] Colombo, J.R. (1992). Dark Visions. Toronto, ON: Dundurn.
- [3386] Mack 1999.
- [3387] Vallee & Aubeck 2009.
- [3388] Sider 2000.
- [3389] Nelson, B. (2006). *My Trip to Mars, the Moon and Venus*. Pomeroy, WA: Health Research. (Original work published 1956)
- [3390] Strieber 2011.
- [3391] Strieber 2020.
- [3392] No author. (April 1972). More on That 1897 Airship. Skylook 53, p. 21.
- [3393] Clark, J. & Coleman, L. (1984). *Creatures of the Goblin World*. New York, NY: Clark Publishing.
- [3394] Strieber & Strieber 2016.
- [3395] Webb 1976.
- [3396] Keel 2015.
- [3397] Villar, R.N.O. (n.d.). Case 23. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1986 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1986.pdf
- [3398] Jacobs 1993.
- [3399] Slevik 2020.
- [3400] Clelland 2018.
- [3401] Ibid.
- [3402] Ibid.
- [3403] Keel 1976.
- [3404] Clark 1998.
- [3405] Wilson 1993.
- [3406] Hauck 2008.
- [3407] Bryan 1995.
- [3408] Ring 1992.
- [3409] Ibid.
- [3410] Bullard 1987 Vol. 2.
- [3411] Ibid.

- [3412] Redfern, N. (April 22, 2020). The Strange Story of a Dog On-Board a UFO! Retrieved November 16, 2021 from https://mysteriousuniverse.org/2020/04/the-strange-story-of-a-dog-on-board-a-ufo/
- [3413] Bullard 1987 Vol. 2.
- [3414] Girvin 1958.
- [3415] Connelly 2000.
- [3416] Hernandez, Klimo, & Schild 2018.
- [3417] Bullard 1987 Vol. 2.
- [3418] Strieber & Strieber 2017.
- [3419] Fowler 2020.
- [3420] Raynes 1982.
- [3421] Chalker, W.C. (Spring 1980). A Re-Viewing of the Great Nocturnal Light. *Flying Saucer Review* 26(1), pp. 12-18.
- [3422] Clarke 2012.
- [3423] Herzog 1983.
- [3424] Miranda, J.M. (November 10, 2021). Puerto Rico 1947. Retrieved November 17, 2021 from https://www.facebook.com/groups/1734280653427204/posts/1800900963431839
- [3425] Holiday 1973.
- [3426] Strieber 1988.
- [3427] Worley, D.L. (Summer 1995). Dire Warnings from Aliens? *Flying Saucer Review 40*(2), pp. 12-15.
- [3428] Joyce 2014.
- [3429] Kutepova, V. (June 2006). Case 38. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1990 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1990.pdf
- [3430] Scarpellini, J. (September 2003). Investigating a missing crop circle. *MUFON UFO Journal* 425, pp. 7-8.
- [3431] Carter 2018.
- [3432] Boucher 2020.
- [3433] Mack 1999.
- [3434] Fowler 2020.
- [3435] Story 2001.
- [3436] Cutchin 2016.
- [3437] Druffel, A. (1998). How to Defend Yourself Against Alien Abduction. New York, NY: Three Rivers Press.
- [3438] Collins 2012.
- [3439] Coddington 1997.
- [3440] Harpur 2003.
- [3441] Jung 1964.
- [3442] Jung 1991.
- [3443] Daimler 2017.

- [3444] Wilby 2005.
- [3445] Sveinsson 2003.
- [3446] F. Young 2019.
- [3447] Daimler April 2018.
- [3448] Briggs 1976.
- [3449] Druffel 1998.
- [3450] Daimler 2017.
- [3451] Semple 1998.
- [3452] Briggs 1976.
- [3453] Guiley 2009.
- [3454] Balfour, E. (1873). *Cyclopaedia of India and of Eastern and Southern Asia: Vol. IV.* Madras, IND: The Scottish and Lawrence Presses (2nd ed.).
- [3455] Ogden 2001.
- [3456] Freud, S. (1913). Totem und Tabu. Boston, MA: Beacon Press.
- [3457] Nagaitis & Mantle 1994.
- [3458] Morgan, L. (2012). A Deed Without a Name: Unearthing the Legacy of Traditional Witchcraft. Alresford, UK: Moon Books.
- [3459] Caciola 2016.
- [3460] Silver 1999.
- [3461] Guiley 2009.
- [3462] Strieber & Strieber 2016.
- [3463] Harvey-Wilson 2001.
- [3464] Ibid.
- [3465] Meyer, M. (2021). Katawaguruma. Retrieved November 21, 2021 from https://yokai.com/katawaguruma/
- [3466] Coast to Coast AM. (July 15, 2008). John Lear Chat Excerpts. Retrieved November 21, 2021 from https://www.coasttocoastam.com/article/john-lear-chat-excerpts/
- [3467] Steiger 1988.
- [3468] Redfern 2010.
- [3469] Mack 1999.
- [3470] Kerner 2010.
- [3471] Redfern, N. (November 20, 2020). From Extraterrestrials to the Mysteries of the Dead. Retrieved November 21, 2021 from https://mysteriousuniverse.org/2020/11/from-extraterrestrials-to-the-mysteries-of-the-dead/
- [3472] Basterfield, K. (Autumn 1995). Abducted: An Australian Independently Witnessed Event? *Flying Saucer Review 40*(3), pp. 12-15.
- [3473] Ware, D.M. (June 1993). Current Cases. MUFON UFO Journal 302, p. 20.
- [3474] Cutchin 2018.
- [3475] Strieber 2020.
- [3476] Redfern 2010.

- [3477] Ibid.
- [3478] Ibid.
- [3479] Ibid.
- [3480] Eno, P. & Eno, B. (2016). Behind the Paranormal. Atglen, PA: Schiffer Publishing, Ltd.
- [3481] Mack 1999.
- [3482] Jung, C.G. (1959). Collected Works. Princeton, NJ: Princeton University Press.
- [3483] Lorgen, E.F. (January 1999). 'The Love Bite.' MUFON UFO Journal 369, pp. 9-11.
- [3484] Cutchin 2018.
- [3485] Herzog 1983.
- [3486] American Pregnancy Association. (September 2, 2016). Vanishing Twin Syndrome. Retrieved August 25, 2017 from http://americanpregnancy.org/multiples/vanishing-twin-syndrome/
- [3487] Dennis & Whitman 1997.
- [3488] Stacy, D. & Kirkwood, J. (October 1992). Alien Abortion, Avenging Angels. Retrieved November 29, 2021 from https://magoniamagazine.blogspot.com/2013/11/alien-abortion-avenging-angels.html
- [3489] Ibid.
- [3490] Puthoff, H.A. (1982, January). Mail Bag: Birth of a New Theory? *Flying Saucer Review 27*(4), p. 23.
- [3491] Lady Gregory 1920, First Series.
- [3492] Briggs 1976.
- [3493] Keel Summer 1972.
- [3494] Ogden 2001.
- [3495] Cutchin 2018.
- [3496] Cutchin 2018.
- [3497] Mack 1999.
- [3498] Hansen 2001.
- [3499] Jacobs 1993.
- [3500] Oldham 2017.
- [3501] Turner, K. (December 1994). Genetic Agenda A Double-Cross? *MUFON UFO Journal* 320, pp. 13-14.
- [3502] Hancock 2007.
- [3503] Jacobs 1999.
- [3504] Jacobs 1993.
- [3505] Ibid.
- [3506] Hopkins 1987.
- [3507] Jacobs 1993.
- [3508] Cutchin 2018.
- [3509] Lady Gregory 1920, First Series.
- [3510] Hancock 2007.

- [3511] Randles 1994.
- [3512] Wilde 1887.
- [3513] Randles 1994.
- [3514] Jacobs, D. (2015). Walking Among Us: The Alien Plan to Control Humanity. San Francisco, CA: Disinformation Books.
- [3515] Ibid.
- [3516] Metcalfe, D. (December 6, 2018). Anomalous Americana Contemporary tales of strange happenings in the lives of everyday individuals. Retrieved November 30, 2021 from https://davidmetcalfe.wordpress.com/2018/12/06/anomalous-americana
- [3517] Ibid.
- [3518] Bryan 1995.
- [3519] Palmer, S.J. & Sentes, B. (2012). The International Raëlien Movement. In O. Hammer & M. Rothstein (Eds.), *The Cambridge Companion to New Religious Movements* (pp. 167-183). Cambridge, UK: Cambridge University Press.
- [3520] Hind, C. (January 1999). Alien Analysis. UFO AfriNews 19, pp. 21-23.
- [3521] Clarke 2015.
- [3522] Granchi, I. (April 1987). Cloning by Aliens?: To What Purpose? *Flying Saucer Review 32*(3), pp. 18-21.
- [3523] Ibid.
- [3524] Redfern 2010.
- [3525] Granchi 1987.
- [3526] Ibid.
- [3527] Corrales, S. (August 12, 2014). Transient Visitors: Strange Humanoid Encounters. Retrieved December 1, 2021 from http://inexplicata.blogspot.com/2014/08/transient-visitors-strange-humanoid.html
- [3528] Hind, C. (July 1997). Soldier in Distress. UFO AfriNews 16, pp. 4-11.
- [3529] Millington, G. (Winter 1994). Local Man "Healed" by Aliens. *Flying Saucer Review 39*(4), p. 17.
- [3530] Ribera, A. (May 1986). "The Jinn and the Dolmen: The Most Amazing Case of Abduction Yet" & "The Jinn & the Dolmen: Addendum." *Flying Saucer Review 31*(4), pp. 2-10, 11-12.
- [3531] Clarke 2012.
- [3532] Turner 1994.
- [3533] East to West UFO Society Group. (n.d.). Case 100. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 2003 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-2003.pdf
- [3534] Keel 1976.
- [3535] Redfern, N. (February 25, 2020). The Strange Saga of "UFO Imposters" and Doppelgangers. Retrieved December 1, 2021 from https://mysteriousuniverse.org/2020/02/the-strange-saga-of-ufo-impostors-and-doppelgangers/
- [3536] Ibid.
- [3537] Keel 1976.
- [3538] Keel 1976.
- [3539] Oldham 2017.

- [3540] Cutchin 2018.
- [3541] O'Curry, E. (1873). *Manner and Customs of the Ancient Irish Vol. II.* London, UK: Williams and Norgate.
- [3542] Granchi, I. (January 1986). The Case of Antônio Álves Ferreira Physical Experiences, and Eleven Alleged Trips to a Strange Planet! *Flying Saucer Review 31*(2), pp. 6-12.
- [3543] Strieber 2020.
- [3544] Fowler 2020.
- [3545] Bullard 1987 Vol. 1.
- [3546] Bullard 1987 Vol. 2.
- [3547] Gorightly & Bishop 2018.
- [3548] Fowler 2020.
- [3549] Devereux 1995.
- [3550] Nelson 2006.
- [3551] Strieber 1995.
- [3552] Klimo 2018.
- [3553] Raffy, C. (Summer 1998). The Story of Monsieur and Madame C. Flying Saucer Review 43(2), pp. 22-23.
- [3554] Fuller, John G. (1966). The Interrupted Journey. New York, NY: The Dial Press.
- [3555] Boucher 2020.
- [3556] Ibid.
- [3557] Mack 1999.
- [3558] Howard 1957.
- [3559] Strieber & Strieber 2016.
- [3560] Strieber & Strieber 2016.
- [3561] Mack 1999.
- [3562] Shushan 2009.
- [3563] Renner, T. (December 23, 2021). Strange Familiars Episode 284: Christmas Apparitions, Grave Lights, & More. Retrieved January 19, 2022 from https://www.strangefamiliars.com/home/christmas-apparitions-grave-lights-and-more
- [3564] Strieber & Strieber 2016.
- [3565] Strieber & Strieber 2017.
- [3566] Strieber 2011.
- [3567] Strieber 1987.
- [3568] Harold 2021.
- [3569] Jung 1964.
- [3570] Fort, C. (1919). The Book of the Damned. New York, NY: Boni and Liveright.
- [3571] Online Etymology Dictionary. (n.d.). Property. Retrieved December 2, 2021 from https://www.etymonline.com/word/property
- [3572] Clelland 2019.
- [3573] Knight 2014.

- [3574] Jacobs 1993.
- [3575] Ibid.
- [3576] Slevik 2020.
- [3577] Evans 1984.
- [3578] Klimo 2018.
- [3579] Strieber 1987.
- [3580] Strieber & Kripal 2016.
- [3581] Service & Bradbery 1979.
- [3582] White 2016.
- [3583] Strieber & Kripal 2016.
- [3584] Dhalla, M.N. (1914). Zoroastrian Theology. New York, NY: s.n.
- [3585] Leviton, R. (1994). *The Imagination of Pentecost: Rudolf Steiner & Contemporary Spirituality*. Hudson, NY; Anthroposophic Press.
- [3586] Mattoon, M.A. (2005). Jung and the Human Psyche. New York, NY: Routledge.
- [3587] Scott, D. (December 21, 2020). Beyond Humanity: Growing Up With UFOs, Orbs, & the CIA Ryan Bledsoe. Retrieved December 3, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch? v=qLRyZE7jMZM
- [3588] Budge, E.A.W. (1925). *The Mummy: A Handbook of Egyptian Funerary Archaeology*. Cambridge, UL: Cambridge University Press (2nd ed.).
- [3589] Ibid.
- [3590] Clarke 2015.
- [3591] Strieber & Kripal 2016.
- [3592] Mack 1994.
- [3593] Hansen & Schild 2016.
- [3594] Ibid.
- [3595] Ibid.
- [3596] Ibid.
- [3597] Ibid.
- [3598] Ibid.
- [3599] Ibid.
- [3600] Ibid.
- [3601] Fowler 2020.
- [3602] Lewis 1994.
- [3603] Hansen & Schild 2016.
- [3604] Ibid.
- [3605] Wilson 1998.
- [3606] Lewis 1994.
- [3607] Montgomery, R. (1979). Strangers Among Us. New York, NY: Fawcett Crest.
- [3608] Ibid.

- [3609] Montgomery, R. (1985). Aliens Among Us. New York, NY: G.P. Putnam's Sons.
- [3610] Ibid.
- [3611] Ibid.
- [3612] Gorightly & Bishop 2018.
- [3613] Bough, A. (March 2, 1996). My experience with the Greys. Retrieved December 7, 2021 from http://www.v-j-enterprises.com/jbrough.html
- [3614] Hiylov, P. & Anfalov, A.A. (n.d.). Case 109. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1997 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1997.pdf
- [3615] Strieber & Kripal 2016.
- [3616] Turner 1994.
- [3617] Turner 1994.
- [3618] Wilson 1993.
- [3619] Wilson 1998.
- [3620] Redfern 2010.
- [3621] Gorightly & Bishop 2018.
- [3622] Baldwin, W. (1999). CE-VI: Close Encounters of the Possession Kind. Alta, WV: Headline Books, Inc.
- [3623] Ibid.
- [3624] Strieber & Kripal 2016.
- [3625] Hernandez, Klimo, & Schild 2018.
- [3626] Drake, W.R. (Sept./Oct. 1960). Mercury, Jupiter, and Others: Can Life Exist? *Flying Saucer Review* 6(5), pp. 18-22.
- [3627] Strieber 1988.
- [3628] Mack 1994.
- [3629] Mack 1999.
- [3630] Stevens, W. & Card, R. (. n.d.). Case 52. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1962 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1962.pdf
- [3631] Clark, J. (2000). Extraordinary Encounters. Santa Barbara, CA: ABC-CLIO.
- [3632] Greenen, J.S. (n.d.). Case 114. In A Rosales (Ed.), 1989 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1989.pdf
- [3633] Belimov, G.S. & Priyma, A.K. (1997). Case 114. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1991 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1991.pdf
- [3634] Mack 1994.
- [3635] Dennis & Whitman 1997.
- [3636] Mack 1994.
- [3637] Sprinkle 1999.
- [3638] Mack 1994.
- [3639] Atwater 2000.
- [3640] Story 2001.

- [3641] Meyer, B. (2006). Alien Contact. Lincoln, NE: iUniverse.
- [3642] Randles 1994.
- [3643] Steiger 1988.
- [3644] Anfalov, A. (n.d.). Case 93. In A Rosales (Ed.), 1985 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1985.pdf
- [3645] Steiger 1988.
- [3646] Ibid.
- [3647] Mack 1994.
- [3648] Mack 1999.
- [3649] Harvey-Wilson 2000.
- [3650] Lewis 1994.
- [3651] Jefferson, W. (2008). Reincarnation Beliefs of North American Indians. Summertown, TN: Native Voices.
- [3652] Ibid.
- [3653] S., Roy. (n,d.). 3110 Roy S NDE 6367. Retrieved December 10, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1roy_s_nde.html
- [3654] Derrick. (n.d.). 2692 Derrick Birth Experiences 5167. Retrieved December 10, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1derrick_other.html
- [3655] Boucher 2020.
- [3656] Ibid.
- [3657] Turner 1992.
- [3658] Hansen & Schild 2016.
- [3659] Ibid.
- [3660] R., Erika. (n.d.). 3104 Erika R NDE 6354. Retrieved December 10, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1erika r nde.html
- [3661] T., Elizabeth. (n.d.). 3968 Elizabeth T NDE 7716. Retrieved December 10, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1elizabeth_t_nde.html
- [3662] Strieber 2020.
- [3663] Ibid.
- [3664] Strieber & Strieber 2016.
- [3665] Eliade 1964.
- [3666] Turner 1994.
- [3667] Blaha, J. (2013). Reflections on Jewish Mysticism. CZ: Blaha.
- [3668] Baldwin 1999.
- [3669] Mack 1994.
- [3670] Mack 1999.
- [3671] Stevenson 1997.
- [3672] Mack 1999.
- [3673] Turner 1992.

- [3674] Ware, D.M. (Autumn 1993). The Extraordinary Case of "Elizabeth Richmond." *Flying Saucer Review 38*(3), pp. 12-14.
- [3675] Boucher 2020.
- [3676] Ibid.
- [3677] Clelland 2019.
- [3678] Ibid.
- [3679] Ibid.
- [3680] Ibid.
- [3681] Mack 1999.
- [3682] Strieber 1988.
- [3683] Mack 1999.
- [3684] Story 2001.
- [3685] Randles 1994.
- [3686] Keel 1976.
- [3687] Sprinkle 1999.
- [3688] Mack 1994.
- [3689] Boucher 2020.
- [3690] Hansen & Schild 2016.
- [3691] Story 2001.
- [3692] Turner 1994.
- [3693] Deus Ex McKenna 2015.
- [3694] Strassman 2000.
- [3695] Montgomery, D. (April 27, 1973). A "Monster" at Enfield. Mt. Vernon Register-News, p. 1.
- [3696] Miller, D.L., Mietus, K.J., & Mathers, R.A. (Winter 1978). A Critical Examination of the Social Contagion Image of Collective Behavior: The Case of the Enfield Monster. *The Sociological Quarterly 19*(1), pp. 129-140.
- [3697] Bane 2016.
- [3698] Lady Gregory 1920, Second Series.
- [3699] Meurger, M. & Gagnon, C. (1988). *Lake Monster Traditions: A Cross-Cultural Analysis*. London, UK: Fortean Tomes.
- [3700] Cutchin & Renner 2020.
- [3701] Ibid.
- [3702] Ibid.
- [3703] Eberhart 2002.
- [3704] Cutchin & Renner 2020.
- [3705] Bane 2016.
- [3706] Cutchin & Renner 2020.
- [3707] Ibid.

- [3708] Vendramini, D. (2011). Them and Us: How Neanderthal Predation Created Modern Humans. Armidale, AU: Kardoorair Press.
- [3709] Ogden 2001.
- [3710] Herzog 1983.
- [3711] Mann 2003.
- [3712] Fex, J. (2019). Sasquatch Gothic. In R.E. Guiley (Ed.), *FATE Presents: Planet Bigfoot* (pp. 9-33). New Milford, CT: Visionary Living Publishing.
- [3713] Bitel, L.M. (2009). Landscape with Two Saints. Oxford, UK: Oxford University Press.
- [3714] Guiley 2009.
- [3715] Godfrey 2016.
- [3716] Barnett, J. (1978). Flying Saucers and Bigfoot are Related! UFO Review 1(1), pp. 6-8.
- [3717] Clark, J. & Coleman, L. (January 1973). Anthropoids, Monsters and UFOs. *Flying Saucer Review 19*(1), pp. 18-23.
- [3718] Brandon 1983.
- [3719] Ibid.
- [3720] Redfern, N. (2016). *The Bigfoot Book: The Encyclopedia of Sasquatch, Yeti and Cryptid Primates*. Canton, MI: Visible Ink Press.
- [3721] Name withheld. (August 16, 2021). Personal communication.
- [3722] Cutchin & Renner 2020.
- [3723] Ibid.
- [3724] Ibid.
- [3725] Burnette, T., & Riggs, R. (2014). *Bigfoot: Exploring the Myth and Discovering the Truth*. Woodbury, MN: Llewllyn Publications.
- [3726] Franzoni III, H.J. (2008). In the Spirit of Seatco. Deer Island, OR: Ste Ye Hah Publishing.
- [3727] Germer, W. (November 3, 2013). Sasquatch Chronicles Radio // SC EP: 2 Class A Bigfoot Encounters. Retrieved December 8, 2018 from https:// sasquatchchronicles.com/sc-ep2-class-a-bigfoot-encounters/
- [3728] Short, B. (n.d.). The De Facto Sasquatch. Retrieved January 18, 2019 from https://static1.squarespace.com/static/596c0bae4c0dbfa1d26e86be/t/5b9bff06562fa7cfcdf1bfc8/1536950038606/The+de+facto+Sasquatch+premier+installment.pdf?fbclid=IwAR3763B1leKUEQofPRbPvzAItNH5K-RUV oKU-vOLW_iXvSFkdKSg4o4xBXw
- [3729] Cutchin & Renner 2020.
- [3730] Wilson, C. & Wilson, D. (2000). *The Mammoth Encyclopedia of the Unsolved*. New York, NY: Carroll & Graf Publishers, Inc.
- [3731] Slate, B.A. & Berry, A. (1976). *Bigfoot*. New York, NY: Bantam.
- [3732] Germer, W. (April 3, 2017). Sasquatch Chronicles Radio // SC EP: 312 The Snelgrove Lake Incident. Retrieved December 7, 2018 from https:// sasquatchchronicles.com/sc-ep312-the-snelgrove-lake-incident/
- [3733] C., Wendy. (n.d.). 1008 Wendy C NDE 2897. Retrieved December 15, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1wendy_c_nde.html
- [3734] N., Nelleke. (n.d.). 3451 Nelleke N Probable NDE 6893. Retrieved December 15, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1nelleke_n_probable_nde.html

- [3735] Cutchin & Renner 2020.
- [3736] Bord, J., & Bord, C. (2006). Bigfoot Casebook Updated: Sightings and Encounters from 1818 to 2004. Enumclaw, WA: Pine Winds Press. (Original work published 1982)
- [3737] Guiley, R.E. (2019). Interdimensional Paraphysical Sasquatch. In R.E. Guiley (Ed.), *FATE Presents: Planet Bigfoot* (pp. 171-186). New Milford, CT: Visionary Living Publishing.
- [3738] Lapseritis, K. (2019). Sasquatch: A Terrestrial-Extraterrestrial? In R.E. Guiley (Ed.), *FATE Presents: Planet Bigfoot* (pp. 163-169). New Milford, CT: Visionary Living Publishing.
- [3739] Cutchin & Renner 2020.
- [3740] Ibid.
- [3741] Renner, T. (2018). *Bigfoot: West Coast Wild Men.* Charleston, SC: CreateSpace Independent Publishing Platform.
- [3742] Ibid.
- [3743] Johnson, R. (May 20, 2019). Personal communication.
- [3744] Ibid.
- [3745] Ibid.
- [3746] Redfern, N. (November 30, 2017). When Strange Creatures Get the Urge To "Change." Retrieved December 18, 2018 from https:// mysteriousuniverse.org/2017/11/when-strange-creatures-get-the-urge-to-change/
- [3747] Freixedo, S. (1978). La Religion Entre La Parapsicologia y Los Ovnis. MX: Orion.
- [3748] Newkirk, G. (December 8, 2016). Bigfoot is a Ghost: Interdimensional Sasquatch, The Green Flash, and Why We'll Never Find a Body. Retrieved January 4, 2019 from http://weekinweird.com/2016/12/08/bigfoot-is-a-ghost-interdimensional-sasquatch-tulpas-green-flash/
- [3749] Strong 2005.
- [3750] Brandon 1983.
- [3751] Cutchin & Renner 2020.
- [3752] Ibid.
- [3753] Ibid.
- [3754] Lecouteux 2011.
- [3755] Germer, W. (May 21, 2017). Sasquatch Chronicles Radio // SC 326 The Quantum Bigfoot. Retrieved December 4, 2017 from https:// sasquatchchronicles.com/sc-ep326-the-quantum-bigfoot/
- [3756] Janson, H.W. (1952). *Apes and Ape Lore in the Middle Ages and the Renaissance*. London, UK: The Warburg Institute University of London.
- [3757] Cutchin & Renner 2020.
- [3758] Crumrine, N.R. (1976). Mediating Roles in Ritual and Symbolism: Northwest Mexico and the Pacific Northwest. *Anthropologica 18*(2), pp. 131-152.
- [3759] Sanderson, E.W. (2009). *Mannahatta: A Natural History of New York City*. New York, NY: Abrams Books.
- [3760] Parsons, E.C. (July 1916). The Zuñi A'doshlě and Suukě. American Anthropologist, pp. 338-347.
- [3761] Watson, M. (2011). Hiking Waterfalls in North Carolina. Guilford, CT: Falcon Guides.

- [3762] Haines, R.F. (n.d.). Case 108. In A. Rosales, In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1989 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1989.pdf
- [3763] SunBôw True Brother. (2016). *The Sasquatch Message to Humanity: Conversations with Elder Kamooh*. Chewelah, WA: Comanche Spirit Publishing.
- [3764] Cutchin & Renner 2020.
- [3765] Ingerman, S. & Roberts, L. (2015). Speaking with Nature. Rochester, VT: Bear & Company.
- [3766] Raynes 2018.
- [3767] Eliade 1964.
- [3768] Pyle, R.M. (2017). Where Bigfoot Walks: Crossing the Dark Divide. Berkeley, CA: Counterpoint (Original work published 1995).
- [3769] Osgood, C.B. (1933). The Ethnography of the Great Bear Lake Indians. *1931 Annual Report*. Ottawa, ON: National Museums of Canada.
- [3770] Mann 2003.
- [3771] BBC. (August 10, 2017). Wandering shaman 'mistaken' for Bigfoot in North Carolina. Retrieved December 15, 2021 from https://www.bbc.com/news/world-us-canada-40892336
- [3772] Devereux 2001.
- [3773] Devereux 2007.
- [3774] Holiday 1973.
- [3775] Hathaway, N. (2003). The Friendly Guide to Mythology. New York, NY: Penguin.
- [3776] Lawrence, D.H. (1986). David Herbert Lawrence: Centenary Essays. Bristol, UK: Bristol Classical Press.
- [3777] Caspari, E. (2003). Animal Life in Nature, Myth and Dreams. Wilmette, IL: Chiron Publications.
- [3778] Anderson 1990.
- [3779] Cutchin & Renner 2020.
- [3780] Young 2016.
- [3781] Cutchin & Renner 2020.
- [3782] Ibid.
- [3783] Ibid.
- [3784] Breslaw, E.G. (1997). Tituba's Confession: The Multicultural Dimensions of the 1692 Salem Witch-Hunt. *Ethnohistory* 44(3), pp. 535-556.
- [3785] Lecouteux 2003.
- [3786] Cutchin & Renner 2020.
- [3787] Cundiff, V. (November 7, 2016). Bigfoot Eyewitness Episode 12. Retrieved January 23, 2019 from http://bigfooteyewitnessradio.libsyn.com/bigfoot- eyewitness-episode-12
- [3788] Paulides, D. (2009). Tribal Bigfoot. Blaine, WA: Hancock House.
- [3789] Leiterman, R. (2000). The Bigfoot Mystery. Lincoln, NE: Writers Club Press.
- [3790] Alley, J.R. (2007). *Raincoast Sasquatch*. Blaine, WA: Hancock House. (Original work published 2003)
- [3791] Cutchin & Renner 2020.
- [3792] Keel 1976.

[3793] Germer, W. (November 19, 2016). Sasquatch Chronicles Radio // SC EP: 274 First Nations encounters with Sasquatch. Retrieved December 4, 2018 from https:// sasquatchchronicles.com/sc-ep274-first-nations- encounters-with-sasquatch-part- one/

[3794] Ibid.

[3795] Cutchin & Renner 2020.

[3796] Ibid.

[3797] Adomnán of Iona. (1995). Life of St. Columba. (R. Sharpe, Trans.). London, UK: Penguin.

[3798] Redfern, N. (June 26, 2021). Five Very Strange Things About Nessie. Retrieved December 16, 2021 from https://mysteriousuniverse.org/2021/06/five-very-strange-things-about-nessie

[3799] Meurger & Gagnon 1988.

[3800] Holiday 1973.

[3801] Meurger & Gagnon 1988.

[3802] Meurger & Gagnon 1988.

[3803] Keister 2004.

[3804] Jung, C. (1963). *Mysterium Coniunctionis*. (R.F.C. Hull, Trans.). Princeton, NJ: Princeton University Press.

[3805] Herzog 1983.

[3806] Ibid.

[3807] Jung 1963.

[3808] Redfern 2021.

[3809] Bord & Bord 1985.

[3810] Cutchin & Renner 2020.

[3811] Harpur 2003.

[3812] Fleming 2002.

[3813] Holiday 1973.

[3814] Bord & Bord 1985.

[3815] Ibid.

[3816] Redfern, N. (2016). Nessie. Woodbury, MN: Llewellyn Publications.

[3817] Ibid.

[3818] Ibid.

[3819] Ibid.

[3820] Ibid.

[3821] BBC. (July 31, 2019). Boleskine House: New fire rips through Aleister Crowley's former home. Retrieved December 16, 2021 from https://www.bbc.com/news/uk-scotland-highlands-islands-49186622

[3822] Scotsman. (April 25, 2014). Loch Ness monsters is "spiritual" say Buddhists. Retrieved December 17, 2021 from https://www.scotsman.com/news/loch-ness-monster-spiritual-say-buddhists-1538745

[3823] Meurger & Gagnon 1988.

[3824] Coleman, L. & Huyghe, P. (2003). *The Field Guide to Lake Monsters, Sea Serpents, and Other Mystery Denizens of the Deep.* New York, NY: Jeremy P. Tarcher.

- [3825] Harpur 2003.
- [3826] Bord & Bord 1985.
- [3827] Blackman, W.H. (1998). *The Field Guide to North American Monsters*. New York, NY: Three Rivers Press.
- [3828] Ibid.
- [3829] Ibid.
- [3830] Kilawna, K. (April 21, 2021). 'You don't call him Ogopogo, you call him by his name, nxaxaitkw'. Retrieved December 16, 2021 from https://indiginews.com/okanagan/dont-call-him-ogopogo-call-him-by-his-name-nxaxaitkw-says-syilx-elder
- [3831] Blackman 1998.
- [3832] Meurger & Gagnon 1988.
- [3833] Bord & Bord 1985.
- [3834] Lecouteux 2015.
- [3835] Meurger & Gagnon 1988.
- [3836] Holiday 1973.
- [3837] Meurger & Gagnon 1988.
- [3838] Ibid.
- [3839] Holiday 1973.
- [3840] Meurger & Gagnon 1988.
- [3841] Ibid.
- [3842] Native-languages.org. (n.d.). Native American Legends: Kuku {Gougou}. Retrieved December 17, 2021 from http://www.native-languages.org/kuku.htm
- [3843] Paulides, D. (2008). *The Hoopa Project: Bigfoot Encounters in California*. Blaine, WA: Hancock House.
- [3844] Bane 2016.
- [3845] Meurger & Gagnon 1988.
- [3846] Ibid.
- [3847] Holiday 1973.
- [3848] Ibid.
- [3849] Meurger & Gagnon 1988.
- [3850] Harvey-Wilson 2000.
- [3851] Meurger & Gagnon 1988.
- [3852] Redfern, N. (June 9, 2021). The Strange Saga of the Men in Black at Loch Ness. Retrieved December 17, 2021 from https://mysteriousuniverse.org/2021/06/the-strange-saga-of-the-men-in-black-of-loch-ness/
- [3853] Ibid.
- [3854] Meurger & Gagnon 1988.
- [3855] Ibid.
- [3856] Keel 2002.
- [3857] Redfern 2016.

- [3858] Holiday, F.W. (January/February 1973). Dragons and UFOs at Loch Ness. *Flying Saucer Review* 19(1), pp. 15-17.
- [3859] Fleming 2002.
- [3860] Redfern 2016.
- [3861] Meurger & Gagnon 1988.
- [3862] Ibid.
- [3863] Redfern 2021.
- [3864] Holiday 1973.
- [3865] Daimler 2017.
- [3866] Ibid.
- [3867] Coleman & Huyghe 2003.
- [3868] Jøn, A.A. (1998). Dugongs and Mermaids, Selkies and Seals. Australian Folklore 12, pp. 94-98.
- [3869] Mack 1994.
- [3870] Meurger & Gagnon 1988.
- [3871] Ibid.
- [3872] Sveinsson 2003.
- [3873] Coleman & Huyghe 2003.
- [3874] Ibid.
- [3875] Meurger & Gagnon 1988.
- [3876] Jakobsson 2011.
- [3877] Sharpe, C. (1830). The Worme of Lambton. UK: F. Humble.
- [3878] Holiday 1969.
- [3879] Fletcher, A. (2012). Worm Hill "Serpens Caput" A Sacred Mound within a Ritual landscape. Retrieved December 18, 2021 from http://www.washingtonlass.com/WormHill.html
- [3880] Holiday 1973.
- [3881] Bacon 1993.
- [3882] Whited, R. (August 21, 2015). Uktena and Fort Mountain Stone Wall. Retrieved December 18, 2021 from https://chuckacabra.wordpress.com/2015/08/21/uktena-and-fort-mountain-stone-wall/
- [3883] Meurger & Gagnon 1988.
- [3884] Durkin, P. (July 18, 2019). Rock Lake's 'Pyramids' are Just Silty Rock Piles. Retrieved December 18, 2021 from https://www.patrickdurkinoutdoors.com/post/rock-lake-s-pyramids-are-just-silty-rock-piles
- [3885] Meurger & Gagnon 1988.
- [3886] Holiday, F.W. (September/October 1973). Exorcism and UFO Landing at Loch Ness. *Flying Saucer Review 19*(5), pp. 3-7.
- [3887] Redfern 2016.
- [3888] Jung 1976.
- [3889] Meurger & Gagnon 1988.
- [3890] Eliade 1964.
- [3891] Meurger & Gagnon 1988.

- [3892] Ibid.
- [3893] Ibid.
- [3894] Mooney 1900.
- [3895] Eliade 1964.
- [3896] Mann 2003.
- [3897] Eliade 1964.
- [3898] Redfern 2016.
- [3899] Eliade 1964.
- [3900] Walter & Fridman 2004.
- [3901] Meurger & Gagnon 1988.
- [3902] Eliade 1964.
- [3903] Meurger & Gagnon 1988.
- [3904] Mooney 1900.
- [3905] Meurger & Gagnon 1988.
- [3906] Ibid.
- [3907] Holiday 1973.
- [3908] Tenazas, R.C.P. (March 1973). The Boat-Coffin Burial Complex in the Philippines and its Relation to Similar Practices in Southeast Asia. *Philippine Quarterly of Culture and Society 1*(1), pp. 19-25.
- [3909] Meurger & Gagnon 1988.
- [3910] Redfern 2016.
- [3911] Druffel, A. (May 1982). California Report: Another Unidentified Occurrence. *MUFON UFO Journal 171*, pp. 9-11.
- [3912] Eliade 1964.
- [3913] Lewels, J. (December 2006). John Mack and the Reptilian Project. *MUFON UFO Journal 464*, pp. 3-6.
- [3914] Hancock 2007.
- [3915] Morgan, D. (2008). Snakes in Myth, Magic, and History. Westport, CT: Praeger.
- [3916] Briggs 1976.
- [3917] Meurger & Gagnon 1988.
- [3918] Daimler 2017.
- [3919] Bord & Bord 1985.
- [3920] Wilson & Wilson 2000.
- [3921] Jung 1976.
- [3922] Bord & Bord 1985.
- [3923] Coleman, L., & Clark, J. (1999). Cryptozoology A to Z: The Encyclopedia of Loch Monsters, Sasquatch, Chupacabras, and Other Authentic Mysteries of Nature. New York, NY: Fireside.
- [3924] Tate, C.E. (2010). The Axolotl as Food and Symbol in the Basin of Mexico, from 1200 BC to today. In J.E. Staller & M. Carrasco (Eds.), *Pre-Columbian Foodways* (pp. 511-534). New York, NY: Springer.

- [3925] Blackman 1998.
- [3926] Meurger & Gagnon 1988.
- [3927] Briggs 1976.
- [3928] Fleming 2002.
- [3929] Bord & Bord 1985.
- [3930] Coleman & Huyghe 2003.
- [3931] Meurger & Gagnon 1988.
- [3932] Ibid.
- [3933] Gordon, S. (1997). *The Book of Curses: True Tales of Voodoo, Hoodoo and Hex.* Leicester, UK: Brockhampton Press. (Original work published 1994)
- [3934] Ogden 2001.
- [3935] Meurger & Gagnon 1988.
- [3936] Guiley 2009.
- [3937] Ford, M.W. (2006). Book of the Witch Moon. US: Succubus Publishing.
- [3938] Meurger & Gagnon 1988.
- [3939] Lecouteux 2019.
- [3940] Meurger & Gagnon 1988.
- [3941] Meyer, B. (March 3, 1997). Unearthing clues at Serpent Mound: Geologists find evidence of a meteor crash near prehistoric monument in Adams County. Retrieved December 20, 2021 from https://www.cleveland.com/pdextra/2009/04/unearthing_clues_at_serpent_mo.html
- [3942] Coleman & Huyghe 2003.
- [3943] Keel 1976.
- [3944] Reimann, M. (July 31, 2017). The deadliest bridge disaster in US history was caused by a tiny crack just three millimeters deep. Retrieved December 21, 2021 from https://timeline.com/the-deadliest-bridge-disaster-in-us-history-was-caused-by-a-tiny-crack-just-3-millimeters-deep-ca5404c4dffa
- [3945] Keel 1976.
- [3946] Clelland 2015.
- [3947] Redfern, N. (2004). Three Men Seeking Monsters. New York, NY: Paraview.
- [3948] Keel 1976.
- [3949] Wayland, T. (2019). The Lake Michigan Mothman. Madison, WI: Singular Fortean Publishing.
- [3950] Raynes 2019.
- [3951] Keel 1976.
- [3952] Fisher, B. (September 21, 2020). Mothman and Burial Mounds. Retrieved December 21, 2021 from https://6degreesofjohnkeel.com/blog/mothman-and-burial-mounds
- [3953] Nunnelly, B. (2017). *The Inhumanoids*. US: Triangulum Publishing (2nd ed.).
- [3954] Keel 1976.
- [3955] Raynes 2019.
- [3956] Keel 1976.
- [3957] Wayland 2019.

- [3958] Croker 1825.
- [3959] Keel 1976.
- [3960] Ibid.
- [3961] Ibid.
- [3962] Ibid.
- [3963] Ibid.
- [3964] Barker, G. (1970). The Silver Bridge. Clarksburg, WV: Saucerian Books.
- [3965] Keel 1976.
- [3966] Ibid.
- [3967] Ibid.
- [3968] Ibid.
- [3969] Ibid.
- [3970] Ibid.
- [3971] Ibid.
- [3972] Ibid.
- [3973] Ibid.
- [3974] Ibid.
- [3975] Ibid.
- [3976] Ibid.
- [3977] Ibid.
- [3978] Barker 1970.
- [3979] Keel 1976.
- [3980] Barker 1970.
- [3981] Ibid.
- [3982] Nunnelly, B.M. (2011). *The Inhumanoids: Real Encounters with Beings That Can't Exist.* Woolsery, UK: CFZ Press.
- [3983] Coleman & Clark 1999.
- [3984] Kowalewski 2015.
- [3985] Eno & Eno 2016.
- [3986] Young 2017.
- [3987] Redfern, N. (April 6, 2021). The Mothman Prophecies Movie and the Chernobyl Disaster of April 1986: What's the Truth? Retrieved December 21, 2021 from https://mysteriousuniverse.org/2021/04/the-mothman-prophecies-movie-and-the-chernobyl-disaster-of-april-1986-whats-the-truth
- [3988] Ibid.
- [3989] Swancer, B. (June 19, 2021). Strange Tales of Disaster and the Mothman in Japan. Retrieved December 21, 2021 from https://mysteriousuniverse.org/2021/06/strange-tales-of-disaster-and-the-mothman-in-japan
- [3990] Wayland 2019.
- [3991] Nunnelly 2011.

- [3992] Keel 1976.
- [3993] Ibid.
- [3994] No author. (n.d.). Case 127. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 2003 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-2003.pdf
- [3995] Coleman, L. (November 2006). Mothman associate producer Lisa McIntosh dead at 42. *MUFON UFO Journal 463*, p. 13.
- [3996] Hanks 2010.
- [3997] Wood & Subrahmanyam 1911.
- [3998] Voorburg, R. (n.d.). Itzpapalotl. Retrieved December 21, 2021 from https:// www.azteccalendar.com/god/Itzpapalotl.html
- [3999] Cline, A. (2011). Itzpapalotl: Itzpapalotl, Goddess of Fire and Birds in Aztec Religion, Mythology. Retrieved December 21, 2021 from https://web.archive.org/web/20110605143439/http://atheism.about.com/od/aztecgodsgoddesses/p/Itzpapalotl.htm?terms=itzpapalotl
- [4000] Eno, P. & Eno, B. (2017). Behind the Paranormal 2: Bigfoot, Mothman and Monsters You Never Heard Of. Woonsocket, RI: Barking Cat Books.
- [4001] Ibid.
- [4002] Swancer, B. (January 5, 2019). The Mysterious Butterfly People of Missouri. Retrieved December 21, 2021 from https://mysteriousuniverse.org/2019/01/the-mysterious-butterfly-people-of-missouri/
- [4003] Harpur 2003.
- [4004] Gorightly & Bishop 2018.
- [4005] Cutchin & Renner 2020.
- [4006] Vallee 1990.
- [4007] Vasey, G.M. (2017). The Chilling, True Terror of the Black Eyed Kids. US: Asteroth's Books.
- [4008] Redfern, N. (2016). Women in Black: The Creepy Companions of the Mysterious M.I.B. US: Lisa Hagan Books [Kindle edition].
- [4009] Butler, D. & Nally, C. (2006). Conspiracy of Silence: UFOs in Ireland. Cork, IE: Mercier Press.
- [4010] Worley 1997.
- [4011] Fenwick, L.J. & Muskat, J. (August 1980). Toronto Abduction Report. *Flying Saucer Review* 26(2), pp. 21-27.
- [4012] Schwartz, B.E. (January 1978). The Man-in-Black Syndrome...I. *Flying Saucer Review 23*(4), pp. 9-15.
- [4013] Keel 1976.
- [4014] Cutchin 2016.
- [4015] Schwartz 1978.
- [4016] Ibid.
- [4017] Ibid.
- [4018] Freedman, J. (January 2013). Transformations of a Jewish Princess: Salome and the Remaking of the Jewish Female Body from Sarah Bernhardt to Betty Boop. *Philological Quarterly 92*(1), p. 89.
- [4019] No author. (December 16, 1882). The Drama in Paris. The Era, p. 5.
- [4020] Keel 1976.

- [4021] Fowler 2020.
- [4022] Thompson, J.C. & Miles, J. (n.d.). Case 140. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1992 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1992.pdf
- [4023] Keel 1976.
- [4024] Raynes 2019.
- [4025] Godfrey 2008.
- [4026] Ibid.
- [4027] Godfrey 2019.
- [4028] Laszkiewicz, W. (2014). The Reinvention of Lycanthropy in Modern Fantasy Literature. In A. Wicher, P. Spyra, & J. Matyjaszczyk (Eds.), *Basic Categories of Fantastic Literature Revisited* (pp. 91-103). Newcastle upon Tyne, UK: Cambridge Scholars Publishing.
- [4029] Godfrey 2008.
- [4030] Ogden 2001.
- [4031] Ibid.
- [4032] Lecouteux 2003.
- [4033] Ibid.
- [4034] Devereux 2001.
- [4035] Lecouteux 2003.
- [4036] Devereux 2001.
- [4037] Godfrey 2014.
- [4038] Little 1990.
- [4039] Romain, W.F. (n.d.). Werewolf Shamans in the Ancient Woodlands of the Eastern United States. Retrieved March 15, 2022 from https://www.academia.edu/37433573/WEREWOLF_SHAMANS_IN_THE_ANCIENT_WOODLANDS_OF_THE_EASTERN_UNITED_STATES
- [4040] Verdiglione, A. (2019). *Urkommunismus: Fear of the World.* (M. Svensson, Trans.). Bologna, IT: Associazione Amici di Spirali
- [4041] Fiske, J. (1889). Myths and Myth-Makers. Boston, MA: Houghton, Mifflin and Company.
- [4042] Cutchin & Renner 2020.
- [4043] Azkath, S. (November 21, 2020). Where Did the Road Go? Supernatural Skulduggery with Joshua Cutchin and Natalie Nov. 14, 2020. Retrieved December 30, 2021 from https://www.wheredidtheroadgo.com/show-archive/2020/item/691-supernatural-skulduggery-with-joshua-cutchin-and-natalie-nov-14-2020
- [4044] Quinlan, S.M. (September 2013). Shots to the mind: Violence, the brain and biomedicine in popular novels and film in post-1960s America. *European Journal of American Culture 32*(3).
- [4045] Parnia, S. & Fenwick, P. (January 2002). Near death experiences in cardiac arrest: visions of a dying brain or visions of a new science of consciousness. *Resuscitation* 52(1), pp. 5-11.
- [4046] van Lommel 2010.
- [4047] Britannica. (n.d.). headhunting. Retrieved December 30, 2021 from https://www.britannica.com/topic/headhunting
- [4048] Armit 2012.
- [4049]Waterbury 1952.

- [4050] Frazer 2009.
- [4051] Picardo, N.S. (2007). "Semantic Homicide" and the So-called Reserve Heads: The Theme of Decapitation in Egyptian Funerary Religion and Some Implications for the Old Kingdom. *Journal of the American Research Center in Egypt 43*, pp. 221-252.
- [4052] Kitat, S. E-S. (2019). The Veneration of the Owl in Graeco-Roman Egypt. *International Journal of History and Cultural Studies* 5(2), pp. 1-20.
- [4053] Toyne, J.M. (2015). The Body Sacrificed. Journal of Religion and Violence 3(1), pp. 137-172.
- [4054] DeLeonardis, L. (December 2000). The Body Context: Interpreting Early Nasca Decapitated Burials. *Latin American Quarterly 11*(4), pp. 363-386.
- [4055] Toyne, J.M. (December 2011). Interpretations of Pre-Hispanic Ritual Violence at Tucume, Peru, from Cut Mark Analysis. *Latin American Antiquity* 22(4), pp. 505-523.
- [4056] De Montellano, B.R.O. (June 1983). Counting Skulls: Comment on the Aztec Cannibalism Theory of Harner-Harris. *American Anthropologist* 85(2), pp. 403-406.
- [4057] Shushan 2009.
- [4058] Armit 2012.
- [4059] Ibid.
- [4060] Ibid.
- [4061] Muraresku 2020.
- [4062] Armit 2012.
- [4063] Walter 2006.
- [4064] Ibid.
- [4065] Lincoln, B. (1991). *Death, War, and Sacrifice: Studies in Ideology & Practice.* Chicago, IL: University of Chicago Press.
- [4066] Cotterell, A. (2006). The Encyclopedia of Mythology. Wisbech, UK: Anness Publishing.
- [4067] Bromwich, R. (2006). *Trioedd Ynys Prydein: The Triads of the Island of Britain*. Cardiff, UK: University of Wales Press.
- [4068] Tolstoy, N. (2009). The Oldest British Prose Literature. Lewiston, NY: Edwin Mellen Press.
- [4069] Daimler, M. (October 27, 2015). Crom Cruach. Retrieved December 31, 2021 from https://lairbhan.blogspot.com/2015/10/crom-cruach.html
- [4070] Armit 2012.
- [4071] Madden, T. (May 16, 2018). Crom Cruach and the Cult of the Head. Retrieved December 31, 2021 from https://www.threewellsofthesea.com/blog/crom-cruach-and-the-cult-of-the-head
- [4072] Roos, D. (October 11, 2018). Human Sacrifice: Why the Aztecs Practiced This Gory Ritual. Retrieved December 31, 2021 from https://www.history.com/news/aztec-human-sacrifice-religion
- [4073] Armit 2012.
- [4074] Waterbury 1952.
- [4075] Anderson 1990.
- [4076] Voß, A. & Eberl, M. (December 1999). Ek Balam: A New Emblem Glyph from the Northeastern Yucatán. *Mexicon* 21(6), pp. 124-131.
- [4077] Baird, M.F. (2006). Frederica de Laguna and the Study of Pre-Contact Pictographs from Coastal Sites in Cook Inlet and Prince William Sound, Alaska. *Arctic Anthropology* 43(2), pp. 136-147.

- [4078] Turpin, S.A. (Autumn 1990). Rock Art and Hunter-Gatherer Archaeology: A Case Study from SW Texas and Northern Mexico. *Journal of Field Archaeology* 17(3), pp. 263-281.
- [4079] Meurger & Gagnon 1988.
- [4080] Keel 2015.
- [4081] Bord, J., & Bord, C. (1989). *Unexplained Mysteries of the 20th Century*. Lincolnwood, IL: Contemporary Books.
- [4082] Renner, T. (2021). The Witch Cloud. Red Lion, PA: Dark Holler Arts.
- [4083] Walter 2006.
- [4084] Wiel, N. (n.d.). The Legend Of Kanaloa-Huluhulu. Retrrieved December 31, 2021 from http://www.bluecoast.org/nonprofit/kanaloa/k3.html
- [4085] Keel 1976.
- [4086] Raynes 2019.
- [4087] Figuet & Ruchon, J.L. (n.d.). Case 89. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1975 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1975.pdf
- [4088] St. Laurent, K. (October 31, 2020). The classic image of the Mothman... Retrieved December 31, 2021 from https://www.facebook.com/groups/2527888140806209/posts/2708584806069874
- [4089] Keel 2002.
- [4090] Godfrey 2008.
- [4091] Porter, H. (n.d.). Case 66. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1982 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1982.pdf
- [4092] Vargas, A.B. (n.d.). Case 227. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 2001 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-2001.pdf
- [4093] Cutchin 2018.
- [4094] Devereux 1995.
- [4095] Hall, M.A. (2004). *Thunderbirds: America's Living Legends of Giant Birds*. New York, NY: Paraview Press.
- [4096] Godfrey 2014.
- [4097] Hall 2004.
- [4098] Ibid.
- [4099] Keel 1970.
- [4100] Hutton 2017.
- [4101] Picasso, F. (n.d.). Case 7. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1909 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1909.pdf
- [4102] Vallee 1993.
- [4103] Bullard 1987 Vol. 2.
- [4104] Warren, C.C. (1973). Case 217. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1973 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1973.pdf
- [4105] TUFOIC. (July 1995). Case 68. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1983 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1983.pdf
- [4106] Various. (1990-1991). Cases 184, 188, 229, & 240. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1989 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1989.pdf

- [4107] Vallee, J. (1991). Revelations. New York, NY: Ballantine Books.
- [4108] Wilson 1993.
- [4109] Slevik 2020.
- [4110] Showalter, E. (1997). *Hystories: Hysterical Epidemics and Modern Media*. New York, NY: Columbia University Press.
- [4111] Turner 1994.
- [4112] Sullivan 2004.
- [4113] Lecouteux 2011.
- [4114] Ibid.
- [4115] Albertoni, M. & Damiani, I. (2008). Il tempio di Giove e le origini del colle Capitolino. Milan, IT: Mondadori Electa.
- [4116] Muraresku 2020.
- [4117] Ibid.
- [4118] Osborne, H. (June 28, 2017). Earliest Ever Neolithic Skull Cult Discovered at Archaeology Site in Turkey. Retrieved January 1, 2022 from https://www.newsweek.com/neolithic-skull-cultgobekli-tepe-turkey-629740
- [4119] Bocquentin, F., Kodas, E., & Ortiz, A. (2016). Headless but still eloquent! Acephalous skeletons as witnesses of Pre-Pottery Neolithic North-South Levant connections and disconnections. *Paléorient* 42(2), pp. 33-52.
- [4120] Meskell, L. (September 2008). The Nature of the Beast: Curating Animals and Ancestors at Çatalhöyük. *World Archaeology* 40(3), pp. 373-389.
- [4121] Muraresku 2020.
- [4122] White 2016.
- [4123] Muraresku 2020.
- [4124] White 2016.
- [4125] Olndskan. (n.d.). Sandby Borg Ringfort. Retrieved January 1, 2022 from https://www.atlasobscura.com/places/sandby-borg-ringfort
- [4126] Stout 2002.
- [4127] Bitel 2018.
- [4128] Armit 2012.
- [4129] Mann 2003.
- [4130] Webb, W.S. & Snow, C.E. (1974). *The Adena People*. Knoxville, TN: The University of Tennessee Press. (Original work published 1945)
- [4131] Levenda 2005.
- [4132] Peebles, C.S. & Kus, S.M. (July 1977). Some Archaeological Correlates of Ranked Societies. *American Antiquity* 42(3), pp. 421-448.
- [4133] Holt, J.Z. (April 2009). Rethinking the Ramey State: Was Cahokia the Center of a Theater State? *American Antiquity* 74(2), pp. 231-254.
- [4134] Armit 2012.
- [4135] Conlee, C.A. (June 2007). Decapitation and Rebirth: A Headless Burial from Nasca, Peru. *Current Anthropology* 48(3), pp. 438-445.
- [4136] Armit 2012.

- [4137] Ibid.
- [4138] Ogden 2001.
- [4139] Muraresku 2020.
- [4140] Mann 2003.
- [4141] Armit 2012.
- [4142] Ibid.
- [4143] Ibid.
- [4144] Frankfurter, D. (2018). The Threat of Headless Beings: Constructing the Demonic in Christian Egypt. In M. Ostling (Ed.), Fairies, Demons, and Nature Spirits: 'Small Gods' at the Margins of Christendom, pp. 57-78.
- [4145] Eliade 1964.
- [4146] Frazer 2009.
- [4147] Reichardt, P.F. (1984). Gawain and the Image of the Wound. *Publications of the Modern Language Association of America* 99(2), pp. 154-161.
- [4148] Digital Ambler. (n.d.). Headless Rite. Retrieved January 2, 2022 from https://digitalambler.com/rituals/classical-hermetic-rituals/the-headless-rite/
- [4149] White 2016.
- [4150] Digital Ambler n.d.
- [4151] T.F. (September 2, 2017). Preisendanz's Headless God. Retrrieved January 2, 2022 from https://sublunar.space/2017-09-preisendanz-headless-god.html
- [4152] Frankfurter 2018.
- [4153] White 2016.
- [4154] Ulysses2137. (April 24, 2020). Heaven and Hell in a Pocket Universe. Retrieved January 2, 2022 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=114306
- [4155] Harding, D.E. (2012). On Having No Head. London, UK: The Shollond Trust.
- [4156] Frankfurter 2018.
- [4157] Guiley 2009.
- [4158] Bane 2016.
- [4159] Guiley 2009.
- [4160] Singh, B. (May 2012). The Headless Horseman of Central Asia: Sovereignty at Varying Thresholds of Life. *Cultural Anthropology* 27(2), pp. 383-407.
- [4161] Lang, A. (Ed.). (1901). The Violet Fairy Book. New York, NY: Longmans, Green, and Co.
- [4162] Briggs 1976.
- [4163] Bartlett, R. (2013). Why Can the Dead Do Such Great Things? Princeton, NJ: Princeton University Press.
- [4164] Armit 2012.
- [4165] Ibid.
- [4166] Owen 1896.
- [4167] Foster 2015.
- [4168] Waddell 2018.

- [4169] Olofsson, J. & Josefson, E. (2007). The Development of Eketorp Fort. *Expedition 49*(1), pp. 28-34.
- [4170] Lucas, G. & McGovern, T. (2007). Bloody Slaughter: Ritual Decapitation And Display At The Viking Settlement Of Hofstaðir, Iceland. *European Journal of Archaeology* 10(1), pp. 7-30.
- [4171] Eliade, M. (1993). Patterns in Comparative Religion. New York, NY: Sheed and Ward.
- [4172] Schuster, R. (March 30, 2021). Swedish Warriors Went Gentle Into the Good Night, Entombed on Feather Beds. Retrieved January 2, 2022 from https://www.haaretz.com/archaeology/swedish-warriors-went-gentle-into-the-good-night-entombed-on-feather-beds-1.9666754
- [4173] Armit 2012.
- [4174] Pauketat, T.R. & Sassaman, K.E. (2020). *The Archaeology of Ancient North America*. Cambridge, UK: Cambridge University Press.
- [4175] Claassen, C. (2015). *Beliefs and Rituals in Archaic Eastern North America*. Tuscaloosa, AL: University of Alabama Press.
- [4176] Edrey, M. (2013). Dog Cult in Persian Period Judea. In P. Ackerman-Lieberman & R. Zalashik (Eds.), *A Jew's Best Friend? The Image of the Dog throughout Jewish History* (pp. 12-35). Eastbourne, UK: Sussex Academic Press.
- [4177] Bord & Bord 1985.
- [4178] Browne, R.B. (Ed.). (1976). "A Night with the Hants" and Other Alabama Folk Experiences. Bowling Green, KY: Popular Press.
- [4179] Bullard, T. (2011). *Haunted America: Watauga County, North Carolina*. Charleston, SC: Haunted America.
- [4180] Lecouteux 2019.
- [4181] Ibid.
- [4182] Ibid.
- [4183] Denosky, J. (2018). The Vajrayogini. Retrieved January 2, 2022 from http://www.buddhanature.com/buddha/yogini-bardo-world.html
- [4184] Benard, E.A. (1994). Chinnamasta: The Aweful Buddhist and Hindu Tantric Goddess. Delhi, IND: Motilal Banarsidass Publishers.
- [4185] Jung 1963.
- [4186] Platelle, H. (February 1, 2001). San Nicasio di Reims Vescovo. Retrieved January 3, 2022 from http://www.santiebeati.it/dettaglio/81400
- [4187] Walter, C. (2003). *The Warrior Saints in Byzantine Art and Tradition*. New York, NY: Routledge. [4188] Ibid.
- [4189] Stoichita, V.I. (1995). Visionary Experience in the Golden Age of Spanish Art. London, UK: Reaktion Books Ltd.
- [4190] Davies, N. & Jokiniemi, E. (2008). *Dictionary of Architecture and Building Construction*. Oxford, UK: Elsevier.
- [4191] Didron, A.N. (1851). Christian Iconography Vol. 1 & 2. London, UK: Henry G. Bohn.
- [4192] Hall, J. (1983). A History of Ideas and Images in Italian Art. London, UK: John Murray.
- [4193] Didron 1851.
- [4194] Evans, H.C. (2004). *Byzantium: Faith and Power (1261-1557)*. New Haven, CT: Yale University Press.
- [4195] Leidy, D.P. & Strahan, D. (2010). Wisdom Embodied: Chinese Buddhist and Daoist Sculpture in the Metropolitan Museum of Art. New Haven, CT: Metropolitan Museum of Art.

[4196] Evans Wentz 1911.

[4197] Clarke 2012.

[4198] Caciola 2016.

[4199] McKenna, T. & McKenna, K. (April 1986). The Rites of Spring. Retrieved January 3, 2022 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/The+Rites+Of+Spring?query=halo

[4200] Strieber 1988.

BIBLIOGRAPHY

- A., Ron. (n.d.). Ron A NDE 916. Retrieved August 20, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1ron_a_nde.html
- A., Melisa. (n.d.). 4037 Melisa A NDE 7812. Retrieved March 19, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1melisa_a_nde.html
- A., Olu. (n.d.). 2850 Olu A Possible NDE 6030. Retrieved November 3, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1olu_a_possible_nde.html
- Abramson, A. (Sep.-Dec. 2005). Drinking to Mana and Ethnicity: Trajectories of Yaqona Practice and Symbolism in Eastern Fiji. *Oceania* 75(4), pp. 325-341.
- Acher, F. (2021). On the Foundations of Animistic Spirit Practice in Paracelsus's Works. DE: Frater Acher.
- Adam. (January 1, 2009). Human, Yet Alien. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=54527
- Adamski, G. (1955). Inside the Spaceships. New York, NY: Abelard-Schuman, Inc.
- Adamson, R. (1999). The Experience of Ayahuasca: Teaching of the Amazonian Plant Spirits. In R. Metzner (Ed.), *Ayahuasca: Hallucinogens, Consciousness, and the Spirit of Nature* (pp. 118-128). New York, NY: Thunder's Mouth Press.
- Adomnán of Iona. (1995). Life of St. Columba. (R. Sharpe, Trans.). London, UK: Penguin.
- Aesteii, P. (n.d.). 1st Ley Line Teotihuacan-Chaokia-Theo-Wheaton. Retrieved August 3, 2021 from https://patrick0psy6aesteii.yolasite.com/modern-libraries-of-alexandria.php
- Afterlife Research and Education Institute, Inc. (2016). Using Hypnotism in Afterlife Communication. Retrieved May 29, 2021 from http://mindstudies.com/hypnotism-afterlife-connections/
- Ahern, E.M. (1973). *The Cult of the Dead in a Chinese Village*. Stanford, CA: Stanford University Press.
- Ahmadi, A. (February 2015). Two Chthonic Features of the Daēva Cult in Historical Evidence. *History of Religions* 54(3), pp. 346-370.
- Aijmer, G. (2007). Landscape and Mindscape in Southeastern China: The Management of Death in a Mountain Community. *Journal of Ritual Studies 21*(2), pp. 32-45.
- Albertoni, M. & Damiani, I. (2008). *Il tempio di Giove e le origini del colle Capitolino*. Milan, IT: Mondadori Electa.
- Aleixo, H.B. (November/December 1973). Abduction at Bebedouro. *Flying Saucer Review 19*(6), pp. 6-14.
- Alex. (March 11, 2011). Demon Woman. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=88866
- Allegro, J.M. (1970). The Sacred Mushroom and the Cross: A Study of the Nature and Origins of Christianity Within the Fertility Cults of the Ancient Near East. Gnostic Media Research & Publishing.

- Alley, J.R. (2007). *Raincoast Sasquatch*. Blaine, WA: Hancock House. (Original work published 2003)
- Altmann, A.E. (2006). *The Seven Swabians, and Other German Folktales*. Westport, CT: Libraries Unlimited.
- American Museum of Natural History. (2021). Kwakwaka'wakw. Retrieved January 14, 2022 from https://www.amnh.org/exhibitions/permanent/northwest-coast/kwakwakawakw
- American Pregnancy Association. (September 2, 2016). Vanishing Twin Syndrome. Retrieved August 25, 2017 from http://americanpregnancy.org/multiples/vanishing-twin-syndrome/
- American Psychological Association. (July 2, 2004). Hypnosis for the Relief and Control of Pain. Retrieved June 8, 2021 from https://www.apa.org/research/action/hypnosis
- Ancuta, K. (2012). Ghosts, Revenants and Specters: The Side-effects of Dying. In E.A. Berendt (Ed.), *Facing Finality: Cognitive and Cultural Studies in Death and Dying* (pp. 107-125). Louisville, KY: The Institute for Intercultural Communication.
- Andalou Agency. (June 25, 2015). UFOs continue to fascinate Turkey and the world. Retrieved June 29, 2021 from https://www.hurriyetdailynews.com/ufos-continue-to-fascinate-turkey-and-the-world------84526
- Anderson, L.I. (April 22, 1961). Extra-Terrestrial Radio Transmissions. Nature 190, p. 374.
- Anderson, W. (1990). *Green Man: The Archetype of our Oneness with the Earth.* San Francisco, CA: HarperCollins Publishers.
- Andrews, G. (1992). *Extra-Terrestrials Among Us.* St. Paul, MN: Llewellyn Publications. (Original work published 1986)
- Andrews, S. (2013). Representing Mount Wutai's Past: A Study of Chinese and Japanese Miracle Tales about the Five Terrace Mountain (Doctoral Dissertation). Columbia University: Graduate School of Arts and Sciences.
- Andrews, T. (2004). Wonders of the Sky. Westport, CT: Libraries Unlimited.
- Andrus, W.H. (August 2001). Woman claims entities saved her from death. *MUFON UFO Journal* 400, pp. 5-7.
- Anfalov, A. (n.d.). Case 93. In A Rosales (Ed.), *1985 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1985.pdf
- Anfalov, A. (n.d.). Case 431. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1989 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1989.pdf
- Anfalov, A. (n.d.). Case 225. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1997 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1997.pdf
- Angelucci, O. (1955). The Secret of the Saucers. Amherst, WI: Amherst Press.
- Anomalnye Novosti. (June 2006). Case 11. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1987 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1987.pdf
- AnomalyArchives. (Dec. 5, 2020). Anomaly Archives Saturday Streamathon Fundraiser Series Part-Three (A). Retrieved April 12, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=eFubdaG1YZY
- Anonymous. (October 1, 2017). Personal communication.
- Anonymous. (2021). Fairy Forts. Retrieved July 15, 2021 from https://www.duchas.ie/en/cbes/5044692/5032598

- Ansari, M.F.R. (1999). *Islam to the Modern Mind*. Y. Mohamed, Ed. Paarl, SA: Hidden Treasure Press.
- Applegate, R.B. (1975). The Datura Cult Among the Chumash. *The Journal of California Anthropology* 2(1), pp. 7-17.
- Arakelova, V. (2002). Three Figures from the Yezidi Folk Pantheon. *Iran & the Caucasus 6*(1/2), pp. 55-73.
- Archaeo News. (October 14, 2003). Important new findings in Louisiana. Retrieved July 8, 2021 from https://www.stonepages.com/news/archives/000363.html
- Aristotle. (n.d.). On Prophesying in Dreams. (J.I. Beare, Trans.). Retrieved May 28, 2021 from http://classics.mit.edu/Aristotle/prophesying.html
- Arkansas Department of Parks, Heritage, and Tourism. (2021). Arkansas Urban Legends. Retrieved July 13, 2021 from https://www.arkansas.com/articles/arkansas-urban-legends
- Armit, I. (2012). Headhunting and the Body in Iron Age Europe. New York, NY: Cambridge.
- Árnason, J. (1866). *Icelandic Legends: Second Series*. (G.E.J. Powell & E. Magnússon, Trans.). London, UK: Longmans, Green, and Co.
- Arnold, N. (2013). Kent Urban Legends. Stroud, UK: The History Press.
- Arthur, J.D. (2010). Salvia Divinorum: Doorway to Thought-Free Awareness. Rochester, VT: Park Street Press.
- Asante, M.K., & Mazama, A. (Eds.). (2009). *Encyclopedia of African Religion*. Thousand Oaks, CA: SAGE Publications, Inc.
- Ashli. (n.d.). 4596 Ashli NDEs 8696. Retrieved April 1, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1ashli ndes.html
- Ashliman, D.L. (2005, December 17). German Changeling Legends. Retrieved May 4, 2021 from http://www.pitt.edu/~dash/gerchange.html
- Ashton, J. & Whyte, T. (2001). The Quest for Paradise: Visions of Heaven and Eternity in the World's Myths and Religions. San Francisco: Harper San Francisco.
- Aspinall, K. (Summer 1995). "Alien Abductions" and "Fairy Abductions": A Comparison. *Flying Saucer Review 40*(2), pp. 9-11.
- Associated Press. (June 23, 2011). Egypt Excavates Ancient King's 4,500-Year-Old Ship. Retrieved November 3, 2021 from https://web.archive.org/web/20110626161813/http://www.foxnews.com/scitech/2011/06/23/egypt-excavates-4500-year-old-pharaohs-boat/
- Atwater, P.M.H. (2000). *The Complete Idiot's Guide to Near-Death Experiences*. Indianapolis, IN: Macmillan USA, Inc.
- Aubeck, C. (2003). TOKENS: UFOs as Omens of Human Death. Unpublished. (Original work published in French in *La Gazette Fortéenne Volume 2*, Paris, FR: Editions de l'Oeil du Sphinx)
- Aubeck, C. (n.d.). Fairies and Saucers together in the press March 11-13, 1950. Unpublished.
- Australian UFO Encounters Map. (n.d.). Australian UFO Encounters Map. Retrieved June 29, 2021 from https://www.google.com/search? client=safari&rls=en&q=australian+ufo+hotspots&ie=UTF-8&oe=UTF-8
- Azaiez, M., Reynolds, G.S., Tesei, T., & Zafer, H.M. (2016). *The Qur'an Seminar Commentary*. Berlin, DE: De Gruyter.

- Azkath, S. (December 24, 2016). Laird Scranton on Skara Brae, the Dogon, Egypt, and More... Retrieved September 19, 2017 from http://www.wheredidtheroadgo.com/itemlist/tag/Laird%20Scranton
- Azkath, S. (November 21, 2020). Where Did the Road Go? Supernatural Skulduggery with Joshua Cutchin and Natalie Nov. 14, 2020. Retrieved December 30, 2021 from https://www.wheredidtheroadgo.com/show-archive/2020/item/691-supernatural-skulduggery-with-joshua-cutchin-and-natalie-nov-14-2020
- B., Esterlein. (n.d.). 2687 Esterlein B NDE 5100. Retrieved April 1, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1esterlein b nde.html
- B., Latimer. (n.d.). 4047 Latimer B Possible NDE 7831. Retrieved March 24, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1latimer b possible nde.html
- B.M.J. (June 20, 2000). Ketamine and the Exploration of Consciousness. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=1968
- Bache, C.M. (2019). LSD and the Mind of the Universe. Rochester, VT: Park Street Press.
- Bacon, W.S. (Fall 1993). Factors in Siting a Middle Woodland Enclosure in Middle Tennessee. *Midcontinental Journal of Archaeology 18*(2), pp. 245-281.
- Baird, C.S. (August 19, 2015). Why have humans evolved to be taller over the last three hundred years? Retrieved April 8, 2021 from https://wtamu.edu/~cbaird/sq/2015/08/19/why-have-humans-evolved-to-be-taller-over-the-last-three-hundred-years/
- Baird, M.F. (2006). Frederica de Laguna and the Study of Pre-Contact Pictographs from Coastal Sites in Cook Inlet and Prince William Sound, Alaska. *Arctic Anthropology 43*(2), pp. 136-147.
- Baires, S.E. (February 23, 2018). White Settlers Buried the Truth About the Midwest's Mysterious Mound Cities. Retrieved July 8, 2021 from https://www.smithsonianmag.com/history/white-settlers-buried-truth-about-midwests-mysterious-mound-cities-180968246/
- Baker, M. (August 17, 2019). 6 times UFOs have been spotted at the 'alien hotspot' Cley Hill. Retrieved July 7, 2021 from https://www.somersetlive.co.uk/news/somerset-news/ufo-cley-hill-warminster-frome-3209653
- Baldwin, W. (1999). CE-VI: Close Encounters of the Possession Kind. Alta, WV: Headline Books, Inc.
- Balfour, E. (1873). *Cyclopaedia of India and of Eastern and Southern Asia: Vol. IV.* Madras, IND: The Scottish and Lawrence Presses (2nd ed.).
- Ball, M. (2000). Sacred Mountains, Religious Paradigms, and Identity Among the Mescalero Apache. *Worldviews* 4(3), pp. 264-282.
- Ballard, L.M. (1997). Fairies and the Supernatural on Reachrai. In P. Narváez (Ed.), *The Good People: New Fairylore Essays* (pp. 47-93). Lexington, KY: The University Press of Kentucky.
- Bane, T. (2013). *Encyclopedia of Fairies in World Folklore and Mythology*. Jefferson, NC: McFarland & Company, Inc.
- Bane, T. (2016). Encyclopedia of Beasts and Monsters in Myth, Legend and Folklore. Jefferson, NC: McFarland & Company, Inc.
- Bane, T. (2016). *Encyclopedia of Spirits and Ghosts in World Mythology*. Jefferson, NC: McFarland & Company, Inc.
- Banks, M.M. (1940, June). Fairies' Methods of Securing Good Stock. Folklore 51(2), pp. 113-114.

- Barasch, M. (2005). The Departing Soul: The Long Life of a Medieval Creation. *Artibus et Historiae* 26(52), pp. 13-28.
- Baring-Gould, S. (1913). A Book of Folk-Lore. London, UK: Collins-Clear-Type-Press.
- Barker, G. (1970). The Silver Bridge. Clarksburg, WV: Saucerian Books.
- Barnett, J. (1978). Flying Saucers and Bigfoot are Related! UFO Review 1(1), pp. 6-8.
- Bartlett, R. (2013). Why Can the Dead Do Such Great Things? Princeton, NJ: Princeton University Press.
- Bartlett, S. (2014). *Guide to the World's Supernatural Places*. Washington, D.C.: The National Geographic Society.
- Barušs, I. (1996). Authentic Knowing: The Convergence of Science and Spiritual Aspiration. West Lafayette, IN: Purdue University Press.
- Basterfield, K. (Autumn 1995). Abducted: An Australian Independently Witnessed Event? *Flying Saucer Review 40*(3), pp. 12-15.
- Basterfield, K. (n.d.). Case 8. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1951 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1951.pdf
- Bays, J.C. (2001). Jizo Bodhisattva: Modern Healing and Traditional Buddhist Practice. Boston, MA: Tuttle, 2001.
- BBC. (August 10, 2017). Wandering shaman 'mistaken' for Bigfoot in North Carolina. Retrieved December 15, 2021 from https://www.bbc.com/news/world-us-canada-40892336
- BBC. (July 31, 2019). Boleskine House: New fire rips through Aleister Crowley's former home. Retrieved December 16, 2021 from https://www.bbc.com/news/uk-scotland-highlands-islands-49186622
- Beach, E.A. (1995). The Eleusinian Mysteries. Retrieved April 16, 2021 from http://www.faculty.umb.edu/gary_zabel/Courses/Phil%20281b/Philosophy%20of%20Magic/Pythagoras,%20Empedocles,%20Plato/The%20Ecole%20Initiative%20The%20Eleusinian%20Mysteries2.htm?fbclid=IwAR2YQbPpascbf-kYe-v7Cmg-0t67R7EGMbmpeRz0S1XDs0sOpZUP6w7cIhA
- Beachcombing. (November 25, 2013). Romans and Fairies? Retrieved May 7, 2021 from http://www.strangehistory.net/2013/11/25/romans-and-fairies/
- Beachcombing. (October 5, 2017). The Scholar Who Went with the Fairies. Retrieved April 27, 2021 from http://www.strangehistory.net/2017/10/05/scholar-went-fairies/
- Bean, L.J. (1974). Mukat's People: The Cahuilla Indians of Southern California. University of California Press.
- Beattie, H. (1918). Traditions and Legends. Collected from the Natives of Murihiku. (Southland, New Zealand.). Part VIII. *The Journal of the Polynesian Society* 27(3), pp. 137-161.
- Beattie, H. (1919). Traditions and Legends. Collected from the Natives of Murihiku. (Southland, New Zealand.). Part XI. *The Journal of the Polynesian Society 28*(112), pp. 212-225.
- Beckwith, M.W. (1970). *Hawaiian Mythology*. Honolulu, HI: University of Hawaii Press.
- Belimov, G.S. (2003). Case 30. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1962 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1962.pdf
- Belmonte, J. A., Esteban, C., Cuesta, L., Perera Betancort, M. A., & Jiménez González, J. J. (1999). Pre-Islamic Burial Monuments in Northern and Saharan Morocco. *Journal for the History of Astronomy 30*, pp. 21-34.

- Benard, E.A. (1994). *Chinnamasta: The Aweful Buddhist and Hindu Tantric Goddess*. Delhi, IND: Motilal Banarsidass Publishers.
- Bennet, C., McQueen, N., & Cowan, R. (2001). Sex, Drugs, Violence and the Bible. Gibsons, BC: Forbidden Fruit Publishing.
- Bergen, L. & Delarose, S. (2019). Nordic Aliens and the Fairies of Ireland. US: Gityasome Books.
- Bergen, L. & Delarose, S. (2019). *Nordic Aliens and the Moon-Eyed People*. US: Gityasome Books.
- Bernhardt, P. (2008). Gods and Goddesses in the Garden: Greco-Roman Mythology and the Scientific Names of Plants. New Brunswick, NJ: Rutgers University Press.
- Best, E. (December 1900). Spiritual Concepts of the Maori: Part I. *The Journal of the Polynesian Society* 9(4[36]), pp. 173-199.
- Best, J.E. (1991). Link and Communiqué. London, UK: Regency Press.
- Beyer, S. (December 24, 2007). The Telepathy Meme. Retrieved June 2, 2021 from https://www.singingtotheplants.com/2007/12/the-telepathy-meme/
- Bhushan, R. (April 21, 2021). 10,000-years-ago Irish Hunter-Gatherers Were Dark-Skinned. Retrieved May 7, 2021 from https://www.ancient-origins.net/news-evolution-human-origins/irish-0015225
- Birney, K. & Doak, B.R. (2011). Funerary Iconography on an Infant Burial Jar from Ashkelon. *Israel Exploration Journey 61*(1), pp. 32-53.
- Bishop, G. (2016). It Defies Language! Los Angeles, CA: Excluded Middle Press.
- Bishop, G. (2017). The Co-Creation Hypothesis: Human Perception, The Informational Universe, and the Overhaul of UFO Research. In R. Graham (Ed.), *UFOs: Reframing the Debate* (pp. 189-208). Hove, UK: White Crow Books.
- Bishop, G. (November 27, 2017). Jeff Ritzmann Calling Occupants. Retrieved September 13, 2021 from http://radiomisterioso.com/2017/11/27/jeff-ritzmann-calling-occupants/
- Bitel, L. (2018). Secrets of the Síd: The Supernatural in Medieval Irish Texts. In M. Ostling (Ed.), *Fairies, Demons, and Nature Spirits: 'Small Gods' at the Margins of Christendom*, pp. 79-102.
- Bitel, L.M. (2009). Landscape with Two Saints. Oxford, UK: Oxford University Press.
- Bjelica, J. (January 8, 2020). The Largest Standing Stupa in Afghanistan: A short history of the Buddhist site at Topdara. Retrieved June 29, 2021 from https://www.afghanistan-analysts.org/en/reports/context-culture/the-largest-standing-stupa-in-afghanistan-a-short-history-of-the-buddhist-site-at-topdara/
- Black Elk, W. & Lyon, W.S. (1991). *Black Elk: The Sacred Ways of a Lakota*. New York, NY: HarperCollins.
- Black, A. (Sept/Oct 2016). Irish defences. *Medieval Warfare* 6(4), pp. 18-19.
- Blackman, W.H. (1998). *The Field Guide to North American Monsters*. New York, NY: Three Rivers Press.
- Blaha, J. (2013). Reflections on Jewish Mysticism. CZ: Blaha.
- Blessing, D. (n.d.). Case 373. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1973 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1973.pdf
- Bliatout, B.T. (1982). *Hmong Sudden Unexpected Nocturnal Death Syndrome*. Portland, ORG: Sparkle Publishing Enterprises.

- Bloch, A. (Director). (2007). Implications of UFO Phenomena [TV series episode]. In A. Bloch (Producer), *Thinking Allowed with Jeffrey Mishlove* [TV series]. Thinking Allowed Productions. Retrieved August 12, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch? v=X8zl7-1PNsw
- Bloch, A. (Director). (n.d.). Aliens and Archetypes (#S425) [TV series episode]. In A. Bloch (Producer), *Thinking Allowed with Jeffrey Mishlove* [TV series]. Thinking Allowed Productions. Retrieved March 17, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch? v=jzA3EJYbCb0
- Boas, F. (1888). The Central Eskimo: Sixth Annual Report of the Bureau of Ethnology to the Secretary of the Smithsonian Institution, 1884-1885. Washington DC: Government Printing Office.
- Bocquentin, F., Kodas, E., & Ortiz, A. (2016). Headless but still eloquent! Acephalous skeletons as witnesses of Pre-Pottery Neolithic North-South Levant connections and disconnections. *Paléorient 42*(2), pp. 33-52.
- Bogoras, W. (April 1925). Ideas of Space and Tim in the Conception of Primitive Religion. *American Anthropologist 27*(2), pp. 205-266.
- Bondarenko, G. (2013). The migration of the soul in *De chophur in dá muccida* and other early Irish tales. In G. Toner & S. Mac Mathúna (Eds.), *Ulidia 3: Proceedings of the Third International Conference on the Ulster Cycle of Tales* (pp. 1-38). Berlin, DE: Curach Bhán Publications.
- Bord, J. (May/June 1972). Are Psychic People More Likely to see UFOs? *Flying Saucer Review* 18(3), pp. 20-22.
- Bord, J. (July 1974). UFOs in Folklore. Flying Saucer Review 20(1), pp. 29-30.
- Bord, J. (2014). *Fairies: Real Encounters with Little People* (Kindle Edition). London, UK: Michael O'Mara Books. (Original work published 1998
- Bord, J. & Bord, C. (1985). Alien Animals. London, UK: Panther Books (2nd ed.).
- Bord, J. & Bord, C. (1988). Modern Mysteries of Britain. London, UK; Grafton Books.
- Bord, J., & Bord, C. (1989). *Unexplained Mysteries of the 20th Century*. Lincolnwood, IL: Contemporary Books.
- Bord, J., & Bord, C. (2006). *Bigfoot Casebook Updated: Sightings and Encounters from 1818 to 2004*. Enumclaw, WA: Pine Winds Press. (Original work published 1982)
- Bortz, M. (Fall 2009). "Tomorrow Belongs to Me": An Image of the Dangerous *Puer. Jung Journal: Culture & Psyche 3*(4), pp. 69-77.
- Bosquet, A. (1845) La Normandia Romanesque et Merveilleuse. Paris, FR: J. Techener.
- Boucher, S. (2020). *Beyond the Extraterrestrial Firewall*. Winnipeg, MB: Itsallconnected Publishing.
- Bough, A. (March 2, 1996). My experience with the Greys. Retrieved December 7, 2021 from http://www.v-j-enterprises.com/jbrough.html
- Boulay, R.A. (1999). Flying Serpents and Dragons. Escondido, CA: The Book Tree.
- Bowen, C. (Ed.). (1969). The Humanoids: A Survey of Worldwide Reports of Landings of Unconventional Aerial Objects and Their Alleged Occupants. Chicago, IL: Henry Regnery Company.
- Bowen, C. (July/August 1969). UFOs and Psychic Phenomena. *Flying Saucer Review 15*(4), pp. 22-24.

- Bowker, J. (1883) Goblin Tales of Lancashire. London, UK: W. Swan Sonnenschein & Co.
- Boylan, P. (1922). Thoth, the Hermes of Egypt. London, UK: Oxford University.
- Brainaddict. (June 18, 2006). The Philosopher's Tool. Retrieved June 10, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=33811
- Brandenburg, J.E. (2011). *Life and Death on Mars: The New Mars Synthesis*. Kempton, IL: Adventures Unlimited.
- Brandenburg, J.E. (September 13-16, 2016). Evidence of a Massive Thermonuclear Explosion On Mars in the Past: The Cydonian Hypothesis and Fermi's Paradox. Long Beach, CA: AIAA SPACE Forum.
- Brandon, J. (1983). The Rebirth of Pan: Hidden Faces of the American Earth Spirit. Dunlap, IL: Firebird Press.
- Brennan, T. (2005). The Stoic Life: Emotions, Duties, & Fate. Oxford, UK: Clarendon Press.
- Breslaw, E.G. (1997). Tituba's Confession: The Multicultural Dimensions of the 1692 Salem Witch-Hunt. *Ethnohistory* 44(3), pp. 535-556.
- Bressi, M. (2018). Pennsylvania Oddities. Mechanicsburg, PA: Sunbury Press.
- Brewer, J. (2016). The Greys Have Been Framed: Exploitation in the UFO Community. US: Jack Brewer.
- Briggs, H. (July 19, 2017). How did dogs become our best friends? New evidence. Retrieved March 19, 2021 from https://www.bbc.com/news/science-environment-40638584
- Briggs, K.M. (1970). The Fairies and the Realms of the Dead. Folklore 81(2), pp. 81-96.
- Briggs, K. (1976). An Encyclopedia of Fairies: Hobgoblins, Brownies, Bogies, and Other Supernatural Creatures. New York, NY: Pantheon Books.
- Briggs, K. (2002). *The Fairies in Tradition and Literature*. London, UK: Routledge. (Original work published 1967)
- Briggs, S. & Connor S. (October 11, 2020). Weird Suffolk: The ghost of Sutton Hoo that helped archaeologists find treasure. Retrieved June 29, 2021 from https://www.eadt.co.uk/news/weird-suffolk-sutton-hoo-treasure-ghosts-2672586
- Britannica. (n.d.). headhunting. Retrieved December 30, 2021 from https://www.britannica.com/topic/headhunting
- Britannica. (n.d.). Sheol. Retrieved May 10, 2021 from https://www.britannica.com/topic/sheol
- Britannica. (n.d.). sylph. Retrieved November 12, 2021 from https://www.britannica.com/art/sylph
- Bromwich, R. (2006). *Trioedd Ynys Prydein: The Triads of the Island of Britain*. Cardiff, UK: University of Wales Press.
- Brown, N.M. (2021). The Real Valkyrie: The Hidden History of Viking Warrior Women. New York, NY: St. Martin's Press.
- Browne, R.B. (Ed.). (1976). "A Night with the Hants" and Other Alabama Folk Experiences. Bowling Green, KY: Popular Press.
- Browner, R. (pseudonym). (March 27, 2015). Personal communication.
- Bruford, A. (1997). Trolls, Hillfolk, Finns, and Picts: The Identity of the Good Neighbors in Orkney and Shetland. In P. Narváez (Ed.), *The Good People: New Fairylore Essays* (pp. 116-141). Lexington, KY: The University Press of Kentucky.

- Bryan, C.D.B. (1995). Close Encounters of the Fourth Kind. New York, NY: Penguin Group (Arkana).
- Bryant, L.W. (January 1983). Enid Brady's E-T Contact Legacy. *MUFON UFO Journal 179*, pp. 12-13.
- Budge, E.A.W. (1925). *The Mummy: A Handbook of Egyptian Funerary Archaeology*. Cambridge, UL: Cambridge University Press (2nd ed.).
- Buffetrille, K. (Winter 1994). The Blue Lake of Amdo and Its Island: Legends and Pilgrimage Guide. *The Tibet Journal 19*(4), pp. 2-22.
- Buhl, M.L. (April 1947). The Goddesses of the Egyptian Tree Cult. *Journal of Near Eastern Studies* 6(2), pp. 80-97.
- Bühler, W.K., Pereira, G., & Pires, N.M. (1985). *UFO Abduction at Mirassol: A Biogenetic Experiment* (W.C. Stevens, Trans.). Tucson, AZ: UFO Photo Archives.
- Bullard, T. (1987). *UFO Abductions: The Measure of A Mystery* (Vol. 1). Mount Rainier, MD: Fund for UFO Research.
- Bullard, T. (1987). *UFO Abductions: The Measure of A Mystery* (Vol. 2). Mount Rainier, MD: Fund for UFO Research.
- Bullard, T. (2011). *Haunted America: Watauga County, North Carolina*. Charleston, SC: Haunted America.
- Bullard, T.E. (April-June 1989). UFO Abduction Reports: The Supernatural Kidnap Narrative Returns in Technological Guise. *The Journal of American Folklore* 102(404), pp. 147-170.
- Bunge, M. (Fall 1984). What is Pseudoscience? The Skeptical Inquirer 9(1), pp. 36-46.
- Burkes, J. & Dennett, P. (2018). Medical Healings Reported by UAP Contact Experiencers. In R. Hernandez, J. Klimo, & R. Schild (Eds.), *Beyond UFOs: The Science of Consciousness and Contact with Non Human Intelligence "Volume I"* (pp. 385-439). USA: Dr. Edgar Mitchell Foundation for Research into Extraterrestrial and Extraordinary Experiences.
- Burnell, F.S. (Dec. 1947). The Holy Cow. Folklore 58(4), pp. 377-381.
- Burnette, T., & Riggs, R. (2014). *Bigfoot: Exploring the Myth and Discovering the Truth.* Woodbury, MN: Llewllyn Publications.
- Burnham, A. (n.d.). Clickable Megalith Map of European Sites: France. Retrieved August 7, 2021 from https://www.megalithic.co.uk/leaflet_megalith_map.php?country=6
- Burton, R.F. (1885). The Book of the Thousand Nights and a Night. Retrieved August 17, 2021 from https://www.gutenberg.org/files/54257-h/54257-h.htm
- Butler, D. & Nally, C. (2006). Conspiracy of Silence: UFOs in Ireland. Cork, IE: Mercier Press.
- Butler, G.R. (1997). The *Lutin* Tradition in French-Newfoundland Culture. In P. Narváez (Ed.), *The Good People: New Fairylore Essays* (pp. 5-21). Lexington, KY: The University Press of Kentucky.
- Butler, J. (2017). The *Sidhe* and Fairy Forts. In S. Young & C. Houlbrook (Eds.), *Magical Folk: British and Irish Fairies: 500 AD to the Present* (Kindle Edition). London, UK: Gibson Square Books.
- Butterfly Lady. (October 27, 2016). Día de los Muertos and Monarch Butterflies. Retrieved April 9, 2021 from http://butterfly-lady.com/dia-de-los-muertos-and-monarch-butterflies/
- C., Edward. (n.d.). 4598 Edward C NDE 8698. Retrieved April 1, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1edward_c_nde.html

- C., Jeffrey. (n.d.). 4167 Jeffrey C NDE 8024. Retrieved March 24, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1jeffrey_c_nde_8024.html
- C., Mo. (n.d.). 482 Mo C NDE 2021. Retrieved June 22, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1mo_c_nde.html
- C., Oscar. (n.d.). 4067 Oscar C NDE 7858. Retrieved March 22, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1oscar c nde.html
- C., Val. (n.d.). 4890 Val C NDE 9155. Retrieved April 1, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1val_c_nde.html
- C., Wendy. (n.d.). 1008 Wendy C NDE 2897. Retrieved December 15, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1wendy_c_nde.html
- Caciola, N.M. (2016). *Afterlives: The Return of the Dead in the Middle Ages*. Ithaca, NY: Cornell University Press.
- Cai, X., Jiang, J.H., Fahy, K.A., & Yung, Y.L. (January 18, 2021). A Statistical Estimation of the Occurrence of Extraterrestrial Intelligence in the Milky Way Galaxy. *Galaxies 9*(1), pp. 5-18.
- CaminoWays. (n.d.). The History of the Camino de Santiago, Retrieved August 16, 2021 from https://caminoways.com/the-history-of-the-camino-de-santiago
- Campbell, B.F. (1980). *Ancient Wisdom Revived: A History of the Theosophical Movement*. Berkeley, CA: University of California Press.
- Campbell, J. (1959). The Masks of God: Primitive Mythology. London, UK: The Pitman Press Ltd.
- Campbell, J.G. (1900). Superstitions of the Highlands and Islands of Scotland. Glasgow, UK: James Maclehose & Sons.
- Campos, D.J. (2011). *The Shaman & Ayahuasca*. (A. Roman, Trans.). (G. Overton, Ed.). Studio City, CA: Divine Arts.
- Canaan, T. (1927). Mohammedan Saints and Sanctuaries in Palestine. London, UK: Luzac & Co.
- Canney, M.A. (1921) *An Encyclopaedia of Religions*. London, UK: George Routledge & Sons, Ltd.
- Carlson, C. (2005). *Weird Florida*. (M. Sceurman & M. Moran, Eds.). Ontario, CA: Sterling Publishing Co, Inc.
- Carlson, J. (July 20, 2010). Missing Time Inside a Stone Circle. Retrieved July 7, 2021 from https://paranormalist.com/missing-time-inside-a-stone-circle/
- Carlwood, G. (January 23, 2015). Gordon White | Understanding Gnosticism, Parapolitics, and Chaos Magic. Retrieved August 7, 2021 from https://www.thehighersidechats.com/gordon-white-understanding-gnosticism-parapolitics-chaos-magic/
- Carlwood, G. (September 13, 2016). Gordon White | Alien Ghosts, Animism, & Chaos Magic. Retrieved November 11, 2021 from https://www.thehighersidechats.com/gordon-white-alien-ghosts-animism-chaos-magic/
- Carlwood, G. (July 5, 2021). Randall Carlson | Geomancy, the Sacred Template, & the Great Cosmic Work. Retrieved August 4, 2021 from https://www.thehighersidechats.com/randall-carlson-geomancy-the-sacred-template-the-great-cosmic-work/
- Carte, C. (June 6, 2020). Personal communication.
- Carter, M. (2018). The Spiritual Transformation of the UAP Contact Experience. In R. Hernandez, J. Klimo, & R. Schild (Eds.), *Beyond UFOs: The Science of Consciousness and Contact with*

- *Non Human Intelligence "Volume I"* (pp. 624-678). USA: Dr. Edgar Mitchell Foundation for Research into Extraterrestrial and Extraordinary Experiences.
- Cárthaigh, C.M. (1988, June). *Midwife to the Fairies: A Migratory Legend*. (master's thesis). The National University of Ireland, Dublin, IE.
- Cartwright, M. (August 28, 2019). Hermes. Retrieved November 12, 2021 from https://www.worldhistory.org/Hermes/
- Carver, M. (1998). *Sutton Hoo: Burial Ground of Kings?* Philadelphia, PA: University of Pennsylvania Press.
- Cascone, S. (August 13, 2021). Scientists Have Conducted Tests That Reveal Stonehenge Is Made From a Nearly Indestructible Ancient Material. Retrieved September 20, 2021 from https://news.artnet.com/art-world/stonehenge-secret-sandstone-quartz-crystal-1998477
- Case 52. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1962 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1962.pdf
- Caspari, E. (2003). Animal Life in Nature, Myth and Dreams. Wilmette, IL: Chiron Publications.
- Casteel, S. (2008). Fairies and Aliens. In T.G. Beckley (Ed.), *UFOs, Time Slips, Other Realms, and the Science of Fairies* (pp. 9-19) New Brunswick, N.J.: Timothy Green Beckley (Global Communications/Conspiracy Journal).
- Catalina. (n.d.). 3869 Catalina NDE 7545. Retrieved April 1, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1catalina_nde.html
- Chalker, B. (2005). Hair of the Alien: DNA and Other Forensic Evidence of Alien Abduction. New York, NY: Simon & Schuster.
- Chalker, W.C. (Spring 1980). A Re-Viewing of the Great Nocturnal Light. *Flying Saucer Review* 26(1), pp. 12-18.
- Chambert-Loir, H., & Reid, A. (2002). Introduction. In H. Chambert-Loir & A. Reid (Eds.), *The Potent Dead: Ancestors, Saints, and Heroes in Contemporary Indonesia*. Honolulu, HI: University of Hawai'i Press.
- Cheung, T. (2006). Element Encyclopedia of the Psychic World: The Ultimate A-Z of Spirits, Mysteries and the Paranormal. New York, NY: Harper Element.
- Chibanda, M. (February 1995). Car-Shaped UFO. UFO AfriNews 11, p. 30.
- Childress, D.H. (2010). Yetis, Sasquatch & Hairy Giants. Kempton, IL: Adventures Unlimited Press.
- Childress, D.H. (2013). *Vimana: Flying Machines of the Ancients*. Kempton, IL: Adventures Unlimited Press.
- Choi, C.Q. (December 11, 2019). Humanity's Oldest Cave Art Shows Shape-Shifting Supernatural Hunters. Retrieved March 21, 2021 from https://www.livescience.com/oldest-rock-art-supernatural-beings.html
- Christensen, C. (2021). Myth or Fact: Did the Vikings Really Burn Their Ships? Retrieved November 3, 2021 from https://scandinaviafacts.com/myth-or-fact-did-the-vikings-really-burn-their-ships/
- Claassen, C. (2015). *Beliefs and Rituals in Archaic Eastern North America*. Tuscaloosa, AL: University of Alabama Press.
- Claire. (July 10, 2019). Dismemberment and the Right Plant to Heal. Retrieved June 22, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=31648

- Clark, J. (Nov./Dec. 1969). Experiences & Observations. Flying Saucer Review 15(6), pp. 19-21.
- Clark, J. (1998). The UFO Book: Encyclopedia of the Extraterrestrial. Detroit, MI: Visible Ink Press.
- Clark, J. (2000). Extraordinary Encounters. Santa Barbara, CA: ABC-CLIO.
- Clark, J. (2007). The Odyssey of Sister Thedra. In D.G. Tumminia (Ed.), *Alien Worlds: Social and Religious Dimensions of Extraterrestrial Contact* (pp. 25-41). Syracuse, NY: Syracuse University Press.
- Clark, J. (2010). Hidden Realms, Lost Civilizations, and Beings from Other Worlds. Canton, MI: Visible Ink Press.
- Clark, J. & Coleman, L. (January 1973). Anthropoids, Monsters and UFOs. *Flying Saucer Review* 19(1), pp. 18-23.
- Clark, J. & Coleman, L. (1984). Creatures of the Goblin World. New York, NY: Clark Publishing.
- Clarke, A.S. (2012). Encounters with Star People. San Antonio, TX: Anomalist Books.
- Clarke, A.S. (2015). Sky People: Untold Stories of Alien Encounters in Mesoamerica. Pompton Plains, NJ: New Page Books.
- Clarke, D. (December 1988). Project Pennine: A Landscape/UFO Study. *MUFON UFO Journal* 248, pp. 11-14.
- Clarke, D. (Summer 1989). UFO Abductions and the Celtic Otherworld. *UFO Universe K46112*, pp. 66-70.
- Clelland, M. (August 17, 2013). Audio conversation with Suzanne Gordon, Ph.D. Retrieved April 5, 2021 from http://hiddenexperience.blogspot.com/2013/08/audio-conversation-with-suzanne-gordon.html
- Clelland, M. (2015). The Messengers: Owls, Synchronicity and the UFO Abductee. New York: Richard Dolan Press.
- Clelland, M. (2018). Stories from the Messengers. Rochester, NY: Richard Dolan Press.
- Clelland, M. (2019). Hidden Experience. US: Beneath the Stars Press.
- Clelland, M. (August 5, 2020). Christopher Knowles, Novelist and Synchromystic. Retrieved March 16, 2021 from https://www.unknowncountry.com/the-unseen/christopher-knowles-novelist-and-synchromystic/
- Clelland, M. (March 12, 2013). Line on a map across southern Utah. Retrieved August 5, 2021 from http://hiddenexperience.blogspot.com/2013/03/line-on-map-across-southern-utah.html
- Cline, A. (2011). Itzpapalotl: Itzpapalotl, Goddess of Fire and Birds in Aztec Religion, Mythology. Retrieved December 21, 2021 from https://web.archive.org/web/20110605143439/http://atheism.about.com/od/aztecgodsgoddesses/p/Itzpapalotl.htm?terms=itzpapalotl
- Coast to Coast AM. (July 15, 2008). John Lear Chat Excerpts. Retrieved November 21, 2021 from https://www.coasttocoastam.com/article/john-lear-chat-excerpts/
- Coddington, R.H. (1997). *Ghost Talk: True Conversations with the Departed.* New York, NY: Kensington Publishing Corp.
- Coimbra, F.A. (January 2017). The psychopomp character of the horse in Europe during Protohistory and the Roman Period. *Arnava VI*(1), pp. 84-98.
- Colavito, J. (2014). *Jason and the Argonauts through the Ages*. Jefferson, NC: McFarland & Company, Inc., Publishers.

- Colavito, J. (2020). The Mound Builder Myth. Norman, OK: University of Oklahoma Press.
- Coleman, L. (November 2006). Mothman associate producer Lisa McIntosh dead at 42. *MUFON UFO Journal 463*, p. 13.
- Coleman, L. (2013). Monster of Massachusetts. Mechanicsburg, PA: Stackpole Books.
- Coleman, L. (July 19, 2014). Buk, Beech, LaFayette, and the Fayette Factor. Retrieved July 13, 2021 from http://copycateffect.blogspot.com/2014/07/buk.html
- Coleman, L. & Huyghe, P. (2003). The Field Guide to Lake Monsters, Sea Serpents, and Other Mystery Denizens of the Deep. New York, NY: Jeremy P. Tarcher.
- Coleman, L., & Clark, J. (1999). Cryptozoology A to Z: The Encyclopedia of Loch Monsters, Sasquatch, Chupacabras, and Other Authentic Mysteries of Nature. New York, NY: Fireside.
- Collier, W. (2022). DEEP: An examination of the faerie themes in Takashi Shimizu's film *Marebito*. In J. Cutchin (Ed.), *Fairy Films: Wee Folk on the Big Screen* (Kindle Edition). UK: White Crow Books.
- Collier, W. (December 12, 2016). Gray's Anatomy. Retrieved October 4, 2021 from https://liminalroom.com/2016/12/12/greys-anatomy/
- Collier, W. (April 2019). Personal communication.
- Collins, A. (1992). The New Circlemakers: Insights into the Crop Circle Mystery. Virginia Beach, VA: 4th Dimension Press.
- Collins, A. (2012). LightQuest: Your Guide to Seeing and Interacting with UFOs, Mystery Lights and Plasma Intelligences. Memphis, TN: Eagle Wing Books.
- Collins, A. (2014). Göbekli Tepe: Genesis of the Gods. Rochester, VT: Bear & Company.
- Collins, A. (June 21, 2019). The Great Pyramid Experiment: Measuring the Sonic Capabilities of the Dead-end Passage. Retrieved July 16, 2021 from https://www.ancient-origins.net/artifacts-other-artifacts/great-pyramid-0012166
- Collins, C. (2017). What's Wrong With This Picture? In R. Graham (Ed.), *UFOs: Reframing the Debate* (pp. 91-108). Hove, UK: White Crow Books.
- Colombo, J.R. (1992). Dark Visions. Toronto, ON: Dundurn.
- Conlee, C.A. (June 2007). Decapitation and Rebirth: A Headless Burial from Nasca, Peru. *Current Anthropology* 48(3), pp. 438-445.
- Connecticut MUFON. (n.d.). Case 251. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1995 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1995.pdf
- Connelly, D. (March 1975). Rhodesian case involves occupants, transportation of auto. *Skylook* 89, pp. 3-9.
- Connelly, D. (February 1999). Ufology Profile: Beverly Trout Wears Two Hats: Investigator And..... *MUFON UFO Journal 370*, pp. 14-16.
- Connelly, D. (August 1999). MUFON 1999 International UFO Symposium featured both veterans and relative newcomers. *MUFON UFO Journal 376*, pp. 3-7.
- Connelly, D. (April 2000). Australian abduction case features many significant pieces of evidence. *MUFON UFO Journal 384*, pp. 3-9.
- Connes, P. (2020). History of the Plurality of the Worlds: The Myths of Extraterrestrials Through the Ages. J. Lequeux (Ed.). Cham, CH: Springer Nature Switzerland.

- Constance, A. (November-December 1957). The Ghosts and the Gossamer. *Flying Sauer Review* 3(6), pp. 22-25.
- Constance, A. (Sept.-Oct, 1956). This Amazing Universe. Flying Saucer Review 2(5), pp. 20-23.
- Contessina. (n.d.). Contessina's SMR. Retrieved September 27, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/NDERF/Soulmates/contessina's smr.htm
- Coolman, R. (May 7, 2014). Keeping Time: Origins of the Days of the Week. Retrieved November 13, 2021 from https://www.livescience.com/45432-days-of-the-week.html
- Cooper, D.E. (1976). ESP and the Materialist Theory of Mind. In S.C. Thakur (Ed.), *Philosophy and Psychical Research* (pp. 59-80). London, UK: George Allen & Unwin Ltd.
- Corrales, S. (June 10, 2012). A Touch of Darkness: Cemeteries and UFOs. Retrieved September 30, 2021 from http://inexplicata.blogspot.com/2012/06/touch-of-darkness-cemeteries-and-ufos.html
- Corrales, S. (August 12, 2014). Transient Visitors: Strange Humanoid Encounters. Retrieved December 1, 2021 from http://inexplicata.blogspot.com/2014/08/transient-visitors-strange-humanoid.html
- Correll, T.C. (April 2005). Believers, Sceptics, and Charlatans: Evidential Rhetoric, the Fairies, and Fairy Healers in Irish Oral Narrative and Belief. *Folklore 116*(1), pp. 1-18.
- Cosgrove, A. (n.d.). Nkiteki (Ancestor Figure). Retrieved October 4, 2021 from https://www.imodara.com/discover/dr-congo-bembe-nkiteki-ancestor-figure-warrior/
- Cotterell, A. (2006). The Encyclopedia of Mythology. Wisbech, UK: Anness Publishing.
- Coulter, P. (February 13, 2015). Fairy tales: Finding fairy bushes across Northern Ireland. Retrieved April 30, 2021 from https://www.bbc.com/news/uk-northern-ireland-31459851
- Cowan, D. (2003). Ley Lines and Earth Energies. Kempton, IL: Adventures Unlimited Press.
- Cowan, J. (June 1921). THE PATU-PAIAREHE. NOTES ON MAORI FOLK-TALES OF THE FAIRY PEOPLE. *The Journal of the Polynesian Society* 30(2-118), pp. 96-102.
- Cowan, T. (1993). Fire in the Head: Shamanism and the Celtic Spirit. New York, NY; Harper San Francisco.
- Cox, T.J., Fazenda, B.M., & Greaney, S.E. (October 2020). Using scale modelling to assess the prehistoric acoustics of Stonehenge. *Journal of Archaeological Science 122*. Retrieved July 16, 2021 from https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0305440320301394
- Craig, M. (1991). Characters & Caricatures in Belizean Folklore. Belize City, BLZ: Belize UNESCO Commission.
- Cray, E. & Adams, F.D. (Oct. 1958). Fairy Rath. Western Folklore 17(4), p. 282.
- Creatus. (April 4, 2020). Infinity is a Scary Experience. Retrieved June 8, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=63597
- Creighton, G. (July/August 1965). Postscript to the Most Amazing case of All. *Flying Saucer Review 11*(4), pp. 24-25.
- Creighton, G. (May-June 1966). Argentina 1963/64 Part IV. Flying Saucer Review 12(3), pp. 25-28.
- Creighton, G. (November 1966). Even More Amazing... Part III. Flying Saucer Review 12(6), 14-16.
- Creighton, G. (May/June 1968). Middle American Creature Reports. *Flying Saucer Review 14*(3), pp. 12-15.

- Creighton, G. (April 1984). A New Brazilian "A.V.B." Flying Saucer Review 29(4), pp. 9-11.
- Creighton, G. (Summer 1993). The 'Linda Cortile' Case. Flying Saucer Review 38(2), p. 1.
- Creighton, G. (Autumn 1995). Three Boys Abducted in Argentina (1994). *Flying Saucer Review* 40(3), pp. 18-19.
- Cresswell, J. (2006). The Watkins Dictionary of Angels: Over 2,000 Entries on Angels and Angelic Beings. London, UK: Watkins Publishing.
- Croker, T.C. (1825). Fairy Legends & Traditions of the South of Ireland Part I. London, UK: John Murray.
- Croker, T.C. (1828). Fairy Legends & Traditions of the South of Ireland Part III. London, UK: John Murray.
- Croker, T.C. (1828). Fairy Legends & Traditions of the South of Ireland Part II. London, UK: John Murray.
- Crooke, W. (1899). Primitive Rites of Disposal of the Dead, with Special Reference to India. *The Journal of the Anthropological Institute of Great Britain and Ireland 29*(3/4), pp. 271-294.
- Crowe, C. (1848). The Night Side of Nature: or, Ghosts and Ghost Seers Vol. II. London, UK: T.C. Newby.
- Crumrine, N.R. (1976). Mediating Roles in Ritual and Symbolism: Northwest Mexico and the Pacific Northwest. *Anthropologica* 18(2), pp. 131-152.
- Cumo, C. (2015). Foods That Changed History: How Foods Shaped Civilization from the Ancient World to the Present. Santa Barbara, CA: ABC-CLIO.
- Cundiff, V. (November 7, 2016). Bigfoot Eyewitness Episode 12. Retrieved January 23, 2019 from http://bigfooteyewitnessradio.libsyn.com/bigfoot- eyewitness-episode-12
- Cunha, I. (2019). The Lower Limbs in Jungian Psychology. New York, NY: Routledge.
- Curran, B. (2004). Celtic Lore & Legend. Franklin Lakes, NJ: The Career Press.
- currentspider [screen name]. Uruguay UFO: UFO Sighted OverRocha, Uruguay April 27, 2013. Retrieved July 12, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=c HLoGyKH4o
- Cutchin, J. (2015). A Trojan Feast: The Food and Drink Offerings of Aliens, Faeries, and Sasquatch. San Antonio, TX: Anomalist Books.
- Cutchin, J. (2016). The Brimstone Deceit: An In-Depth Examination of Supernatural Scents, Otherworldly Odors, and Monstrous Miasmas. San Antonio, TX: Anomalist Books.
- Cutchin, J. (2017). In for a Penny, In for a Pound: Moving Ufology Beyond Materialism. In R. Graham (Ed.), *UFOs: Reframing the Debate* (pp. 49-62). Hove, UK: White Crow Books.
- Cutchin, J. (2018). Thieves in the Night: A Brief History of Supernatural Child Abduction. San Antonio, TX: Anomalist Books.
- Cutchin, J. & Renner, T. (2020). Where the Footprints End: High Strangeness and the Bigfoot Phenomenon Volumes I & II. Red Lion, PA: Dark Holler Arts.
- Cutter, R.J. (1985). The Incident at the Gate: Cao Zhi, the Succession, and Literary Fame. *T'oung Pao 71*(4/5), pp. 228-262.
- Daimler, M. (July 30, 2012). Manannán mac Lir. Retrieved March 23, 2021 from https://lairbhan.blogspot.com/2012/07/manannan-mac-lir.html

- Daimler, M. (January 3, 2013). Druidic Wands and Sacred Woods in Irish Tradition. Retrieved May 25, 2021 from https://lairbhan.blogspot.com/2013/01/druidic-wands-and-sacred-woods-in-irish.html
- Daimler, M. (October 27, 2015). Crom Cruach. Retrieved December 31, 2021 from https://lairbhan.blogspot.com/2015/10/crom-cruach.html
- Daimler, M. (2016). Fairycraft: Following The Path Of Fairy Witchcraft. Alresford, UK: Moon Books.
- Daimler, M. (2016). Pagan Portals: Gods and Goddesses of Ireland. Alresford, UK: Moon Books.
- Daimler, M. (2017). Fairies: A Guide to the Celtic Fair Folk. Alresford, UK: Moon Books.
- Daimler, M. (April 12, 2018). Possession by Fairies or Elves. Retrieved April 20, 2020 from https://lairbhan.blogspot.com/2018/04/possession-by-fairies-or-elves.html
- Daimler, M. (2018). Pagan Portals: Odin. Alresford, UK: Moon Books.
- Daimler, M. (2019). Pagan Portals Manannán Mac Lir: Meeting The Celtic God Of Wave And Wonder. Hampshire, UK: Moon Books.
- Daimler, M. (2020). A New Dictionary of Fairies: A 21st Century Exploration of Celtic and Related Western European Fairies. Alresford, UK: Moon Books.
- Daimler, M. (May 21, 2021). Co-Walkers, Fetches, and Fylgja. Retrieved May 21, 2021 from https://lairbhan.blogspot.com/2021/05/co-walkers-fetches-and-fylgja.html
- Dakudao, M.E. (March/June 1998). The Development of Cemeteries in Manila Before 1941. *Philippine Quarterly of Culture and Society 26*(1/2), pp. 254-271.
- Dale, E. (April 12, 2016). Quartz Monuments Duloe Stone Circle & the Nine Sisters. Retrieved July 16, 2021 from https://cornishbirdblog.com/2016/04/12/monumental-minerals/
- Daley, J. (November 14, 2019). DNA Suggests Ancient Egypt's Millions of Ibis Mummies Were Wild-Caught Birds. Retrieved March 21, 2021 from https://www.smithsonianmag.com/smart-news/dna-suggests-ancient-egypts-millions-ibis-mummies-were-wild-caught-birds-180973556/
- Dalgarno, P. (June 2007). Subjective effects of Salvia divinorum. *Journal of Psychoactive Drugs* 39(2), pp. 143-149.
- Daniels, C.L., & Stevans, C.M. (Eds.). (1908). Encyclopaedia of Superstitions, Folklore, and the Occult Sciences of the World (Vol. III). Chicago, IL: J.H. Yewdale & Sons Co.
- danilo. (May 6, 2019). Didn't Expect That. Retrieved June 8, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=107754
- Daniyal, S. (September 7, 2015). People without religion have risen in Census 2011, but atheists have nothing to cheer about. Retrieved March 29, 2021 from https://scroll.in/article/753475/people-without-religion-have-risen-in-census-2011-but-atheists-have-nothing-to-cheer-about
- Dasen, V. (2010). Wax and Plaster Memories: Children in Elite and Non-Elite Strategies. In V. Dasen & T. Späth (Eds.), *Children, Memory, and Family Identity in Roman Culture* (pp. 109-145). Oxford, UK: Oxford University Press.
- Dashu, M. (n.d.) The Traegenda of the Old Goddess, Witches, and Spirits. Retrieved July 27, 2021 from https://www.suppressedhistories.net/secrethistory/witchtregenda.html
- Davidson, H. (1993). The Lost Beliefs of Northern Europe. Abingdon, UK: Routledge.
- Davies, N. & Jokiniemi, E. (2008). *Dictionary of Architecture and Building Construction*. Oxford, UK: Elsevier.

- Davis, W. (2004). The Lost Amazon: The Photographic Journey of Richard Evans Schultes. San Francisco, CA: Chronicle Books.
- De Montellano, B.R.O. (June 1983). Counting Skulls: Comment on the Aztec Cannibalism Theory of Harner-Harris. *American Anthropologist* 85(2), pp. 403-406.
- de Vidas, A.A. (Sep. 2002). A Dog's Life among the Teenek Indians (Mexico): Animals' Participation in the Classification of Self and Other. *The Journal of the Royal Anthropological Institute* 8(3), pp. 531-550.
- Dean, C. (2012). The Boo Hag. Retrieved June 26, 2017 from http://www.caroli-naconjure.com/the-boo-hag.html
- Dean, J. (October 10, 2016). Eerie footage shows UFO in the skies near historic Machu Picchu. Retrieved July 12, 2021 from https://www.mirror.co.uk/news/weird-news/eerie-footage-shows-ufo-skies-7761731
- Decriminalizeit. (September 7, 2009). Leno Encounter and a Golden Bridge. Retrieved June 8, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=56229
- Delarose, S. (2014). Alien Nightmares. US: Gityasome Books.
- DeLeonardis, L. (December 2000). The Body Context: Interpreting Early Nasca Decapitated Burials. *Latin American Quarterly 11*(4), pp. 363-386.
- Demetrio, F. (January 1969). Toward a Classification of Bisayan Folk Beliefs and Customs. *Philippine Studies 17*(1), pp. 3-39.
- Dennett, P. (October 1996). UFO Healings. MUFON UFO Journal 342, pp. 3-9.
- Dennett, P. (June 2002). UFOs and cemeteries. MUFON UFO Journal 410, pp. 3-7.
- Dennett, P. (July 2003). Conversations with extraterrestrials. MUFON UFO Journal 423, pp. 3-6.
- Dennett, P. (2018). *Not from Here: Selected UFO Articles Volume Three*. Los Angeles, CA: Blue Giant Books.
- Dennett, P. (2020). Onboard UFO Encounters. Los Angeles, CA: Blue Giant Books.
- Dennis, C., & Whitman, P. (1997). *The Millennium Children*. Clearwater, FL: Rainbows Unlimited.
- Denosky, J. (2018). The Vajrayogini. Retrieved January 2, 2022 from http://www.buddhanature.com/buddha/yogini-bardo-world.html
- DePaul, A. (June 25, 2020). Zoroastrianism Rises in North America. Retrieved March 26, 2021 from https://www.wsj.com/articles/zoroastrianism-rises-in-north-america-11593126830
- Derrick. (n.d.). 2692 Derrick Birth Experiences 5167. Retrieved December 10, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1derrick_other.html
- Descartes, R. (1991). *The Philosophical Writings of René Descartes, Volume III: The Correspondence.* (J. Cottingham, R. Stoothoff, D. Murdoch, & A. Kenny, Trans.). Cambridge, UK: Cambridge University Press.
- DeSouza, J. (2016). The Extra-Dimensionals: True Tales And Concepts of Alien Visitors. Oro Valley, AZ: TAMA Publishing.
- Deus Ex McKenna [Screen name]. (January 10, 2015). Terence McKenna Alien Footprints: Leprechauns, Elves, Or Dead Souls? Weekend Workshop, May 1993. Retrieved May 27, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lQx-MlpZotw
- Devereux, P. (October 1995). Meeting with the Alien. MUFON UFO Journal 330, pp. 3-8.

- Devereux, P. (2001). Haunted Land: Investigations into Ancient Mysteries and Modern Day Phenomenon. London, UK: Piatkus.
- Devereux, P. (2007). *Spirit Roads: An Exploration of Otherworldly Routes*. London, UK: Collins & Brown. (Original work published 2003)
- DeVries, L. (1987). The Father, the Son and the Ghoulish Host: A Fairy Tale in Early Sanskrit? *Asian Folklore Studies* 46(2), pp. 227-256.
- Dhalla, M.N. (1914). Zoroastrian Theology. New York, NY: s.n.
- Diamond, D. (2016). Life After Near Death. Wayne, NJ: The Career Press, Inc.
- Didron, A.N. (1851). Christian Iconography Vol. 1 & 2. London, UK: Henry G. Bohn.
- Digital Ambler. (n.d.). Headless Rite. Retrieved January 2, 2022 from https://digitalambler.com/rituals/classical-hermetic-rituals/the-headless-rite/
- Dihle, B. (February 23, 2018). From Alaska to Vegas: A strange and terrible story of dreams, desert and UFOs. Retrieved October 28, 2021 from https://web.archive.org/web/20180223192911/http://juneauempire.com/outdoors/2018-02-23/alaska-vegas-strange-and-terrible-story-dreams-desert-and-ufos
- disinformation [Screen name] (October 26, 2010). Graham Hancock: Elves, Aliens, Angels and Ayahuasca [Video file]. Retrieved June 2, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=0qgMFO0KU-I
- Dixon, R.B. (Jan.-Mar. 1908). Some Aspects of the American Shaman. *The Journal of American Folklore* 21(80), pp. 1-12.
- DJ Ruxspinz. (June 4, 2020). I Saw Flowers and Trees. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=49608
- Dobyns, H.F. (1983). Their Number Become Thinned: Native American Population Dynamics in Eastern North America. Knoxville, TN: University of Tennessee.
- Documenting the American South. (n.d.). Conestee Lost Settlement, Brevard. Retrieved April 21, 2021 from https://docsouth.unc.edu/commland/monument/909/
- Dod, A.S. (May-June 1983). The Stygian Owl (*Asio stygius noctipetens*) in the Dominican Republic. *American Birds 37*(3), pp. 266-267.
- Dodgson, L. (March 29, 2018). A little-known hallucinogenic drug called DMT takes people to a place that feels 'more real than real'—here's what researchers know about it. Retrieved June 7, 2021 from https://www.businessinsider.com/the-research-on-the-hallucinogenic-drug-dmt-2018-3
- Doherty. (2021). Scéal. Retrieved July 15, 2021 from https://www.duchas.ie/en/cbes/5009212/4998341/5105184
- Dolan, R. (2014). UFOs for the 21st Century Mind. Rochester, NY: Richard Dolan Press.
- Dold, T. & Cocks, M. (2012). Voices from the Forest: Celebrating Nature and Culture in Xhosaland. Auckland Park, SA: Jacana Media.
- Donehoo, G.P. (2018). A History of the Indian Villages and Place Names in Pennsylvania. Auckland, NZ: Papamoa Press.
- Douglass, K. (1998). Australasian UFO Locations. Retrieved July 9, 2021 from https://www.google.com/maps/d/viewer?mid=1TlneEZC57YfMyb81KNPEfUHQ9AU&ll=-24.489870589650764%2C131.03143077847207&z=8

- Dowson, J. (1879). A Classical Dictionary of Hindu Mythology and Religion, Geography, History, and Literature. London, UK: Ballantyne.
- Doxtater, D. (n.d.). Probabilities of Designed Alignments Among Largest Prehistoric Mounds and Most Prominent Natural Features in Scandinavia. Tucson, AZ: University of Arizona College of Architecture and Landscape Architecture.
- Drake, W.R. (Jan.-Feb. 1960). Is the MOON inhabited? Flying Saucer Review 6(1), pp. 30-32, 34.
- Drake, W.R. (Sept./Oct. 1960). Mercury, Jupiter, and Others: Can Life Exist? *Flying Saucer Review* 6(5), pp. 18-22.
- Druffel, A. (October 1979). "California Report" UFO Sightings by UFO Researchers: The "Inaccessible Cases" Part II. *MUFON UFO Journal 140*, pp. 14-15.
- Druffel, A. (May 1982). California Report: Another Unidentified Occurrence. *MUFON UFO Journal 171*, pp. 9-11.
- Druffel, A. (1998). *How to Defend Yourself Against Alien Abduction*. New York, NY: Three Rivers Press.
- Drury, N. (1996) Shamanism. Brisbane, QLD: Element Books.
- Dubois, T. (2009) An Introduction to Shamanism. Cambridge, UK: Cambridge University Press.
- Duchas.ie. (2021). A Fairy Funeral. Retrieved May 10, 2021 from https://www.duchas.ie/en/cbes/5070787/5063436/5101371
- Duddy, T. (Summer 1996). Derrida and the Druids: Writing, Lore, and power in Early Celtic Society. *Religion & Literature* 28(2/3), pp. 9-20.
- Dukes, C.W. & Dukes, S.B. (2014). Myths and Legends in the Blue Ridge Smoky Mountains. Retrieved June 28, 2021 from https://theblueridgehighlander.com/mysterious-places-in-the-mountains/index.php
- Duncan, B. (1998). *Living Stories of the Cherokee*. Chapel Hill, NC: University of North Carolina Press.
- Durham University. (January 14, 2009). High Caffeine Intake Linked to Hallucination Proneness. Retrieved May 30, 2021 from https://www.sciencedaily.com/releases/2009/01/090113203901.htm
- Durkin, P. (July 18, 2019). Rock Lake's 'Pyramids' are Just Silty Rock Piles. Retrieved December 18, 2021 from https://www.patrickdurkinoutdoors.com/post/rock-lake-s-pyramids-are-just-silty-rock-piles
- Eakin, R.M. (1973). The Third Eye. Berkeley, CA: University of California Press.
- Earnest, A. (October 15, 2020). Lemont Limestone: Is It Haunted? Retrieved July 16, 2021 from https://patch.com/illinois/lemont/lemont-limestone-it-haunted
- East to West UFO Society Group. (n.d.). Case 100. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 2003 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-2003.pdf
- Eberhart, G.M. (2002). *Mysterious Creatures: A Guide to Cryptozoology*. Santa Barbara, CA: ABC-CLIO, Inc.
- Edrey, M. (2013). Dog Cult in Persian Period Judea. In P. Ackerman-Lieberman & R. Zalashik (Eds.), *A Jew's Best Friend? The Image of the Dog throughout Jewish History* (pp. 12-35). Eastbourne, UK: Sussex Academic Press.

- Edwards, A.C. (1984). On the Non-Existence of an Ancestor Cult among the Tiv. *Anthropos* 79(1/3), pp. 77-112.
- Eislund, S. (June 24, 2019). Yazidism. Retrieved March 22, 2021 from https://www.ancient.eu/ Yazidism/
- Eliade, M. (1959). *The Sacred & the Profane: The Nature of Religion*. (W.R. Trask, Trans.). New York, NY: Harvest.
- Eliade, M. (Winter 1963). Mythologies of Memory and Forgetting. *History of Religions* 2(2), pp. 329-344.
- Eliade, M. (1964) *Shamanism: Archaic Techniques of Ecstasy*. (W.R. Trask, Trans.). Princeton, NJ: Princeton University Press.
- Eliade, M. (Feb. 1971). South American High Gods Part II. *History of Religions* 10(3), pp. 234-266.
- Eliade, M. (1991). *Images and Symbols: Studies in Religious Symbolism.* (P. Mairet, Trans.). Princeton, NJ:L Princeton University Press. (Original work published 1952)
- Eliade, M. (1993). Patterns in Comparative Religion. New York, NY: Sheed and Ward.
- Elise. (September 27, 2017). Wonderful, Terrifying, Eye-Opening. Retrieved June 10, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=22735
- Ellis, H.R. (1943). The Road to Hel: A Study of the Conception of the Dead in Old Norse Literature. Cambridge, UK: Cambridge University.
- Ellis, T.P. (1929). Welsh Fairies. The Welsh Outlook 16(10), p. 298.
- Emboden, W. (Jan.-Mar. 1989). The Sacred Journey in Dynastic Egypt. *Journal of Psychoactive Drugs* 21(1), p. 61-75.
- Emerson, T.E. (Winter 2003). Materializing Cahokia Shamans. *Southeastern Archeology* 22(2), pp. 135-154.
- English Heritage. (n.d.). Understanding Stonehenge. Retrieved July 7, 2021 from https://www.english-heritage.org.uk/visit/places/stonehenge/things-to-do/stone-circle/celestial-stonehenge/
- Eno, P. & Eno, B. (2016). Behind the Paranormal. Atglen, PA: Schiffer Publishing, Ltd.
- Eno, P. & Eno, B. (2017). Behind the Paranormal 2: Bigfoot, Mothman and Monsters You Never Heard Of. Woonsocket, RI: Barking Cat Books.
- Ephirim-Donkor, A. (2013). *African Religion Redefined*. Lanham, MD: University Press of America, Inc. (2nd ed.).
- Eric S. (February 22, 2012). A Trip to Die For. Retrieved June 11, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=89232
- Erickson, K.C. (Autumn 2003). "They Will Come from the Other Side of the Sea": Prophecy, Ethnogenesis, and Agency in Yaqui Narrative. *The Journal of American Folklore 116*(462), pp. 465-482.
- Estep, S. (Spring 1994). From My Viewpoint. *American Association Electronic Voice Phenomena*, pp. 1-4.
- Etheridge, R. (1893). Geological and Ethnological Observations Made in the Valley of the Wollondilly River, at its Junction with the Nattai River, Counties Camden and Westmoreland. *Records of the Australian Museum* 2(4), pp. 46-54.
- Ethridge, R. (2004). Creek Country. Chapel Hill, NC: University of North Carolina Press.

- European Academy of Neurology. (June 29, 2019). One in 10 people have 'near-death' experiences, according to new study. Retrieved March 16, 2021 from https://medicalxpress.com/news/2019-06-people-near-death.html
- Evans Wentz, W.Y. (1911). The Fairy-Faith in Celtic Countries. London, UK: Henry Frowde.
- Evans, H. (1983). The Evidence for UFOs. Wellingborough, UK: Aquarian.
- Evans, H. (1984). Visions, Apparitions, and Alien Visitors: A Comparative Study of the Entity Enigma. Wellingborough, UK: The Aquarian Press.
- Evans, H.C. (2004). *Byzantium: Faith and Power (1261-1557)*. New Haven, CT: Yale University Press.
- Eveleth, R. (January 15, 2014). Icelanders Protest a Road That Would Disturb Fairies. Retrieved July 13, 2021 from https://www.smithsonianmag.com/smart-news/icelanders-protest-road-would-disturb-fairies-180949359/
- F., Steve. (n.d.). 1042 Steve F NDE 2954. Retrieved April 10, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1steve_f_nde.html
- Fadiman, J.A. (April 1977). Mountain Witchcraft: Supernatural Practices and Practitioners among the Meru of Mount Kenya. *African Studies Review* 20(1), pp. 87-101.
- Falk, C. (2004). Hmong Instructions to the Dead: What the Mouth Organ Qeej Says (Part Two). *Asian Folklore Studies 63*(2), pp. 167-220.
- Fanjul, J.C. (October 2005). WGN Cover Stories: Stickney House. Retrieved January 14, 2007 from http://wgntv.trb.com/news/local/eveningnews/wgntv-news-103105stickney,0,3914119.story
- Farquharson, J.T. (2012). THE AFRICAN LEXIS IN JAMAICAN: ITS LINGUISTIC AND SOCIOHISTORICAL SIGNIFICANCE. (Doctoral thesis). The University of the West Indies, Kingston, JM.
- Fawcett, G.D. (January 1974). Many North Carolina UFO Sightings Remain Unsolved. *Skylook* 74, P. 14.
- Fecht, S. (February 6, 2012). Bright-Sized: Skull Study Shows Eye-Sockets Have Grown Larger at Higher Latitudes. Retrieved May 3, 2021 from https://www.scientificamerican.com/article/bright-sized-skull-study/
- Feldman, D. (1994). Jewish Views on Abortion. In S. Bayme & G. Rosen (Eds.), *The Jewish Family and Jewish Community* (pp. 231-246). Hoboken, NJ: KTAV Publishing House.
- Fenwick, L.J. & Muskat, J. (August 1980). Toronto Abduction Report. *Flying Saucer Review* 26(2), pp. 21-27.
- Fenwick, P. (May 27, 2012). Dr. Peter Fenwick discusses dying, death and survival. Retrieved April 9, 2021 from http://whitecrowbooks.com/michaeltymn/entry/dr._peter_fenwick_discusses_dying_death_and_survival
- Fenwick, P. (June 24, 2017). DR. PETER FENWICK, M.D.: SCIENCE AND SPIRITUALITY. Retrieved March 30, 2021 from https://iands.org/research/nde-research/important-research-articles/42-dr-peter-fenwick-md-science-and-spirituality.html?showall=1
- FeralPup (July 31, 2019). Being Torn From Reality by DiMiTri. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=97815
- Fex, J. (2019). Sasquatch Gothic. In R.E. Guiley (Ed.), *FATE Presents: Planet Bigfoot* (pp. 9-33). New Milford, CT: Visionary Living Publishing.

- Field, D.M. (November 17, 2018). Spirit Box #04 /Dr Robert Alcorn 'spirit intrusion, the djinn & healing'. Retrieved February 15, 2022 from https://www.youtube.com/watch? v=jwC81kZGn0M
- Figuet & Ruchon, J.L. (n.d.). Case 89. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1975 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1975.pdf
- Filer, G. (October 2008). Filer's Files. MUFON UFO Journal 486, pp. 18-20.
- Fink, S. (2014). Gilgameš und Uršanabi. *Revue d'Assyriologie et d'archéologie orientale 108*, pp. 67-69.
- Finlay, N. (Feb. 2000). Outside of Life: Traditions of Infant Burial in Ireland from Cillin to Cist. *World Archaeology 31*(3), pp. 407-422.
- Fisher, B. (September 21, 2020). Mothman and Burial Mounds. Retrieved December 21, 2021 from https://6degreesofjohnkeel.com/blog/mothman-and-burial-mounds
- Fisher, B. (August 11, 2021). 6 Degrees of John Keel Episode 39: Are the Gray Aliens Hungry Ghosts? with Joshua Cutchin. Retrieved October 28, 2021 from https://6degreesofjohnkeel.com/episodes/e039-are-gray-aliens-hungry-ghosts-with-josh-cutchin
- Fisher, B. (June 9, 2021). 6 Degrees of John Keel Episode 30: Fairies: Folklore, Faith & Face With Morgan Daimler. Retrieved July 29, 2021 from https://6degreesofjohnkeel.com/episodes/e030-fairies-folklore-fact-with-morgan-daimler
- Fisher, B. (March 3, 2021). 6 Degrees of John Keel Episode 1: Timothy Renner: Following the Footprints. Retrieved November 15, 2021 from https://6degreesofjohnkeel.com/episodes/016-tim-renner-following-the-footprints
- Fisher, J. (2001). The Siren Call of Hungry Ghosts. New York, NY: Paraview Press.
- Fiske, J. (1889). Myths and Myth-Makers. Boston, MA: Houghton, Mifflin and Company.
- Fitzgerald, B.E. (May 2, 9, 16, & 23, 2004). *Saint Gregory of Nyssa: On the Soul and the Resurrection* [Conference presentation]. St. Philip's Antiochian Orthodox Church: Souderton, PA.
- Fitzpatrick, E. (2009). Native Enclosed Settlement and the Problem of the Irish 'Ring-Fort.' *Medieval Archaeology* 53(1), pp. 271-307.
- Fleming, M. (2002). Not of This World: Creatures of the Supernatural in Scotland. Edinburgh, UK: Mercat Press Ltd.
- Fletcher, A. (2012). Worm Hill "Serpens Caput" A Sacred Mound within a Ritual landscape. Retrieved December 18, 2021 from http://www.washingtonlass.com/WormHill.html
- Foor, D. (2017). Ancestral Medicine: Rituals for Personal and Family Healing. Rochester, VT: Bear & Company.
- Ford, M.W. (2006). Book of the Witch Moon. US: Succubus Publishing.
- Forsberg, L. (2015). Nature's Invisibilia: The Victorian Microscope and the Miniature Fairy. *Victorian Studies 57*(4), pp. 638-666.
- Fort, C. (1919). The Book of the Damned. New York, NY: Boni and Liveright.
- Foster, M.D. (2015). The Book of Yokai. Oakland, CA: University of California Press.
- Fowler, O. (2003). An Alien Base in Siberia & Alien Contact. *Flying Saucer Review 48*(3), pp. 16-17.
- Fowler, R. (2004). SynchroFile: Amazing Personal Encoounters with Synchronicity and Other Strange Phenomena. New York, NY: iUniverse, Inc.

- Fowler, R.E. (1990). The Watchers. New York, NY: Bantam Books.
- Fowler, R.E. (2020). *UFOs: The Ultimate Abduction We Are Property*. Portsmouth, NH: Seacoast Press.
- Fox, O. (1962). Astral Projection. New Hyde Park, NY: University Books, Inc.
- Fox-Strangways, R. (May 1985). Some Remarkable Dream Experiences. *Flying Saucer Review* 30(4), pp. 28-29. Francisco, CA: Disinformation Books.
- Frankfurter, D. (2018). The Threat of Headless Beings: Constructing the Demonic in Christian Egypt. In M. Ostling (Ed.), Fairies, Demons, and Nature Spirits: 'Small Gods' at the Margins of Christendom, pp. 57-78.
- Franklin, P. & White, J. (February 27, 2015). Greenup County. Retrieved July 20, 2021 from https://kyahgp.genealogyvillage.com/greenup/
- Franzoni III, H.J. (2008). In the Spirit of Seatco. Deer Island, OR: Ste Ye Hah Publishing.
- Frazer, J.G. (2009). *The Golden Bough*. Auckland, NZ: The Floating Press. (Original work published 1890)
- Freedman, J. (January 2013). Transformations of a Jewish Princess: Salome and the Remaking of the Jewish Female Body from Sarah Bernhardt to Betty Boop. *Philological Quarterly 92*(1), p. 89.
- Freixedo, S. (1978). La Religion Entre La Parapsicologia y Los Ovnis. MX: Orion.
- Freixedo, S. (Winter 1994). Contacts Between U.S. Presidents and Aliens. *Flying Saucer Review* 39(4), pp. 4-7.
- French, C.C. (2005). Near-death experiences in cardiac arrest survivors. *The Boundaries of Consciousness: Neurobiology and Neuropathology 150*, pp. 351-367.
- Freud, S. (1913). Totem und Tabu. Boston, MA: Beacon Press.
- Friedman, J.B. (1967). Syncretism and Allegory in the Jerusalem Orpheus Mosaic. *Traditio 23*, pp. 1-13.
- Friedman, S.T. (August 1989). Letters to the Editor... MUFON UFO Journal 256, pp. 23-24.
- Frodsham, J.D. (Summer 1993). "I *Can't* Eat!": The Alien Theatre of the Absurd. *Flying Saucer Review 38*(2), pp. 8-15.
- Fuglestad, F. (1982). The Tompon-Tany and the Tompon-Drano in the History of Central and Western Madagascar. *History in Africa 9*, pp. 61-76.
- Fuller, John G. (1966). The Interrupted Journey. New York, NY: The Dial Press.
- Furst, P.T. (1981). Jaguar Baby or Toad Mother: A New Look at an Old Problem in Olmec Iconography. In E.P. Besnon (Ed.), *The Olmec and Their Neighbors* (pp.149-162). Washington, DC: Dumbarton Oaks.
- G., Jaime. (n.d.). 654 Jaime G NDE 2286. Retrieved June 8, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1jaime_g_nde.html
- G., Sara. (n.d.). 3408 Sara G NDE 6832. Retrieved April 1, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1sara g nde.html
- Gaelic Society of Inverness. (1896). *Transactions of the Gaelic Society of Inverness: Vol. XXI.* Inverness, UK: Northern Counties Newspaper and Printing and publishing Company, Limited.

- Gale Group. (2008). Neshamah Yeterah. Retrieved April 11, 2021 from https://www.jewishvirtuallibrary.org/neshamah-yeterah
- Gallagher, M. (2021). A Story. Retrieved July 22, 2021 from https://www.duchas.ie/en/cbes/4701722/4695922/4707035
- Gamba, A. (2014). Boundless: One Woman's Journal of Her Out- of-Body Experiences (Kindle Edition). US: CreateSpace.
- Ganesha. (1999). A Vision of Sekhmet. In R. Metzner (Ed.), *Ayahuasca: Hallucinogens, Consciousness, and the Spirit of Nature* (pp. 146-154). New York, NY: Thunder's Mouth Press.
- Gardiner, E. (Ed.). (2012). Buddhist Hell: Visions, Tours and Descriptions of the Infernal Otherworld. New York, NY: Italica Press, Inc.
- Garfías, R. (1979-1980). The Role of Dreams and Spirit Possession in the Mbira Dza Vadzimu Musiz of the Shona People of Zimbabwe. *Journal of Altered States of Consciousness* 5(3), pp. 211-234.
- Gausset, Q. (2001). Masks and Identity. The Significance of Masquerades in the Symbolic Cycle Linking the Living, the Dead, and the Bush Spirits among the Wawa (Cameroon). *Anthropos* 96(1), pp. 193-200.
- Gecewicz, C. (October 1, 2018). New Age' beliefs common among both religious and nonreligious Americans. Retrieved March 17, 2021 from https://www.pewresearch.org/fact-tank/2018/10/01/new-age-beliefs-common-among-both-religious-and-nonreligious-americans/
- Gellrich, M. (Mar.-Apr. 1994). Socratic Magic: Enchantment, Irony, and Persuasion in Plato's Dialogues. *The Classical World 87*(4), pp. 275-307.
- Genetic and Rare Diseases Information Center. (n.d.). Dissociative seizures. Retrieved June 23, 2021 from https://rarediseases.info.nih.gov/diseases/13028/dissociative-seizures
- Gentile, J.S. (September-December 2009). Stories of the Otherworld: An Interview with Eddie Lenihan. *Storytelling, Self, Society* 5(3), pp. 152-175.
- Geoghegan, S. (2005). Gobnait: Woman of the Bees. Retrieved May 18, 2021 from http://www.matrifocus.com/IMB05/ireland-gobnait.htm
- George, C. (2008). Pyramids. San Diego, CA: Reference Point Press.
- Gerber, T. (February 2019). Eros and Thanatos: Freud's two fundamental drives. Retrieved June 11, 2021 from https://epochemagazine.org/20/eros-and-thanatos-freuds-two-fundamental-drives/
- Germer, W. (November 3, 2013). Sasquatch Chronicles Radio // SC EP: 2 Class A Bigfoot Encounters. Retrieved December 8, 2018 from https:// sasquatchchronicles.com/sc-ep2-class-a-bigfoot-encounters/
- Germer, W. (November 19, 2016). Sasquatch Chronicles Radio // SC EP: 274 First Nations encounters with Sasquatch. Retrieved December 4, 2018 from https://sasquatchchronicles.com/sc-ep274-first-nations-encounters-with-sasquatch-part-one/
- Germer, W. (April 3, 2017). Sasquatch Chronicles Radio // SC EP: 312 The Snelgrove Lake Incident. Retrieved December 7, 2018 from https:// sasquatchchronicles.com/sc-ep312-the-snelgrove-lake-incident/
- Germer, W. (May 21, 2017). Sasquatch Chronicles Radio // SC 326 The Quantum Bigfoot.

 Retrieved December 4, 2017 from https:// sasquatchchronicles.com/sc-ep326-the-quantum-bigfoot/

- Gevaerd, A.J. (March 2005). Brazilian officer reportedly died after touching Varginha creature. (C. Sannazzaro, Trans.). *MUFON UFO Journal 442*, pp. 3-6.
- Gholipour, B. (July 24, 2014). Oldest Medical Report of Near-Death Experience Discovered. Retrieved March 30, 2021 from https://www.livescience.com/46993-oldest-medical-report-of-near-death-experience.html
- Giangrande, G. (1978). Hermes and the Marrow: A Papyrus Love-Spell. *Ancient Society 9*, pp. 101-116.
- Gibbons-Neff, T. & Shah, T. (October 31, 2020). An Ancient Hill and Forgotten Dead: Afghanistan's Haunted Outpost. Retrieved June 29, 2021 from https://www.nytimes.com/2020/10/31/world/asia/afghanistan-haunted-outpost.html
- Girvin, C.C. (1958). *The Night Has a Thousand Saucers*. El Monte, CA: Understanding Publishing.
- Goddard, J. (March-April 1964). New Light on Ancient Tracks. *Flying Saucer Review* 10(2), pp. 15-16.
- Godfrey, L.S. (2003). The Beast of Bray Road. Madison, WI: Prairie Oak Press.
- Godfrey, L. (2008). Werewolves. New York, NY: Chelsea House.
- Godfrey, L.S. (2014). American Monsters: A History of Monster Lore, Legends, and Sightings in America. New York, NY: The Penguin Group.
- Godfrey, L.S. (2016). Monsters Among Us: An Exploration of Otherworldly Bigfoots, Wolfmen, Portals, Phantoms, and Odd Phenomena. New York, NY: Tarcher Penguin.
- Godfrey, L. (2019). I Know What I Saw: Modern-Day Encounters with Monsters of New Urban Legend and Ancient Lore. New York, NY: TarcherPerigree.
- Goepfert, N. (May 2012). New zooarchaeological and funerary perspectives on Mochica culture (A.D. 100–800), Peru. *Journal of Field Archaeology* 37(2), pp. 104-120.
- Goldstein, M. (August 1977). Doppelganger: Your Psychic Double. Beyond Reality 27, pp. 24-26.
- Good, T. (1999). Alien Base. London, UK: Arrow.
- Goodale, J.C. Fink, R., Beckett, J., Hiatt, L.R., & Barnes, J,A. (2001). *Before It's Too Late: Anthropological Reflections, 1950-1970.* (G. Gray, Ed.). Sydney, AU: University of Sydney.
- Goodare, J. (August 2012). The Cult of the Seely Wights in Scotland. *Folklore 123*(2), pp. 198-219.
- Goodenough, W.H. (Sept. 1986). Sky World and This World: The Place of Kachaw in Micronesian Cosmology. *American Anthropologist* 88(3), pp. 551-568.
- Goodwin, J.R. (March 1989). Shooing the Dead to Paradise. *Japanese Journal of Religious Studies* 16(1), pp. 63-80.
- goon. (November 23, 2019). Enjoyably Overwhelmed. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=113761
- Gordon, S. (1997). *The Book of Curses: True Tales of Voodoo, Hoodoo and Hex.* Leicester, UK: Brockhampton Press. (Original work published 1994)
- Gorightly, A. & Bishop, G. (2018). "A" is for Adamski: The Golden Age of the UFO Contactees. CA: Gorightly Press.
- Gould, C.N. (May 1927). They Who Await the Second Death: A Study in the Icelandic Romantic Sagas. *Scandinavian Studies and Notes* 9(6), pp. 167-201.

- Gracie & Zarkov. (1987). Coming Out of Left Field with Gracie and Zarkov. *High Frontiers 3*, pp. 59-60.
- Granchi, I. (October 1983). An Encounter with "Rat-Faces" in Brazil. *Flying Saucer Review* 29(1), pp. 6-13.
- Granchi, I. (January 1986). The Case of Antônio Álves Ferreira Physical Experiences, and Eleven Alleged Trips to a Strange Planet! *Flying Saucer Review 31*(2), pp. 6-12.
- Granchi, I. (April 1987). Cloning By Aliens?: To What Purpose? *Flying Saucer Review 32*(3), pp. 18-21.
- Granchi, I. (April 1987). Cloning by Aliens?: To What Purpose? *Flying Saucer Review 32*(3), pp. 18-21.
- Granqvist, P., Fredrikson, M., Unge, P., Hagenfeldt, A., Valind, S., Larhammar, D., & Larsson, M. (2005). Sensed presence and mystical experiences are predicted by suggestibility, not by the application of transcranial weak complex magnetic fields. *Neuroscience Letters* 379(1), pp. 1–6
- Graves, R. (1948). The White Goddess: A Historical Grammar of Poetic Myth. London, UK: Faber & Faber.
- Gray, J. (August 19, 2011). Is The Name of God the Sound of Our Breathing? Retrieved April 7, 2021 from https://rabbitroom.com/2011/08/is-the-name-of-god-the-sound-of-our-breathing/
- Green, M. (n.d.). Johnson City, Tennessee. Washington County. Retrieved January 9, 2019 from http://www.gcbro.com/WS0024.html
- Greenen, J.S. (n.d.). Case 114. In A Rosales (Ed.), 1989 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1989.pdf
- Greenman, E.F. (April-June 1932). Origin and Development of the Burial Mound. *American Anthropologist* 34(2), pp. 286-295.
- Greenwood, S. (2020). The Nature of Magic: An Anthropology of Consciousness. New York, NY: Routledge.
- Gresseth, G.K. (1970). The Homeric Sirens. Transactions and Proceedings of the American Philological Association 101, pp. 203-218.
- Greyhunter. (n.d.). Case 181. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1997 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1997.pdf
- Greyson, B., Kelly, E.W., & Kelly, E.F. (2009). Explanatory Models for Near-Death Experiences. In J.M. Holden, B. Greyson, & D. James (Eds.), *The Handbook of Near-Death Experiences: Thirty Years of Investigation* (pp. 213-234). Santa Barbara, CA: ABC-CLIO, LLC.
- Griaule, M. & Dieterlen, G. (1976). A Sudanese Sirius System. In R. Temple (Ed.), *The Sirius Mystery* (pp. 58-81). London, UK: Futura Books.
- Griffith, R.D. (Autumn-Winter 2001). Sailing to Elysium: Menelaus' Afterlife ("Odyssey" 4.561-569) and Egyptian Religion. *Phoenix* 44(3/4), pp. 213-243.
- Grimassi, R. (2000). *Encyclopedia of Wicca & Witchcraft*. St. Paul, MN: Llewellyn Worldwide, Ltd.
- Grimm, J. (1883). *Teutonic Mythology: Volume II*. (J.S. Stallybrass, Trans.). London, UK: George Bell & Sons.
- Grob, C.S. (1999). The Psychology of Ayahuasca. In R. Metzner (Ed.), *Ayahuasca: Hallucinogens, Consciousness, and the Spirit of Nature* (pp. 63-93). New York, NY: Thunder's Mouth Press.

- Grof, S. & Grof, C. (2010). Holotropic Breathwork: A New Approach to Self-Exploration and Therapy. Albany, NY: Excelsior Editions.
- Groot, J.J.M. (1901). The Religious System of China Volume IV, Book II: On the Soul and Ancestral Worship. Leiden, NL: E.J. Brill.
- Gross, P. (December 28, 2007). APRIL 2006, CABO POLONIO, ROCHA, URUGUAY, A WOMAN. Retrieved July 12, 2021 from http://ufologie.patrickgross.org/ce3/2006-04-uruguay-cabopolonio.htm
- Grosso, M. (2017). The Final Choice: Death or Transcendence? US: Michael Grosso.
- Guiley, R.E. (2006). The Encyclopedia of Magic and Alchemy. New York, NY: Facts On File, Inc.
- Guiley, R.E. (2007). *The Encyclopedia of Ghosts and Spirits*. New York, NY: Facts on File, Inc. (3rd ed).
- Guiley, R.E. (2008). *The Encyclopedia of Witches, Witchcraft, and Wicca*. New York, NY: Facts On File, Inc. (3rd ed.).
- Guiley, R.E. (2009). The Encyclopedia of Demons & Demonology. New York, NY: Facts on File, Inc.
- Guiley, R.E. (2013). *Dream Messages from the Afterlife: Visits from the Dead.* New Milford, CT: Visionary Living, Inc.
- Guiley, R.E. (2013). The Djinn Connection. New Milford, CT: Visionary Living, Inc.
- Guiley, R.E. (2014). *The Big Book of West Virginia Ghost Stories*. Mechanicsburg, PA: Stackpole Books.
- Guiley, R.E. (2019). Interdimensional Paraphysical Sasquatch. In R.E. Guiley (Ed.), *FATE Presents: Planet Bigfoot* (pp. 171-186). New Milford, CT: Visionary Living Publishing.
- Gulyas, A. (August 6, 2021). The Saucer Life: The Nine. Retrieved October 11, 2021 from https://saucerlife.com/2021/08/06/the-nine/
- H., Alfred. (n.d.). 2160 Alfred H NDE 4362. Retrieved April 1, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1alfred h nde.html
- Hackett, C. & McClendon, D. (April 5, 2017). Christians remain world's largest religious group, but they are declining in Europe. Retrieved April 1, 2021 from https://www.pewresearch.org/fact-tank/2017/04/05/christians-remain-worlds-largest-religious-group-but-they-are-declining-in-europe/
- Haines, R.F. (n.d.). Case 108. In A. Rosales, In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1989 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1989.pdf
- Haisell, D. (1978). The Missing Seven Hours. Markham, ON: PaperJacks.
- Halberstadt, A. & Geyer, M. (May 15, 2012). Do Psychedelics Expand the Mind by Reducing Brain Activity? Retrieved May 27, 2021 from https://www.scientificamerican.com/article/dopsychedelics-expand-mind-reducing-brain-activity/
- Hall Jr., J.M. (2009). Zamumo's Gifts: Indian-European Exchange in the Colonial Southeast. Philadelphia, PA: University of Pennsylvania Press.
- Hall, A. (2007). Elves in Anglo-Saxon England: Matters of Belief, Health, Gender and Identity. Rochester, NY: Boydell & Brewer.
- Hall, J. (1983). A History of Ideas and Images in Italian Art. London, UK: John Murray.
- Hall, M.A. (2004). Thunderbirds: America's Living Legends of Giant Birds. New York, NY: Paraview Press.

- Hall, M.P. (1928). *The Secret Teachings of All Ages*. San Francisco, CA: H.S. Crocker Company, Inc.
- Hall, M.P. (Winter 1985). Pluto/Scorpio. PRS Journal 45(4), pp. 52-64.
- Hall, R. (October 1981). Center for UFO Studies Conference. MUFON UFO Journal 164, pp. 8-9.
- Hall, R. (1988). Uninvited Guests: A Documented History of UFO Sighting, Alien Encounters, & Coverups. Santa Fe, NM: Aurora Press.
- Halliday, R. (1998). UFO Scotland. Edinburgh, UK: Black & White Publishing.
- Halperin, D.J. (2020). Intimate Alien. Stanford, CA: Stanford University Press.
- Halpin, D. (December 9, 2016). The Miracle of the Sun, 1917: Ancient Angels at Fatima? The Possible Common Origins of Star Gods. Retrieved September 29, 2021 from https://www.ancient-origins.net/opinion-guest-authors/miracle-sun-1917-ancient-angels-fatima-possible-common-origins-star-gods-021106
- Halpin, D. (January 26, 2019). An Investigation into Irish Faerie-Lore. Retrieved November 3, 2021 from https://deadbutdreaming.wordpress.com/2019/01/26/an-investigation-into-irish-faerie-lore-by-david-halpin/
- Hamada, S. (Fall 2005). Archaeology in Social Context: The Influence of Nationalism on the Discussions of the Ainu. *Journal of Northwest Anthropology* 39(2), pp. 165-188.
- Hancock, G. (2007). Supernatural. New York, NY: The Disinformation Company, Ltd.
- Hancock, G. (April 22, 2014). The images on the left... Retrieved November 2, 2021 from https://www.facebook.com/31260747353/photos/a.10151524582402354/10152410416462354
- Haney, S. (February 26, 2019). Hospice doctor says that frequently dreaming of deceased loved ones is an indicator that death is looming (and travel or packing dreams can also mean impending death). Retrieved May 28, 2021 from https://www.dailymail.co.uk/news/article-6748199/New-York-hospice-doctor-says-dream-predict-time-come.html
- Hanks, M. (2010). Magic, Mysticism, & the Molecule: The Search for Sentient Intelligence from Other Worlds. US: CreateSpace Independent Publishing Platform.
- Hanks, M. (2013). The UFO Singularity. Pompton Plains, NJ: New Page Books.
- Hansen, G.P. (2001). The Trickster and the Paranormal. Bloomington, IN: Xlibris.
- Hansen, S. & Schild, R. (2016). The Dual Soul Connection: The Alien Agenda for Human Advancement. Tauranga, NZ: UFOCUS NZ.
- Hansen, W. (2002). Ariadne's Thread: A Guide to International Tales Found in Classical Literature. Ithaca, NY: Cornell University Press.
- Hanson, I. (May 26, 2021). Looking back at alleged UFO crash of 1941 near Cape Girardeau. Retrieved July 13, 2021 from https://www.kfvs12.com/2021/05/26/alleged-ufo-crash-cape-girardeau-area/
- Harland, J. & Wilkinson, T.T. (1867). *Lancashire Folk-Lore*. London, UK: Frederick Warne and Co.
- Harner, M. (1980). The Way of the Shaman. San Francisco, CA: Harper San Francisco.
- Harold, J. (January 21, 2021). Who Are the Visitors? The Whitley Strieber Interview. Retrieved October 7, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Vp1oiIMfNPg&t=3010s
- Harpur, P. (2003). Daimonic Reality: A Field Guide to the Otherworld. Ravensdale, WA: Pure Winds Press.

- Harrington, N. (2013). Living with the Dead: Ancestor Worship and Mortuary Ritual in Ancient Egypt. Oxford, UK: Oxbow Books.
- Harris, N. (December 28, 2016). Strange Things at Serpent Mound. Retrieved July 14, 2021 from https://nickharris.wordpress.com/2016/12/28/strange-things-at-serpent-mound/? fbclid=IwAR35Mpmh81avHZpo_F967fhgEhqvFYv1Ld2hd6s_GXHW9WyFbVReV7lRwIc
- Harte, J. (2017). Fairy Barrows and Cunning Folk. In S. Young & C. Houlbrook (Eds.), *Magical Folk: British and Irish Fairies: 500 AD to the Present* (Kindle Edition). London, UK: Gibson Square Books.
- Hartland, E.S. (1891). The Science of Fairytales: An Inquiry into Fairy Mythology. London, UK: Walter Scott.
- Harvey-Wilson, S.B. (2000). *Shamanism and Alien Abductions: A Comparative Study*. (master's thesis). Edith Cowan University, Perth, AU.
- Harvey-Wilson, S. (August 2001). Similarities found between shamanism and abductions. *MUFON UFO Journal 400*, pp. 3-4.
- Harvey, G. (2006). *Animism: Respecting the Living World*. New York, NY: Columbia University Press.
- Hathaway, N. (2003). The Friendly Guide to Mythology. New York, NY: Penguin.
- Hatto, A.T. (1961). The Swan Maiden: A Folk-Tale of North Eurasian Origin? *Bulletin of the School of Oriental and African Studies, University of London 24*(2), pp. 326-352.
- Hauck, D.W. (2008). *The Complete Idiot's Guide to Alchemy*. New York, NY: Alpha (Penguin Group).
- Haywood, J. (1959). The Natural and Aboriginal History of Tennessee. Jackson, TN: McCowat-Mercer.
- Heapes, J.R. (2014). Other Worlds: UFOs, Aliens, and the Afterlife. Bloomington, IN: iUniverse LLC.
- Heard, G. (1953). *Is Another World Watching?* New York, NY: Bantam Books. (Original work published 1950 as *The Riddle of the Flying Saucers*)
- Heath, J. (2019). Exploring Megalithic Europe. Lanham, MD: Rowman & Littlefield.
- Heath, R. & Michell, J. (2006). *The Lost Science of Measuring the Earth.* Kempton, IL: Adventures Unlimited.
- Hee, P.S. (n.d.). 595 Park Sang Hee NDE 1098. Retrieved March 31, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1park_sang_hee_nde.html
- Hegemonius. (n.d.). *Acta Archelai*. Retrieved November 10, 2021 from https://web.archive.org/web/20081223141441/http://www4.nau.edu/manichaean/acta.htm
- Heiser, J.D. (2011). Prisci Theologi and the Hermetic Reformation in the Fifteenth Century. Malone, TX: Repristination Press.
- Hemmings, E.T. (1984). Investigations at Grave Creek Mound 1975-76: A Sequence for Mound and Moat Construction. *West Virginia Archeologist 362*, pp. 3–49.
- Hernandez, R. (2014). May 15, 2013: My "ET Telegram." Unpublished.
- Hernandez, R. (2018). Preface. In R. Hernandez, J. Klimo, & R. Schild (Eds.), *Beyond UFOs: The Science of Consciousness and Contact with Non Human Intelligence "Volume I"* (pp. xx).

- USA: Dr. Edgar Mitchell Foundation for Research into Extraterrestrial and Extraordinary Experiences.
- Hernandez, R. (July 12, 2021). Facebook comment. Retrieved September 16, 2021 from https://www.facebook.com/groups/FREE.Experiencers/posts/3009567672666133
- Hernandez, R., Klimo, J., & Schild, R. (2018). A Report on Phase I and II of FREE's Experiencer Research Study: The Results of a Quantitative Study. In R. Hernandez, J. Klimo, & R. Schild (Eds.), *Beyond UFOs: The Science of Consciousness and Contact with Non Human Intelligence "Volume I"* (pp. 1-120). USA: Dr. Edgar Mitchell Foundation for Research into Extraterrestrial and Extraordinary Experiences.
- Herrmann, E.W., Monaghan, G.W., Romain, W.F., Schilling, T.M., Burks, J., Leone, K.L., Purtill, M.P., & Tonetti, A.C. (2014). A new multistage construction chronology for the Great Serpent Mound, USA. *Journal of Archaeological Science 50*, pp. 117-125.
- Herzog, E. (1983). *Psyche & Death.* (D. Cox & E. Rolfe, Trans.). Woodstock, CT: Spring Publications, Inc.
- Hesemann, M. (1990). UFOs: Die Kontakte. München, DE.
- Hesemann, M. (2000). The Fatima Secret. W. Strieber (Ed.). New York, NY: Dell Publishing.
- Hewitt, J.F. (1851). Story and Chronology of the Myth-Making Age. London, UK: James Parker and Co.
- Hewitt, J.W. (1912). On the Development of the Thank-Offering among the Greeks. *Transactions and Proceedings of the American Philological Association 43*, pp. 95-111.
- Heywood, T. (1973). *Hierarchie of the Blessed Angels, Their Names, Orders and Offices*. Cambridge, MA: Da Capo Press. (Original work published 1635)
- Hick, J. (1966). Evil and the God of Love. Basingstoke, UK: The Macmillan Press Ltd.
- Hickey, K. (2021). Fairy Forts. Retrieved April 9, 2021 from https://www.duchas.ie/en/cbes/4922152/4856580/5012267
- Higbee, D. (September 1995). Abductee Brainwashing? MUFON UFO Journal 329, pp. 10-12.
- Hill, J. (2010). Thoth. Retrieved March 25, 2021 from https://ancientegyptonline.co.uk/thoth/
- Hill, J. (2020). The History of Christianity: The Early Church to the Reformation. Oxford, UK: Lion Hudson Limited.
- Hill, T.D. (October 2010). "Thomas Rhymer (A)" and the Tradition of Early Modern Feminist Theology. *The Harvard Theological Review 103*(4), pp. 471-483.
- Hind, C.R. (April 1977), Orange UFO Over Rhodesia. MUFON UFO Journal 113, p. 18.
- Hind, C. (May 1983). Entities at La Rochelle. MUFON UFO Journal 183, pp. 6-10.
- Hind, C. (July 1997). Soldier in Distress. UFO AfriNews 16, pp. 4-11.
- Hind, C. (1997). UFOs Over Africa. Madison, WI: Horus House Press, Inc.
- Hind, C. (January 1999). Alien Analysis. UFO AfriNews 19, pp. 21-23.
- Hinojosa, S.Z. (Winter 2011). Ritual Effigies and Corporeality in Kaqchikel Maya Soul Healing. *Ethnology* 50(1), pp. 79-94.
- Hislop, S.K. (August 1971). Anitism: A Survey of Religious Beliefs native to the Philippines. *Asian Studies 9*(2), pp. 144-156.

- Hitchcock, J.T. (Nov. 1967). A Nepalese Shamanism and the Classic Inner Asian Tradition. *History of Religions* 7(2), pp. 149-158.
- Hitching, F. (1977). Earth Magic. London, UK: Picador.
- Hitt, C. (December 13, 2018). The mystery of Waimea's Menehune Ditch. Retrieved July 13, 2021 from https://www.hawaiimagazine.com/the-mystery-of-waimeas-menehune-ditch/
- Hiylov, P. & Anfalov, A.A. (n.d.). Case 109. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1997 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1997.pdf
- Hockney, M. (2013). World, Underworld, Overworld, Dreamworld. UK: Hyperreality Books.
- Hodson, G. (1952). Kingdom of the Gods. Wheaton, IL: The Theosophical Publishing House.
- Hole, C. (1950). Haunted England: A Survey of English Ghost-Lore. London, UK: B.T. Batsford.
- Holiday, F.W. (1969). *The Great Orm of Loch Ness*. New York, NY: W.W. Norton & Company, Inc.
- Holiday, F.W. (January/February 1973). Dragons and UFOs at Loch Ness. *Flying Saucer Review* 19(1), pp. 15-17.
- Holiday, F.W. (September/October 1973). Exorcism and UFO Landing at Loch Ness. *Flying Saucer Review 19*(5), pp. 3-7.
- Holiday, F.W. (1973). The Dragon & the Disc. London, UK: Sidgwick & Jackson.
- Holmring, J. (2014, Spring). *Rethinking the Iron Age ringforts of Öland Interpretations and new possibilities*. (M.A. Dissertation). Stockholm University: Department of Archaeology and Classical Studies.
- Holt, J.Z. (April 2009). Rethinking the Ramey State: Was Cahokia the Center of a Theater State? *American Antiquity* 74(2), pp. 231-254.
- Homerin, T.E. (2006). Soul. In J.D. McAuliffe (Ed.), *Encyclopaedia of the Qur'an, Vol. 5: Si-Z.* Leiden, NL: Brill Academic Publishers.
- Hooke, S.H. (Sep. 1961). Fish Symbolism. Folklore 72(3), pp. 535-538.
- Hopkins, B. (1981). Missing Time. New York, NY: Richard Marek Publishers.
- Hopkins, B. (1987). Intruders. New York, NY: Random House.
- Hopkins, B. & Rainey, C. (2003). Sight Unseen: Science, UFO Invisibility and Transgenic Beings. New York, NY: Atria Books.
- Horner, S. (1897). *Greek Vases: Historical and Descriptive*. London, UK: Swan Sonnenschein & Co., Lim.
- Hoskinson, T. (1992). Saguaro wine, ground figures, and power mountains: Investigations at Sear Point, Arizona. In R.A. Williamson & C.R. Farrer (Eds.), *Earth and Sky: Visions of the Cosmos in Native American Folklore*. Albuquerque, NM: University of New Mexico Press.
- Howard, D. (1957). Over the Threshold. Los Angeles, CA: Llewellyn Publications, Ltd.
- Howard, D. (Jan.-Feb. 1958). Seeking the Saucer Answer. Flying Saucer Review 4(1), pp. 16-17.
- Howley, M.O. (2003). The Cat in Magic and Myth. Mineola, NY: Dover Publications, Inc.
- Hudson, C.M. (1979). *Black Drink: A Native American Tea*. Athens, GA: University of Georgia Press.

- Hunt, R. (1903). Popular Romances of the West of England: The Drolls, Traditions, and Superstitions of Old Cornwall. London, UK: Chatto and Windus (3rd ed.).
- Hunter, J. (2022). Through a Crystal Darkly: Cultural, Experiential, and Ontological Reflections on Faerie. In J. Cutchin (Ed.), *Fairy Films: Wee Folk on the Big Screen* (Kindle Edition). UK: White Crow Books.
- Hutton, R. (1991). The Pagan Religions of the Ancient British Isles. Oxford, UK: Basil Blackwell Ltd
- Hutton, R. (2001). Shamans: Siberian Spirituality and the Western Imagination. London, UK: Hambledon Continuum.
- Hutton, R. (August 2014). The Wild Hunt and the Witches' Sabbath. Folklore 125(2), pp. 161-178.
- Hutton, R. (2017). The Witch: A History of Fear, from Ancient Times to the Present. New Haven, CT: Yale University Press.
- Hyde, L. (1998). *Trickster Makes This World: Mischief, Myth, and Art.* New York, NY: Farrar, Straus and Giroux.
- Hynek, J.A. (1972). The UFO Experience: A Scientific Inquiry. New York, NY: Ballantine.
- I., Rebecca. (n.d.). 437 Rebecca I NDE 994. Retrieved April 8, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1rebecca i nde.html
- Ikram, S. (2015). *Death and Burial in Ancient Egypt*. Cairo, EG: The American University in Cairo Press. (Original work published 2003)
- Independent.ie. (December 20, 2011). Glastonbury 'UFO calls hotspot.' Retrieved June 28, 2021 from https://www.independent.ie/world-news/and-finally/glastonbury-ufo-calls-hotspot-26804106.html
- Ingerman, S. & Roberts, L. (2015). Speaking with Nature. Rochester, VT: Bear & Company.
- intrsrchng. (April 30, 2018). Communing With My Deceased Mother. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=111469
- IrelandXO. (June 21, 2019). Lough Gur Summer Solstice Festival. Retrieved July 7, 2021 from https://irelandxo.com/ireland/limerick/bruff-limerick/events/lough-gur-summer-solstice-festival
- Iriarte, J., Copé, S.M., Fradley, M., Lockhart, J.J., & Gillam, J.C. (2013). Sacred landscapes of the southern Brazilian highlands: Understanding southern proto-Jê mound and enclosure complexes. *Journal of Anthropological Archaeology* 32, pp. 74-96.
- Irwin, J.C. (May 1982). The Sacred Anthill and the Cult of the Primordial Mound. *History of Religions 21*(4), pp. 339-360.
- Ivanov, I. (1990, December 4). Toropovo Anomalies. Lenin's Path 144, p. 4.
- Iyer, L.A.K. (1937). *The Travancore Tribes and Castes*. Trivandrum, IN: Superintendent Government Press.
- J., Enocia. (n.d.). 3053 Enocia J NDE 6291. Retrieved August 31, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/lenocia j nde.html
- J., Sandra (n.d.). 3890 Sandra J Probable NDE 7588. Retrieved March 31, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1sandra_j_probable_nde.html
- J., Zachary. (n.d.). 561 Zachary J NDE-Like 2124. Retrieved March 21, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1zachary j ndelike.html

- Jackson, E. (1996). Food and Transformation: Imagery and Symbolism of Eating. Toronto, ON: Inner City Books.
- Jackson, R.L. (March 21, 2013). Indian mounds part of Plaquemine Pow Wow. Retrieved July 13, 2021 from https://www.leesvilledailyleader.com/article/20130320/news/130329936
- Jacobs, D. (1993). Secret Life. New York, NY: Simon and Schuster.
- Jacobs, D. (1999). The Threat. New York, NY: Fireside. (Original work published 1998)
- Jacobs, D. (2015). Walking Among Us: The Alien Plan to Control Humanity. San
- Jaekl, P. (Aug 15, 2018). Turns out near-death experiences are psychedelic, not religious. Retrieved March 30, 2021 from https://www.wired.co.uk/article/near-death-experiences-psychedelic-religious
- Jakobsson, Á. (July 2011). Vampires and Watchmen: Categorizing the Mediaeval Icelandic Undead. *The Journal of English and Germanic Philology 110* (3), pp. 281-300.
- James, R.M. (2017). Piskies and Knockers. In S. Young & C. Houlbrook (Eds.), *Magical Folk: British and Irish Fairies: 500 AD to the Present* (Kindle Edition). London, UK: Gibson Square.
- Janaway, J. (1991). Ghosts of Surrey. Newbury, UK: Countryside Books.
- Janson, H.W. (1952). *Apes and Ape Lore in the Middle Ages and the Renaissance*. London, UK: The Warburg Institute University of London.
- Jasek, M. (2004). Abduction of the North Canol Road. UFO BC. Retrieved May 15, 2014 from www.ufobc.ca/yukon/n-canol-abd/
- Jay, M. (October 7, 2020). Fungi, Folklore, and Fairyland. Retrieved June 1, 2021 from https://publicdomainreview.org/essay/fungi-folklore-and-fairyland
- Jędrej, M.C. (Jan, 1974). An Analytical Note on the Land and Spirits of the Sewa Mende. *Africa: Journal of the International African Institute 44*(1), pp. 38-45.
- Jefferson, W. (2008). Reincarnation Beliefs of North American Indians. Summertown, TN: Native Voices.
- Jenkins, P. (n.d.). The Only Planet of Choice and the Council of Nine. Retrieved October 11, 2021 from http://www.palden.co.uk/nine.html
- Jensen, F., & Mullen, S. (Eds). (1982). C.G. Jung, Emma Jung and Toni Wolff: A Collection of Remembrances. San Francisco, CA: Analytical Psychology Club of San Francisco.
- Jerman, T.A. (2020). Santa Claus Worldwide. Jefferson, NC: McFarland & Company.
- Jettmar, K. (March-June 1967). The Middle Asiatic Heritage of Dardistan. (Islamic Collective Tombs in Punyal and Their Background). *East and West 17*(1/2), pp. 59-82.
- John Hopkins Medicine. (June 5, 2020). How psychedelic drug psilocybin works on the brain. Retrieved May 27, 2021 from https://www.sciencedaily.com/releases/2020/06/200605121512.htm
- Johnson, E. (1881). *Legends, Traditions, and Laws of the Iroquois*. Lockport, NY: Union Printing and Publishing Co.
- Johnson, F. (1980). The Janos People. Suffolk, UK: Neville Spearman Limited.
- Johnson, L. (Ed.). (2008). Hermes Trismegistus: A Collection of Works. Gauteng, SA: Red Path Publications.

- Johnson, M.T. (2014). Seeing Fairies: From the Lost Archives of the Fairy Investigation Society, Authentic Reports of Fairies in Modern Times. San Antonio, TX: Anomalist Books.
- Johnson, R. (May 20, 2019). Personal communication.
- Johnson, S.P. (n.d.). Butterfly Lore. Retrieved April 9, 2021 from https://www.baylor.edu/lakewaco_wetlands/index.php?id=34628
- Johnstad, P.G. (September 15, 2020). Psychedelic Telepathy: An Interview Study. *Journal of Scientific Exploration* 34(3), pp. 493-512.
- JollyRick. (December 19, 2008). Utter Isness. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=74992
- Jøn, A.A. (1998). Dugongs and Mermaids, Selkies and Seals. Australian Folklore 12, pp. 94-98.
- Jones, E. (1779). A Geographical, Historical, and Religious Account of the Parish of Aberystruth. Trevecka, UK.
- Jones, P. (2017). Pucks and Lights. In S. Young & C. Houlbrook (Eds.), *Magical Folk: British and Irish Fairies: 500 AD to the Present* (Kindle Edition). London, UK: Gibson Square Books.
- Joy, K. (July 11, 2014). Similarities between a Near Death Experience and a Life Between Lives Regression. Retrieved June 8, 2021 from https://lifebetweenlivesregression.com.au/similarities-between-a-near-death-experience-and-a-life-between-lives-regression/
- Joyce, M. A. (2014). Cherokee Little People Were Real. Dillsboro, NC: Mary A. Joyce.
- Jozuka, E. (September 22, 2016). Aboriginal Australians are Earth's oldest civilization: DNA study. Retrieved May 30, 2017 from http://www.cnn.com/2016/09/22/asia/ indigenous-australians-earths-oldest-civilization/
- Jung, C.G. (1959). Collected Works. Princeton, NJ: Princeton University Press.
- Jung, C. (1963). *Mysterium Coniunctionis*. (R.F.C. Hull, Trans.). Princeton, NJ: Princeton University Press.
- Jung, C.G. (1964). *Man and his Symbols*. (C.G. Jung, M.-L. von Franz, J. Freeman, & D. Hill, Eds.). New York, NY: Anchor Press.
- Jung, C.G. (1976). *Symbols of Transformation* (2nd ed). (R.F.C. Hull, Trans.). Princeton, NJ: Princeton University Press. (Original work published 1956)
- Jung, C.G. (1989). *The Collected Works of C.G. Jung: Psychology and religion, West and East.* (G. Adler & R.F.C. Hull, Trans.). Princeton, NJ: Princeton University Press (2nd ed.).
- Jung, C.G. (1991). *Flying Saucers: A Modern Myth of Things Seen in the Skies*. (R.F.C. Hull, Trans.). Princeton, NJ: Princeton University Press. (Original work published 1978)
- Jung, C.G. (1997). *Jung on Synchronicity and the Paranormal*. R. Main (Ed.). London, UK: Routledge.
- Jung, C.G. (2021). Carl Gustav Jung On Life After Death. Retrieved July 27, 2021 from https://www.hermetics.net/media-library/mysticism/carl-gustav-jung-life-death/
- K., Abigail. (n.d.). 3629 Abigail K Probable NDE 7163. Retrieved March 20, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/labigail_k_probable_nde.html
- Kapila. (November 22, 2020). Divine Teacher for This Time. Retrieved June 10, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=86162
- Kaplan, R. (1999). *The Nothing That Is: A Natural History of Zero*. New York, NY: Oxford University Press.

- Kaufmann, K. & Blau, L. (n.d.). Death, Angel of. Retrieved March 25, 2021 from https://jewishencyclopedia.com/articles/5018-death-angel-of
- Kavasch, E.B. (2004). The Mound Builders of Ancient North America. Lincoln, NE: iUniverse, Inc.
- Kawabata, Y. (1998). *The Tale of the Bamboo Cutter*: (D. Keene, Trans.). New York, NY: Kodansha America, Inc.
- Keay, J. & Keay, J. (Eds.). (2000). *Collins Encyclopaedia of Scotland*. New York, NY: HarperCollins (2nd ed.).
- Keel, J. A. (March/April 1968). The Little Man of Gaffney. Flying Saucer Review 14(2), pp. 17-19.
- Keel, J.A. (1970). UFOs: Operation Trojan Horse. New York, NY: G.P. Putnam's Sons.
- Keel, J. (Summer 1972). Medical Aspects of Non-Events. Anomaly 8, pp. 139-142, 145-148.
- Keel, J. A. (1976). The Eighth Tower: On Ultraterrestrials and the Superspectrum. New York, NY: E.P. Dutton & Co. Inc.
- Keel, J. (1976). The Mothman Prophecies. New York, NY: Signet Books.
- Keel, J. (2002). *The Complete Guide to Mysterious Beings*. New York, NY: Tom Doherty Associates, LLC. (Original work published 1970 as *Strange Creatures from Time and Space*)
- Keel, J.A. (2015). *The Book of Mothman: Everything You Wanted to Know About Reality Distortion But Were Afraid to Ask.* A. B. Colvin (Ed.). Point Pleasant, WV: New Saucerian Books [Kindle Edition].
- Keel, J. (2016). *Anomaly: An Irregular Newsletter Edited by John Keel*. Martinez, CA: Paranoia Publishing. (Original works published 1969-1974)
- Keightley, T. (1828). The Fairy Mythology. London, UK: William Harrison Ainsworth.
- Keister, D. (2004). Stories in Stone: A Field Guide to Cemetery Symbolism and Iconography. New York, NY: MJF Books.
- Kelly, M. (n.d.). Fairy Forts. Retrieved April 28, 2021 from https://www.duchas.ie/en/cbes/4583321/4579651/4587332
- Kennedy, A.B. (June 1982). *Ecce Bufo:* The Toad in Nature and in Olmec Iconography. *Current Anthropology* 23(3), pp. 273-290.
- Kennedy, F.H. (2008). *American Indian Places: A Historical Guidebook*. New York, NY: Houghton Mifflin.
- Kennedy, F.H. (2008). American Indian Places. New York, NY: Houghton Mifflin.
- Kennedy, P. (Ed.). (1866). Legendary Fictions of the Irish Celts. London, UK: Macmillan and Co.
- Kerényi, K. (1967). *Eleusis: Archetypal Image of Mother and Daughter*. Princeton, NJ: Princeton University Press.
- Kerényi, K. (1976). Hermes: Guide of Souls. Thompson, CT: Spring Publications.
- Kerner, N. (2010). Grey Aliens and the Harvesting of Souls. Rochester, VT: Bear & Company.
- Kettley, S. (May 13, 2020). UFO sighting: Alien 'spaceship' filmed entering volcano for 'underground alien base'. Retrieved June 28, 2021 from https://www.express.co.uk/news/weird/1281337/UFO-sighting-alien-spaceship-Mount-Hood-UFO-video-Scott-Waring
- Keys, D. (September 18, 2011). The souls of Silbury Hill are bared in burial mound dig. Retrieved July 6, 2021 from https://www.independent.co.uk/news/uk/home-news/the-souls-of-silbury-hill-are-bared-in-burial-mound-dig-397806.html

- Khailov, P. & Anfalov, A. (n.d.). Case 289. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1990 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1990.pdf
- Kieckhefer, R. (1997). *Magic in History: Forbidden Rites A Necromancer's Manual of the Fifteenth Century.* University Park, PA: The Pennsylvania State University Press.
- Kierkegaard, S. (2019). *Kierkegaard's Journals and Notebooks Vol. 11: Part 1 Loose Papers, 1830-1843.* Cappelørn, N.J., Hannay, A., Kirmmse, B.H., Possen, D.D., Rasmussen, J.D.S., & Rumble, V. (Eds.). Princeton, NJ: Princeton University Press.
- Kilawna, K. (April 21, 2021). 'You don't call him Ogopogo, you call him by his name, nžažaitkw'. Retrieved December 16, 2021 from https://indiginews.com/okanagan/dont-call-him-ogopogo-call-him-by-his-name-nxaxaitkw-says-syilx-elder
- Kimball, D. (September 14, 2019). The Demon Gate. Retrieved July 26, 2021 from https://donnykimball.com/kimon-7f7a28291d51
- Kingsland, W. (1895). The Esoteric Basis of Christianity: or, Theosophy and Christian Doctrine. London, UK: Theosophical Publishing Society.
- Kinney, A.B. (1993). Infant Abandonment in Early China. Early China 18, pp. 107-138.
- Kinsley, A. (May 13, 2016). Silbury Hill. Retrieved July 19, 2021 from https://www.silentearth.org/silbury-hill-wiltshire/
- Kirk, R. (1893). The Secret Commonwealth of Elves, Fauns, & Fairies. London, UK: David Nutt.
- Kitat, S. E-S. (2019). The Veneration of the Owl in Graeco-Roman Egypt. *International Journal of History and Cultural Studies* 5(2), pp. 1-20.
- Kite, W. (1889). Telling the Bees. *The Magazine of American History with Notes and Queries 21*. A.S. Barnes & Company, p. 523.
- Klein, K. (2010). Through the Faerie Glass: A Look at the Realm of Unseen and Enchanted Beings. St. Paul, MN: Llewellyn Worldwide, Ltd.
- Kleinhempel, U.R. (May 2018). White Sangomas: the manifestation of Bantu forms of shamanic calling among whites in South Africa. *REVER Revista de Estudos da Religião 18*(1), pp. 143-173.
- Klimo, J. (2018). A Report on Phase III of FREE's Experiencer Research Study: The Results of a Qualitative Study. In R. Hernandez, J. Klimo, & R. Schild (Eds.), *Beyond UFOs: The Science of Consciousness and Contact with Non Human Intelligence "Volume I"* (pp. 121-287). USA: Dr. Edgar Mitchell Foundation for Research into Extraterrestrial and Extraordinary Experiences.
- Klyenova, S. (April 2005). Case 250. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 2004 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-2004.pdf
- Knight-Jadczyk, L. & Sy, H. (2005). The High Strangeness of Dimensions, Densities, and the Process of Alien Abduction. CA: Red Pill Press.
- Knight, J. (2014). Altered States of the Fourth Kind. In F. Zero (Ed.), *Contact: Them or Us* (Kindle Edition). US: A Psycube Project.
- Knight, J. (April 2012). The Origin and Significance of the Angelomorphic Christology in the "Ascencion of Isaiah." *The Journal of Theological Studies* 63(1), pp. 66-105.
- Knowles, C. (2014). Star Trek's Nine and the Sci-Fi Archons. In F. Zero (Ed.), *Contact: Them or Us* (Kindle Edition). US: A Psycube Project.
- Knowles, C. (July 12, 2021). Space is an Altar: Sex & Rockets. Retrieved September 28, 2021 from https://secretsun.blogspot.com/2021/07/space-is-altar-sex-rockets.html

- Kobrinsky, V. (July 1979). Essay Review: The Mouths of Earth: The Dialectical Allegories of the Kwakiutl Indians. *Dialectical Anthropology* 4(2), pp. 163-177.
- Koch, C. (June 1, 2020). What Near-Death Experiences Reveal about the Brain. Retrieved March 29, 2021 from https://www.scientificamerican.com/article/what-near-death-experiences-reveal-about-the-brain/
- Koch, W.H. & Koch, L.K. (November 2008). *The Hopewell Civilization in the Sauk Valley*. Sterling, IL: Sterling-Rock Falls Historical Society.
- Koivula, T. (n.d.). Case 45. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1971 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1971.pdf
- Kottmeyer, M. (November 1994). Why are the Grays Gray? MUFON UFO Journal 319, pp. 6-10.
- Kottmeyer, M. (November 2005). Engine Stoppers. Retrieved October 11, 2021 from https://magoniamagazine.blogspot.com/2014/01/engine-stoppers.html
- Kowalewski, D. (2015). Death Walkers: Shamanic Psychopomps, Earthbound Ghosts, and Helping Spirits in the Afterlife Realm. Bloomington, IN: iUniverse.
- Kroesbergen-Kamps, J. (2018). Dreaming of Snakes in Contemporary Zambia: Small Gods and the Secular. In M. Ostling (Ed.), *Fairies, Demons, and Nature Spirits: 'Small Gods' at the Margins of Christendom*, pp. 233-254.
- Kruse, J. (June 22, 2020). Underground, Overground. Retrieved July 6, 2021 from https://britishfairies.wordpress.com/tag/hillfort/
- Kugelmann, R. (1983). The Windows of Soul: Psychological Physiology of the Human Eye and Primary Glaucoma. East Brunswick, NJ: Associated University Presses.
- Kupihea, M. (2001). The Seven Dawns of the Aumakua. Rochester, VT: Inner Traditions.
- Kutepova, V. (June 2006). Case 38. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1990 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1990.pdf
- L., Adrian. (n.d.). 589 Adrian L NDE 2164. Retrieved November 3, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1adrian_l_nde.html
- L., Jamie (n.d.). 4077 Jamie L Probable NDE 7876. Retrieved March 31, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1jamie_l_probable_nde.html
- L., John. (n.d.). 615 John L NDE 172. Retrieved April 29, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1john 1 nde.html
- L., Joshua. (n.d.). 3749 Joshua L NDE 7366. Retrieved April 8, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1joshua 1 nde.html
- L., Kenneth. (n.d.). 1177 Kenneth L NDE 3241. Retrieved April 1, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1kenneth_l_nde.html
- L., Lourdes. (n.d.). 3424 Lourdes L NDE 6785. Retrieved April 8, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1lourdes_l_nde.html
- Lachman, G. (2011). The Quest for Hermes Trismegistus. Edinburgh, UK: Floris Books.
- Lady Gregory (1920). Visions and Beliefs in the West of Ireland Collected and Arranged by Lady Gregory, First Series. New York, NY: The Knickerbocker Press.
- Lady Gregory (1920). Visions and Beliefs in the West of Ireland Collected and Arranged by Lady Gregory, Second Series. New York, NY: The Knickerbocker Press.
- Lamborn, A.B. (Dec. 2007). Beyond Co-Existence to Mutual Influence: An Interdisciplinary Method for Psychoanalysis and Religion. *Journal of Religion and Health* 46(4), pp. 516-526.

- Lang, A. (1893). Introduction. In R. Kirk, *The Secret Commonwealth of Elves, Fauns, & Fairies* (pp. ix-xlix).. London, UK: David Nutt.
- Lang, A. (Ed.). (1901). The Violet Fairy Book. New York, NY: Longmans, Green, and Co.
- Lang, C.R. (October 2002). Psychic/spiritual awakenings. MUFON UFO Journal 414, pp. 8-10.
- Lapseritis, K. (2019). Sasquatch: A Terrestrial-Extraterrestrial? In R.E. Guiley (Ed.), *FATE Presents: Planet Bigfoot* (pp. 163-169). New Milford, CT: Visionary Living Publishing.
- Larkins, J.E. (Mar. 1981). Myth upon Myth: Five Animals of the Romancero Gitano. *Hispania* 64(1), pp. 14-22.
- Larousse. (1968). *New Larousse Encyclopedia of Mythology*. (R. Aldington & D. Ames, Trans.). London, UK: The Hamlyn Publishing Group Limited. (Original work published 1959)
- Larson, T.J. (1971). The Spirits of the Ancestors and the Mandengure Ceremony of the Hambukushu of Ngamiland. *Anthropos* 66(1/2), pp. 52-70.
- Laszkiewicz, W. (2014). The Reinvention of Lycanthropy in Modern Fantasy Literature. In A. Wicher, P. Spyra, & J. Matyjaszczyk (Eds.), *Basic Categories of Fantastic Literature Revisited* (pp. 91-103). Newcastle upon Tyne, UK: Cambridge Scholars Publishing.
- Latvian Commission on UFOs and Anomalous Phenomena. (1990). Case 67. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1960 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1960.pdf
- Laursen, C. (2016, October). *Reimagining the Poltergeist in Twentieth-Century America and Britain* (Doctoral Dissertation). The University of British Columbia-Vancouver: The Faculty of Graduate and Postdoctoral Studies (History).
- Lawrence, D.H. (1986). David Herbert Lawrence: Centenary Essays. Bristol, UK: Bristol Classical Press.
- Leach, M. (Jul.-Sep. 1961). Jamaican Duppy Lore. *The Journal of American Folklore* 74(293), pp. 207-215.
- Lebot, V., Merlin, M, & Lindstrom, L. (1997). *Kava: The Pacific Elixir*. New Haven, CT: Yale University Press.
- Lecouteux, C. (2003). Witches, Werewolves, and Fairies: Shapeshifters and Astral Doubles in the Middle Ages (C. Frock, Trans.). Rochester, VT: Inner Traditions. (Original work published 1992)
- Lecouteux, C. (2011). Phantom Armies of the Night: The Wild Hunt and the Ghostly Processions of the Undead. (J.E. Graham, Trans.). Rochester, VT: Inner Traditions.
- Lecouteux, C. (2013). *The Tradition of Household Spirits*. (J.E. Graham, Trans.). Rochester, VT: Inner Traditions. (Original work published 2000)
- Lecouteux, C. (2015). *Demons and Spirits of the Land*. (J.E. Graham, Trans.). Rochester, VT: Inner Traditions. (Original work published 1995)
- Lecouteux, C. (2019). *The Pagan Book of the Dead*. (J.E. Graham, Trans.). Rochester, VT: Inner Traditions.
- Ledger, J.R. (Sept.-Oct. 1962). Saucers or Ghosts? Flying Saucer Review 8(5), pp. 19-20.
- Leeming, D. (2004). *Jealous Gods & Chosen People: The Mythology of the Middle East*. New York, NY: Oxford University Press, Inc.
- LeGroff, J. (1986). *The Birth of Purgatory*. (A. Goldhammer, Trans.). Chicago, IL: University of Chicago Press.

- Leibowitz, A. (2018). The Neshamah: A Study of the Soul. Jerusalem, IL: Feldheim Publishers.
- Leidy, D.P. & Strahan, D. (2010). Wisdom Embodied: Chinese Buddhist and Daoist Sculpture in the Metropolitan Museum of Art. New Haven, CT: Metropolitan Museum of Art.
- Leiterman, R. (2000). The Bigfoot Mystery. Lincoln, NE: Writers Club Press.
- Leonard, T.J. (2005). Talking to the Other Side: A History of Modern Spiritualism and Mediumship. Lincoln, NE: iUniverse.
- Lepper, B.T. (2014). Early Historic American Indian Testimony Concerning the Ancient Earthworks of Eastern North America. *Journal of Ohio Archaeology 3*, pp. 1-11.
- Leszshenko, G.Y. (1994). Case 86. In In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1990 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1990.pdf
- Levenda, P. (2005). Sinister Forces: A Grimoire of American Political Witchcraft Book One: The Nine. Walterville, OR: TrineDay.
- Levenda, P. (2006). Sinister Forces: A Grimoire of American Political Witchcraft Book Three: The Manson Secret. Walterville, OR: TrineDay.
- Leviton, R. (1994). The Imagination of Pentecost: Rudolf Steiner & Contemporary Spirituality. Hudson, NY; Anthroposophic Press.
- Lewels, J. (December 2006). John Mack and the Reptilian Project. *MUFON UFO Journal 464*, pp. 3-6.
- Lewis, A.E. & Clouatre, D. (1996). *Melatonin and the Biological Clock*. New Canaan, CT: Keats Publishing.
- Lewis, J.R. (1994). Encyclopedia of Afterlife Beliefs and Phenomena. Detroit, MI: Gale Research Inc.
- Lewis, S. (1973). The Iconography of the Coptic Horseman in Byzantine Egypt. *Journal of the American Research Center in Egypt 10*, pp. 27-63.
- LewisCarrol. (January 11, 2002). Stop the Ride, I Wanna Get Off! Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=5045
- LiminalMugwump. (June 29, 2020). A Stormy Trip on a Stormy Post-Election Day. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=114084
- Lin, T. (2018). Trip: Psychedelics, Alienation, and Change. New York, NY: Vintage Books.
- Lincoln, A. (1953). Fragment: Niagara Falls [c. September 25-30, 1848]. In R.P. Basler (Ed.), *Collected Works of Abraham Lincoln*. New Brunswick, NJ: Rutgers University Press.
- Lincoln, B. (1991). *Death, War, and Sacrifice: Studies in Ideology & Practice.* Chicago, IL: University of Chicago Press.
- Litovkin, V. (January 21, 1990). Case 434. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1989 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1989.pdf
- Little, G.L. (1990). People of the Web: What Indian Mounds, Ancient Rituals, and Stone Circles Tell Us About Modern UFO Abductions, Apparitions, and the Near Death Experience. Memphis, TN: White Buffalo Books.
- Little, G.L. (2009). The Illustrated Encyclopedia of Native American Mounds & Earthworks. Memphis, TN: Eagle Wing Books, Inc.
- Little, G.L. (April 3, 2016). Moundville, Alabama's Ancient Indian Mounds Led Souls to the Stars. Retrieved July 9, 2021 from https://eprnews.com/moundville-alabamas-ancient-indian-mounds-led-souls-to-the-stars-3147/

- Littleton, J. & Walshe, K. (December 2013). Burials And Time At Gillman Mound, Northern Adelaide, South Australia. *Australian Archaeology* 77(77), pp. 38-51.
- Lloyd, E. (August 19, 2017). Did Ancient Oshoro Stone Circle Serve As A Portal To The Spirit World? Retrieved July 12, 2021 from https://www.ancientpages.com/2017/08/19/did-ancient-oshoro-stone-circle-serve-as-a-portal-to-the-spirit-world/
- Long, G. (July 1995). The Paranormal at Yakima. MUFON UFO Journal 327, pp. 3-11.
- Long, G. (November 1981). Kenneth Arnold: UFO "Pioneer." MUFON UFO Journal 165, pp. 7-10.
- Long, J. (2010). Evidence of the Afterlife: The Science of Near-Death Experiences. New York, NY: HarperCollins Publishers.
- Long, J. (Sept.-Oct. 2014). Near-Death Experiences: Evidence for Their Reality. *Missouri Medicine* 111(5), pp. 372-380.
- Loponen, M. (October 19, 2017). Faerie Folklore in Medieval Tales. Retrieved May 10, 2021 from https://deadbutdreaming.wordpress.com/2017/10/19/faerie-folklore-in-medieval-tales-by-mika-loponen/
- Lorenzen, K.J. (Winter 2005). Ancestor Deification in Ancient Maya Ritual and Religion: Late Postclassic Community Shrines and Family Oratories. *Journal of the Washington Academy of Sciences* 91(4), pp. 25-51.
- Lorgen, E.F. (January 1999). 'The Love Bite.' MUFON UFO Journal 369, pp. 9-11.
- Lossiah, L.K. (1998). *The Secrets and Mysteries of the Cherokee Little People*. Cherokee, NC: Cherokee Publications.
- Loumand, U. (2006). The Horse and its Role in Icelandic Burial Practices, Mythology, and Society. In A. Andrén, K. Jennbert, & C. Raudvere (Eds.), *Old Norse Religion in Long Term Perspectives: Origins, Changes and Interactions, an International Conference in Lund, Sweden, June 3–7, 2004* (pp. 130-134). Lund, SE: Nordic Academic Press.
- Love, S. (December 3, 2018). LSD Changes Something About The Way You Perceive Time. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.vice.com/en/article/j5zd7p/lsd-changes-something-about-the-way-you-perceive-time
- loveandhope. (June 12, 2018). Level 2-3 and Beautiful. Retrieved June 8, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=103897
- Lowth, M. (September 14, 2021). The Dangers of Being A UFO Researcher? Strange Deaths and Sudden Illness! Retrieved November 9, 2021 from https://www.ufoinsight.com/conspiracy/government/dangers-of-being-a-ufo-researcher
- Lucas, G. & McGovern, T. (2007). Bloody Slaughter: Ritual Decapitation And Display At The Viking Settlement Of Hofstaðir, Iceland. *European Journal of Archaeology* 10(1), pp. 7-30.
- Lucian. (1902). Lucian's True History. (F. Hickes, Trans.). London, UK: A.H. Bullen.
- Lucid. (October 27, 2016). Masters of the Universe. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=94632
- Luckert, K.W. (Aug. 1971). The Geographization of Death in Melanesia. *Numen 18*(2), pp. 141-160.
- Luke, D. (March 2008). Psychedelics substances and paranormal phenomena: A review of the research. *The Journal of Parapsychology*, pp. 77-107.
- Luke, D. & Kittenis, M. (September 2005). A preliminary survey of paranormal experiences with psychoactive drugs. *The Journal of Parapsychology* 69(2), pp. 305-327.

- Lundahl, C.R. (Fall 2000). A Comparison of Other World Perceptions by Near-Death Experiencers and by the Marian Visionaries of Medjugorje. *Journal of Near-Death Studies 19*(1), pp. 45-52.
- Luomala, K. (1983, Fall). Phantom Marchers in the Hawaiian Islands. *Pacific Studies* 7(1), pp. 1-33.
- Lurker, M. (1987). The Routledge Dictionary of Gods, Goddesses, Devils, & Demons. London, UK: Routledge & Kegan Paul.
- Lynch, W. (2021). Fairy forts. Retrieved April 20, 2021 from https://www.duchas.ie/en/cbes/4798683/4789823/4922742?ChapterID=4798683
- Lysaght, P. (1997). Fairylore from the Midlands of Ireland. In P. Narváez (Ed.), *The Good People: New Fairylore Essays* (pp. 22-46). Lexington, KY: The University Press of Kentucky.
- M., Stacy. (n.d.). NDE1991 Stacy M NDE 4142. Retrieved September 13, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1stacy_m_nde.html
- M., Aaron. (n.d.). Aaron M NDE 8350. Retrieved August 16, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1aaron_m_nde.html
- M., Karen. (n.d.). 4244 Karen M NDE 8141. Retrieved April 8, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1karen m nde 8141.html
- M., Kim. (n.d.). 4541 Kim M Probable NDE 8614. Retrieved June 22, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1kim_m_probable_nde.html
- M., Langton. (January 1992). Do Witches Cause Lights in the Sky? UFO AfriNews 5, pp. 3-5.
- M., Laura. (n.d.). 2995 Laura M NDEs 6235. Retrieved March 22, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1laura m ndes.html
- M., Lin. (n.d.). 3475 Lin M Possible NDE 6928. Retrieved June 8, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1lin_m_possible_nde.html
- M., Rebecca. (n.d.). 2182 Rebecca M NDE 16025. Retrieved March 31, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1rebecca_m_nde.html
- M., Richard. (August 2016). The Dragon Project. Retrieved July 22, 2021 from https://www.megalithia.com/alternative/dragonproject.html
- M., Sharon. (n.d.). Sharon M NDEs 8247. Retrieved August 16, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1sharon m probable nde.html.
- M., Shawn. (n.d.). 2338 Shawn M Probable NDE 4621. Retrieved March 23, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1shawn_m_probable_nde.html
- MacBain, A. (1885). Celtic Mythology and Religion. Inverness, UK: A. & W. Mackenzie.
- MacCulloch, C.J.A. (Dec. 31, 1932). Were Fairies an Earlier Race of Men? *Folklore 43*(4), pp. 362-375.
- MacCulloch, J.A. (1911). The Religion of the Ancient Celts. New York, NY: Dover Publications.
- Macdonell, A.A. (1897). Vedic Mythology. Strassbourg, FR: Verlag von Karl J. Trübner.
- MacGillivray III, A. (2010). *The Venus Calendar Observatory at Aztec New Mexico*. Blooominton, IN: AuthorHouse.
- MacGregor, A. (1901). Highland Superstitions. London, UK: Gibbings & Company, Ltd.
- MacGregor, T. & MacGregor, R. (2011). Synchronicity and the Other Side. Avon, MA: Adams Media.

- MacGregor, T. & MacGregor, R. (2014). Aliens in the Backyard. Hertford, NC: Crossroad Press.
- Machlin, M. & Beckley, T.G. (1981). UFO. Cape Town, South Africa: Quick Fox.
- Mack, J.E. (1994). *Abduction: Human Encounters with Aliens*. New York, NY: Charles Scribner's Sons.
- Mack, J.E. (1999). Passport to the Cosmos: Human Transformation and Alien Encounters. New York, NY: Three Rivers Press.
- Mack, L.E. & Jones, A. (April 30, 2021). You Might Be Pregnant If You're Having One Of These Weird Dreams. Retrieved May 28, 2021 from https://www.romper.com/life/10-dreams-that-predict-pregnancy-its-about-to-get-weird-8405844
- Mackay, I. (July/August 1970). UFOs and the Occult 1. Flying Saucer Review 16(4), pp. 27-29.
- Mackay, I. (September/October 1970). UFOs and the Occult 2. *Flying Saucer Review 16*(5), pp. 24-26.
- MacKillop, J. (2004). Oxford Dictionary of Celtic Mythology. Oxford, UK: Oxford University Press.
- MacKinnon, I. (2012, May 18). Briton Arrested with Roasted Human Foetuses for Use in Black Magic Ritual. Retrieved August 15, 2017 from http://www.telegraph.co.uk/news/worldnews/asia/thailand/9274106/Briton-arrested-with-roasted-human-foetuses-for-use-in-black-magic-ritual.html
- Madden, T. (May 16, 2018). Crom Cruach and the Cult of the Head. Retrieved December 31, 2021 from https://www.threewellsofthesea.com/blog/crom-cruach-and-the-cult-of-the-head
- Magan, M. (March 13, 2021). From ringfort to ring road: The destruction of Ireland's fairy forts. Retrieved January 2, 2022 from https://www.irishtimes.com/culture/heritage/from-ringfort-to-ring-road-the-destruction-of-ireland-s-fairy-forts-1.4496069
- Mahon, M.P. (1919). Ireland's Fairy Lore. Boston, MA: Thomas J. Flynn & Company.
- Mahon, T. (n.d.). A Fairy Story. Retrieved May 18, 2021 from https://www.duchas.ie/en/cbes/5009331/5007628
- Mainfort Jr., R.C. (2013). *Pinson Mounds: Middle Woodland Ceremonialism in the Midsouth.* Fayetteville, AR: University of Arkansas.
- Maisondeau, N (1907). 28,740 Miles. Paris, FR: Herbert Clarke.
- Malandra, W.W. (March 1967). The Concept of Movement in History of Religions: A Religio-Historical Study of Reindeer in the Spiritual Life of North Eurasian Peoples. *Numan* 14(1), pp. 23-69.
- Malcolm, K. (June 27, 2019). 'Mystical' Psychedelic Compound Found in Normal Brains. Retrieved June 7, 2021 from https://labblog.uofmhealth.org/lab-report/mystical-psychedelic-compound-found-normal-brains
- Manas, J.H. (1962). Flying Saucers and Space-Men. New York, NY: Pythagorean Society.
- Manguin, P.Y. (1986). Shipshape Societies: Boat Symbolism and Political Systems in Insular Southeast Asia. In D.G. Marr & A.C. Milner (Eds.), *Southeast Asia in the 9th to 14th Centuries* (pp. 187-213). Singapore: Institute of Southeast Asian Studies.
- Mann, B. (2003). *Native Americans, Archaeologists, and the Mounds*. New York, NY: Peter Lang, Inc.
- Mann, N.R. (2011). *Glastonbury Tor: A Guide to the History & Legends*. Somerset, UK: The Temple Publications Ltd.

- Manning, C. (2004). Irish Field Monuments. Dublin, IE: Government Publications Office.
- Marden, K. (December 2012). Abduction study complete. MUFON UFO Journal 536, pp. 1, 4-6.
- Marinković, M. (February 4, 2021). Not in Your Third Eye: What Does DMT Do in the Brain? Retrieved June 7, 2021 from https://mind-foundation.org/dmt-brain/
- Mark, E. (April 20, 2016). Ghosts in Ancient China. Retrieved May 6, 2021 from https://www.worldhistory.org/article/892/ghosts-in-ancient-china/
- Marsh, M.N. (2010). *Out-of-Body and Near-Death Experiences*. Oxford, UK: Oxford University Press.
- Martín, J. (Spring 1998). Carried Up Into the Light. (G. Creighton, Trans.). *Flying Saucer Review* 43(1), pp. 10-22.
- Martin, J. & Birnes, W.J. (2017). *Edison vs. Tesla: The Battle Over Their Last Invention*. New York, NY: Skyhorse Publishing.
- Martin, K., Walker, J. (Producers), & Walker, J. (Director). (2000). *The Fairy Faith* (motion picture). Canada: National Film Board of Canada.
- Marzluff, J.M., & Angell, T. (2007). *In the Company of Crows and Ravens*. New Haven, CT: Yale University Press.
- Mason, P. (2008). The Mystery of Stone Circles: Revised and Updated. Chicago, IL: Heinemann Library.
- Master, R. & Houston, J. (2000). *The Varieties of Psychedelic Experience*. Rochester, VT: Park Street Press.
- Matsuo, A. (2019). The Brave Mortal's Guide to Ghost Hunting. US: Alex Matsuo.
- Mattoon, M.A. (2005). Jung and the Human Psyche. New York, NY: Routledge.
- Maya [screen name]. (2011, November). Jung about death (Face to Face). Retrieved March 17, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=xWAicIovVzU
- Maya. (May 4, 2015). Spirituality and Psilocybin. Retrieved https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=88484
- Mayburd, M. (2014). The Hills Have Eyes: Post-Mortem Mountain Dwelling and the (Super) Natural Landscape in the Íslendingasögur. *Viking and Medieval Scandinavia 10*, pp. 129-154.
- McClenon, J. (2001). The Sociological Investigation of Haunting Cases. In J. Houran & R. Lange (Eds.), *Hauntings and Poltergeists: Multidisciplinary Perspectives* (pp. 62-81). Jefferson, NC: McFarland & Company.
- McConaughy, M.A. (Spring 2011). Burial Ceremonialism at Sugar Run Mound (36WA359), a Hopewellian Squawkie Hill Phase Site, Warren County, Pennsylvania. *Midcontinetnal Journal of Archaeology* 36(1), pp. 73-104.
- McD, Alan. (n.d.). 3068 Alan McD NDE 16041. Retrieved August 25, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1alan_mcd_nde.html
- McElroy, D.R. (2020). Superstitions: A Handbook of Folklore, Myths, and Legends from Around thew World. New York, NY: The Quarto Group.
- McGiffen, L. (January 8, 2000). Anubis, Companion to Osiris. Retrieved June 25, 2021 from https://grahamhancock.com/mcgiffenl1/
- McGowen, T. (1981). Encyclopedia of Legendary Creatures. Chicago, IL: Rand McNally.

- McHugh, T. (n.d.). A Story Led Astray at Night. Retrieved May 6, 2021 from https://www.duchas.ie/en/cbes/4498043/4345562
- McKenna, A. (2015). Third Eye: Mind Power, Intuition and Psychic Awareness. US: Alex McKenna (3rd ed).
- McKenna, D. J. (1999). Ayahuasca: An Ethnopharmacologic History. In R. Metzner (Ed.), *Ayahuasca: Hallucinogens, Consciousness, and the Spirit of Nature* (pp. 40-62). New York, NY: Thunder's Mouth Press.
- McKenna, T. (May 14, 1983). Hallucinogens Before and After Psychology (aka Beyond Psychology). Retrieved June 23, 2021 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/Hallucinogens+Before+and+After+Psychology+%28aka+Beyond+Psychology%29
- McKenna, T. (1983). Alien Love. Retrieved June 1, 2021 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/Alien+Love
- McKenna, T. (1984). New Maps of Hyperspace. Retrieved June 11, 2021 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/New+Maps+of+Hyperspace
- McKenna, T. (1987). Aka Suggested Reading List. Retrieved November 1, 2021 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/aka+Suggested+Reading+List
- McKenna, T. (November 5-6, 1988). Ethnobotany of Shamanism. Retrieved June 10, 2021 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/Ethnobotany+of+Shamanism
- McKenna, T. (June 1989). Aka Psychedelics and the Feminine. Retrieved June 7, 2021 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/aka+Psychedelics+and+the+Feminine
- McKenna, T. (March 27, 1990). Touched by The Tremendum. Retrieved June 1, 2021 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/Touched+by+The+Tremendum
- McKenna, T. (September 8, 1991). Mushrooms, Evolution and the Millennium. Retrieved June 1, 2021 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/Mushrooms%2C+Evolution+and+the+Millenium
- McKenna, T. (1991). Address to the Jung Society. Retrieved June 7, 2021 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/Address+to+the+Jung+Society
- McKenna, T. (1991). The Archaic Revival. San Francisco, CA: Harper San Francisco.
- McKenna, T. (May 29-31, 1992). Search for the Original Tree of Knowledge. Retrieved May 31, 2021 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/Search+For+The+Original+Tree+Of+Knowledge? query=ferry
- McKenna, T. (May 1993). Alien Footprints Leprechauns, Elves, or Dead Souls? Retrieved June 1, 2021 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/Alien+Footprints+-+Leprechauns%2C+Elves%2C+or+Dead+Souls%3F
- McKenna, T. (June 1993). Mushrooms, Sex and Society. Retrieved June 1, 2021 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/Mushrooms%2C+Sex+and+Society
- McKenna, T. (August 1993). A Weekend with Terence McKenna. Retrieved June 11, 2021 from https://www.organism.earth/library/document/a-weekend-with-terence-mckenna
- McKenna, T. (1993). Taxonomy of Illusion. Retrieved September 21, 2021 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/Taxonomy+of+Illusion
- McKenna, T. (1993). True Hallucinations. San Francisco, CA: Harper San Francisco.
- McKenna, T. (July 19-24, 1994). Rap Dancing Into the Third Millenium. Retrieved June 7, 2021 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/Rap+Dancing+Into+the+Third+Millenium

- McKenna, T. (1994). Appreciating Imagination. Retrieved June 8, 2021 from https://www.organism.earth/library/document/appreciating-imagination
- McKenna, T. (April 25, 1996). Terence McKenna: Live at the Cathedral Church of Saint John the Divine, NYC. Retrieved June 1, 2021 from https://www.abrupt.org/abruptlog/terence-mckenna-at-saint-johns/
- McKenna, T. (October 1999). Tryptamine Hallucinogens and Consciousness. Retrieved June 11, 2021 from https://erowid.org/culture/characters/mckenna_terence/mckenna_terence tryptamines consciousness.shtml
- McKenna, T. (n.d.). DMT, Mathematical Dimensions, and Death. Retrieved June 11, 2021 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/DMT%2C+Mathematical+Dimensions%2C+and+Death? query=DMT%20Mathematical%20Dimensions%20and%20Death
- McKenna, T. (n.d.). Intentionality in Language-Created Realities. Retrieved May 29, 2021 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/Intentionality+in+Language-Created+Realities? query=birthright
- McKenna, T. & McKenna, K. (April 1986). The Rites of Spring. Retrieved January 3, 2022 from https://www.asktmk.com/talks/The+Rites+Of+Spring?query=halo
- McKenna, T. & Toms, M. (June 10, 1983). Towards the Unknown. Retrieved June 1, 2021 from https://www.organism.earth/library/document/towards-the-unknown
- MckennaCountrCulture. (November 6, 2013). Terence Mckenna discusses death. Retrieved June 8, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=V7Ifyctb5DI
- McMains, V. (December 1, 2016). Hallucinogenic drug found in 'magic mushrooms' eases depression, anxiety in people with life-threatening cancer. Retrieved May 27, 2021 from https://hub.jhu.edu/2016/12/01/hallucinogen-treats-cancer-depression-anxiety/
- McSwain, T. (June 4-6, 2020). *That's Not a Demon.* [Conference presentation]. ConCarolinas 2021, Charlotte, NC, United States.
- Melanson, T. (2001). UFOs, Do They Smell? The Sulphur Enigma of Paranormal Visitation. Retrieved April 28, 2021 from https://www.conspiracyarchive.com/UFOs/ufosulphur.htm
- Melton, J.G. (Ed.). (2001). *Encyclopedia of Occultism & Parapsychology Vol. 2 M-Z*. Farmington Hills, MI: Gale (5th ed.).
- Melton, M.A. (2018). Ecological and Human Behavioral Messages Received from UAP-Related Non-Human Intelligence. In R. Hernandez, J. Klimo, & R. Schild (Eds.), *Beyond UFOs: The Science of Consciousness and Contact with Non Human Intelligence "Volume I"* (pp. 595-623). USA: Dr. Edgar Mitchell Foundation for Research into Extraterrestrial and Extraordinary Experiences.
- Menger, H. (Sept.-Oct. 1958). The Song from Saturn. Flying Saucer Review 4(5), pp. 16-17.
- Menger, H. (2014). *From Outer Space to You*. Point Pleasant, WV: New Saucerian Books. (Original work published 1959)
- Menzel, D.H. (March-April 1964). Do Flying Saucers Move in Straight Lines? *Flying Saucer Review 10*(2), pp. 3-7.
- Menzel, D.E. (July-August 1965). Orthoteny A Lost Cause: Part 2. *Flying Saucer Review 11*(4), pp. 26-28.
- Menzies, R. (1947). The Circle of Human Life. Edinburgh, UK: Myles Macphail.
- Merriam-Webster. (n.d.). Blister noun. Retrieved August 14, 2021 from https://www.merriam-webster.com/dictionary/blister

- Meskell, L. (September 2008). The Nature of the Beast: Curating Animals and Ancestors at Çatalhöyük. *World Archaeology* 40(3), pp. 373-389.
- Metcalf, P. (1976). Birds and Deities in Borneo. *Bijdragen tot de Taal-, Land- en Volkenkunde 132*(1), pp. 96-123.
- Metcalfe, D. (December 6, 2018). Anomalous Americana Contemporary tales of strange happenings in the lives of everyday individuals. Retrieved November 30, 2021 from https://davidmetcalfe.wordpress.com/2018/12/06/anomalous-americana
- Metzner, R. (2004). Introduction: Visionary Mushrooms of the Americas. In R. Metzner (Ed.), *Sacred Mushroom of Visions: Teonanácatl* (pp. 1-48). Rochester, VT: Inner Traditions.
- Metzner, R. (2006). Introduction: Amazonian Vine of Visions. In R. Metzner (Ed.), *Sacred Vine of Spirits: Ayahuasca* (pp. 1-39). Rochester, VT: Park Street Press.
- Meurger, M. & Gagnon, C. (1988). *Lake Monster Traditions: A Cross-Cultural Analysis*. London, UK: Fortean Tomes.
- Meyer, B. (2006). Alien Contact. Lincoln, NE: iUniverse.
- Meyer, B. (March 3, 1997). Unearthing clues at Serpent Mound: Geologists find evidence of a meteor crash near prehistoric monument in Adams County. Retrieved December 20, 2021 from https://www.cleveland.com/pdextra/2009/04/unearthing clues at serpent mo.html
- Meyer, M. (February 23, 2014). Meido: The Japanese Underworld. Retrieved March 22, 2021 from http://matthewmeyer.net/blog/2014/02/23/meido-the-japanese-underworld/
- Meyer, M. (2021). Hainu. Retrieved July 12, 2021 from http://yokai.com/hainu/
- Meyer, M. (2021). Kanazuchibō. Retrieved July 12, 2021 from http://yokai.com/kanazuchibou/
- Meyer, M. (2021). Katawaguruma. Retrieved November 21, 2021 from https://yokai.com/katawaguruma/
- Meyer, P. (Ed.). (n.d.). 340 DMT Trip Reports. Retrieved June 10, 2021 from https://www.serendipity.li/dmt/340_dmt_trip_reports.htm
- Michel, A. (May-June 1963). Global Orthoteny. Flying Saucer Review 9(3), pp. 3-7.
- Michel, A. (1966). About Flying Saucers Mysterious Celestial Objects (OMC). In *Planet Presence*: Plant Ed.
- Miklashevich, E. (2008). Rock Art Research in Siberia and Central Asia, 2000-2004. In P. Bahn, N. Franklin, & M. Strecker (Eds.), *Rock Art Studies: News of the World III* (Kindle Edition). Oxford, UK: Oxbow Books.
- Milbrath, S. (1999). Star Gods of the Maya: Astronomy in Art, Folklore, and Calendars. Austin, TX: University of Texas Press.
- Miles, J. (2000). Weird Georgia: Close Encounters, Strange Creatures, and Unexplained Phenomena. Nashville, TN: Cumberland House Publishing.
- Miles, J. (2013). Civil War Ghosts of Central Georgia and Savannah. Charleston, SC: Haunted America.
- Millard, D. (February 11, 2019). He Was Supposed to Be the Next Stephen King. Then the Aliens Came. Retrieved October 12, 2021 from https://gen.medium.com/he-was-supposed-to-be-the-next-stephen-king-then-the-aliens-came-afd7195e0b49
- Miller, A.L. (1995). The Woman Who Married a Horse: Five Ways of Looking at a Chinese Folktale. *Asian Folklore Studies* 54(2), pp. 275-305.

- Miller, D.L., Mietus, K.J., & Mathers, R.A. (Winter 1978). A Critical Examination of the Social Contagion Image of Collective Behavior: The Case of the Enfield Monster. *The Sociological Quarterly 19*(1), pp. 129-140.
- Miller, M. (n.d.). Neshamah: Levels of Soul Consciousness. Retrieved April 12, 2021 from https://www.chabad.org/kabbalah/article_cdo/aid/380651/jewish/Neshamah-Levels-of-Soul-Consciousness.htm
- Millington, G. (Winter 1994). Local Man "Healed" by Aliens. Flying Saucer Review 39(4), p. 17.
- Millman, L. (2019). Fungipedia: A Brief Compendium of Mushroom Lore. Princeton, NJ: Princeton University Press.
- Miranda, J.M. (November 10, 2021). Puerto Rico 1947. Retrieved November 17, 2021 from https://www.facebook.com/groups/1734280653427204/posts/1800900963431839
- Mishlove, J. (October 18, 2020). Mind at Large with Michael Grosso. Retrieved June 10, 2021 from https://www.listennotes.com/podcasts/new-thinking/mind-at-large-with-michael-q4Mpyn8j_iu/
- Misra, B.D. (March 9, 2015). Black Holes and the Journey of the Soul. Retrieved August 16, 2021 from https://www.bibhudevmisra.com/2015/03/black-holes-and-journey-of-soul.html?m=1
- Modderman, L. (February 13, 2018). Visions and Pablo Amaringo. Retrieved November 2, 2021 from https://deadbutdreaming.wordpress.com/2018/02/13/visions-and-pablo-amaringo-by-loes-modderman/
- Moeller, W.O. (Autumn 1975). Once More the one-Eyed Man against Rome. *Historia: Zeitschrift für Alte Geschichte* 24(3), pp. 402-410.
- Monat, N. (May 1968). The Girl Who Usurped a Boy's Body. *Fate Magazine 218*(21-5), pp. 45-48.
- Monroe Institute. (2019). Our Purpose. Retrieved April 5, 2021 from https://www.monroeinstitute.org/pages/our-purpose
- Monroe, R. (1977). *Journeys Out of the Body*. New York, NY: Broadway Books. (Original work published 1971)
- Monroe, R. (1994). Ultimate Journey. New York, NY: Broadway Books.
- Montgomery, D. (April 27, 1973). A "Monster" at Enfield. Mt. Vernon Register-News, p. 1.
- Montgomery, R. (1979). Strangers Among Us. New York, NY: Fawcett Crest.
- Montgomery, R. (1985). Aliens Among Us. New York, NY: G.P. Putnam's Sons.
- Moody, R. (2015). *Life After Life: The Investigation of a Phenomenon Survival of Bodily Death.* New York, NY: HarperCollins (Original work published 1975 by MBB, Inc.)
- Mooney, J. (Jul.-Dec. 1888). The Funeral Customs of Ireland. *Proceedings of the American Philosophical Society* 25(128), pp. 243-296.
- Mooney, J. (1900). *Myths of the Cherokee*. Washington, DC: Bureau of American Ethnography, Nineteenth Annual Report.
- Mooney, J. (1902). Myths of the Cherokee. Washington, DC: Bureau of American Ethnology.
- Moore, A.W. (1891). The Folk Lore of the Isle of Man. London, UK: A.W. Moore.
- Moore, B. (2001). Australian English and indigenous voices. In D. Blair & P. Collins (Eds.), *English in Australia* (pp. 133-150). Philadelphia, PA: John Benjamins Publishing Company.

- Moore, B. & Lundell, M. (October 1991). Mound Builders of the Ancient World *Central States Archaeological Journal 38*(4), pp. 166-169.
- Moran, K. (August 22, 2017). Sulfur with a Hint of Chocolate. Retrieved June 2, 2021 from https://ayahuascawisdom.com/sulfur-with-a-hint-of-chocolate-the-taste-of-ayahausca/
- Moravec, M.L. (August 1980). Psiufological Phenomena: UFOs and the Paranormal. *MUFON UFO Journal 150*, pp. 13-15.
- Moravec, M.L. (September 1980). UFOs and Prophetic Religious Movements. *MUFON UFO Journal 151*, pp. 7-10.
- Moravec, M. (September-October 1984). The Jindabyne UFO Abduction Case. *UFO Research Australia Newsletter* 5(5) pp. 6-10.
- Moreman, C.M. (2014). On the Relationship between Birds and the Spirits of the Dead. *Society & Animals* 22(5), pp. 1-22.
- Morgan, D. (2008). Snakes in Myth, Magic, and History. Westport, CT: Praeger.
- Morgan, F.T. (2009). Haunted Uwharries. Winston-Salem, NC: Bandit Books, Inc.
- Morgan, L. (2012). A Deed Without a Name: Unearthing the Legacy of Traditional Witchcraft. Alresford, UK: Moon Books.
- Morris, E. (November-December 1979). The Winged Beings of Bluestone Walk. *Flying Saucer Review 25*(6), pp. 24-27.
- Morton, J. (Dec. 1987). Singing Subjects and Sacred Objects: More on Munn's Transformation of Subjects into Objects' in Central Australian Myth. *Oceania* 58(2), pp. 100-118.
- Mosha, R.S. (2000). The Heartbeat of Indigenous Africa: A Study of the Chagga Educational System. New York, NY: Garland Publishing, Inc.
- mpowerftw. (September 28, 2020). Your 'Reality' Doesn't Exist. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=73901
- Mr. Apol. (August 12, 2003). The Rhine Triangle. Retrieved July 14, 2021 from https://spaceport666.tripod.com/newsrhine.html
- Mullis, K. (1998). Dancing Naked in the Mind Field. New York, NY: Vintage Books.
- Mundal, E. (1990). The Position of the Individual Gods and Goddesses in Various Types of Sources—with Special Reference to the Female Divinities. *Scripta 13*, pp. 294-315.
- Muraresku, B.C. (2020). The Immortality Key: The Secret History of the Religion with No Name. New York, NY: St. Martin's Press.
- Murphy-Hiscock, A. (2012). Birds A Spiritual Field Guide. Avon, MA: F+W Media, Inc.
- Murray, B. (2017). Story A Changeling. Retrieved July 4, 2017 from http://www.duchas.ie/en/cbes/5009102/4986879/5122047
- Murray, N. (April 1, 2017). 800 medieval bodies found during hillfort dig. Retrieved July 6, 2021 from https://www.irishexaminer.com/business/arid-20446670.html
- N., Harold. (n.d.). 2650 Harold N NDE 5107. Retrieved November 3, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1harold n nde.html
- N., Nelleke. (n.d.). 3451 Nelleke N Probable NDE 6893. Retrieved December 15, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1nelleke_n_probable_nde.html
- Nagaitis, C., & Mantle, P. (1994). Without Consent. Upper Saddle River, NJ: Prentice Hall.

- Nagy, G. (1973). Phaethon, Sappho's Phaon, and the White Rock of Leukas. *Harvard Studies in Classical Philology* 77, pp. 137-177.
- Nagy, G. (Fall 1980). Patroklos, Concepts of Afterlife, and the Indic Triple Fire. *Arethusa 13*(2), pp. 161-195.
- Name withheld. (August 16, 2021). Personal communication.
- Narváez, P. (1997). Physical Disorders: Changelings and the Blast. In P. Narváez (Ed.), *The Good People: New Fairylore Essays* (pp. 225-226). Lexington, KY: The University Press of Kentucky.
- Natasha. (December 7, 2016). The Cult of the Swan. Retrieved August 16, 2021 from http://www.thesoulofbones.com/blog/the-cult-of-the-swan
- National Academy of Medicine. (June 30, 2015). Cardiac Survival Rates Around 6 Percent for Those Occurring Outside of a Hospital, Says IOM Report. Retrieved March 31, 2021 from https://www.nationalacademies.org/news/2015/06/cardiac-survival-rates-around-6-percent-for-those-occurring-outside-of-a-hospital-says-iom-report
- Native-languages.org. (n.d.). Native American Legends: Kuku {Gougou}. Retrieved December 17, 2021 from http://www.native-languages.org/kuku.htm
- Nautical. (February 12, 2018). Merging into the World. Retrieved June 8, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=63429
- NDERF. (2021). NDERF Home Page. Retrieved March 29, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/index.htm
- NDERF. (n.d.). Archives 7-1-2010/12-31-2010 pt. 2. Retrieved April 2, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Archives/2_6_2010_2.html
- Nelson, B. (2006). *My Trip to Mars, the Moon and Venus*. Pomeroy, WA: Health Research. (Original work published 1956)
- nervewing. (August 6, 2018). Brilliant Flogging. Retrieved June 10, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=112155
- New Thinking Allowed with Jeffrey Mishlove. (May 12, 2021). InPresence 0225: Aliens in the Afterlife. Retrieved November 10, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=umwWvMkaKCY
- New Thinking Allowed with Jeffrey Mishlove. (May 13, 2021). The Scole Experiment with Robin Foy. Retrieved September 29, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=kfCaLjQK46Y
- New York Times. (April 5, 1886). Monster Skulls and Bones. The New York Times, p. 1.
- Newkirk, G. (December 8, 2016). Bigfoot is a Ghost: Interdimensional Sasquatch, The Green Flash, and Why We'll Never Find a Body. Retrieved January 4, 2019 from http://weekinweird.com/2016/12/08/bigfoot-is-a-ghost-interdimensional-sasquatch-tulpas-green-flash/
- Newkirk, G., Newkirk, D. (Producers), & Pfeiffer, K. (Director). (2019). *Hellier Season 2, Episode 9: The Center of Your Mind* (web series). US: Sticks River.
- Newton, M. (2004). *Life Between Lives*. Woodbury, MN: Llewellyn Publications.
- Nichols, D.E. (April 2016). Psychedelics. *Pharmacological Reviews* 68(2), pp. 264-355.
- Nichols, S. (2013). The Alien Agenda: My Personal Beliefs. In B. Oldham, *Children of the Grays* (pp. 147-159). Murfreesboro, TN: House of Halo.

- Nielsen, C. (n.d.). 'I asked Laura what she thought happens after death...' Retrieved March 29, 2021 from https://thepsychologist.bps.org.uk/i-asked-laura-what-she-thought-happens-after-death#:~:text=A%20study%20commissioned%20by%20the,%2C%20music%20etc%20(2).
- Nikaidō, Y. (2015). *Asian Folk Religion and Cultural Interaction*. Taipei, TW: National Taiwan University Press.
- Njuguna, W. (November 22, 2012). Fairy rings enigmatic features of Namibia. Retrieved June 29, 2021 from https://archive.ph/20130221091050/http://www.namibian.com.na/news/environment/full-story/archive/2012/november/article/fairy-rings-enigmatic-features-of-namibia/
- No author. (1963). HUMCAT Index 1962. Retrieved November 16, 2021 from http://www.cufos.org/HUMCAT/HUMCAT Index 1962.pdf
- No author. (2009, July 10). John Keel (Obituary). Retrieved June 8, 2017 from http://www.telegraph.co.uk/news/obituaries/science-obituaries/5797746/John-Keel. html
- No author. (April 1972). More on That 1897 Airship. Skylook 53, p. 21.
- No author. (December 16, 1882). The Drama in Paris. *The Era*, p. 5.
- No author. (n.d.). Case 127. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 2003 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-2003.pdf
- No author. (n.d.). Case 179. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1968 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1968.pdf
- No author. (n.d.). Raudive Voices. Retrieved October 6, 2021 from https://www.encyclopedia.com/science/encyclopedias-almanacs-transcripts-and-maps/raudive-voices
- No author. (Nov., 22, 1834). Crofton Croker's Fairy Legends. *The Dublin Penny Journal* 3(125), pp. 162-163.
- No author. (October 2004). "Most impressive corn crop formation I've ever seen" investigated in Miamisburg, OH. *MUFON UFO Journal 438*, pp. 3-4.
- No author. (Summer 2004). Obituary: Raymond G. Bayless. *Journal of Near-Death Studies 22*(4), p. 287.
- No author. En norsk Jente Indtagelse i Bjerg 1720. (1858, October 3). *Illustreret Nyhedsblad*, pp. 4-6. Retrieved from http://nb.no. Translated account by Old Jonny Brænne, retrieved from Magonia Exchange list (groups.yahoo.com/group/magonia_exchange), courtesy of Albert Rosales.
- Nordine, M. (June 15, 2017). Kurt Russell Reveals He Was the Pilot Who Reported the Phoenix Lights UFO Sighting Watch. Retrieved December 7, 2018 from https://www.indiewire.com/2017/06/kurt-russell-phoenix-lights-ufo-1201842807/
- Norman, M. & Scott, B. (1995). *Historic Haunted America*. New York, NY: Tom Doherty Associates.
- Norman, M., & Hickey-Hall, J. (2017). Pixies and Pixy Rocks. In S. Young & C. Houlbrook (Eds.), *Magical Folk: British and Irish Fairies: 500 AD to the Present* (Kindle Edition). London, UK: Gibson Square.
- Nover, L. (2019). Nightmareland: Travels at the Borders of Sleep, Dreams, and Wakefulness. New York, NY: Tarcher Perigree.
- NUFORC. (n.d.). Case 95. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 2002 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-2002.pdf

- Nunnelly, B. (2011). The Inhumanoids: Real Encounters with Beings That Can't Exist. Woolsery, UK: CFZ Press.
- Nunnelly, B. (2017). *The Inhumanoids*. US: Triangulum Publishing (2nd ed.).
- Nyman, J. (March 1989). The Familiar Entity and Dual Reference in the Latent Encounter. *MUFON UFO Journal 251*, pp. 10-12.
- Ó Crónín, D. (Ed.). (2005). *A New History of Ireland: Prehistoric and early Ireland Vol. 1.* Oxford, UK: Oxford University Press.
- O'Curry, E. (1873). *Manner and Customs of the Ancient Irish Vol. II.* London, UK: Williams and Norgate.
- O'Hanlon, J. (1870). Irish Folk Lore: Traditions and Superstitions of the Country; with Humorous Tales. Glasgow, UK: Cameron & Ferguson.
- O'Keefe, T. (2000). Medieval Ireland. Stroud, UK: Tempus.
- Obeid, T., Abulaban, A., Al-Ghatani, F., Al-Malki, A.R., & Al-Ghamdi, A. (May 2012). Possession by 'Jinn' as a cause of epilepsy (Saraa): a study from Saudi Arabia. *Seizure 21*(4), pp. 245-249.
- Obeyesekere, G. (2012). *The Awakened Ones: A Phenomenology of Visionary Experience*. New York, NY: Columbia University Press.
- Ogden, D. (2001). Greek and Roman Necromancy. Princeton, NJ: Princeton University Press.
- Ogden, R. & Montgomery, C. (August 2012). High Time. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://thepsychologist.bps.org.uk/volume-25/edition-8/high-time
- Ohnuki-Tierney, E. (1977). The Classification of the "Habitual Illness" of the Sakhalin Ainu. *Arctic Anthropology* 14(2), pp. 9-34.
- Oko-planet.net. (n.d.). Case 428. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1990 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1990.pdf
- Oldham, B. (2013). Children of the Greys. Murfreesboro, TN: House of Halo.
- Oldham, B. (2017). The Baby Takers. J. Smith (Ed.). Henderson, NV: Halo House Publishing.
- Oliver, N. (January/February 1978). Report—Extra! Ghost or Spaceman '73? *BUFORA Journal* 6(5), p. 9-20.
- Oliver. (September 3, 2006). 3 Weeks in its Reality. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=52972
- Olndskan. (n.d.). Sandby Borg Ringfort. Retrieved January 1, 2022 from https://www.atlasobscura.com/places/sandby-borg-ringfort
- Olofsson, J. & Josefson, E. (2007). The Development of Eketorp Fort. Expedition 49(1), pp. 28-34.
- Olsen, B. (2008). Sacred Places North America. US: Consortium of Collective Consciousness.
- Online Etymology Dictionary. (n.d.). Property. Retrieved December 2, 2021 from https://www.etymonline.com/word/property
- Onwuejeogwu, M.A. (1997). Afa Symbolism & Phenomenology in Nri Kingdom and Hegemony: An African Philosophy of Social Action. Benin City, NI: Ethiope Publishing Corporation.
- Orchard, A. (1997). Dictionary of Norse Myth and Legend. London, UK: Cassell.
- Oroc, J. (2009). Tryptamine Palace: 5-MeO-DMT and the Sonoran Desert Toad. Rochester, VT: Park Street Press.

- Osaka Convention & Tourism Bureau. (n.d.). Kawachi-Otsukayama Tumulus. Retrieved July 14, 2021 from https://osaka-info.jp/en/page/kawachi-otsukayama-tumulus
- Osborne, H. (June 28, 2017). Earliest Ever Neolithic Skull Cult Discovered at Archaeology Site in Turkey. Retrieved January 1, 2022 from https://www.newsweek.com/neolithic-skull-cult-gobekli-tepe-turkey-629740
- Osgood, C.B. (1933). The Ethnography of the Great Bear Lake Indians. *1931 Annual Report*. Ottawa, ON: National Museums of Canada.
- Ouellet, E. (2015). Illuminations: The UFO Experience as a Parapsychological Event. San Antonio, TX: Anomalist Books.
- Our St. Louis History. (2017). Our Native American History: St. Louis. Retrieved July 13, 2021 from https://www.ourstlouishistory.com/single-post/2019/04/03/our-native-american-history-st-louis-mounds
- Owen, E. (1896). Welsh Folk-Lore: A Collection of the Folk-Tales and Legends of North Wales. Oswestry, UK: Woodall, Minshall, and Co.
- Owen, I.M., & Sparow, M. (1976). *Conjuring Up Philip: An Adventure in Psychokinesis*. New York, NY: Harper & Row.
- P., Bene. (n.d.). 4321 Bene P NDE 8254. Retrieved April 2, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1bene p nde.html
- P., Georgie. (December 15, 2020). 4852 Georgie P Probable NDE 9103. Retrieved March 22, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1georgie_p_probable_nde.html
- Paine, R. (Summer 1994). Night Village and the Coming of Men of the Word: The Supernatural as a Source of Meaning among Coastal Saami. *The Journal of American Folklore 107*(425), pp. 343-363.
- Palmer, S.J. & Sentes, B. (2012). The International Raëlien Movement. In O. Hammer & M. Rothstein (Eds.), *The Cambridge Companion to New Religious Movements* (pp. 167-183). Cambridge, UK: Cambridge University Press.
- Pandit, B. (2005). Explore Hinduism. Loughborough, UK: Explore Books.
- Pannier, F. (n.d.). The Psychopomp Horse & the Phurbu: Observations on a Ritual Object. Retrieved March 19, 2021 from https://himalaya-arch.com/images/lettre-du-toit-du-monde/LTDM-n27-Psychopomp Horse ENGLISH.pdf
- Paquette, A. (January 2015). Can Death-Related Dreams Predict Future Deaths? Evidence from a Dream Journal Comprising Nearly 12,000 Dreams. *Journal of Scientific Exploration* 29(3), pp. 411-423.
- Parker, C. (2019). Pascagoula The Story Continues. Pontefract, UK: Flying Disk Press.
- Parker, S.P. (Ed.). (1994). McGraw-Hill Concise Encyclopedia of Science and Technology. (3rd ed.). New York, NY: McGraw-Hill.
- Parmeshwaranand, S. (2000). *Encyclopaedic Dictionary of Vedic Terms: Volume 2 M-Z.* Darya Ganj, IND: Sarup & Sons.
- Parnia, S. & Fenwick, P. (January 2002). Near death experiences in cardiac arrest: visions of a dying brain or visions of a new science of consciousness. *Resuscitation* 52(1), pp. 5-11.
- Parsons, E.C. (July 1916). The Zuñi A'doshlě and Suukě. American Anthropologist, pp. 338-347.
- Parsons, P.T. (1939). Pueblo Indian Religion, Vol. I. Chicago, IL: University of Chicago Press.

- Pasulka, D.W. (2019). *American Cosmic: UFOs, Religion, Technology.* New York, NY: Oxford University Press.
- Pauketat, T.R. & Sassaman, K.E. (2020). *The Archaeology of Ancient North America*. Cambridge, UK: Cambridge University Press.
- Paul, L. & Paul, B.D. (Nov. 1975). The Maya Midwife as Sacred Specialist: A Guatemalan Case. *American Ethnologist* 2(4), pp. 707-726.
- Paulides, D. (2008). The Hoopa Project: Bigfoot Encounters in California. Blaine, WA: Hancock House.
- Paulides, D. (2009). Tribal Bigfoot. Blaine, WA: Hancock House.
- Payaguaje, F. (2000). At the End You See God (excerpt from *The Yajé Drinker*). In L. E. Luna & S. F. White (Eds.), *Ayahuasca Reader: Encounters with the Amazon's Sacred Vine* (pp. 67-80). Santa Fe, NM: Synergetic Press.
- Peake, A. (2008). The Daemon. London, UK: Arcturus.
- Peake, A. (2016). Opening the Doors of Perception. London, UK: Watkins.
- Peake, A. (2019). The Hidden Universe. London, UK: Watkins.
- Pearson, M.P., Pollard, J., Richards, C., Welham, K., Casswell, C., French, C., Schlee, D., Shaw, D., Simmons, E., Stanford, A., Bevins, R., & Ixer, R. (2019). Megalith quarries for Stonehenge's bluestones. *Antiquity*, *93*(367), pp. 45-62.
- Peddle, S. (November 19, 2019). Indian Brook man says he spotted UFO in Nova Scotia skies. Retrieved October 28, 2021 from https://www.saltwire.com/prince-edward-island/news/canada/indian-brook-man-says-he-spotted-ufo-in-nova-scotia-skies-378121/
- Peebles, C.S. & Kus, S.M. (July 1977). Some Archaeological Correlates of Ranked Societies. *American Antiquity* 42(3), pp. 421-448.
- Pepi. (n.d.). 2 Pepi NDE 67. Retrieved August 25, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/lpepi nde.html
- Perriam, D. Personal communication, January 19, 2015.
- Persinger, M.A. (2001). The neuropsychiatry of paranormal experiences. *The Journal of Neuropsychiatry and Clinical Neurosciences* 13(4), pp. 515-524.
- Persson, C.P. (February 17, 2017). Did Stone Age people build a large labyrinth in Denmark? Retrieved July 15, 2021 from https://sciencenordic.com/archaeology-denmark-society-culture/did-stone-age-people-build-a-large-labyrinth-in-denmark/1442732
- Pettigrew, J.D. (December 3, 2003). The Min Min light and the *Fata Morgana*. *Clinical and Experimental Optometry* 86(2), pp. 109-120.
- Philson, K. & Hale, C. (April 15, 2020). Ancient Dwarves of North America. Retrieved July 13, 2021 from https://www.expandedperspectives.com/ancient-dwarves-of-north-america/
- Picardo, N.S. (2007). "Semantic Homicide" and the So-called Reserve Heads: The Theme of Decapitation in Egyptian Funerary Religion and Some Implications for the Old Kingdom. *Journal of the American Research Center in Egypt 43*, pp. 221-252.
- Picasso, F. (n.d.). Case 7. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1909 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1909.pdf
- Picknett, L. (2001). The Mammoth Book of UFOs. London, UK: Robinson.
- Pinchbeck, D. (2002). Breaking Open the Head: A Psychedelic Journey into the Heart of Contemporary Shamanism. New York, NY: Broadway Books.

- Pitts, M. (August 2008). Stonehenge: One of our largest excavations draws to a close. *British Archaeology 102*, p. 13.
- Platelle, H. (February 1, 2001). San Nicasio di Reims Vescovo. Retrieved January 3, 2022 from http://www.santiebeati.it/dettaglio/81400
- Plato. (1997). *Plato's Cosmology*. (F.M. Cornford, Trans.). Indianapolis, IN: Hackett Publishing Company. (Original translation published 1935)
- Plevin, N. (July 27, 1992). Soldier Gives as Reason He Disappeared: Orders From Ouija Board. Retrieved January 17, 2022 from https://apnews.com/article/b9e0d739f39711021689494e4933c637
- Pócs, É. (2018). Small Gods, Small Demons: Remnants of an Archaic Fairy Cult in Central and South-Eastern Europe. In M. Ostling (Ed.), *Fairies, Demons, and Nature Spirits: 'Small Gods' at the Margins of Christendom*, pp. 255-276.
- PointPleasantWV.org. (n.d.). Mason County, WV An Archaeological Treasure. Retrieved June 29, 2021 from http://pointpleasantwv.org/MasonCoHistory/ARCH/Arch_3.htm
- Pollington, S. (2008). Anglo-Saxon Burial Mounds. Little Downham, MI: Anglo-Saxon Books.
- Pope, N., Burroughs, J., & Penniston, J. (2014). *Encounter in Rendlesham Forest*. New York, NY: Thomas Dunne Books.
- Porter, H. (n.d.). Case 66. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1982 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1982.pdf
- Porter, H. (n.d.). Case 76. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1985 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1985.pdf
- Powell, K. (July 3, 2019). Photo Gallery of Cemetery Symbols and Icons. Retrieved October 28, 2021 from https://www.thoughtco.com/photo-gallery-of-cemetery-symbolism-4123061
- Pratt, C. (2007). *An Encyclopedia of Shamanism: Volume Two N-Z.* New York, NY: The Rosen Publishing Group, Inc.
- Precker, M. (January 16, 1994). Spirits in the Mirror: Science or Mind Games? Retrieved May 29, 2021 from https://www.sun-sentinel.com/news/fl-xpm-1994-01-16-9401170155-story.html
- Price, D.T. & Feinman, G.M. (2008). Images of the Past. New York, NY: McGraw-Hill (5th ed.).
- Priyma, A. (n.d.). Case 60. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1986 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1986.pdf
- Probert, M. & Lingford, C. (1947). The Coming of the Guardians. Retrieved August 18, 2021 from https://borderlandsciences.org/project/etheria/mimeo/tcotg/communications.html
- Project Becassine. (n.d.). Case 282. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1976 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1976.pdf
- Puhvel, M. (1978). Snow and Mist in "Sir Gawain and the Green Knight": Portents of the Otherworld? *Folklore 89*(2), pp. 224-228.
- Puthoff, H.A. (1982, January). Mail Bag: Birth of a New Theory? *Flying Saucer Review 27*(4), p. 23.
- Puxley, P. (Sept. 1993). Mountain 'Sparkler' Effect in South Africa. UFO AfriNews 8, pp. 19-20.
- Pyle, R.M. (2017). *Where Bigfoot Walks: Crossing the Dark Divide*. Berkeley, CA: Counterpoint (Original work published 1995).

- Quinlan, S.M. (September 2013). Shots to the mind: Violence, the brain and biomedicine in popular novels and film in post-1960s America. *European Journal of American Culture* 32(3).
- R., Erika. (n.d.). 3104 Erika R NDE 6354. Retrieved December 10, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1erika r nde.html
- Raats, P.J. (1970). A Structural Study of Bagobo Myths and Rites. *Asian Folklore Studies* 29, pp. 1-131.
- Rabinowitz, J. (1998). The Rotting Goddess: The Origin of the Witch in Classical Antiquity's Demonization of Fertility Religion. Brooklyn, NY: Autonomedia.
- Radin, D. (2018). Real Magic: Ancient Wisdom, Modern Science, and a Guide to the Secret Power of the Universe. New York, NY: Harmony Books.
- Raffy, C. (Summer 1998). The Story of Monsieur and Madame C. *Flying Saucer Review 43*(2), pp. 22-23.
- Ragnarsdóttir, R.H. (n.d.). Hjörleifshöfði in South-Iceland Part II the Hike, the Inhabitants and the Yoda Cave. Retrieved July 6, 2021 from https://guidetoiceland.is/connect-with-locals/regina/the-historical-hjorleifshofdi-promontory-part-ii-the-hike-and-the-inhabitants
- Ragnarsdóttir, R.H. (n.d.). Hjörleifshöfði Promontory in South-Iceland the Blood Brothers Ingólfur and Hjörleifur. Retrieved July 6, 2021 from https://guidetoiceland.is/connect-with-locals/regina/hjorleifshofdi-cape
- Ramble, C. (December 2009). Playing Dice with the Devil: Two Bonpo Soul-retrieval Texts and Their Interpretation in Mustang, Nepal. *East and West* 59(1/4), pp. 205-232.
- Rampa, T.L. (May-June 1957). Flying Into Space. Flying Saucer Review 3(3), pp. 10-12.
- Randle, K. D. (1989). The October Scenario. New York City, NY: Berkley Books.
- Randles, J. (1983). UFO Reality. London, UK: Robert Hale Ltd.
- Randles, J. (1987). *Sixth Sense: Psychic Powers and Your Five Senses*. Topfield, MA: Salem House Publishers.
- Randles, J. (1988). *Alien Abductions: The Mystery Solved*. New Brunswick, NJ: Inner Light Publications.
- Randles, J. (1994). Star Children. London, UK: Robert Hale Limited.
- Randles, J. (1997). Alien Contact: The First Fifty Years. New York, NY: Barnes & Noble Books.
- Randles, J. (1998). *Truly Weird: Real-Life Cases of the Paranormal*. London, UK: Collins & Brown.
- Randles, J. (n.d.). Essay on the Oz Factor and the Strange Sensations of Altered Reality Reported by UFO Witnesses. Retrieved December 9, 2018 from http://alienjigsaw.com/et-contact/Randles-The-Oz-Factor.html
- Rank, O. (1950). *Psychology and the Soul.* (W.D. Turner, Trans.). Philadelphia, PA: University of Pennsylvania Press.
- Rank, O. (1971). *Double: A Psychoanalytic Study*. (H. Tucker Jr., Trans.). Chapel Hill, NC: University of North Carolina Press.
- Ravenswood, S. (1999). Ethereal Serpents Held Me in Thrall. In R. Metzner (Ed.), *Ayahuasca: Hallucinogens, Consciousness, and the Spirit of Nature* (pp. 118-128). New York, NY: Thunder's Mouth Press.
- Raynes, B. (February 1982). UFOs or "Soul Ships?" MUFON UFO Journal 168, pp. 15-17.

- Raynes, B. (September 17, 2005). An Archetype Experience? Retrieved August 27, 2021 from http://ufoexperiences.blogspot.com/2005/09/archetype-experience.html
- Raynes, B. (2018). An Overview of the History of Unidentified Aerial Phenomenon Contact Paradigms. In R. Hernandez, J. Klimo, & R. Schild (Eds.), *Beyond UFOs: The Science of Consciousness and Contact with Non Human Intelligence "Volume I"* (pp. 679-728). USA: Dr. Edgar Mitchell Foundation for Research into Extraterrestrial and Extraordinary Experiences.
- Raynes, B. (2019). John A. Keel: The Man, The Myths, and the Ongoing Mysteries. USA: Brent Raynes.
- Reaves, W.P. (2018). Odin's Wife: Mother Earth in Germanic Mythology. US: William P. Reaves.
- Redfern, N. (2004). Three Men Seeking Monsters. New York, NY: Paraview.
- Redfern, N. (2010). Final Events. San Antonio, TX: Anomalist Books.
- Redfern, N. (September 2014). The 'Other' Mysteries of Rendelsham Forest. *MUFON UFO Journal 557*, pp. 12-12.
- Redfern, N. (2016). Nessie. Woodbury, MN: Llewellyn Publications.
- Redfern, N. (2016). The Bigfoot Book: The Encyclopedia of Sasquatch, Yeti and Cryptid Primates. Canton, MI: Visible Ink Press.
- Redfern, N. (2016). Women in Black: The Creepy Companions of the Mysterious M.I.B. US: Lisa Hagan Books [Kindle edition].
- Redfern, N. (November 12, 2017). Beware of the Little Folk. Retrieved May 20, 2021 from https://mysteriousuniverse.org/2017/11/beware-of-the-little-folk/
- Redfern, N. (November 30, 2017). When Strange Creatures Get the Urge To "Change." Retrieved December 18, 2018 from https://mysteriousuniverse.org/2017/11/when-strange-creaturesget-the-urge-to-change/
- Redfern, N. (December 29, 2018). Aliens: "Believe in Us, But Not Too Much." Retrieved July 16, 2021 from https://mysteriousuniverse.org/2018/12/aliens-believe-in-us-but-not-too-much/
- Redfern, N. (February 25, 2020). The Strange Saga of "UFO Imposters" and Doppelgangers. Retrieved December 1, 2021 from https://mysteriousuniverse.org/2020/02/the-strange-saga-of-ufo-impostors-and-doppelgangers/
- Redfern, N. (April 22, 2020). The Strange Story of a Dog On-Board a UFO! Retrieved November 16, 2021 from https://mysteriousuniverse.org/2020/04/the-strange-story-of-a-dog-on-board-a-ufo/
- Redfern, N. (November 20, 2020). From Extraterrestrials to the Mysteries of the Dead. Retrieved November 21, 2021 from https://mysteriousuniverse.org/2020/11/from-extraterrestrials-to-the-mysteries-of-the-dead/
- Redfern, N. (April 6, 2021). The Mothman Prophecies Movie and the Chernobyl Disaster of April 1986: What's the Truth? Retrieved December 21, 2021 from https://mysteriousuniverse.org/2021/04/the-mothman-prophecies-movie-and-the-chernobyl-disaster-of-april-1986-whats-the-truth
- Redfern, N. (June 9, 2021). The Strange Saga of the Men in Black at Loch Ness. Retrieved December 17, 2021 from https://mysteriousuniverse.org/2021/06/the-strange-saga-of-the-men-in-black-of-loch-ness/
- Redfern, N. (June 26, 2021). Five Very Strange Things About Nessie. Retrieved December 16, 2021 from https://mysteriousuniverse.org/2021/06/five-very-strange-things-about-nessie

- Redish, L. (2015). Native American Legends: Memegwesi (Mannegishi). Retrieved April 9, 2021 from http://www.native-languages.org/memegwesi.htm
- Redish, L. (2015). Native American Legends: Paissa (Paisake). Retrieved May 21, 2021 from http://www.native-languages.org/paissa.htm
- ReFaey, K., Quinones, G.C., Clifton, W., Tripathi, S., & Quiñones-Hinojosa, A. (May 2019). The Eye of Horus: The Connection Between Art, Medicine, and Mythology in Ancient Egypt. *Cureus 11*(5). Retrieved June 7, 2021 from https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC6649877/
- Reichardt, P.F. (1984). Gawain and the Image of the Wound. *Publications of the Modern Language Association of America* 99(2), pp. 154-161.
- Reimann, M. (July 31, 2017). The deadliest bridge disaster in US history was caused by a tiny crack just three millimeters deep. Retrieved December 21, 2021 from https://timeline.com/the-deadliest-bridge-disaster-in-us-history-was-caused-by-a-tiny-crack-just-3-millimeters-deep-ca5404c4dffa
- Renner, T. (2018). *Bigfoot: West Coast Wild Men.* Charleston, SC: CreateSpace Independent Publishing Platform.
- Renner, T. (2021). The Witch Cloud. Red Lion, PA: Dark Holler Arts.
- Renner, T. (December 23, 2021). Strange Familiars Episode 284: Christmas Apparitions, Grave Lights, & More. Retrieved January 19, 2022 from https://www.strangefamiliars.com/home/christmas-apparitions-grave-lights-and-more
- Revista Brasileria Ovni. (n.d.). Case 84. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1985 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1985.pdf
- Rhŷs, J. (1892). Lectures on the origin and growth of religion as illustrated by Celtic heathendom. London, UK: Williams and Norgate.
- Rhŷs, J. (1901). Celtic Folklore: Welsh and Manx, Vol. I. Oxford, UK: Clarendon Press.
- Ribera, A. (May 1986). "The Jinn and the Dolmen: The Most Amazing Case of Abduction Yet" & "The Jinn & the Dolmen: Addendum." *Flying Saucer Review 31*(4), pp. 2-10, 11-12.
- Riboli, D. (December 1994). Shamanic Rites of the Terai Chepangs. *East and West 44*(2/4), pp. 327-352.
- Riboud, P. (2007). Bird-Priests in Central Asian Tombs of 6th-Century China and Their Significance in the Funerary Realm. *Bulletin of the Asia Institute 21*, pp. 1-23.
- Rickard, B., & Michell, J. (2000). *Unexplained Phenomena: A Rough Guide Special*. London, UK: Rough Guides, Ltd.
- Ridenour, A. (2016). The Krampus and the Old, Dark Christmas: Roots and Rebirth of the Folkloric Devil. Port Townsend, WA: Feral House.
- Riess, J. & Bigelow, C.K. (2005). Mormonism for Dummies. Hoboken, NJ: Wiley Publishing.
- Rieti, B. (1997). "The Blast" in Newfoundland Fairy Tradition. In P. Narváez (Ed.), *The Good People: New Fairylore Essays* (pp. 284-298). Lexington, KY: The University Press of Kentucky.
- Riffard, P.A. (1983). Dictionnaire de l'ésotérisme. Paris, FR: Payot. (see also Nouveau dictionnaire de l'ésotérisme, 2008)
- Rimell, B. (2018). They Shimmer Within: Cognitive-Evolutionary Perspectives on Visionary Beings. UK: Xibalba Books.

- Ring, K. (1987). From Alpha to Omega: Ancient Mysteries and the Near-Death Experience. *Anabiosis* 5(2), pp. 3-16.
- Ring, K. (1992). The Omega Project: Near-Death Experiences, UFO Encounters, and Mind at Large. New York, NY: William Morrow.
- Ring, K. & Valarino, E.E. (2006). Lessons from the Light. Needham, MA: Moment Point Press.
- Ritson, J. (1831). Fairy Tales, Now First Collected. London, UK: Payne and Foss, Pall-Mall.
- Rivas, T., Dirven, A., & Smit, R.H. (2016). *The Self Does Not Die: Verified Paranormal Phenomena from Near-Death Experiences*. Durham, NC: International Association for Near-Death Studies (IANDS).
- Rizzi, W. (1980, September). Close encounter in the Dolomites. *Flying Saucer Review 26(3)*, pp. 22-27.
- Rnz.co.nz. (May 8, 2021). Endangered leatherback turtle returned to hapū. Retrieved August 3, 2021 from https://www.stuff.co.nz/national/300302880/endangered-leatherback-turtle-returned-to-hap
- Roberts, A. (May 5, 2015). Francis Crick, DNA & LSD: Psychedelic History in the Age of Science. Retrieved May 27, 2021 from https://psychedelicpress.co.uk/blogs/psychedelic-press-blog/23736769-francis-crick-dna-lsd-psychedelic-history-in-the-age-of-science
- Roberts, J. (2004). Chinese Mythology A to Z. New York, NY: Facts On File, Inc.
- Roberts, J. (2016). The Sacred Mythological Centres of Ireland. IE: Bandia Publishing.
- Rodabough, T. & Cole, K. (2003). Near-Death Experiences and as Secular Eschatology. In C.D. Bryant (Ed.), *Handbook of Death and Dying*. Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage Reference.
- Rodriguez, J.G.A. (n.d.). Case 92. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1982 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1982.pdf
- Roeis, R. (July 1997). Comments from Roland Roeis of Namibia. UFO AfriNews 16, pp. 26-29.
- Roes, T. (March 10, 2020). Is MDMA a psychedelic? Retrieved May 27, 2021 from https://icpr2020.net/is-mdma-a-psychedelic/
- Rogan, J. (June 21, 2018). Joe Rogan Dennis McKenna Critiques Michael Pollan. Retrieved June 14, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=WIYCJdSuUU4
- Rogan, J. (November 7, 2017). Joe Rogan Experience #1035 Paul Stamets. Retrieved June 10, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=mPqWstVnRjQ&t=1639s
- Rogan, T. (July 31, 2020). Did Steven Greer fake a UFO with flares? Retrieved October 11, 2021 from https://www.washingtonexaminer.com/opinion/did-steven-greer-fake-a-ufo-with-flares
- Rogers, C. (1869). Scotland Social and Domestic: Memorials of Life and Manners in North Britain. London: Charles Griffin and Co.
- Rogo, D.S. & Bayless, R. (1979). Phone Calls from the Dead. Hoboken, NJ: Prentice-Hall.
- Rojcewicz, P. (1986). The Extraordinary Encounter Continuum Hypothesis and its Implications for the Study of Belief Materials. *Folklore Forum* 19(2), pp. 131-152.
- Rojcewicz, P. (1997). Fairies, UFOs, and Problems of Knowledge. In P. Narváez (Ed.), *The Good People: New Fairylore Essays* (pp. 479-514). Lexington, KY: The University Press of Kentucky.
- Romain, W.F. (March 19, 2017). Monks Mound as an Axis Mundi for the Cahokian World. US: W.F. Romain.

- Romain, W.F. (n.d.). Werewolf Shamans in the Ancient Woodlands of the Eastern United States. Retrieved March 15, 2022 from https://www.academia.edu/37433573/WEREWOLF_SHAMANS_IN_THE_ANCIENT_WOODLANDS_OF_THE_EASTERN_UNITED_STATES
- Romeo, J. (September 3, 2020). The Long History of Comet Phobia. Retrieved November 10, 2021 from https://daily.jstor.org/the-long-history-of-comet-phobia/
- Rooney, A. (1993). Hunting in Middle English Literature. Cambridge, UK: D.S. Brewer.
- Roos, D. (October 11, 2018). Human Sacrifice: Why the Aztecs Practiced This Gory Ritual. Retrieved December 31, 2021 from https://www.history.com/news/aztec-human-sacrifice-religion
- Root, C. (October 20, 2020). UFOs and a Horse Called Snippy. Retrieved November 16, 2021 from https://history.denverlibrary.org/news/ufos-and-horse-called-snippy
- Roper (n.d.). Paradise Polled: Americans and the Afterlife. Retrieved March 29, 2021 from https://ropercenter.cornell.edu/paradise-polled-americans-and-afterlife
- Rosales, A. (May 27, 2021). Personal communication.
- Rosales, A. (n.d.). Case 40. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1968 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1968.pdf
- Rosales, A. (n.d.). Case 35. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1991 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1991.pdf
- Rosales, A. (n.d.). Case 41. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 2001 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-2001.pdf
- Roth, J. E. (1997). American Elves: An Encyclopedia of Little People from the Lore of 380 Ethnic Groups of the Western Hemisphere. Jefferson, NC: McFarland & Company, Inc.
- Roy-Di Piazza, V. (August 2020). 'Ghosts from other planets': plurality of worlds, afterlife and satire in Emanuel Swedenborg's *De Telluribus in mundo nostro solari* (1758). *Annals of Science* 77, pp. 469-494.
- Rozsa, M. (May 15, 2021). How the pineal gland became an obsession for both spiritualists and sci-fi writers. Retrieved June 7, 2021 from https://www.salon.com/2021/05/15/how-the-pineal-gland-became-an-obsession-for-both-spiritualists-and-sci-fi-writers/
- Ruiz, M. (July 24, 2016). My Visit to the George Stickney House. Retrieved July 15, 2021 from http://thegeorgestickneyhousemariahruiz.blogspot.com/
- Rushton, N. (May 28, 2016). Going Round in Circles: The Faerie Dance. Retrieved June 23, 2021 from https://deadbutdreaming.wordpress.com/2016/05/28/going-round-in-circles-the-faerie-dance/
- Rushton, N. (July 10, 2016). The Space-Time Continuum in Faerieland. Retrieved April 28, 2021 from https://deadbutdreaming.wordpress.com/2016/07/10/the-space-time-continuum-infaerieland/
- Rushton, N. (August 22, 2016). The Faeries as Nature Spirits. Retrieved April 19, 2021 from https://deadbutdreaming.wordpress.com/2016/08/22/the-faeries-as-nature-spirits/
- Rushton, N. (July 22, 2018). The Mabinogion: Worlds and Otherworlds in Medieval Wales. Retrieved April 26, 2021 from https://deadbutdreaming.wordpress.com/2018/07/22/the-mabinogion-worlds-and-otherworlds-in-medieval-wales/
- Rushton, N. (March 2, 2019). A Faerie Taxonomy. Retrieved April 20, 2021 from https://deadbutdreaming.wordpress.com/2019/03/02/a-faerie-taxonomy/

- Rushton, N. (November 17, 2019). Paracelsus, Nature Spirits and Faeries. Retrieved April 19, 2021 from https://deadbutdreaming.wordpress.com/2019/11/17/paracelsus-nature-spirits-and-faeries/? fbclid=IwAR10hNNgBQRwJmsdGrzxoWRS04XzrFemiB2kqJ4vbwWgBe18z0xNi7XjUcU
- Russell, W.M.S. (1983). More about Folklore and Literature. Folklore 94(1), pp. 3-32.
- Rutkowski, C., & Dittman, G. (2006). *The Canadian UFO Report: The Best Cases Revealed*. Toronto, ON: Dundurn Press.
- Ryback, D. & Switzer, L. (1988). Dreams That Come True: Their Psychic and Transforming Powers. New York, NY: Doubleday.
- S., Dustine. (n.d.). 1283 Dustine S NDE 314/372/456. Retrieved April 1, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1dustine_s_nde.html
- S., Greg. (n.d.). 4653 Greg S Probable NDE 8788. Retrieved April 1, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1greg_s_probable_nde.html
- S., Richard. (n.d.). 317 Richard S NDE 816. Retrieved April 2, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1richard_s_nde.html
- S., Roy. (n,d.). 3110 Roy S NDE 6367. Retrieved December 10, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1roy_s_nde.html
- S., Yazmine. (n.d.). Yazmine S NDE 6992. Retrieved August 16, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1yazmine_s_nde.html
- Sadovszky, 0. (1993) The Wintu shaman. In Hoppal, M. & Howard, K.D. (Eds.), *Shamans and Cultures*. Budapest, HU: Akadémiai Kiadó.
- Saethre, E. (December 2007). Close Encounters: UFO Beliefs in a Remote Australian Aboriginal Community. *The Journal of the Royal Anthropological Institute 13*(4), pp. 901-915.
- Sahagun, B. (1997). *Primeros Memoriales*. (T. D. Sullivan, Trans.). Norman, OK: University of Oklahoma Press.
- Samkar, N. (2020). *Mount Kailash: The White Mirror Ngari, Tibet*. Dharamshala, IND: Library of Tibetan Works and Archives.
- Sanderson, E.W. (2009). *Mannahatta: A Natural History of New York City*. New York, NY: Abrams Books.
- Saraswati, S. (2010). Kundalini Yoga. Riskikesh, IN: The Divine Life Trust Society (14th ed.).
- Sasser, E.S. (1995). The World of Spirits and Ancestors in the Art of Western Sub-Saharan Africa. Lubbock, TX: Texas Tech University Press.
- Sayers, M.R. (2013). Feeding the Dead: Ancestor Worship in Ancient India. Oxford, UK: Oxford University Press.
- Sayne, A. (August 31, 2021). Conspirinormal 380- Tim Binnall and Brent Raynes (Fortean Roadtrips and more Stranger Realities). Retrieved September 2, 2021 from http://conspirinormal.com/blog-1/2021/8/31/conspirinormal-380-tim-binnall-and-brent-raynes-fortean-roadtrips-and-more-stranger-realities
- Sayne, A. (March 15, 2021). Conspirinormal 357- Seriah Azkath and Timothy Renner (Where did the Strange Familiars Go?). Retrieved March 29, 2021 from http://conspirinormal.com/blog-1/2021/3/14/conspirinormal-357-seriah-azkath-and-timothy-renner-where-did-the-strange-familiars-go
- Scarcia, G. (1983). HERAKLES-VERETHRAGNA AND THE MI'RĀJ OF RUSTAM. *Acta Orientalia Academiae Scientiarum Hungaricae 37* (1/3), pp. 85-109.

- Scarpellini, J. (September 2003). Investigating a missing crop circle. *MUFON UFO Journal 425*, pp. 7-8.
- Schick, T., & Vaughn, L. (2014). *How to Think About Weird Things: Critical Thinking for a New Age*. New York, NY: McGraw-Hill (7th ed.).
- Schmid, D.N. (2008). Revisioning the Buddhist Cosmos Shifting Paths of Rebirth in Medieval Chinese Buddhism. *Cahiers d'Extrême-Asie* 17, pp. 293-325.
- Schnabel, J. (1994). Dark White. London, UK: Hamish Hamilton.
- Schneider, L.I. (n.d.). Case 129. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1972 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1972.pdf
- Schoön, E. (2004). Asa-Tors hammare: gudar och jättar i tro och tradition. Stockholm, SE: Hjalmarson & Högbery.
- Schultes, R.E. (2001) Plants of the Gods: Their Sacred, Healing and Hallucinogenic Powers. Rochester, VT: Healing Arts Press.
- Schuster, R. (March 30, 2021). Swedish Warriors Went Gentle Into the Good Night, Entombed on Feather Beds. Retrieved January 2, 2022 from https://www.haaretz.com/archaeology/swedish-warriors-went-gentle-into-the-good-night-entombed-on-feather-beds-1.9666754
- Schwarz, B.E. (May/June 1971). The Port Monmouth Landing. *Flying Saucer Review 17*(3), pp. 21-27.
- Schwarz, B.E. (July/August 1972). "Beauty of the Night." Flying Saucer Review 18(4), p. 5.
- Schwarz, B.E. (January/February 1973). Woodstock UFO Festival, 1966 1. *Flying Saucer Review 19*(1), pp. 3-6.
- Schwarz, B.E. (July 1974). Berserk: A UFO-Creature Encounter. *Flying Saucer Review 20*(1), pp. 3-11.
- Schwarz, B.E. (November 1975). New Berlin UFO Landing and Repair by Crew. *Flying Saucer Review 21*(3 & 4), pp. 22-28.
- Schwarz, B.E. (August 1977). Talks with Betty Hill: 1 Aftermath of Encounter. *Flying Saucer Review 23*(2), pp. 16-19.
- Schwarz, B.E. (October 1977). Talks with Betty Hill: 2 The Things That Happen Around Her. *Flying Saucer Review 23*(3), pp. 11-14, 31.
- Schwartz, B.E. (January 1978). The Man-in-Black Syndrome...I. *Flying Saucer Review 23*(4), pp. 9-15.
- Schwarz, B. (October 1986). Presumed Physical Mediumship and UFOs. *Flying Saucer Review* 31(6), pp. 18-22.
- Schwartz, H. (2004). *Tree of Souls: The Mythology of Judaism*. New York, NY: Oxford University Press, Inc.
- Scotsman. (April 25, 2014). Loch Ness monsters is "spiritual" say Buddhists. Retrieved December 17, 2021 from https://www.scotsman.com/news/loch-ness-monster-spiritual-say-buddhists-1538745
- Scott, D. (December 21, 2020). Beyond Humanity: Growing Up With UFOs, Orbs, & the CIA Ryan Bledsoe. Retrieved December 3, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=qLRyZE7jMZM
- Scott, W. (1875). The Lay of the Last Minstrel and Selections from Border Minstrelsy. Edinburgh, UK: Adam and Charles Black.

- Scott, W.H. (1994). *Barangay: Sixteenth Century Philippine Culture and Society*. Quezon City, PH: Ateneo de Manila University Press.
- Scuderi, A. (2000). Arlecchino Revisited: Tracing the Demon from the Carnival to Kramer and Mr. Bean. *Theatre History Studies 20*, pp. 143-155.
- Semple, S. (Jun. 1998). A Fear of the Past: The Place of the Prehistoric Burial Mound in the Ideology of Middle and Later Anglo-Saxon England. *World Archaeology* 30(1), pp. 109-126.
- Sender, P.D. (Summer 2011). Mahatmas versus Ascended Masters. Retrieved October 26, 2021 from https://www.theosophical.org/publications/quest-magazine/2382-mahatmas-versus-ascended-masters
- Serdahely, W.J. (Fall 1990). Pediatric Near-Death Experiences. *Journal of Near-Death Studies* 9(1), pp. 33-39.
- Service, A. & Bradbery, J. (1979). *Megaliths and their Mysteries*. New York, NY: Macmillan Publishing Co., Inc.
- Sfetcu, N. (2014). About Christmas. Bucharest, RO: Nicolae Sfetcu.
- Sharpe, C. (1830). The Worme of Lambton. UK: F. Humble.
- Sheets, T. (August 2002). UFOs and cemeteries. MUFON UFO Journal 412, p. 19.
- Sheldrake, R. (2012). Science Set Free. New York, NY: Deepak Chopra Books.
- Shelley, M.W. (1980). *The Letters of Mary Wollstonecraft Shelley*. (B.T. Bennett, Ed.). Baltimore, MD: Johns Hopkins University Press.
- Shep. (March 2, 2003). The Tempest. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=21719
- Short, B. (n.d.). The De Facto Sasquatch. Retrieved January 18, 2019 from https://static1.squarespace.com/static/596c0bae4c0dbfa1d26e86be/t/5b9bff06562fa7cfcdf1bfc8/1536950038606/The+de+facto+Sasquatch+premier+installment.pdf?fbclid=IwAR3763B1leKUEQofPRbPvzAItNH5K-RUV oKUvOLW_iXvSFkdKSg4o4xBXw
- Showalter, E. (1997). *Hystories: Hysterical Epidemics and Modern Media*. New York, NY: Columbia University Press.
- Shushan, G. (2009). Conceptions of the Afterlife in Early Civilizations: Universalism, Constructivism and Near-Death Experience. London, UK: Continuum International Publishing Group.
- Shushan, G. (2018). *Near-Death Experience in Indigenous Religions*. New York, NY: Oxford University Press.
- Sick, D.H. (2004). Mit(h)ra(s) and the Myths of the Sun. *Numen* 51(4), pp. 432-467.
- Sider, J. (July 2000). The onomastic and diabolical connection. *MUFON UFO Journal 387*, pp. 5-10.
- Sikes, W. (1880). *British Goblins: Welsh Folklore, Fairy Mythology, Legends and Traditions*. London, UK: Sampson Low, Marston, Searle, & Rivington (2nd ed.).
- Sikilinda, V.P. & Vladimirov, G.S. (n.d.). Case 86. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1989 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1989.pdf
- Sikora, J., Kittel, P., Frączek, M, Głąb, Z, Golyeva, A., Mueller-Bieniek, A., Schneeweiß, J., Tomczyńska, Z., Wasylikowa, K., & Wiedner, K. (January 2019). A palaeoenvironmental

- reconstruction of the rampart construction of the medieval ring-fort in Rozprza, Central Poland. *Archaeological and Anthropological Sciences 11*, pp. 4187-4219.
- Silver, C.G. (1999). Strange and Secret Peoples: Fairies and Victorian Consciousness. New York, NY: Oxford University Press, Inc.
- Silver, D.J. (Oct. 1973). Moses and the Hungry Birds. *The Jewish Quarterly Review 64*(2), pp. 123-153.
- Simek, R. (1993). A Dictionary of Northern Mythology. (A. Hall, Trans.). Cambridge, UK: D.S. Brewer.
- Simpson, J. (April 2011). On the Ambiguity of Elves. Folklore 122(1), pp. 76-83.
- Simpson, J. (2017). Fairy Queens and Pharisees. In S. Young & C. Houlbrook (Eds.), *Magical Folk: British and Irish Fairies: 500 AD to the Present* (Kindle Edition). London, UK: Gibson Square Books.
- Slate, B.A. & Berry, A. (1976). Bigfoot. New York, NY: Bantam.
- Slevik, N.(2020). Granite Skies: A Disconcerted Journey Through the Unknown. US: Nomar Slevik.
- Smith, O. (2016). Cannabis in Ireland Part 1 History. Retrieved June 10, 2021 from https://cannabisdigest.ca/cannabis-in-ireland-part-1-history/
- Snipes, C. (February 23, 2021). The Melt Episode 62: Nathan Isaac | Participating in Folklore and the Kentucky Anomaly. Retrieved July 13, 2021 from https://www.themeltpodcast.com/podcast/nathan-isaac-participating-in-folklore-and-the-kentucky-anomaly/
- Sochka, Y. (n.d.). Case 9. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1934 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1934.pdf
- Society for Scientific Exploration. (June 13, 2019). DMT and Entities: Not Everyone Gets Machine Elves | Jennifer A. Lyke. Retrieved June 7, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=bWTT4778IIQ
- Solman, W. (pseudonym). (August 24, 2021). Personal communication.
- Solomon, P. (n.d.). Case 149. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1977 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1977.pdf
- Somé, M.P. (1994). Of Water and the Spirit: Ritual, Magic, and Initiation in the Life of an African Shaman. New York, NY: G.P. Putnam's Sons.
- Southworth, C. (2018). Ghosts of Bell County, Texas. Charleston, SC: Haunted America.
- Spence, L. (1946). British Fairy Origins. London, UK: Watts & Co.
- Spencer, J. & Evans, H. (Eds.). (1989). *Phenomenon: Forty Years of Flying Saucers*. New York, NY: Avon Books.
- Spess, D.L. (2000). Soma: The Divine Hallucinogen. Rochester, VT: Inner Traditions.
- Spilsbury, S.V. (1983). Traditional Material in *Artus de Bretaigne*. In P.B. Grout, R.A. Lodge, C.E. Pickford, & E.K.C. Varty (Eds.), *Arthurian Studies VII The Legend of Arthur in the Middle Ages* (pp. 183-193). Suffolk, UK: D.S. Brewer.
- Sprinkle, R.L. (1999). Soul Samples: Personal Explorations in Reincarnation and UFO Experiences. Columbus, NC: Granite Publishing,
- Squier, E.G. (1850). Aboriginal Monuments of the State of New York. New York, NY: Edward O. Jenkins.

- St-Pierre, L.S., Persinger, M.A. (2006). Experimental Facilitation of the Sensed Presence Is Predicted By The Specific Patterns of the Applied Magnetic Fields, Not By Suggestibility: Re-analysis of 19 Experiments. *International Journal of Neuroscience 116*(9), pp. 1079–1095.
- St. Laurent, K. (October 31, 2020). The classic image of the Mothman... Retrieved December 31, 2021 from https://www.facebook.com/groups/2527888140806209/posts/2708584806069874
- St. Louis Paranormal Society. (n.d.). Cahokia Mounds, Mound 72 in Fairmont City, Illinois. Retrieved July 13, 2021 from https://web.archive.org/web/20160412053514/http://www.seeaghost.com/cahokia-mounds-mound-72.html
- Stacy, D.W. (July-August 1984). UFO Waters Still Run Deep. MUFON UFO Journal 196, pp. 3-9.
- Stacy, D. (November 1987). The Marfa Lights. MUFON UFO Journal 235, pp. 3-7.
- Stacy, D. (September 1993). 24th Annual MUFON Symposium. *MUFON UFO Journal 305*, pp. 3-10.
- Stacy, D. (November 1993). Review: Crash Collision. MUFON UFO Journal 307, pp. 18-19.
- Stacy, D. (August 1996). MUFON's 27th Annual Symposium. *MUFON UFO Journal 340*, pp. 3-13.
- Stacy, D. & Kirkwood, J. (October 1992). Alien Abortion, Avenging Angels. Retrieved November 29, 2021 from https://magoniamagazine.blogspot.com/2013/11/alien-abortion-avenging-angels.html
- Statista Research Department. (May 13, 2020). Do you believe in life after death? Retrieved March 29, 2021 from https://www.statista.com/statistics/940005/share-of-people-who-believe-in-life-after-death-france/
- Steadham, R.M. & Ray, C.A. (2005). Identifying the Cause of WSR-88D Ghost Echoes. Norman, OK: Radar Operations Center.
- Steiger, B. (1966). Strangers from the Skies. New York, NY: Award.
- Steiger, B. (1978). Alien Meetings. New York, NY: Ace Books.
- Steiger, B. (1982). Astral Projection. Atglen, PA: Whitford Press.
- Steiger, B. (1988). The UFO Abductors. New York, NY: The Berkley Publishing Group.
- Steiger, B. (Summer 1989). UFO Contactees Heralds of the New Age. *UFO Universe K46112*, pp. 28-33.
- Steiger, B. (2003). Real Ghosts, Restless Spirits, and Haunted Places. Canton, MI: Visible Ink Press.
- Steiger, B. (2011). Real Monsters, Gruesome Critters, and Beasts from the Darkside. Canton, MI: Visible Ink Press.
- Steiger, B. (2016). *Mysteries of Time and Space*. San Antonio, TX: Anomalist Books. (Original work published 1974)
- Steinsapir, A.I. (Sep. 1999). Landscape and the Sacred: The Sanctuary Dedicated to Holy, Heavenly Zeus Baetocaece. *Near Eastern Archaeology* 62(3), pp. 182-194.
- Stevens, W. & Card, R. (. n.d.). Case 52. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1962 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1962.pdf
- Stevenson, I. (1997). Reincarnation and Biology: A Contribution to the Etiology of Birthmarks and Birth Defects, Vol. 1 & 2. Westport, CT: Praeger Publishing.

- Stillings, D. (July 1987). Helicopters, UFOs and the Psyche. MUFON UFO Journal 231, pp. 3-8.
- Stivelman, A. (Director). (2019). Witness of Another World [Film]. Humano Films S.A.
- Stoichita, V.I. (1995). Visionary Experience in the Golden Age of Spanish Art. London, UK: Reaktion Books Ltd.
- Stone, A. (1989). Bran, Odin, and the Fisher King: Norse Traditions and the Grail Legends. *Folklore 100*(1), pp. 25-38.
- Storm, H. (2000). My Descent Into Death and the Message of Love Which Brought Me Back. Forest Row, UK: Clairview.
- Storm, H. (2016). Howard Storm's Near-Death Experience. Retrieved April 7, 2021 from https://www.near-death.com/religion/christianity/howard-storm.html
- Story, R.D. (Ed.). (2001). *The Mammoth Encyclopedia of Extraterrestrial Encounters*. London, UK: Constable & Robinson Ltd.
- Stout, G. (2002). Newgrange and the Bend of the Boyne. Cork, IE: Cork University Press.
- Strassman, R. (2000). DMT: The Spirit Molecule. Rochester, VT: Park Street Press.
- Streatfeild, G.S. (1884). Lincolnshire and the Danes. London, UK: Kegan Paul, Trench & Co.
- Strickler, L. (April 2, 2015). The 'Men in Black' Mystery. Retrieved November 10, 2021 from https://www.phantomsandmonsters.com/2015/04/the-men-in-black-mystery.html
- Strieber, A. & Strieber, W. (2014). Miraculous Journey. Hertford, NC: Crossroad Press.
- Strieber, A., & Strieber, W. (2016). *The Communion Letters*. US: Crossroad Press. (Original work published 1997)
- Strieber, W. (1987). Communion. New York, NY: Avon Books.
- Strieber, W. (1988). Transformation. New York, NY: Beech Tree Books.
- Strieber, W. (1995). Breakthrough. San Antonio, TX: Walker & Collier, Inc.
- Strieber, W. (1997). The Secret School: Preparation for Contact. New York, NY: HarperCollins.
- Strieber, W. (1998) Confirmation: The Hard Evidence of Aliens Among Us. New York, NY: St. Martin's Press.
- Strieber, W. (May 15, 2011). The Old Edition of the Key was CENSORED, the New One is Not. Retrieved October 22, 2021 from https://web.archive.org/web/20110518113325/http://www.unknowncountry.com/journal/old-edition-key-was-censored-new-one-not
- Strieber, W. (2011). Solving the Communion Enigma. New York, NY: Jeremy P. Tarcher.
- Strieber, W. (2011). The Key. New York, NY: Jeremy P. Tarcher. (Original work published 2001)
- Strieber, W. (March 12, 2018). The Afterlife Revolution. Retrieved October 25, 2021 from https://www.goodreads.com/author blog posts/16517314-the-afterlife-revolution
- Strieber, W. (2020). A New World. Portland, OR: Beyond Words.
- Strieber, W. (July 16, 2021). David Metcalfe on UFOs, UAPs, ET Contact, Black Magic and the Secrets of the Ages. Retrieved September 10, 2021 from https://www.unknowncountry.com/dreamland/david-metcalfe-the-saucers-will-keep-their-secrets-or-will-they/
- Strieber, W., & Kripal, J.J. (2016). The Super Natural. New York, NY: Jeremy P. Tarcher.
- Strieber, W., & Strieber, A. (2017). *The Afterlife Revolution*. San Antonio, TX: Walker & Collier, Inc., Publishers.

- Strohm, R. & Blackburn, B.J. (Eds.). (2001). The New Oxford History of Music: Music as Concept and Practice in the Late Middle Ages Vol. III.1. Oxford, UK: Oxford University Press.
- Strong, L. (2005). *Psychopomp Stories: Contemplating Death in a Spiritually Diverse Society* (Doctoral Dissertation). Pacifica Graduate University: Department of Philosophy.
- Stross, B. (Autumn 1996). The Mesoamerican Cosmic Portal: An Early Zapotec Example. *RES: Anthropology and Aesthetics* 29/30, pp. 82-101.
- Studarus, L. (December 18, 2018). The elusive 'hidden people' of Iceland. Retrieved July 7, 2021 from https://www.bbc.com/travel/article/20181217-the-elusive-hidden-people-of-iceland
- Sugg, R. (2017). Fairy Magic and the Cottingley Photographs. In S. Young & C. Houlbrook (Eds.), *Magical Folk: British and Irish Fairies: 500 AD to the Present* (Kindle Edition). London, UK: Gibson Square Books.
- Suggett, R. (2017). The Fair Folk and Enchanters. In S. Young & C. Houlbrook (Eds.), *Magical Folk: British and Irish Fairies: 500 AD to the Present* (Kindle Edition). London, UK: Gibson Square.
- Sullivan, D. (2004). Ley Lines: The Greatest Landscape Mystery. Sutton Mallet, UK: Green Magic.
- SunBôw True Brother. (2016). *The Sasquatch Message to Humanity: Conversations with Elder Kamooh*. Chewelah, WA: Comanche Spirit Publishing.
- Sutton, K. (2020). Shodasha Varga: The 16 Divisional Charts of Vedic Astrology. Swanage, UK: The Wessex Astrologer Ltd.
- Sveinsson, E.O. (2003). The Folk-Stories of Iceland. (B. Benedikz, Trans.). A. Faulkes (Ed.). Exeter, UK: Short Run Press Limited.
- Swancer, B. (January 5, 2019). The Mysterious Butterfly People of Missouri. Retrieved December 21, 2021 from https://mysteriousuniverse.org/2019/01/the-mysterious-butterfly-people-of-missouri/
- Swancer, B. (January 23, 2020). Strange Cases of Ghostly Troll Hauntings. Retrieved April 30, 2021 from https://mysteriousuniverse.org/2020/01/strange-cases-of-ghostly-troll-hauntings/?fbclid=IwAR1OpKxoboRw3mHNaaRonphqh2-h0DO8wD0cQBcXydOdnaSD52Heveu-EKU
- Swancer, B. (May 1, 2021). The Mysterious Haunting of the Deering Estate. Retrieved July 13, 2021 from https://mysteriousuniverse.org/2021/05/the-mysterious-haunting-of-the-deering-estate/
- Swancer, B. (June 19, 2021). Strange Tales of Disaster and the Mothman in Japan. Retrieved December 21, 2021 from https://mysteriousuniverse.org/2021/06/strange-tales-of-disaster-and-the-mothman-in-japan
- Swann, I. (1998). Penetration. Rapid City, SD: Ingo Swann Books.
- Swas. (n.d.). 2746 Swas NDE 5243. Retrieved August 25, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1swas_nde.html
- Sweatman, M.B. & Tsikritsis, D. (2017). Decoding Göbekli Tepe with Archaeoastronomy: What Does the Fox Say? *Mediterranean Archaeology and Archaeometry 17*(1), pp. 233-250.
- Swedenborg Foundation. (n.d.). Angels and Demons. Retrieved March 25, 2021 from https://swedenborg.com/emanuel-swedenborg/explore/angels-and-demons/
- Swedenborg, E. (1962). Earths in Our Solar System. Retrieved August 18, 2021 from https://www.gutenberg.org/files/16044/16044-h/16044-h.htm#para127

- Swords, M. (May 1987). Communion: A Reader's Guide. MUFON UFO Journal 229, pp. 3-6.
- T., Elizabeth. (n.d.). 3968 Elizabeth T NDE 7716. Retrieved December 10, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1elizabeth t nde.html
- T.S.F.H. (June 1989). Case 3. UFO AfriNews 2, pp. 19-20.
- Taleva, S. (July 14, 1991). Case 218. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1991 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1991.pdf
- Tan, M.L. (2008). *Revisiting Usog, Pasma, Kulam.* Quezon City, PH: University of Philippines Press.
- Targ, R. (2012). The Reality of ESP: A Physicist's Proof of Psychic Abilities. Wheaton, IL: Quest Books.
- Tate, C.E. (2010). The Axolotl as Food and Symbol in the Basin of Mexico, from 1200 BC to today. In J.E. Staller & M. Carrasco (Eds.), *Pre-Columbian Foodways* (pp. 511-534). New York, NY: Springer.
- Taylor, B. (Ed.). (2008). The Encyclopedia of Religion and Nature: Vol. 1. London, UK: Continuum.
- Taylor, G. (April 29, 2021). Ancient Mesoamerican Sculptures Found to Intentionally Incorporate Magnetism. Retrieved August 14, 2021 from https://www.dailygrail.com/2019/04/ancient-mesoamerican-sculptures-found-to-intentionally-incorporate-magnetism
- Taylor, L.R. (July-Sept. 1925). The Mother of the Lares. *American Journal of Archaeology* 29(3), pp. 299-313.
- Taylor, R. (2000). Public Needs and Private Pleasures: Water Distribution, the Tiber River, and the Urban Development of Ancient Rome. Rome, IT: L'Erma di Bretschnieider.
- Taylor, R.P. (2000). *Death and the Afterlife: A Cultural Encyclopedia*. Santa Barbara, CA: ABC-CLIO.
- Teiser, S.F. (1988). *The Ghost Festival in Medieval China*. Princeton, NJ: Princeton University Press.
- Tenazas, R.C.P. (March 1973). The Boat-Coffin Burial Complex in the Philippines and its Relation to Similar Practices in Southeast Asia. *Philippine Quarterly of Culture and Society 1*(1), pp. 19-25.
- Tenney, J.E.L. (June 14, 2015). A Bottle of Spirits: Space Traveling Ghosts Caught! Retrieved November 11, 2021 from https://web.archive.org/web/20210225183625/http://weirdlectures.com/bottle-spirits-space-traveling-ghosts-caught/
- Terseglav, M. (November 9, 1998). The Influence of Croatian Mediterranean Area on Folk Poetry in Bela Krajina. *Nar. Umjet 36*(1), pp. 233-251.
- theduderinok2 [Screen name]. (February 6, 2011). [Highly Recommended] Terence McKenna Unfolding the Stone. Retrieved January 8, 2016 from https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=zMPamVaTjJE
- Theo Von Clips. (February 21, 2020). Ari Shaffir's Salvia Trip. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=qc7xAq29J7Y
- 36fuckin5. (May 8, 2010). The Tunnel of Light. Retrieved June 8, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=64650
- Thomas, A. (1998). Vital Signs: A Complete Guide to the Crop Circle Mystery and Why It is NOT a Hoax. Berkeley, CA: Frog, Ltd.

- Thomassen, B. (2016). Liminality and the Modern: Living Through the In-Between. New York, NY: Routledge.
- Thompson, J. (January 24, 2015). 60 years ago, Athens entered annals of unexplained UFO sightings. Retrieved July 13, 2021 from https://www.onlineathens.com/article/20150124/NEWS/301249937
- Thompson, J.C. & Miles, J. (n.d.). Case 140. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1992 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1992.pdf
- Timmermann, C., Roseman, L., Williams, L., Erritzoe, D., Martial, C., Cassol, H., Laureys, S., Nutt, D., & Carhart-Harris, R. (August 15, 2018). DMT Models the Near-Death Experience. *Frontiers in Psychology 9*. Retrieved June 8, 2021 from https://www.frontiersin.org/articles/10.3389/fpsyg.2018.01424/full
- Tizani attosi. (December 24, 2001). High Dose Consciousness: An Experience with Ketamine. Retrieved June 22, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=3282
- Tokey the Bear. (September 16, 2005). The Contorted Little Wonders. Retrieved June 10, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=14596
- Tolstoy, N. (2009). The Oldest British Prose Literature. Lewiston, NY: Edwin Mellen Press.
- Tomlinson, M. (March 2016). Little People, Ghosts and the Anthropology of the Good. *The Journal of the Polynesian Society 125*(1), pp. 11-32.
- Toncray, M. (September 18, 2003). Soybean field a bit too popular since design discovered. Retrieved July 14, 2021 from https://maysville-online.com/news/5583/soybean-field-a-bit-too-popular-since-design-discovered
- Towrie, S. (n.d.). The Trow and the Draugr. Retrieved April 21, 2021 from http://www.orkneyjar.com/folklore/trows/draugr.htm
- Towrie, S. (n.d.). Trowie Magic. Retrieved July 28, 2021 from http://www.orkneyjar.com/folklore/trows/trow5.htm
- Toyne, J.M. (December 2011). Interpretations of Pre-Hispanic Ritual Violence at Tucume, Peru, from Cut Mark Analysis. *Latin American Antiquity* 22(4), pp. 505-523.
- Toyne, J.M. (2015). The Body Sacrificed. *Journal of Religion and Violence* 3(1), pp. 137-172.
- Tralins, R. (1969). Children of the Supernatural. New York, NY: Lancer Books, Inc.
- Tree Spirit. (February 14, 2019). From Serenity to Hell and Back. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=112343
- Tropter. (n.d.). Tatar Mound. Retrieved July 14, 2021 from https://tropter.com/en/poland/przemysl/tatar-mound
- Trubachyov, O. (1997). *Etymological Dictionary of Slavic Languages*. Moscow, RUS: Russian Language Institute.
- Trubshaw, B. (May 2021). Summary of emails received about black dogs. Retrieved July 13, 2021 from http://www.indigogroup.co.uk/edge/bdemails.htm
- Tsakiris, A. (June 24, 2015). 213. Earl Lee's Shocking Theory Links Hallucinogenic Mushrooms to Christian Burial Rites. Retrieved May 31, 2021 from https://skeptiko.com/hallucinogenic-mushrooms-and-christian-burial-rites/
- Tucker, E. (2007). *Haunted Halls: Ghostlore of American College Campuses*. Jackson, MS: University Press of Mississippi.

- TUFOIC. (July 1995). Case 68. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1983 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1983.pdf
- Turca, C.N. (1994). Case 305. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1979 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1979.pdf
- Turner, K. (1992). Into the Fringe. New York, NY: Berkley Books.
- Turner, K. (December 1994). Genetic Agenda A Double-Cross? *MUFON UFO Journal* 320, pp. 13-14.
- Turner, K. (1994). Masquerade of Angels. Roland, AR: Kelt Works.
- Turner, K. (1994). *Taken: Inside the Alien-Human Abduction Agenda*. Tallahassee, FL: Rose Printing Company, Inc.
- Turpin, S.A. (Autumn 1990). Rock Art and Hunter-Gatherer Archaeology: A Case Study from SW Texas and Northern Mexico. *Journal of Field Archaeology* 17(3), pp. 263-281.
- Tycho. (October 18, 2020). The Syndrome of Subjective Doubles. Retrieved June 10, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=114856
- Tylor, E.B. (1873). Primitive Culture: Vol. II. London, UK: Murray.
- Tyson, D. (2004). Familiar Spirits: A Practical Guide for Witches & Magicians. St. Paul, MN: Llewellyn.
- Tyson, E. (1894). A Philological Essay Concerning the Pygmies of the Ancients. London, UK: David Nutt.
- UFO Experiencer Support. (n.d.). Case 194. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1976 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1976.pdf
- UFOCCI, Encounters with the Unknown. (1989). Case 40. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1976 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1976.pdf
- Ufoevidence (n.d.). Case 188. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1967 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1967.pdf
- UfoEvidence.org. (n.d.). John Keel. Retrieved August 12, 2021 from http://www.ufoevidence.org/Researchers/Detail71.htm
- UFOINFO. (n.d.). Case 206. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1993 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1993.pdf
- UFOLOG Russia. (n.d.). Case 131. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1990 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1990.pdf
- Ulysses2137. (April 24, 2020). Heaven and Hell in a Pocket Universe. Retrieved January 2, 2022 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=114306
- Underwood, P. (1986). A Ghost Hunter's Handbook. Independently Published.
- Underwood, P. (2013). Where the Ghosts Walk: The Gazetteer of Haunted Britain. London, U: Souvenir Press.
- Unger, S.M. (1963). Mescaline, LSD, Psilocybin and Personality Change. *Psychiatry 26*, pp. 111-125.
- United States Census Bureau. (March 30, 2021). Urban Areas Facts. Retrieved July 8, 2021 from https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/geography/guidance/geo-areas/urban-rural/uafacts.html

- Upton, A.C. et al. (1996). *Health Effects of Exposure to Low Levels of Ionizing Radiation*. Washington, D.C.: National Academy Press.
- Urbanus, J. (May/June 2016). Let a Turtle Be Your Psychopomp. Archaeology 69(3), p. 12.
- Uri, J. (October 14, 2021). 955 Years Ago: Halley's Comet and the Battle of Hastings. Retrieved November 10, 2021 from https://www.nasa.gov/feature/955-years-ago-halley-s-comet-and-the-battle-of-hastings
- US Forest Service. (n.d.). The Powerful Solanaceae: Datura. Retrieved May 30, 2021 from https://www.fs.fed.us/wildflowers/ethnobotany/Mind_and_Spirit/datura.shtml
- Ustinova, Y. (2009). Caves and the Ancient Greek Mind: Descending Underground in the Search for Ultimate Truth. Oxford, UK: Oxford University Press.
- V., Ray. (n.d.). 1301 Ray V NDE 3345. Retrieved March 21, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1ray_v_nde.html
- V.B., Bonnie. (n.d.). 2117 Bonnie VB NDE 4299. Retrieved April 26, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1bonnie vb nde.html
- Vaitl, D. (2012). Veränderte Bewusstseinszustände: Grundlagen Techniken Phänomenologie. Stuttgart, DE: Schattauer.
- Vallee, J. (1965). Anatomy of a Phenomenon. US: Henry Regnery Company.
- Vallee, J. (1977). UFOs: The Psychic Solution. St. Albans, UK: Panther Books Ltd.
- Vallee, J. (1990). Five Arguments Against the Extraterrestrial Origin of Unidentified Flying Saucers. *Journal of Scientific Exploration 4*(1), pp. 105-117.
- Vallee, J. (1990). Confrontations: A Scientist's Search for Alien Contact. New York, NY: Ballantine Books.
- Vallee, J. (1991). Revelations. New York, NY: Ballantine Books.
- Vallee, J. (1992). Forbidden Science: Journals 1957-1969. Berkeley, CA: North Atlantic Books.
- Vallee, J. (1992). UFO Chronicles of the Soviet Union: A Cosmic Samizdat. New York, NY: Ballantine Books.
- Vallee, J. (1993). *Passport to Magonia*. Chicago, IL: Contemporary Books. (Original work published 1969)
- Vallee, J. (2008). *Dimensions: A Casebook of Alien Contact*. San Antonio, TX: Anomalist Books. (Original work published 1988)
- Vallee, J. (2014). The Invisible College: What a Group of Scientists Has Discovered About UFO Influence on the Human Race. San Antonio, TX: Anomalist Books. (Original work published 1975)
- Vallee, J. & Harris, P. (2021). *Trinity: The Best-Kept Secret*. US: Starworks USA & Documatica Research, LLC.
- Vallee, J., & Aubeck, C. (2009). Wonders in the Sky: Unexplained Aerial Objects from Antiquity to Modern Times. New York, NY: Jeremy P. Tarcher/Penguin.
- van der Post, L. (1918). The Lost World of the Kalahari. London, UK: The Hogarth Press.
- Van Gordon, W., Shonin, E., Dunn, T.J., Sheffield, D., Garcia-Campayo, J., & Griffiths, M.D. (2018). Meditation-Induced Near-Death Experiences: A 3-Year Longitudinal Study. *Mindfulness* 9(6), pp. 1794-1806.

- van Lommel, P. (2010). *Consciousness Beyond Life: The Science of the Near- Death Experience.* (L. Vroomen, Trans.). New York, NY: HarperOne.
- van Lommel, P., et al. (n.d.). Introduction Nonlocal Consciousness. Retrieved March 17, 2021 from https://pimvanlommel.nl/pim-van-lommel/nonlocal-consciousness/
- van Lommel, P., van Wees, R., Meyers, V., & Elfferich, I. (December 15, 2001). Near-Death Experience In Survivors of Cardiac Arrest: A prospective Study in the Netherlands. *The Lancet* 358(9298), pp. 2039-2045.
- Van Tassel, G.W. (1958). The Council of Seven Lights. Los Angeles, CA: DeVorss & Co.
- Vargas, A.B. (n.d.). Case 227. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 2001 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-2001.pdf
- Various. (1990-1991). Cases 184, 188, 229, & 240. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1989 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1989.pdf
- Varner, G.R. (2007). Creatures in the Mist: Little People, Wild Men, and Spirit Beings Around the World. New York, NY: Algora Publishing.
- Varner, G.R. (2012). The Folklore of Fairies, Elves, & Little People. Raleigh, NC: OakChylde.
- Vasey, G.M. (2017). The Chilling, True Terror of the Black Eyed Kids. US: Asteroth's Books.
- Vaughan, A. (June 1999). Alien Dawn: Review & Interview. MUFON UFO Journal 374, pp. 18-19.
- Vendramini, D. (2011). Them and Us: How Neanderthal Predation Created Modern Humans. Armidale, AU: Kardoorair Press.
- Ventegodt, S., Merrick, J. (2003). Measurement of Quality of Life VII. Statistical Covariation and Global Quality of Life Data: The Method of Weight-Modified Linear Regression. *The Scientific World Journal* 3, pp. 1020-1029.
- Verdiglione, A. (2019). *Urkommunismus: Fear of the World*. (M. Svensson, Trans.). Bologna, IT: Associazione Amici di Spirali
- Verga, M. (2007). When Saucers Came to Earth. Torino, IT: Edizioni Upiar.
- Villar, R.N.O. (n.d.). Case 23. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1986 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1986.pdf
- Virgil (2008). The Aenid. (R. Fagles, Trans.). New York, NY: Penguin Books.
- Vitebsky, P. (1995) The Shaman. London, UK: Little Brown & Company.
- Vitebsky, P. (2000). Shamanism. In G. Harvey (Ed.), *Indigenous Religions: A Companion* (pp. 55-67). London, UK: Cassell.
- Vohra, R. (1982). Ethnographic Notes on the Buddhist Dards of Ladakh: The Brog-Pā. Zeitschrift für Ethnologie 107(1), pp. 69-94.
- Vojvoda, C. (December 2, 2021). Personal communication.
- Volke, I. (n.d.). Case 13. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1944 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1944.pdf
- Voloznev, I. (n.d.). Case 14. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1991 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1991.pdf

- von Hausswolff, C.M. & Harding, M.S.C. (Winter 2000-2001). Friedrich Jürgenson and the voices of the dead. Retrieved August 18, 2021 from https://www.cabinetmagazine.org/issues/1/vonhausswolff.php
- Voorburg, R. (n.d.). Itzpapalotl. Retrieved December 21, 2021 from https://www.azteccalendar.com/god/Itzpapalotl.html
- Voß, A. & Eberl, M. (December 1999). Ek Balam: A New Emblem Glyph from the Northeastern Yucatán. *Mexicon 21*(6), pp. 124-131.
- Vozyakova, L. (n.d.). Case 314. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1990 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1990.pdf
- W., Eva. (n.d.). 1334 Eva W NDE 3393. Retrieved March 19, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ Experiences/1eva_w_nde.html
- W., Helen. (n.d.). 2439 Helen W NDE 4805. Retrieved March 23, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/Experiences/1helen w nde.html
- Waddell, J. (2018). Equine Cults and Celtic Goddesses. *Emania: Bulletin of the Navan Research Group 24*, pp. 5-18.
- Waite, D. (2015). A-U-M: Awakening to Reality. Winchester, UK: Mantra Books.
- Walden, J. (2011). Jungle Travel and Survival. In P.S. Auerbach (Ed.), *Wilderness Medicine E-Book* (pp. 815-836). New York, NY: Elsevier Health Sciences (6th ed.).
- Walhouse, M.J. (Dec. 1894). Ghostly Lights. Folklore 5(4), pp. 293-299.
- Wallonia Belgium Tourism. (n.d.). The tumulus of Glimes, a site rich in history. Retrieved July 9, 2021 from https://walloniabelgiumtourism.co.uk/en-gb/content/tumulus-glimes-site-rich-history
- Walsh, N. (2021). Lisnacullia River Tallyho. Retrieved July 26, 2021 from https://www.duchas.ie/en/cbes/4922014/4918244
- Walter, C. (2003). The Warrior Saints in Byzantine Art and Tradition. New York, NY: Routledge.
- Walter, M.N. & Fridman, E.J.N. (2004). Shamanism: An Encyclopedia of World Beliefs, Practices, and Culture. Santa Barbara, CA: ABC-CLIO, Inc.
- Walter, P. (2006). *Christian Mythology: Revelations of Pagan Origins*. (J.E. Graham, Trans.). Rochester, VT: Inner Traditions.
- Walton, T. (1997). Fire in the Sky: The Walton Experience. New York, NY: Marlowe & Company (3rd ed.).
- Ware, D.M. (June 1993). Current Cases. MUFON UFO Journal 302, p. 20.
- Ware, D.M. (Autumn 1993). The Extraordinary Case of "Elizabeth Richmond." *Flying Saucer Review* 38(3), pp. 12-14.
- Warner, R.B. (2000). Keeping out the Otherworld: the internal ditch at Navan and other Iron Age 'hengiform' enclosures. *Emania 18*, pp. 39-44.
- Warner, R.B. (2012). Láeg's Line: A Route for the Gods? In M. Huld *et al* (Eds.) *Archaeology and Language: Indo-European Studies Presented to James P. Mallory* (pp. 55-72). Washington DC: Institute for the Study of Man.
- Warren, C.C. (1973). Case 217. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1973 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1973.pdf
- Washington (UPI). (November 10, 1988). Whitley Strieber: UFO cultist or serious author? *The Daily Spectrum (Saint George, Utah)*, p. 9.

- Wasson, R.G. (1972). Soma: Divine Mushroom of Immortality. New York: Harvest Books.
- Waterbury, F. (1952). Bird-Deities in China. *Artibus Asiae: Supplementum 10*, pp. 1-139, 141- 165, 167-181, 183, 185-191.
- Watkins, A. (1925). The Old Straight Track. London, UK: Methuen & Co., Ltd.
- Watson, M. (2011). Hiking Waterfalls in North Carolina. Guilford, CT: Falcon Guides.
- Watson, M.L. (October 30, 2021). Peer Beyond the Veil: 2021 Monsters Ball. Retrieved November 9, 2021 from https://youtu.be/tKMHBR9p7lw
- Wayland, T. (2019). The Lake Michigan Mothman. Madison, WI: Singular Fortean Publishing.
- Weatherhill, C. (1981). Belerion: Ancient Sites of Land's End. Penzance, UK: Alison Hodge.
- Webb, D. (1976). 1973, Year of the Humanoids: An Analysis of the Fall UFO/Humanoid Wave. Evanston, IL: Center for UFO Studies.
- Webb, W.N. (November 1984). Massachusetts MUFON Forum. *MUFON UFO Journal 199*, pp. 3-4.
- Webb, W.N. (June 1989). The Pelley Time-Lapse UFO Encounter. MUFON UFO Journal 254, pp. 11-13
- Webb, W.S. & Snow, C.E. (1974). *The Adena People*. Knoxville, TN: The University of Tennessee Press. (Original work published 1945)
- Welch, S. (2014). A Labyrinth Prayer Handbook. London, UK: Canterbury Press.
- Welfare, S. & Fairley, J. (1980). Arthur C. Clarke's Mysterious World. UK: Book Club Associates.
- Welsh, T. (n.d.). Book Reviews: The Power of NOW. Retrieved September 17, 2021 from https://www.theseekerbooks.com/articles/PowerNow.html
- Werner, E.T.C. (1922). Myths and Legends of China. New York, NY: George G. Harrap & Co. Ltd.
- Werness, H.B. (2006). The Continuum Encyclopedia of Animal Symbolism in Art. New York, NY: Continuum.
- Westropp, T.J. (Jun. 30, 1921). A Study of Folklore on the Coasts of Connacht, Ireland (Continued). Folklore 32(2), pp. 101-123.
- White, G. (February 19, 2022). Talking Astro Gnosticism with Chris Knowles and Miguel Conner. Retrieved February 21, 2022 from https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=QT3Z55XiM1Q&t=1949s
- White, G. (September 13, 2013). The Other Middle Pillar: An Org Chart of Practical Magic. Retrieved September 15, 2021 from https://runesoup.com/2013/09/the-other-middle-pillar-an-org-chart-of-practical-magic/
- White, G. (2016). Pieces of Eight: Chaos Magic Essays and Enchantments. AU: Gordon White.
- White, G. (2016). Star. Ships: A Prehistory of the Spirits. London, UK: Scarlet Imprint.
- White, G. (March 1, 2017). Talking Worldviews, Culture and Comparison with Dr. Jeff Kripal. Retrieved May 30, 2017 from https://runesoup.com/2017/03/ talking-worldviews-culture-and-comparison-with-dr-jeff-kripal
- White, G. (May 9, 2018). Talking Animism and the Anomalous | Dr. Jack Hunter. Retrieved July 16, 2021 from https://runesoup.com/2018/05/talking-animism-and-the-anomalous-dr-jack-hunter/

- White, G. (December 2, 2020). Talking Creativity, Tarot and Ayahuasca | Lucy Delics. Retrieved June 2, 2021 from http://podcast.runesoup.com/talking-creativity-tarot-and-ayahuasca-lucy-delics
- White, J. (Summer 1992). Aliens Among Us A UFO Conspiracy Hypothesis in a Religious Mode. *Flying Saucer Review 37* (2), pp. 2-9.
- White, T. & Lavorgne, T. (2015). *Haunted Roads of Western Pennsylvania*. Charleston, SC: Haunted America.
- Whited, R. (August 21, 2015). Uktena and Fort Mountain Stone Wall. Retrieved December 18, 2021 from https://chuckacabra.wordpress.com/2015/08/21/uktena-and-fort-mountain-stone-wall/
- Whitehead, P. (Autumn 1991). "It All Started When I Saw A Flying Saucer!" *Flying Saucer Review* 36(3), pp. 22-23.
- Whiting, F. (March 1980). The Abduction of Harry Joe Turner. *MUFON UFO Journal 145*, pp. 3-7.
- Wiebe, P.H. (2004). God and Others Spirits. New York, NY: Oxford University Press.
- Wiel, N. (n.d.). The Legend Of Kanaloa-Huluhulu. Retrrieved December 31, 2021 from http://www.bluecoast.org/nonprofit/kanaloa/k3.html
- Wilby, E. (Oct. 2000). The Witch's Familiar and the Fairy in Early Modern England and Scotland. *Folklore 111*(2), pp. 283-305.
- Wilby, E. (2005). Cunning Folk and Familiar Spirits. Eastbourne, UK: Sussex Academic Press.
- Wilde, J. (1887). Ancient Legends, Mystic Charms, and Superstitions of Ireland. London, UK: Ticknor and Co.
- Wildeman, C., Emanuel, N., Leventhal, J.M., et al. (August 2014). The Prevalence of Confirmed Maltreatment Among US Children, 2004 to 2011. *JAMA Pediatrics* 168(8), pp. 706-713.
- Wilkins, H.P. (Sept.-Oct. 1957). The Known and the Unknown. *Flying Saucer Review 3*(5), pp. 10-13.
- Williams, B. (Nov 22, 2017). The Clock Stops for Thee: On a Seemingly Anomalous Physical Effect Reported Around the Time of Death. Retrieved April 2, 2021 from https://www.psychicalresearchfoundation.com/post/2017/11/22/the-clock-stops-for-thee-on-a-seemingly-anomalous-physical-effect-reported-around-the-tim
- Williams, B. (October 21, 2020). Psychedelic Drugs: Lessons From Ketamine and Psilocybin. Retrieved May 27, 2021 from https://www.psychiatryadvisor.com/home/topics/general-psychiatry/psychedelic-drugs-lessons-from-ketamine-and-psilocybin/
- Williams, R., Headon, D., & Whitehorn, T. (Eds.). (1992). *Reader's Digest: Quest for the Unknown Bizarre Phenomena*. Pleasantville, NY: The Reader's Digest Association, Inc.
- Willner, J. (2001). The Perfect Horoscope: Following the Astrological Guidelines Established by Edgar Cayce. New York, NY: ParaView Press.
- Willoughby, W.C. (1923). Race Problems in the New Africa: A Study of the Relation of Bantu and Britons in Those Parts of Bantu Africa Which Are Under British Control. London, UK: Clarendon Press.
- Wilson, C. (1998). *Alien Dawn: An Investigation into the Contact Experience*. New York, NY: Fromm International Publishing Corporation.
- Wilson, C. (2013). Mysteries: An Investigation into the Occult, the Paranormal and the Supernatural. London, UK: Watkins Publishing. (Original work published 1978)

- Wilson, C. & Wilson, D. (2000). *The Mammoth Encyclopedia of the Unsolved*. New York, NY: Carroll & Graf Publishers, Inc.
- Wilson, K. (1993). The Alien Jigsaw. Portland, OR: Puzzle Publishing.
- Wilson, K. (February 1998). The role of animals in abduction cases. MUFON UFO Journal , pp. 8-12.
- Wilson, P.L. (1999). *Ploughing the Clouds: The Search for Irish Soma*. San Francisco, CA: City Lights.
- Wingfield, G. (1990). Ever Increasing Circles. In T. Good (Ed.), *The UFO Report 1991* (pp. 11-40). London, UK: Sidgwick & Jackson Ltd.
- Wiseman, N. (March 3, 2017). A Secret Place. Retrieved March 4, 2022 from https://iversity.org/en/profiles/neil-wiseman-99725b49-2ddd-4d3e-bbbd-9a7b0201b091/journals/stonehenge-january-2016/a-secret-place
- Witthoft, J. & Hadlock, W.S. (Oct.-Dec. 1946). Cherokee-Iroquois Little People. *The Journal of American Folklore* 59(234), pp. 413-422.
- Wolff, K.F. (2013). The Dolomites and their Legends. Bozen, IT: Edition Raetia.
- Wood-Martin, W.G. (October 1897). Traces of the Elder Faiths: Fairy and Marriage Lore. *Ulster Journal of Archaeology IV*(1), pp. 90-100.
- Wood, E. & Subrahmanyam, S.V. (Trans.). (1911). *The Garuda Purana*. Allahabad, IND: Pāṇiṇi Office.
- Woodyard, C. (June 24, 2014). Father's Ghost Fetches the Dying. Retrieved May 4, 2021 from http://hauntedohiobooks.com/news/fathers-ghost-fetches-dying/
- Woodyard, C. (October 24, 2017). Shades of Blue. Retrieved May 6, 2021 from, http://hauntedohiobooks.com/news/ghosts-news/shades-of-blue/
- Woolley, L. (1929). Ur of the Chaldees. London, UK: Ernest Benn.
- World Population Review. (2021). Native American Population 2021. Retrieved July 8, 2021 from, https://worldpopulationreview.com/state-rankings/native-american-population
- Worley, D.L. (Summer 1995). Dire Warnings from Aliens? Flying Saucer Review 40(2), pp. 12-15.
- Worley, D. (Winter 1996). Examining the Mystery of the "Para-Apes." *Flying Saucer Review* 41(4), pp. 20-22.
- Worley, D. (Summer 1997). Some Denizens of the "Black Nether-World" and Their Abductee Victims. *Flying Saucer Review 42*(2), pp. 7-11.
- Worley, D. (Autumn 1998). The Farmer and the Reverend. Flying Saucer Review 43(3), pp. 12-14.
- Wright, R.M. (2013). *Mysteries of the Jaguar Shamans of the Northwest Amazon*. Lincoln, NE: Board of Regents of the University of Nebraska.
- Wright, S.T., Kerr, C.W., Doroszczuk, N.M., Kuszack, S.M., Hang, P.C., Luczkiewicz, D.L. (February 2013). The Impact of Dreams of the Deceased on Bereavement: A Survey of Hospice Caregivers. *American Journal of Hospice & Palliative Medicine 31*, pp. 1-7.
- Yakima Agency. (1971). *Yakima Indian Nation*. Toppenish, WA: Center for the Study of Migrant and Indian Education.
- Yeats, W.B. (Ed.). (1890). Fairy and Folk Tales of the Irish Peasantry. New York, NY: The Walter Scott Publishing Co., Ltd.
- Yeats, W.B. (1892). Irish Folk Stories and Fairy Tales. New York, NY: Grosset & Dunlap.

- Yeats, W.B. (Ed.). (1892). Irish Fairy Tales. London, UK: T. Fisher Unwin.
- Yohe, T. (2015). Limestone and Its Paranormal Properties: A Comprehensive Approach to the Possibilities. US: CreateSpace.
- Young, A.T. (2020). Fata Morgana. Retrieved July 15, 2021 from https://aty.sdsu.edu/mirages/FM/FM.html
- Young, F. (2019). Suffolk Fairylore. Norwich, UK: Lasse Press.
- Young, K. (February 2003). The Last Deed. MUFON UFO Journal 418, pp. 3-4.
- Young, S. (2001). Buddhist Dream Experience: The Role of Interpretation, Ritual, and Gender. In K. Bulkeley (Ed.), *Dreams: A Reader on the Religious, Cultural, and Psychological Dimensions of Dreaming* (pp. 9-28). New York, NY: Palgrave.
- Young, S. (December 2016). In Search of England's Fairy Trees: The Fair Oak of Bowland. *Northern Earth 147*, pp. 16-21.
- Young, S. (2017). Fairy Holes and Fairy Butter. In S. Young & C. Houlbrook (Eds.), *Magical Folk: British and Irish Fairies: 500 AD to the Present* (Kindle Edition). London, UK: Gibson Square Books.
- Young, S. (Ed.). (January 8, 2018). Fairy Census, 2014-2017. Retrieved November 27, 2018 from http://www.fairyist.com/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/ The-Fairy-Census-2014-2017-1.pdf
- Young, S. (2019). When did fairies get wings? In D. Caterine & J.W. Morehead (Eds.), *The Paranormal and Popular Culture: A Postmodern Religious Landscape* (pp. 253-274). London, UK: Routledge.
- Youngs, S.M., Clark, J., & Barry, T. (1986). Medieval Britain and Ireland in 1985. *Archaeology* 30(1), pp. 114-198.
- Yours Truely. (June 4, 2019). Past Life, Death, Afterlife, Reincarnation. Retrieved June 8, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=111541
- Yun, K. (2016). Spiritual Entrepreneurship: Negotiating the Ritual Marketplace on Contemporary Cheju Island, South Korea. *Journal of Ritual Studies* 30(2), pp. 53-65.
- Zero, F. (2014). Interviews. In F. Zero (Ed.), *Contact: Them or Us* (Kindle Edition). US: A Psycube Project.
- Zevon Starship. (May 4, 2015). Range of Emotion. Retrieved June 9, 2021 from https://www.erowid.org/experiences/exp.php?ID=86012
- Zhurov, V. (1993). (n.d.). Case 302. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1992 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1992.pdf
- Ziegler, D. (1998). The Cult of the Wuyi Mountains and its Cultivation of the Past: A Topo-Cultural Perspective. *Cahiers d'Extrême-Asie* 10, pp. 255-286.

APPENDICES

APPENDIX A

This is a selected list of the human dead seen during alien abductions or periods of ongoing UFO contact *who are not* personally known to witnesses at the time of their encounters.

Date unknown - Location unknown: An abductee claims, "A man was with them who told me he was dead and asked if that bothered me."

Circa 1937 – Salem, Massachusetts, USA: At four years old, Raymond Fowler meets "a lady in a robe encased in a brilliant light" while lying in bed at night. The presence imparts love and well-being. Young Fowler receives an unfamiliar name associated with the presence: Amelia Earhart. Fowler later admits the implausibility of his encounter, but finds himself besieged by synchronicities surrounding the missing aviation pioneer, and even receives correspondence from another alien abductee claiming to have met Earhart.²

Circa 1950 – Fitchburg, Massachusetts, USA: In one of her earliest experiences, 13-year-old Betty Andreasson is abducted and taken from a crystalline forest through "an icy corridor" past rows of transparent cubicles holding "mummified people from different times and cultures." (It is worth noting Andreasson's story resembles the Cornish "Cherry of Zennor" tale, where the eponymous heroine is led "by deep hidden ways" into an underground faerie forest containing "a sinister room with statues or dead people about it.")4

1962 – Primorsky Krai, Russia: Recurring experiencer Tanya Vanicheva finds herself on an alien world surrounded by dead Grey aliens (see Chapter 11).⁵

Circa 1963 – Massachusetts, USA: An abductee regularly travels with a pair of Grey aliens through a tunnel to a crystalline "pyramid city." On one occasion, she recognizes several other people, including an individual identifying herself as Ingrid Swenson.

¹ Strieber 1995.

² Fowler 2020.

³ Ibid.

⁴ Briggs 1970.

⁵ Belimov 2003.

Researchers track down Swenson—she matches the witness's description, but the two have never met. For starters, she lives in South Dakota, and what's more, she is dead.⁶

June 1964 – **Near Aberdeen, Ohio, USA:** Benjamin Davidson finds the road he is traveling blocked by a landed craft and large, mantis-like beings who escort him inside. While there, he sees a dead girl beside him. He regains awareness at a traffic light near Portsmouth.⁷

July 1968 – Burnaby, British Columbia, Canada: Before falling asleep, repeat experiencer Joan Howard hears the spirits of two German World War II soldiers speaking about her. A "dream" ensues on another planet filled with strange buildings and space-suited people who open her body, examine her insides, and reassemble her. Flying saucers fill her vision before she awakes in bed.⁸

May 3, 1969 – Bebedouro, Matozinhos, Brazil: José Antônio da Silva is taken by a hairy dwarf while fishing. Inside the craft, he sees the bodies of four dead men—rigid, eyes closed—lying on a low stone shelf (see Chapter 11).⁹

September 22, 1973 – Dominican Republic: Virgilio Gómez is flagged down while driving by several people, one of whom wears a green uniform. He tells Gómez he had "supposedly" drowned in a boating accident 13 years prior, but had actually been rescued by "a module known to people as a UFO."¹⁰

November 1974 – Huesca, Spain: Luis and Maribel R. converse with a strange man who asks to borrow their monkey wrench to repair his spheroid craft, which hovers in the background blinking red, yellow, and white. He informs them he is the deceased "Dr. Flor, from Barcelona." ¹¹

August 15, 1981 – La Rochelle, Zimbabwe: Clifford Muchena sees a fireball attended by several beings he interprets as ancestors (see Chapter 10).¹²

⁶ Bullard 1987 Vol. 2.

⁷ Young, K. (2003, February). The Last Deed. MUFON UFO Journal 418, pp. 3-4.

⁸ No author. (n.d.). Case 179. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1968 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1968.pdf

⁹ Aleixo, H.B. (November/December 1973). Abduction at Bebedouro. *Flying Saucer Review 19*(6), pp. 6-14.

¹⁰ Corrales 2012.

¹¹ Ibid.

¹² Hind 1983.

May 1, 1982 – Santiago, Chile: An unseen force strikes J.F. and a friend while bicycling, causing an OBE. He reaches a room where he can see Earth below. Several humanoids begin operating on him. Upon recovery, he vaguely remembers being taken to a city, a room filled with multicolored lights, and finally another craft filled with humans "in the process of dying or about to die." He receives an implant and a special mission.¹³

1990 – Plaza del Charco, Tenerife, Canary Islands: A man claiming to be Frederick Valentich—who disappeared in an airplane accident involving a UFO a dozen years earlier—appears, displaying an Australian passport to support his claim. He claims to have been "recruited" by the aliens, and closely resembles his last known photos, to the extent he doesn't appear to have aged at all.¹⁴

Summer 1990 or 1991 – Serov, Sverdlovsk Oblast, Russia: Three tall "men" arriving in an aerial light abduct a night watchman. After a brilliant flash, he awakens in an unfamiliar forest where the beings hold him for five days. The landscape is filled with human corpses, aliens, and shorter beings. Some bodies appear reanimated in a zombie-like state, performing manual labor. Because he is deaf, the witness is immune to the aliens' mind control, and eventually wanders back to civilization, where a trucker finds him badly burned by the side of the road.¹⁵

November 14, 1992 – **Yaroslavl, Yaroslavl Oblast, Russia:** Recurring experiencer Katherine encounters her extraterrestrial contacts in the hall of her apartment building, where she signs some sort of "contract" allowing her to travel with them to another planet. Once there, she sees "amazing birds" and meets the soul of a girl named Anya who recently died in an airplane crash. She is told she will save Earth and returns home. ¹⁶

1994 – New York, USA: Whitley Strieber meditates and sees an orb he perceives to be a dead man's soul (see Chapter 14).¹⁷

Circa 2003 – **Canada:** Steve Boucher recalls a prebirth memory where he talked to a recently-departed soul (see Chapter 16). 18

¹³ Rodriguez, J.G.A. (n.d.). Case 92. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1982 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1982.pdf

¹⁴ Corrales 2012.

¹⁵ Khailov, P. & Anfalov, A. (n.d.). Case 289. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1990 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1990.pdf

¹⁶ Zhurov, V. (1993). (n.d.). Case 302. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1992 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1992.pdf

¹⁷ Strieber 2011.

¹⁸ Ibid.

APPENDIX B

This is a selected list of the human dead seen during alien abductions or periods of ongoing UFO contact *who are* personally known to witnesses at the time of their encounters.

Date unknown – Location unknown: An abductee claims, "They had my dead uncle with them." ¹⁹

Date unknown – Location unknown: An abductee claims, "My brother was there, and he is dead."²⁰

Date unknown – Location unknown: An abductee claims, "I saw a woman I knew from years ago, who has been long dead."²¹

Date unknown – Location unknown: One individual recognizes their best friend "shortly after" a UFO experience. "I asked him if his appearance had anything to do with the UFO we saw. The apparition had no awareness of what I was talking about."

Date unknown – **Location unknown**: The same night their brother spots orbs in the backyard, a witness sees their deceased sister. Later, their dead grandfather appears, imploring them to "be open to outreach from God. When I asked him if he meant the UFO craft, he didn't know what I was talking about."²²

Date unknown – **Location unknown:** A woman named Jane, described by an acquaintance as "the fireball queen," regularly reports glowing orbs throughout her life attended by the suggestion of alien abduction: out-of-body experiences, night terrors that someone is "trying to take away her children," dreams featuring hands holding wands and star maps, etc. In one instance, she sees "a fireball in her bedroom" accompanied by her brother, who died in the Vietnam War.²³

¹⁹ Strieber 1995.

²⁰ Ibid.

²¹ Ibid.

²² DeSouza 2016.

²³ Strieber & Strieber 2016.

Date unknown – New York, USA: A teenage boy confides to his psychiatrist that he saw a UFO land, out of which stepped his deceased father (see Introduction).²⁴

Date unknown – Texas, USA: A large object hovers above a field behind a house where a widow and her daughter are visiting relatives. The mother hears a persistent voice in her head: "Your husband wants to see you." The witness resists the call, and the light fades.²⁵

Date unknown – Alabama, USA: While sleeping in his grandmother's bedroom, Ted Rice sees his dead grandfather enter and sexually assault her. This is revealed to be a shapeshifting reptilian alien (see Chapter 13).²⁶

June 1967 – Location unknown: During an OBE, a witness finds herself pulled into a spherical UFO hovering above a miraculous city. Two members of the crew reveal themselves to be her cousin and her "soulmate, Johnny, both of whom had met early, tragic deaths. The suits they were appeared to be of a stretchy, thin metallic mesh."²⁷

Summer 1968 – Near Flagstaff, Arizona, USA: A lifetime experiencer of OBEs sees a trio of lights with his daughter. A pressure wave hits their car and he steps, trancelike, into a craft holding several tall, robed, noseless humanoids.

1969 – Ellsworth, Maine, USA: Shirley Fickett receives psychic downloads of "an alien intelligence... 'training' her in 'astral projection.'" In one instance, she sees a classic Grey alien, on others she receives communication from her deceased father. These experiences prompt her to wonder: "What if they (the UFOnauts) know the secret of life and death? Suppose there is an etheric plane that we go to after death, and the aliens know this plane well?" (see Chapter 1).²⁸

July 21, 1975 – **Solnechnogorsk, Moscow Oblast, Russia:** An artist named Malichev is painting a landscape when he feels someone touch his shoulder. Turning, he beholds a flying saucer behind three beings who speak with him telepathically. He declines their invitation into the ship and the craft takes flight, transforming several times in the process before landing again in a nearby field.

Years later, his daughter dies. Shortly after her funeral, a friend visits him to relay an urgent message: around 2:20 a.m., "she was awakened by a noise and then saw her roof begin to

²⁴ Raynes 2018.

²⁵ Fowler 2020.

²⁶ Turner 1994.

²⁷ Contessina. (n.d.). Contessina's SMR. Retrieved September 27, 2021 from https://www.nderf.org/ NDERF/Soulmates/contessina's smr.htm

²⁸ Raynes, B. (February 1982). UFOs or "Soul Ships?" MUFON UFO Journal 168, pp. 15-17.

dissolve. In the air above, she saw a type of spaceship. Two tall beings appeared, and in between them was my daughter. They told her they hadn't been able to get through to me because of something, but to let me know that my daughter was okay and was with them!"²⁹

This time, Malichev finds himself compelled to enter the ship, in which he travels to a planet with three moons. During his journey, he meets "his best friend, who had recently died."³⁰

July 17, 1978 – London, UK: Taking a rest while walking her dog, one Mrs. Mary sees a large ball of light hurtle through the sky and rest in a copse of trees. Two short figures emerge before a figure sitting beside her draws her attention: it is Mrs. Mary's father, who had passed away six years earlier. She passes out before her daughters rescue her. She is wracked by pain for several weeks, and paranormal experiences fill her home afterward.³¹

September 6, 1978 – Venando Tuerto, Argentina: Young Juan Pérez encounters beings from a flying saucer landed in a field. They take him into another realm where he meets his deceased grandfather (see Chapter 13).³²

Summer 1979 – **Bayamón, Puerto Rico:** As their surroundings darken, confusion overcomes a mother and daughter driving the highway, with each describing the other "as though in a trance." A blue-white light floods the car and the pair are left with two-and-a-half hours of missing time.

Nearly 15 years later, hypnotic regression reveals an incredible story involving tall Grey aliens, examinations, healing, spiritual messages, and a beach visit via flying saucer... where their deceased husband/father greets them. He had passed away nine months prior, and what's more, was able to walk—which he had not done since being wounded in the Korean War. They also sense the presence of others who had accompanied them throughout their lives.³³

December 26, 1985 – Accord, New York, USA: Whitley Strieber's initial abduction includes a dead friend (see Chapter 14).³⁴

²⁹ Strieber & Strieber 2016.

³⁰ Vallee 1992.

³¹ Randles 1983.

³² Stivelman 2019.

³³ Martín, J. (Spring 1998). Carried Up Into the Light. (G. Creighton, Trans.). *Flying Saucer Review* 43(1), pp. 10-22.

³⁴ Strieber & Kripal 2016.

1986 – **Texas, USA**: During a period of heavy abductions, a woman encounters her father selling fruit (see Chapter 11).³⁵

March 1986 – Makhachkala, Republic of Dagestan, Russia: Unable to sleep, Alexander steps out of bed, only to fall on his face and lose consciousness while bright, multicolored lights swirl about him. He awakens in a realm surrounded by "beautiful" aliens who ask permission to experiment on him. He concedes, and his dead friend Sergei appears in a pressurized space suit.

"After death we change," he says. "I am in another state. I like it here. If you want you can stay here also... I have a lot of work." Sergei leaves and Alexander walks through a door into a bright pastoral scene populated by his dead relatives, including his mother and father. Unable to accept this reality, Alexander is escorted into a room filled with corpses, then flies back to Earth through a dark tunnel before awakening next to his son, a new scar in the shape of a cross on the back of his hand.³⁶

January-June 1986 – **Pitsunda, Gagra District, Georgia:** After dabbling with Spiritualism, Marina Yritsyan's family finds the room filled with greenish light, an odor of ozone permeating the air. A note appears: "We are not spirits, we are representatives of an extraterrestrial civilization."

These contacts continue for six months, growing to include warnings of impending earthquakes and messages from one "Oleg Dahl," a dead man. Dahl instructs Yritsyan to visit his grave, where she will meet Dahl's wife. Yritsyan declines, but later accepts a June 17 invitation to visit a seaside rental property in Pitsunda where she will see Dahl's spirit. Yritsyan asks for her father, dead 20 years, to appear as well.

Arriving at the home, Yritsyan and friends find a room with a broken television set. Around 3:00 in the morning on June 18, footsteps are heard outside. The Spiritualists agree to open the front door, and a thirtysomething man carrying a black box walks in, acting robotically. After he places the box on the broken TV, the screen flickers to life.

Images include unfamiliar faces and an empty "Roman theater" before the screen dies once more and the man leaves. Forty minutes later, four individuals enter the room, including Yritsyan's dead father and Oleg Dahl, all dressed in nondescript fashion.

A lengthy conversation follows in the courtyard between Yritsyan, another witness, and the entities, all the time attended by "several other men in white coveralls" observing from a distance. Sometime around 5:00 a.m. the crew departs to the beach, with Yritsyan's father telling her, "Everything will be fine!" The witnesses watch as the spirits don matching white

³⁵ Ibid.

³⁶ Priyma, A. (n.d.). Case 60. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1986 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1986.pdf

coveralls and face coverings. With a wave of his hand, Dahl and the others disappear into the waves, followed by a bright light which flashes on the horizon.³⁷

Late 1980s – Location unknown: Bret Oldham's dead stepfather greets him—possibly a screen memory—and hugs his son (see Chapter 13).³⁸

1987 – Virgin Islands: Abductee Lily Martinson sees her dead brother at the foot of her bed while vacationing, later remembered as a Grey alien (see Chapter 13).³⁹

1987 – Zapolyarnyi, Murmansk Oblast, Russia: On a walk before bed, two gigantic cylinders descending from the sky paralyze L. Solovyeva. A hatch opens on one of the structures, pulling her inside. Among the other people within, Solovyeva sees a friend who died two years prior, leading her to assume the other captives represent lost souls.

The craft lands in a forest and releases the abductees, each of whom wears a collar around their necks, presumably controlling them. Solovyeva flees, reaching a bridge and flagging down a car. Unfortunately, a voice inside her head urges her back into the craft.

The next thing she remembers is arriving at an operating theatre in an alien "base" where two glowing spheres transform into alien beings, one tall, the other short. She blacks out, regaining consciousness in a forest near home.⁴⁰

1988 – **Location unknown:** A ten-year-old boy sees his recently deceased brother in his room—accompanied by small blue entities—at the exact moment his parents watch a fireball pass overhead (see Chapter 10).⁴¹

1988 – Accord, New York, USA: Several people intent on meeting his Visitors gather at Whitley Strieber's cabin, site of his contact several years earlier. Around midnight, guests in the living room find themselves paralyzed, though they can still speak and discuss their shared sensations. A troop of "dwarf acrobats in dark blue clothes" begin leaping about the room for five to 15 minutes, after which the guests can move again.

Sharing their encounter the following morning, the witnesses learn that guests staying in the basement saw—at the same time the dwarfs appeared upstairs—a friend who had died in a Mexico City earthquake several years prior, standing at the foot of their bed.⁴² She held a torn

³⁷ Rosales, A. (May 27, 2021). Personal communication.

³⁸ Oldham 2013.

³⁹ Jacobs 1999.

⁴⁰ Anomalnye Novosti. (June 2006). Case 11. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1987 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1987.pdf

⁴¹ Strieber 2011.

⁴² Ibid.

sweater, the only thing recovered from the accident.⁴³ The dead woman had looked perfectly fine, however, telling her friends she was "all right."⁴⁴

1988 – Accord, New York, USA: Lorie Barnes meets her brother, likely dead for eight years, on a road near Whitley Strieber's cabin.⁴⁵ That night, the Visitors appear (see Chapter 14).⁴⁶

March 28-29, 1989 – Pensacola, Florida, USA: Recurring abductee Katharina Wilson drives across the west side of town and is compelled down a road where she enters a UFO. Her memories are fragmented: something is forced up her nose, and she recalls snippets of seeing her high school friend John and "another man."

"They are both dead. They both committed suicide some years ago in separate incidents." She receives impressions of animals in cages before speaking to the stranger, who seems strangely familiar. He tells her she is "on the other side... where you go when you die," yet she is simultaneously dead *and* alive.⁴⁷

February 1990 – Donetsk, Ukraine: A dog belonging to 68-year-old Ivan Nikanorovich rouses him from sleep to go outside. Several tall entities await Nikanorovich and hypnotize him, taking him into their round craft for an examination. Lengthy conversations and even an alien feast ensue before they set course back to Earth, stopping at an undisclosed location along the way.

Responding to the sound of his name being called from the dense fog outside, Nikanorovich sees his sisters, long since departed. Both look surprisingly young, and inform their brother that their dead father and grandfather are present, but his mother—who never visited their gravesites—has been banished to a separate location.

Amazed, Nikanorovich wishes to visit his forefathers, but his alien handlers dissuade him, instead allowing him to see them from afar. They are shepherding a flock in a nearby meadow. Nikanorovich spots a recently deceased neighbor passing by with building materials before he returns to the ship, which takes him back to Earth.⁴⁸

⁴³ Strieber 2020.

⁴⁴ Strieber 2011.

⁴⁵ Strieber 1995.

⁴⁶ Harold 2021.

⁴⁷ Wilson 1993.

⁴⁸ Leszshenko, G.Y. (1994). Case 86. In In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1990 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1990.pdf

March 1990 – Krivolozhaka, Oryol Oblast, Russia: After beings descend in a cloud, 62-year-old Aleksandr Kuzmich enters a spherical spacecraft where he embraces his deceased son (see Chapter 11).⁴⁹

June 1990 – Ufa, Republic of Bashkortostan, Russia: A mother and her brother see two stars in the sky, one pink, the other blue, which move about erratically. The former emits a sphere. As it approaches them, the mother hears the voice of her son, dead three years. The area illuminates and her son appears, accompanied by a woman and a child, their baby. The family vanishes before the son reappears in the company of "his friends, three men in bright jackets." The son bids his mother and uncle goodbye, and the visitors, sphere, and stars vanish.⁵⁰

November 20, 1990 - Toropovo, Nizhny Novgorod Oblast, Russia: Beings in a metallic craft wearing antennaed helmets kidnap Maxim Zhirkov on his way home from a tennis match. He watches scenes from his life on Earth, receives a waxy candy, and visits their homeworld. While there he sees "silent people' or the souls of humans who had passed away," including his uncle, dead for five years.⁵¹

1992 – Near Washington DC, USA: Lucy claims a lifetime of negative abductions by both Greys and ageless men who sexually assault her regularly, attended by strange bruises, seizures, medical ailments, and electronic malfunctions. One night during a heightened period of abductions, the doorbell rings. Stepping outside, she sees a man in the bushes—her dead father.⁵²

December 1994 – Location unknown: An experiencer at his father's home sees a bright light, out of which appears his deceased brother, Donnie. The pair walk outside through the forest before stopping at a tree stump. A photo album sits on the stump, and once the witness picks it up, Donnie disappears. Inside are photos of UFOs. The experience—a dream?—seems incredibly real. Later, the witness finds a box containing the same clothes Donnie wore during their walk.⁵³

February 1997 – North Berwick, Scotland, UK: Though her apparition does not appear, a grandmother sends a message to her granddaughter Angie two weeks after her death via a three foot-tall being smelling like "burnt cardboard or paper." Paralyzed, Angie watches as the

⁴⁹ UFOLOG Russia n.d.

⁵⁰ Vozyakova, L. (n.d.). Case 314. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1990 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1990.pdf

⁵¹ Ivanov, I. (1990, December 4). Toropovo Anomalies. Lenin's Path 144, p. 4.

⁵² Schnabel 1994.

⁵³ Strieber & Strieber 2016.

being leans over her and telepathically says, "Gran says do it in the morning." The entity vanishes, and the next day the witness applies for her "dream job," postponed by the grief of her grandmother's passing.⁵⁴

June 9, 1997 – **Gärtenroth, Germany:** While watching a triangular UFO fly overhead, a witness is compelled to pray, hearing the voice of a friend dead for over two decades. She drives in a frenzy to the gravesite and, once there, walks to it as if in a trance. She again hears her deceased friend, who is pleased that she has visited, and her mania subsides.⁵⁵

⁵⁴ Picknett, L. (2001). *The Mammoth Book of UFOs.* London, UK: Robinson.

⁵⁵ Greyhunter. (n.d.). Case 181. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1997 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1997.pdf

APPENDIX C

This is a selected list of UFOs and aliens seen in modern cemeteries and graveyards.

August 14, 1951 – Veghenza, Italy: A farmer watches a flying saucer land on his property, which borders the town cemetery. A trio of short beings in reflective coveralls wearing breathing apparatuses survey the landscape before spotting the farmer and panicking, firing a tube-like device in his direction to no effect. They climb in their craft and depart.⁵⁶

October 9, 1954 - Pournoy-la-Chetive, France: Four children roller skating in a cemetery encounter a short figure with large, black eyes which shines a blinding light at them. They flee.⁵⁷

1967 – Arkansas, USA: UFOs appear above a funeral home located in a cemetery (see Chapter 13).⁵⁸

1967 – Elk Garden, West Virginia, USA: Three witnesses near a cemetery with a haunted reputation (including strange lights) see a peculiar flying object shining lights on fresh graves. It resembles "a big turtle"—an animal psychopomp—"with lights on it." The primary witness, a reverend, claims "It seems like every time there was a new grave, within the next couple of nights, people would see lights up there." 59

August 5, 1967 – Sawyer, North Dakota, USA: Ronald Sherven and Robert Bodine see a white glowing object which first hides behind a hill, then reappears at ground level in a cemetery before flying north.⁶⁰

March 8, 1967 – Leominster, Massachusetts, USA: Early in the morning a young couple notice a cemetery shrouded in fog. A light above leads them to initially suspect a fire—but when the car dies, the primary witness feels an electric shock, and his arm is forcefully thrust backwards, they know it represents something more sinister. He is paralyzed as the object departs with a humming sound.⁶¹

⁵⁶ Randles 1997.

⁵⁷ Dennett 2002.

⁵⁸ Ibid.

⁵⁹ Corrales 2012.

⁶⁰ Vallee 1993.

⁶¹ Dennett 2002.

May 7, 1967 – Edmonton, Alberta, Canada: Young Ricky Banyard and Glenn Coates watch a strange object in the sky through binoculars as it hovers above a cemetery, whistling and illuminating the ground before departing. It leaves behind calcified stones.⁶²

October 1973 – Haverhill, Massachusetts, USA: Future rock star Rob Zombie sees a UFO hovering above a cemetery while leaving his third grade Halloween party.⁶³

November 2, 1973 – **Manchester, New Hampshire:** Lyndia Morel sees a multicolored light while driving home. It follows her and seemingly takes control of her car until, passing Westlawn Cemetery, it draws near enough for her to spy a small Grey in its window. "Don't be afraid," she hears in her head. Despite no recollection of stopping her car, she experiences a memory lapse encompassing at least a half mile of travel.⁶⁴

1976 – **England:** Two boys playing in a cemetery find a trench terminating in a doorway. Opening it, they find computers, control panels, and a pair of classic Greys. The beings seem surprised. Two tall "robots" apprehend the children, after which they only recall awakening in their bedrooms.⁶⁵

April 28, 1976 – Gurabo, Puerto Rico: Angel González accidentally photographs a UFO at a funeral (see Chapter 13).⁶⁶

July 21, 1977 – **Bradford, Pennsylvania:** Three Bradford, Pennsylvania police officers watch a pair of lights fly in the direction of Oak Hill Cemetery.⁶⁷

1989 – **São Paulo, Brazil:** A gravedigger at Aracariguama Cemetery sees a UFO resembling a metallic "upside-down hat"... 40 years after Joao Prestes was allegedly killed by a beam from an unknown aerial object. Following his death, Prestes's brother had allegedly watched "two fireballs rising and striking each other" near the cemetery.⁶⁸

⁶² Vallee 1993.

⁶³ Corrales 2012.

⁶⁴ Fowler 2020.

⁶⁵ UFO Experiencer Support. (n.d.). Case 194. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1976 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1976.pdf

⁶⁶ Corrales 2012.

⁶⁷ Corrales 2012.

⁶⁸ Ibid.

1991 - Somalia: During the civil war, a flying saucer circles above a field strewn with unburied fallen soldiers, emitting a light. The bodies are allegedly mutilated and exsanguinated.⁶⁹

September 12, 1995 – Northford, Connecticut: A two-foot-by-two-foot "helmet" appears on the ground in All Saints Cemetery, attended by a "static" sound. The primary witness watches blinking lights on the object before twice hearing "Oops, we goofed!" inside her head. Retreating to a nearby monument, she returns to find the object gone. Her experience mirrors an experience at the site 15 years earlier from a different woman, who saw the same object in the sky.⁷⁰

October 27, 1995 – Jalapa, Guatemala: Witnesses watch two UFOs collide "directly above the Bosques del Recuerdo cemetery."⁷¹

May 30, 2002 – Lembang, West Bandung Regency, Indonesia: A witness allegedly sees a UFO collecting bodies as it hovers above a cemetery (see Chapter 13).⁷²

⁶⁹ Voloznev, I. (n.d.). Case 14. In A. Rosales (Ed.), *1991 Humanoid Sighting Reports*. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1991.pdf

⁷⁰ Connecticut MUFON. (n.d.). Case 251. In A. Rosales (Ed.), 1995 Humanoid Sighting Reports. Retrieved February 5, 2014 from http://www.ufoinfo.com/humanoid/humanoid-1995.pdf

⁷¹ Corrales 2012.

⁷² NUFORC n.d.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

With inexpressible gratitude for Barbara Fisher, whose edits, insight, and wisdom have proven invaluable in this process.

The author also wishes to thank the following individuals for their help in bringing this work together, in ways both big and small:

Chris Aubeck, Seriah Azkath, Greg Bishop, Cherylee Black, Chuck Carte, Mike Clelland, Wren Collier, Morgan Daimler, Susan Demeter, J.H., Rey Hernandez, Trey Hudson, Jack Hunter, Martin Kottmeyer, Jeffrey J. Kripal, Greg Little, Alex Matsuo, Tina McSwain, David Metcalfe, Johnny Decker Miller, Bernhard Reicher, Timothy Renner, Brother Richard, Miguel "Red Pill Junkie" Romero, Albert Rosales, Neil Rushton, Victor Soltren, Tyler Strand, Cyndi Vojvoda, Saxon Williams, Chris Woodyard, & Simon Young

With special thanks to the following organizations:

Ask Terence McKenna, Dúchas.ie, Near-Death Experience Research Foundation, Foundation for Research into Extraterrestrial and Extraordinary Experiences, The Faculty of the University of Georgia Religion and Classics Departments, Erowid Center, and all the 6 Degrees of John Keel and Where Did the Road Go? family.

And an abiding appreciation to my family and friends for their undying support.



ABOUT THE AUTHOR

In addition to writing, Joshua Cutchin is a published composer and maintains an active performing and recording schedule as a tuba player based out of Atlanta, Georgia. He has appeared on dozens of programs including Coast to Coast AM, and is regularly invited to speak at paranormal conferences about his books. Joshua contributed to Robbie Graham's 2017 essay collection *UFOs: Reframing the Debate*, as well as David Weatherly's 2018 collection *Wood Knocks: Vol. 3.* Cutchin has also appeared on the hit History Channel television show *Ancient Aliens*. He is a recurring guest on *Where Did the Road Go?*, and maintains an online presence at *JoshuaCutchin.com*.

Photo by Justen Clay

OTHER BOOKS BY JOSHUA CUTCHIN

A Trojan Feast:

The Food and Drink Offerings of Aliens, Faeries, and Sasquatch (2015)

The Brimstone Deceit:

An In-Depth Examination of Supernatural Scents, Otherworldly Odors, and Monstrous Miasmas (2016)

Thieves in the Night:

A Brief History of Supernatural Child Abductions (2018)

Fairy Films:

Wee Folk on the Big Screen (2020, editor and contributor)

With co-author, Timothy Renner

Where the Footprints End:

High Strangeness and the Bigfoot Phenomenon, Volume I: Folklore (2020)

Where the Footprints End:

High Strangeness and the Bigfoot Phenomenon, Volume II: Evidence (2020)

PRAISE FOR ECOLOGY OF SOULS

In Ecology of Souls, Joshua Cutchin makes the case for an ecological perspective on the paranormal, with the processes of death and dying seen as essential clues for unravelling its mysteries. Paranormal entities of all different kinds are conceived as psychopomps performing ancient cosmic functions—ushering souls in their transition to the other side. By applying comparative methods—examining patterns across different cultural and folkloric traditions, and exploring commonalities between experiential narratives—Cutchin builds an argument for the centrality of death in all manner of paranormal experiences. This book is a bold and innovative contribution to Fortean research and scholarship, and a kaleidoscopic expedition into the wilds of the paranormal ecosystem.

– Jack Hunter, PhD, editor of Greening the Paranormal: Exploring the Ecology of Extraordinary Experience

In a world where there are an infinite amount of questions, Joshua Cutchin has some of the answers! He offers a refreshing look into the concept of death and paranormal experiences through a fascinating lens while going back to our cultural lore. Whether you are curious or a skilled anomalous researcher, this book should be a must-add to any library.

- Alex Matsuo, founder and director of Association of Paranormal Study

Those of us who work in these strangest of folklores work with conjectures, not certainties, with intuitions, not conclusions. Still, there are particularly gifted writers whom I profoundly trust to guide me. Joshua Cutchin is among them. Here are yet two more big books from him on a global comparison that many of us have made but no one has pursued to the literal ends of the earth, as he has here—that between the world of the dead and the world of the UFO. Please read these books. And please recognize that when we can only speak of these glowing presences as 'threats' in the sky, we might as well be trying to shoot down souls. Good luck with that.

– Jeffrey J. Kripal, J. Newton Rayzor Professor of Religion, Associate Dean of the School of Humanities, Rice University



Art by Johnny Decker Miller